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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
GFtAHAM COUNTY UTILITLES, LNC. 

DOCKET NO. GO2527A-12-0321 

Graham County Utilities Inc. (“Graham” or “GCU” or ccCompanf’) is a non-profit 
cooperative and public service corporation whose purpose is to provide both gas distribution 
services and water services to rural areas in Graham County, Arizona. Due to the separate nature 
of these services, Graham is composed of two wholly owned, separate divisions known as 
Graham County Utilities Inc. - Gas Division (“Graham Gas”) and Graham County Utilities Inc. 
- Water Division (“Graham Water”). As of December 31, 2012, Graham Gas provided natural 
gas distribution service to approximately 5,200 customers and Graham Water provided water 
service to approximately 1,200 customers. Graham is also affiliated with Graham County 
Electric Cooperative (“Graham Electric”) in that the parties have entered into an agreement 
whereby Graham Electric provides management services to Graham. 

On July 13, 2012, Graham filed a general rate application for Graham Gas and 
subsequently amended the filing on August 10, 2012. As amended, the application shows a 
$46,478 adjusted net margin for the test year that ended September 30, 2011. Graham Gas’s 
application proposes total operating revenue of $3,466,484, a $224,132 increase (6.91 percent), 
over its $3,242,352 test year revenue. Graham Gas’s proposed revenue, as filed, would provide a 
$371,504 operating income and a $270,610 net margin for a 3.41 times interest earned ratio 
(“TIER”), a 2.18 debt service coverage ratio (“DSC”) and a 10.05 percent rate of return on the 
proposed $2,581,088 fair value rate base (“FVRB”) which is the same as the proposed original 
cost rate base (“OCRB”). 

Mi. Bozzo’s testimony presents Staffs recommendation for rate base, operating income, 
and the revenue requirement. Staffs examination shows that Graham Gas experienced a 
$28,304 net margin in the test year. Staff recommends total operating revenue of $3,466,484, a 
$224,132 increase (6.91 percent), over the $3,242,352 test year revenues to provide a $405,819 
operating margin, a $252,436 net margin, a 2.46 TIER, a 1.54 DSC and a 10.18 percent rate of 
return on a $2,369,529 FVRB. Staffs test year results reflect one rate base adjustment as shown 
on BIB-3 (removal of $211,559 in construction work-in-progress) and three other expense 
adjustments as shown on BKB-6 (a $1,381 increase to rate case expense, a $35,696 reduction in 
interest expense - other and a corresponding $52,489 increase in the interest expense on long 
term debt). Staffs recommended revenue requirement is provisional and subject to change 
because it includes an amount for debt service coverage on a loan that the Company has 
informed Staff that it plans to issue after filing a request for and receiving Arizona Corporation 
Commission authorization. 
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I. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

INTRODUCTION 

Please state your name and business address. 

My name is Brian K. Bozzo. My business address is 1200 West Washington Street, 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007. 

By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am employed with the Arizona Corporation Commission (“Commission” or “A.C.C.”) in 

the Utilities Division (“Staff ’) as the Compliance and Enforcement Manager. Until July 

2003, I was employed by the Commission as a Public Utility Analyst V in the accounting 

section known as Financial and Regulatory Analysis (“FRA”). 

Please describe your education and work experience. 

I obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from the University of 

Arizona located in Tucson, Arizona. In 1991, I joined Staff as a rate analyst. I have been 

responsible for conducting case preparatiodanalysis and serving as a Commission witness 

in rate proceedings, finance authorizations and Certificate of Convenience and Necessity 

(“CC&N”) proceedings, among others. During the course of these duties, I attended 

numerous seminars on utility rate-making including courses presented by the National 

Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners (“NARUC”) and New Mexico State 

University. 

Since July 2003, I have been the manager of Compliance and Enforcement in the 

Compliance Section of the Utilities Division. In the course of these duties, I conduct 

analyses of numerous compliance matters, document compliance findings and make 

recommendations on compliance status to Commission Staff and the Commission itself. I 

also periodically conduct case work on pending cases. 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

Direct Testimony of Brian K. Bozzo 
Docket No. G-02527A-12-0321 
Page 2 

Q 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Please describe your responsibilities regarding the case work that you perform. 

I provide investigations into numerous regulatory and utility issues and am responsible for 

conducting economic analysis in the preparation of fmancial and statistical reports, 

recommendations, testimony and evidence. These duties are conducted in the disposition 

of Commission proceedings dealing with utility applications and services. 

In the performance of these duties, I perform financial analysis, conduct audits on utility 

books and records, determine revenue requirements and develop rate designs for complex 

regulatory matters. This includes malung pro forma adjustments to operating expenses, 

developing rate schedules and calculating net incomes and rates of return. I have also 

composed numerous Staff reports, prepared direct and surrebuttal testimony encompassing 

recommendations to the Commission and served as a Staff witness at utility rate hearings. 

What is the purpose of your testimony in this case? 

The purpose of my testimony in this case is to present the Staff recommendations 

regarding the Graham County Utilities, Inc.’s (“Graham County” or “GCU” or 

“Company”) application for a permanent rate increase relating to its Gas Division. My 

testimony includes recommendations for the regulatory areas of rate base and revenue 

requirement. 

What is the basis of Staffs recommendations? 

Staff performed a regulatory audit of the Company’s records to determine whether 

sufficient evidence exists to support Graham County’s request for an increase in its rates 

and charges. A regulatory audit consists of examining Company books and records, 

reviewing accounting ledgers, reports and workpapers, using data requests and responses 

to confirm Company information, tracing recorded amounts to source documents, and 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

verifjmg that the Ccmpany follows Arizona Revised Statutes, Commission rules and that 

accounting principles used are applied in accordance with the Commission authorized 

Uniform System of Accounts (“USoA”). In the course of completing these duties, Staff 

conducted meetings with Company representatives/consultants to discuss the Company 

application for an increase in rates and collect necessary information and to clarify 

Company positions. 

What other Staff members are presenting Direct Testimony in the Graham Gas 

case? 

Mr. Bob Gray is responsible for the preparation of Rate Design Testimony. Mr. Prem 

Bahl is assigned to prepare the Cost of Service Testimony. Ms. Ranelle Paladin0 is 

responsible for providing testimony on Graham Gas’s proposed changes to its Rules and 

Regulations and on Staffs recommendations regarding implementation of a Demand Side 

Management (“DSM’) plan. And Mr. Alan Borne of the Pipeline Safety division will 

provide testimony on technical issues. 

How is your testimony organized? 

My Direct Testimony is composed in eight specific sections: 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Section I is composed of this introduction. 

Section II provides a background of the Company. 

Section III is a summary of consumer service issues. 

Section N is a summary of proposed revenues. 

Section V is a summary of Staffs rate base and operating expense adjustments. 

0 

0 

Section VI presents S t a r s  rate base recommendations. 

Section VII presents Staff’s operating margin recommendations. 
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Q. 
A. 

II. 

Q* 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

0 Section VIII addresses non-operating margin recommendations and anticipated 

financing requests for long-term debt and a line-of-credit. 

Have you prepared any schedules to accompany your testimony? 

Yes. I prepared Schedules BKB-1 to BKB-9. 

BACKGROUND 

Please review the general nature of Graham County operations. 

Graham County is a non-profit cooperative and public service corporation whose purpose 

is to provide both gas distribution services and water services to an area in Graham 

County, Arizona. Due to the separate nature of these services, Graham County is 

composed of two wholly owned, separate divisions known as Graham County Utilities 

Inc. - Gas Division (“Graham Gas”) and Graham County Utilities Inc. - Water Division 

(“Graham Water”). GCU states that it manages the Operations of GCU’s Gas and Water 

divisions pursuant to an operations and management agreement. Graham County is also 

affiliated with Graham County Electric Cooperative (“Graham Electric”) in that the parties 

have entered into an agreement whereby Graham Electric provides management services 

to Graham County. 

What entity would file any rate applications with the Commission on behalf of 

Graham Gas or Graham Water? 

Graham County is the company wide entity and files rate applications on behalf of the 

divisions - either for Graham Gas or Graham Water. The instant case is an example of 

Graham County filing an application for a rate increase - on a stand-alone basis - for its 

gas division, Graham Gas. 
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, 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Please discuss the gas division and the dates the application was filed. 

Graham Gas is an Arizona class B nonprofit cooperative and public service corporation 

whose sole purpose is to provide gas distribution services specifically to the rural areas in 

Graham County, Arizona. On July 13, 2012, Graham filed a general rate application for 

Graham Gas and subsequently amended the filing on August 10, 2012, by docketing 

revised schedules per Staffs suggestion. On August 13,2012, Staff filed a letter declaring 

the Company’s application sufficient. As of December 31, 2012, Graham Gas provided 

natural gas distribution service to 5,162 customers and Graham Water provided water 

service to 1,203 customers to rural areas in Graham County, Arizona. 

Was proper notice provided to customers regarding the proposed rate increase? 

Yes. On November 13, 2012, Graham County filed an affidavit of publication and 

certification of mailing for it public notice for its rate application that was mailed to 

customers and published in the Eastern Arizona Courier by October 3 1,20 12. 

What reason did Graham County provide for filing the rate application for Graham 

Gas? 

The application identifies the investment in plant improvements and replacements, since 

the prior test year of September 30,2008, as the underlying reason for the request for new 

rates. In addition, GCU states that it has experienced increases in other expenses such as 

salaries and benefits and purchased gas since its last test year. 

What Test Year was used by the Company in the current filing? 

The Graham Gas application applies a historical Test Year utilizing the twelve months 

ending September 30,201 1. 
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Q. 
A. 

HI. 

Q* 

A. 

IV. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

When were the present rates for Graham Gas established? 

The Commission authorized the Company’s present permanent rates in Decision No. 

71690, dated May 3,2010. These rates became effective on May 1,2010. 

CONSUMER SERVICE 

Please provide a brief summary of the customer complaints received by the 

Commission for Graham Gas. 

Staff reviewed the Commission’s records and found one complaint during the past three 

years and no customer opinions opposed to the proposed rate increase. The single 

complaint was both filed and resolved in 2010. The Company is in good standing with the 

Corporations Division. 

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED REVENUES 

What revenue requirement is being proposed in the Graham Gas application? 

The Graham Gas application proposes total operating revenue of $3,466,484, a $224,132 

increase (6.91 percent), over its $3,242,352 test year revenue. Graham Gas’s proposed 

revenue, as filed, would provide a $371,504 operating income and a $270,610 net margin 

for a 3.41 times interest earned ratio (“TIER”), a 2.18 debt service coverage ratio (“DSC”) 

and a 10.05 percent rate of return on the proposed $2,581,088 fair value rate base 

(,‘FVR€3”) which is the same as the proposed original cost rate base (“0CRBy’). 

What is Staff‘s revenue requirement recommendation? 

Staff recommends total operating revenue of $3,466,484, a $224,132 increase (6.91 

percent), over the $3,242,352 test year revenues to provide a $405,819 operating margin, a 
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V. 

Q. 
A. 

$252,436 net margin, a 2.46 TIER, a 1.54 DSC and a 10.18 percent rate of return on a 

$2,369,529 FVRB.’ 

SUMMARY OF STAFF’S RATE BASE AND EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS 

Please summarize Staffs rate base and expense adjustments. 

Rate Base: 

Construction Work in Process V‘CWIP”) - This adjustment removes $211,559 in cost 

represented as CWIP at the end of the test year. 

Operating Margin: 

Rate Case Expense - This adjustment increases the rate case expense by $1,381, from 

$6,000 to $7,381. 

Interest Expense - Other - This adjustment removes $35,696 of interest expense 

associated with funds advanced over a long-term by Graham Electric without Commission 

authorization. 

Interest on Long-Term Debt - This pro forma adjustment increases Long-Term Debt by 

$52,489 to reflect the first year interest on an anticipated new loan the Company has 

advised Staff that it will shortly file with the Commission to obtain authorization for the 

advances received from Graham Electric. 

Staff calculates TIER and DSC differently than the Company by excluding non-operating accounts, notably Capital 
Credits, in the numerator of the calculation. 
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VI. RATEBASE 

Fair Value Rate Base 

Q. Does the application for Graham Gas include schedules with elements of a 

Reconstruction Cost New Rate Base? 

No. The Company’s application does not request recognition of a Reconstruction Cost 

New Rate Base. Therefore, the Company’s OCRB is its FVRB. 

A. 

Rate Base Summary 

Q. 

A. 

Please summarize Staff’s rate base recommendation. 

Staff recommends a $2,369,529 rate base, a $211,559 reduction from the Company’s 

proposed $2,581,088 rate base. Staffs recommendation results from the rate base 

adjustment described below. 

Rate Base Adjustment No. 1 - C W P  Removal 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

What did the Company propose with respect to CWIP? 

The Company proposed the inclusion of CWIP in the rate base during the test year. 

Is the inclusion of CWIP in rate base appropriate? 

No. CWIP by definition is not used and useful plant-in-service. This account reflects 

plant facilities that are only in the process of being built and are therefore not used and 

useful in serving customers. As such, they are excluded from rate base until the facilities 

meet the classifications of being completed, serving customers and having been 

reclassified into a plant in service category in the Company books and records. They 

would then be available for inclusion in the plant in service of a subsequent rate case. 
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Q. 

A. 

What is Staff recommending regarding CWIP? 

Staff recommends excluding the proposed $21 1,559 of CWP fiom rate base, as shown in 

Schedule BIU3-5. 

MI. OPERATING MARGIN 

Operating Margin Adjustment No. I -Rate Case Expense 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Please discuss Staff's review of Rate Case Expense. 

Schedule C-2 of the Company's application shows a $6,000 pro forma adjustment to its 

test year operating expenses. In a November 1, 2012 e-mail, the Company explained to 

Staff that the $6,000 pro forma represents the $12,000 total rate case cost (amortized over 

two years) initially anticipated, but that the total rate case expense accumulated to $22,145 

with the entirety of hours necessary to complete the case. Staff reviewed the rate case 

hours and found the new amount reasonable for the case. Staff understands that the 

Company will request to spread the cost over three years resulting in a $7,381 annual rate 

case expense. 

What is Staff's recommendation for rate case expense? 

Staff recommends increasing rate case expense by $1,381, from $6,000 to $7,381, as 

shown in Schedule BIB-7. 

Operating Margin Adjustment No. 2 - Interest Expense - Other 

Q. 

A. 

Please discuss Staff's review of Interest Expense - Other. 

The Company's proposes to include $35,696 in Interest Expense-Other associated with 

advances received from Graham Electric without Commission authorization. Interest 

'obligations on these advances from Graham Electric, even with authorization, are not 

appropriately recorded in the Interest Expense-Other account. Further, since the advances 
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did not receive the required authorization, neither should the related costs receive 

recognition in the revenue requirement until such authorization is granted. The Company 

has advised Staff that it will shortly file with the Commission to obtain authorization for 

the advances received from Graham Electric. As discussed in Section VIII below 

regarding Interest Expense on Long-Term Debt, in developing its revenue requirement for 

Graham Gas, Staff is provisionally recognizing the interest and principal on the 

anticipated loan in the appropriate manner in developing its revenue requirement for 

Graham Gas. 

Q. 
A. 

What is Staffs recommendation for Interest Expense - Other? 

Staff recommends decreasing Interest Expense - Other by $35,696, from $44,041 to 

$8,345, as shown in Schedule BKB-8. 

VIII. NON-OPERATING MARGIN - INTEREST EXPENSE ON LONG-TERM 

DEBT/ANTICIPATED FINANCINGS. 

Non-Operating Margin Adjustment No. 1 -Interest on Long-Term Debt 

Q. 
A. 

Q- 
A. 

What did the Company propose for interest on long term debt? 

Schedule C-1 of the application shows that the Company proposed interest on long-term 

debt of $1 12,205. 

To what loans is the Company’s claimed interest expense attributed? 

The Company’s claimed interest expense, as shown in Schedule C-1 of the application, 

represents amounts recorded on actual loans outstanding in the test year. During the test 

year, Graham Gas had five authorized and outstanding long-term loans (Loan Nos. 

9001(F), 9001(V), 9002, 9003 and a relatively new $800,000 CFC loan) all of which 

appear to have been a funding source for acquiring or constructing plant or other assets. 
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As discussed in Section VII above, Graham Gas improperly recorded interest expense 

relating to advances received fiom Graham Electric in the Interest Expense - Other 

account rather than the Interest on Long-Term Debt account. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Why would the Company account for Graham Electric interest in the Interest 

Expense - Other account rather than as Interest Expense on Long-Term Debt? 

The accounting for the Graham Electric loan interest in the Interest Expense - Other 

account indicates that the advances &om Graham Electric to Graham Gas had not been 

formalized as a long-term debt instrument. Rather, the Company has been utilizing the 

availability of monies through its affiliate relationship with Graham Electric as a sort of 

credit card . . . or as an unapproved line of credit whenever it needed cash. When such 

activity results in funds being outstanding for periods exceeding twelve months, it is 

inappropriate without prior Commission authorization. 

Do the balances of the advances from Graham Electric indicate that the amounts 

have been outstanding for longer than twelve months? 

Yes. The outstanding balances of the loan amounts due to Graham Electric as of 

September 30 of the past three fiscal year ends were 2009, $1,096716; 2010, $675,544; 

and 2011, $1,001,059. The advances fiom Graham Electric preceded 2009 for multiple 

years. The outstanding balances exceed that of several of the Company’s existing long- 

term loans obtained through the National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation 

(“CFC”). Graham Gas does not generate sufficient cash flow to pay off debt obligations 

of this magnitude with single year revenues. The Graham Electric advances are both very 

significant and lengthy and should not be classified as short-term in nature. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

What authority requires public service corporations to obtain Commission 

authorization to borrow funds for a period exceeding twelve months? 

Arizona Revised Statute 4 40-301 requires public service corporations to obtain 

Commission authority for funds that are borrowed for a period over 12 months, it states: 

A public service corporation may issue stocks and stock certijkates, 
bonds, notes and other evidences of indebtedness payable at periods of 
more than twelve months after the date thereoJ; only when authorized by 
an order of the commission. 

Has the Company formalized such loans at any time in the past? 

Yes. In the previous rate application (Docket No. G-02527-09-0032), the Company 

applied for and was granted authority for an $800,000 CFC long-term note to replace the 

loans made directly to Graham Gas from Graham Electric. This action allowed the 

Company to obtain Commission authority for the loan and formalized the loan as a long- 

term debt instrument. Those interest costs are reflected in the Interest on Long-Term Debt 

account in the current application. 

Should the current Graham Electric loan amounts be addressed in a similar 

manner? 

Yes, assuming that the Company files a financing application, shows that the funds were 

used for appropriate purposes, provides proper notice to customers and meets any other 

requirements imposed by the Commission. 

Has Staff discussed with the Company the formalization of the current Graham 

Electric loans into approved long-term debt? 

Yes. Pursuant to statutory requirements, the Company should obtain Commission 

authorization for long-term loans between itself and Graham Electric (or any other loan 
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provider). Staff therefore communicated its position that the Company should prepare and 

docket a financing application which would formalize the currently unapproved advances 

from Graham Electric to Graham Gas. The Company has agreed, and it is currently 

preparing such a filing. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Please describe the primary loan in the financing package that the Company is 

preparing. 

Based on the $1,001,059 test-year-end balance of Graham Electric advances, Staff 

suggested and the Company agreed to docket a formal financing requesting a $1,000,000, 

ten-year loan at or near 5.44 percent interest to be executed with Graham Electric. 

Approval of such a loan would allow the Company to both pay down the existing Graham 

Electric debt and obtain Commission approval on the new debt. 

How is Staff treating the anticipated new loan from Graham Electric? 

Staff is provisionally recognizing the interest and principal on a $1,000,000, ten-year 

amortizing loan at 5.44 per annum in its revenue requirement calculation assuming that 

the Company will file the application, properly notice customers, demonstrate the proper 

use of the funds and assuming that the Commission will approve the financing request. 

What amount has Staff used for the first year interest and principal on the 

provisional loan? 

Staff calculated a pro forma first year interest on the anticipated loan of $52,489 and 

principal of $77,386. 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

Direct Testimony of Brian K. Bozzo 
Docket No. G-02527A-12-0321 
Page 14 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

How are the pro forma interest and principal on the provisional loan presented in 

Staff Schedules? 

Staff increased Interest on Long-term Debt by $52,489, from $112,205 to $164,694, as 

shown in Schedules BKB-6 and BKB-9. Staff increased Long-term Debt Principal by 

$77,386, from $116,980 to $194,366, as shown in Schedule BIU3-2, line 25. 

Does Staff‘s provisional revenue requirement provide sufficient debt service 

coverage inclusive of the new provisional loan? 

Yes. As shown in Schedule BKB-2, line 26, Staffs provisional revenue requirement 

provides a 1.54 DSC. 

What is Staffs recommended revenue requirement in the event that the Commission 

elects not to approve the newly proposed $1,000,000 loan? 

If the Commission does not approve the newly proposed loan, the Company’s cash flow 

obligation would be reduced by the amount of the principle and interest on the loan. The 

principle on the loan is $81,702 and the interest on the loan is $48,173 - for a total annual 

debt service of $129,875. Accordingly, Staffs revenue requirement would be reduced by 

$129,875 from $3,466,484 to $3,336,609. 

Line-of Credit 

Q. 

A. 

Will Graham Gas’s anticipated financing request include any elements other than 

the $1,000,000 long-term loan from Graham Electric? 

Yes. The Company communicated to Staff that its financing request will also seek 

Commission authority for a $500,000 line-of-credit (“LOC”) to be established with 

Graham Electric for future borrowing that might be required. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Please discuss the financing as it relates to the anticipated line-of-credit. 

A line-of-credit is an agreement between Company and lender whereby the lender states 

the maximum amount of borrowing that will be offered to the borrower. LOC agreements 

may cover a short period or extend over several years - usually not more than five years. 

The purpose of an LOC is to provide temporary financing for seasonal cash shortfalls or to 

fund CWIP until it is placed in service or to fund small plant additions until the total 

amount funded is sufficiently large to warrant conversion to longer term financing. When 

properly used, an LOC is an appropriate and effective financing mechanism. However, 

using an LOC to fund annual or on-going structural operating margin deficits is not 

appropriate. 

The portion of an LOC used for seasonal cash shortfalls should be eliminated (i.e., 

reduced to zero) at least once annually. In light of the Company’s history managing 

advances received from Graham Electric, any authorization of an LOC should be tied to 

regular (monthly or at least quarterly, e.g., simultaneous filings with its purchase gas 

adjustor reports) filing requirements demonstrating that it has been used only for seasonal 

cash shortfalls and temporary funding of CWIP and small plant additions until conversion 

to longer term financing is appropriate. 

Does Staff have additional comments regarding the anticipated request by the 

Company for a $500,000 LOC with Graham Electric? 

Yes. The Company should notice its customers of its LOC request. Staff suggests that the 

Company demonstrate an understanding of the appropriate use of an LOC in its 

application and commitment to adhering to appropriate uses of the LOC if it is authorized 

by the Commission. Staff suggests that the Company propose an initial LOC term with 

consideration of its history, experience, success with similar borrowings as well as its 
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anticipated needs. Lastly, Staff notes that there is no need for a provision in the revenue 

requirement for any LOC since seasonal cash shortages do not require additional revenues 

and capital improvement should be financed with long-term sources of capital, not 

operating revenues. Staff's recommended revenue requirement contemplates and 

addresses the Company's anticipated debt service obligations. 

Q- 
A. 

Does this conclude your Direct Testimony? 

Yes, it does. 
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Graham County Utilities, Inc. -Gas Division 
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Test Year Ended: September 30,2011 

Line 
- No. Description 

1 Total Test Year Revenue 
2 
3 

Revenue - Base Cost of Gas -Test Year 
Revenue - Non-Base Cost of Gas - Test Year (LI-L2) 

4 
5 
6 

Required Revenue Increase/(Decrease) in Base Rate Gas Cost 
Required Revenue Increase/(Decrease) in Non-Base Rate Gas Cost 
Proposed Annual Revenue Increase/(Decrease) in Base Rates 

7 Proposed Revenue - Base Rate Gas Cost 
8 Proposed Revenue - Base Rate Non-Gas Cost (L3+L5) 
9 Proposed Revenue - Gas Cost Adjustor 
10 Total Recommended Revenue (L7+LB+L9) 

11 Proposed Overall Increase/(Decrease) in Rates (LIO-L1) 

12 Percent Increase over Current Rates 

13 Return on Rate Base 

References: 

Schedule BKB-1 

REVENUE INCREASE SUMMARY 

COOPERATIVE 

FILED RECOMMENDED 

$ 3,242,352 $ 3,242,352 

$ 3,242,352 $ 3,242,352 
$ $ 

$ 224,132 $ 224,132 
$ 224,132 $ 224,132 

$ $ 
$ 2,066,576 $ 2,066,576 

1,399,908 $ 1,399,908 $ 
$ 3,466,484 $ 3,466,484 

$ 224,132 $ 224,132 

6.91% 6.91 % 

10.05% 10.1 8% 

Column A: Company Schedule C-I & A-2 
Column B: BKB-2. BKB Testimony 
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Schedule BKB-2 

I 
[AI P I  [CI [Dl 

SUMMARY OF FILING I 
I 

- . . . -. . - - 

PRESENT RATES I PROPOSEDRATES I 
Cooperative Staff as Cooperative Staff 

Line 
No. - 

as Filed Adjusted Proposed Recommended 

1 Residential, Irrigation, Com'l, & Industrial $ 3,202,309 $ 3,202,309 $ 3,426,441 $ 3,426,441 
Revenues 

2 Other Operating Revenue 
3 Total Revenue 

4 Expenses 
5 Purchased Gas 
6 Distn'bution Expense - Operations 
7 Distribution Expense - Maintenance 
8 Consumer Accounts Expense 
9 ' Administrative and General Expense 
10 Depreciation and Amortization Expense 
11 Tax Expense Property 
12 Tax Expense Other 
13 Interest Expense - Other 
14 Total Operating Expenses 

$ 40,043 $ 40,043 $ 40,043 $ 40,043 
$ 3,242,352 $ 3,242,352 $ 3,466,484 $ 3,466,484 

$ 1,399,908 
337,843 
322,241 
327,042 
437,474 
147,018 
31,306 
48,107 
44,041 

$ 3,094,980 

$ 1,399,908 
337,843 
322,241 
328,423 
437,474 
147,018 
31,306 
48,107 

8,345 
$ 3,060,665 

$ 1,399,908 
337,843 
322,241 
327,042 
437,474 
147,018 
31,306 
48,107 
44,041 

$ 3,094,980 

$ 1,399,908 
337,843 
322,241 
328,423 
437,474 
147,018 
31,306 
48,107 

8,345 
$ 3,060,665 

15 Operating Margins Before Intr. on L.T. Debt $ 147,372 $ 181,687 $ 371,504 $ 405,819 

16 Interest on Long Term Debt ' $ 112,205 $ 164,694 $ 112,205 $ 164,694 

17 Operating Margin after Interest Expense $ 35,167 $ 16,993 $ 259,299 $ 241,125 

18 Non-Operating Margins 
19 Interest Income $ - $  - $  - $  
20 Other Non-Operating Income $ - $  - $  - $  
21 Capital Credits - Cash 
22 Total Non-Operating Margins 

11,311 11,311 11,311 11,311 
11,311 $ 11,311 $ 11,311 $ 11,311 $ 

23 NET MARGINS $ 46,478 $ 28,304 $ 270,610 $ 252,436 

24 Long-Term Debt Principal Payment 116,980 $ 194,366 1 16,980 194,366 

25 TIER 1.31 1.10 3.31 2.46 

26 DSC 1.28 0.92 2.26 1.54 

N o t e  A 
StaWs calculation of the TIER differs from the Cooperative's calculation because it 
does not include non-operating margins in the numerator. 
For comparison purposes, the Cooperative's TIER above was calculated using Staff's methodology. 

References: 

Column A: Company Schedule A-2 & C-I 
Column B: BKB-6 
Column C: Company Schedule A-2 & F- I  
Column D: BKB-6, BKB Testimony 
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Schedule BKBS 

Line 
No. 

[AI [BI [CI 
ORIGINAL COST RATE BASE I 1 

1 Coooerative'l Adiustment 1 Staff 1 

1 Plant in Service 
2 Less: Accumulated Depreciation 
3 NETPLANT 

4 DEDUCTIONS 
5 Customer Deposits 

6 TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 

$ 4,634,243 $ - $ 4,634,243 
2,300,306 2,300,306 

$ 2,333,937 $ - $ 2,333,937 

$ 66,645 $ - $ 66,645 

$ 66,645 $ - $ 66,645 

7 ADDITIONS 
8 Construction work in process $ 211,559 $ (211,559) $ 
9 Materials and Supplies 79,032 79,032 
10 Prepayments 23,205 23,205 

12 TOTAL ADDITIONS $ 313,796 $ (211,559) $ 102,237 
11 Intangible Rate Base $ - $  - $  

13 RATEBASE $ 2,581,088 $ (211,559) $ 2,369,529 

Column A: Company Schedule B-I & E-5 
Column B: BKB-5 
Column C: BKB Testimony 
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Schedule BKB-4 

Line 
- No. INTANGIBLE PLANT: 

1 2301 Organization 
2 SUBTOTAL INTANGIBLE 

DISTRIBUTION PLANT 
3 
4 2376 Mains 
5 2380 Services 
6 2381 Meters & Regulators 

2374 Land & Land Rights 

7 SUBTOTAL DISTRIBUTION 

GENERAL PLANT 
8 2390 Structures & improvements 
9 2391 Ofice Equipment 
10 2392 Transportation Equipment 
11 
12 2396 Power Operated Equipment 

2394 Tools, Shop, & Garage Equipt. 

13 SUBTOTAL GENERAL 

14 TOTAL PLANT IN SERVICE 

15 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 

16 NETPLANT 

DEDUCTIONS 
Customer Deposits 
SUBTOTAL DEDUCT10 NS 

ADDITIONS 
CWlP 
Materials and Supplies 
Prepayments 
Intangible Rate Base 

SUBTOTAL ADDITIONS 

TOTAL 

References: 

I Summary of Rate Base Adjustments I 

[AI PI ic1 

$42,522 $ $42,522 
$42,522 $ $42,522 

Cooperative Adjustment Ref Staff 

$1,494 $ 
2,209,732 

909,641 
1,266,210 

$4,387,077 $ 

$3,309 $ 
2,750 

132,576 
66,009 

$1,494 
2,209,732 

909,641 
1,266,210 

$4,387,077 

$3,309 
$2,750 

$0 
$132,576 
$66,009 

204,644 $ 204,644 

$4,634,243 $ $4,634,243 

$2,300,306 $2,300,306 

$2,333,937 $ $2,333,937 

$66,645 $66,645 
$66,645 $ $66,645 

$21 1,559 (211,559) BKB-5 $ 
$79,032 $79,032 
$23,205 $23,205 

$0 $0 

$313,796 ($21 1,559) $1 02,237 

$2,581,088 ($21 1,559) $2,369,529 

Column A: Company Schedule E-5 
Column 9: BKB-5 
“31JT- r 3KE TesI ! ”wI \  c 
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LINE 
NO. DESCRIPTION 

Schedule BKB-5 

COMPANY STAFF STAFF 
AS FILED ADJUSTMENTS AS ADJUSTED 

RATE BASE ADJUSTMENT NO. 1 - REMOVE CONSTRUCTION WORK-IN-PROCESS 

References: 

Column A: Company Schedule B-I 
Column B: Column [A] - Column [C] 
Column C: BKB Testimony 
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LINE 
NO. 

Schedule BKB-7 

COMPANY STAFF STAFF 
DESCRIPTION AS FILED ADJUSTMENTS AS ADJUSTED 

OPERATING MARGIN ADJUSTMENT NO. 1 - RATE CASE EXPENSE 

References: 
Column A: Schedule C-I, C-2, D-2 
Column B: Column C - Column A 
Column C: BKB Testimony 
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LINE 
NO. DESCRlPTlON 

Schedule BKB-8 

COMPANY STAFF STAFF 
AS FILED ADJUSTMENTS AS ADJUSTED 

OPERATING MARGIN ADJUSTMENT NO. 2 - INTEREST EXPENSE (OTHER) 

References: 
Column A: Schedule C-I, C-2, 0-2 
Column B: Column C - Column A 
Column C: BKB Testimony 
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LINE COMPANY 
NO. DESCRIPTION AS FILED 

Schedule BKB-9 

STAFF STAFF 
ADJUSTMENTS AS ADJUSTED 

NON-OPERATING MARGIN ADJUSTMENT NO. 1 - INTEREST EXPENSE (LONG-TERM DEBT) 

1 Interest Expense - Long Term Debt $ 112,205 $ 52,489 $ 164,694 

References: 
Column A: Schedule C-I, C-2, D-2 
Column 6: Column C - Column A 
Column C: BKB Testimony 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

DOCKET NO. G02527A-12-0321 

My testimony contains clarification regarding Graham County Utilities, Inc. ’s (“Graham 
County”) proposed modifications to its Rules and Regulations for its Line Extension Policy. In 
addition, my testimony addresses and makes Staffs recommendations regarding the 
implementation of a Demand-Side Management plan as directed in Decision No. 72396 (May 
31,2011). 
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INTRODUCTION 

Q. 
A. 

Q* 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Please state your name, occupation, and business address. 

My name is Ranelle Paladino. I am a Public Utilities Analyst employed by the Arizona 

Corporation Commission (“ACC” or “Commission”) in the Utilities Division (“Staff ’). 

My business address is 1200 West Washington Street, Phoenix, Arizona 85007. 

Briefly describe your responsibilities as a Public Utilities Analyst. 

In my capacity as a Public Utilities Analyst, I review and analyze utility applications filed 

with the Commission, and prepare memoranda and proposed orders for Open Meetings. I 

also assist in the management of rate cases and track monthly fuel adjustor reports. 

Please describe your educational background and professional experience. 

In 1992, I graduated magna cum laude from Creighton University, receiving a Bachelor of 

Science degree in Business Administration. In 1999, I received a Master’s Degree in 

Business Administration from Creighton University. I have been employed by the 

Commission since November of 201 1. 

Prior to working at the Commission, I was employed by UtiliCorp United, Inc. and Aquila 

Energy in various departments including the Gas Supply Department in both a regulated 

and non-regulated capacity. After leaving Aquila Energy, I was employed by Northern 

Natural Gas, an interstate pipeline, as a Regulatory Analyst and Marketing Analyst. 

As part of your employment responsibilities, were you assigned to review matters 

contained in Docket No. G02527A-12-0321? 

Yes. 
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Q. 

A. 

What is the purpose of your testimony in this case? 

My testimony provides Staffs recommendations regarding the proposed changes to 

Graham County Utilities, Inc.-Gas Division’s (“Graham County”) Rules and Regulations 

with respect to the Line Extension Policy. In addition, my testimony includes Staffs 

recommendations regarding the need for Graham County to file a Demand-Side 

Management (“DSM’) Plan. 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Has Graham County proposed to modify its Rules and Regulations? 

Yes. Graham County has proposed modifications to it rules and regulations applying to its 

Line Extension Policy. 

What is Graham County’s current line extension policy? 

Currently, Graham County has a line extension policy that requires all new customers who 

need line extensions to pay the total cost of these extensions in the form of Contributions 

in aid of Construction (“CIAC”). 

What changes is Graham County proposing regarding its Line Extension Policy? 

Graham County is proposing to continue charging new customers who need line 

extensions the direct labor and material costs associated with the line extension but only 

charge them one-half of the overhead costs associated with the line extension. 

Why is Graham County proposing this change to its line extension policy? 

John Wallace from Grand Canyon State Electric Cooperative Association filed Direct 

Testimony on behalf of Graham County. In his Direct Testimony, Mr. Wallace indicated 
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that Graham County is concerned that customers and developers will not install natural 

gas service in homes if the cost to connect natural gas service is too high. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Does Staff support Graham County’s proposed changes to its line extension policy 

allowing Graham County to only charge customers one-half of the overhead costs 

associated with the line extension? 

No. After reviewing the components of the overhead costs associated with a line 

extension that Graham County is currently charging, Staff concludes that new customers 

requesting a line extension should only pay what Graham County is currently charging as 

labor and material costs associated with the line extension. Graham County should not 

charge new customers requesting a line extension any of the overhead costs it is currently 

charging new customers wanting a line extension because those costs are not directly 

attributable to a line extension. 

Has Graham County proposed any other modifications to its Rules and Regulations? 

No. In response to Staff Data Request STF 1.1, the Company stated that it did not intend 

to change the late payment charge fi-om the present charge of 1.5 percent on late 

payments. The $5.00 minimum charge was inadvertently included on Schedule H-3 and is 

not contained in the Company’s proposed changes to its Rules and Regulations. 

DEMAND-SIDE MANAGEMENT (“DSM”) PLAN 

Q. 

A. Yes. A DSM adjustor mechanism was approved in Decision No. 71690. The current 

Does Graham County currently have a DSM adjustor mechanism? 

DSM adjustor rate is set at $0.0000 per therm. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Does Graham County currently have any DSM programs in place? 

No. In Decision No. 72396, it was determined that since Graham County was a Class B 

utility, the gas energy efficiency rules did not apply to Graham County. 

Are Graham County customers aware of energy conservation options available to 

them despite not having a DSM program in place? 

Yes. Most of the Graham County customers are also customers of Graham County 

Electric Cooperative, Inc. (“GCEC”). GCEC implemented its energy efficiency program 

in August of 2012. Some of the electric energy efficiency programs (such as the Low 

Income Weatherization program) may have natural gas efficiency benefits also. 

What does Staff recommend with respect to Graham County fding to implement a 

DSM program? 

Staff believes that the conditions have not changed for Graham County from the last time 

the Commission issued a decision regarding a DSM plan (Decision KO. 72396.). Graham 

County is still a Class B utility with annual operating revenue well below the $5 million 

required to qualify as a Class A utility. The current gas energy efficiency rules do not 

apply to Graham County. 

SUMMARY OF STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

Q. 
A. 

Please summarize Staffs recommendations. 

1. Staff recommends that Graham County’s proposed changes to its current Line 

Extension Policy not be adopted, but instead, Graham County’s current Line 

Extension Policy in its Rules and Regulations should be adjusted to reflect that 

new customers requesting a line extension will only be charged the materials and 

labor costs directly attributed to the line extension. 
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Q. 
A. 

2. Staff recommends that Graham County not implement a DSM program at this 

point in time and that the feasibility of implementing a DSM program be reviewed 

again in Graham County’s next rate case proceeding. 

Does this conclude your Direct Testimony? 

Yes, it does. 
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INTRODUCTION 

Q% 

A. 

Q. 

-4. 

Q* 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Please state your name and business address? 

My name is Alan Borne. My business address is 2200 North Central AvenuG, Phoenix, 

Arizona. 

What is your current position and how long have you been employed by the Arizona 

Corporation Commission? 

I am a Senior Pipeline Safety Inspector; I have been employed by the Arizona Corporation 

Commission (“Commission”) for over 9 years. 

Please describe briefly your duties as a Senior Pipeline Safety Inspector. 

Briefly, my duties include conducting annual pipeline safety inspections, conducting 

investigations into the causes of pipeline failures, conducting pipeline construction 

inspections, conducting inspections and/or investigations with respect to the Underground 

Facilities Law (Blue Stake), completing required reports associated with each inspection 

or investigation and providing testimony on behalf of the Commission. 

Please describe your education, training and pertinent work experience. 

I have over 9 years experience as a Pipeline Safety Inspector with the Commission. 

During my time with the Commission, I have attended and successfully completed all 

required core training classes required by the Commission and the Department of 

Transportation to execute my duties. Prior to my time with the Commission, I have 20 

years experience in the field of gas processing and oil refining plant operations and 

maintenance. I held the title of Environmental, Health and Safety Regional Advisor and 

have an A. S. in Electrical Engineering Technology. 
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Q. 
A 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

What is the purpose of your testimony in these proceedings? 

The purpose of my testimony is to address the following issues from the perspective of tbe 

Commission’s Office of Pipeline Safety (“Staff’): 

1. Discuss any items of outstanding non-compliance with safety regulations for 

Graham County Utilities, Inc. (“Graham County Utilities”) 

2. Help to determine use and usefulness of Graham County Utilities projects and 

equipment. 

Please describe Graham County Utilities’ natural gas distribution system and how 

they have operated it. 

Cnaham County Utilities operates a private gas distribution system throughout Graham 

County which includes polyethylene as well as steel pipeline operating at various 

pressures between 10 and 100 psig and consisting of multiple taps and approximately 

5,000 residential services and 60 commercial services. Graham County Utilities has 

consistently maintained and operated this system safely and competently and has always 

addressed outages, incidents, and any other items of concern in a conscientious and timely 

manner. 

Are there any items of outstanding non-compliance with safety regulations on file 

with the Arizona Corporation Commission Office of Pipeline Safety? 

N O .  
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Q* 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Has your office examined Graham County Utilities gas distribution system and 

equipment and determined whether it is used and useful in this provision of service 

to customers? 

Yes, during the 2012 Standard Annual Audit conducted by our office, Roberta Primera 

(Staff Pipeline Safety Inspector), visited the Graham County Utilities office in Pima, 

Arizona and visited numerous field locations and projects. I consulted with the inspector 

and all projects and equipment were found to be used and useful. 

Does this conclude your Direct Testimony? 

Yes, it does. 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

DOCKET NO. G02527A-12-0321 

My testimony in this proceeding addresses the issue of rate design for Graham County Utilities 
Inc. (“Graham”). My testimony also addresses the issue of a gas procurement review. 
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INTRODUCTION 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Please state your name, occupation, and business address. 

My name is Robert G. Gray. I am an Executive Consultant 111 employed by the Arizona 

Corporation Commission (“ACC” or “Commission”) in the Utilities Division (“Staff ’). 

My business address is 1200 West Washington Street, Phoenix, Arizona 85007. 

Briefly describe your responsibilities as an Executive Consultant III. 

In my capacity as an Executive Consultant 111, I conduct analysis and provide 

recommendations to the Commission on a variety of electricity, natural gas, and 

watedwastewater matters. A copy of my resume is attached as Exhibit RGG-1. 

What is the scope of this testimony? 

This testimony will address rate design for Graham County Utilities, Inc. (“Graham”) as 

well the issue of a gas procurement review. 

Have you reviewed the testimony of Graham Witness John Wallace in regard to the 

rate design? 

Yes. I have reviewed his testimony and will discuss his proposed changes to Graham’s 

rate design as part of my testimony. 

RATE DESIGN 

Q. 

A. 

Please discuss Graham’s current rate structures. 

Graham currently has three customer classes including residential, commercial, and 

irrigation. Graham’s residential customers currently pay a monthly customer charge of 

$13 .OO, a margin rate of $0.345 per therm, as well as the cost of gas component which is 

reflected through the monthly purchased gas adjustor (“PGA”) rate. Irrigation customers 
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currently pay a monthly customer charge of $21.00, a margin rate of $0.16 per therm, as 

well as the cost of gas component. Commercial customers currently pay a monthly 

customer charge of $24.00, a margin rate of $0.341 per therm, as well as the cost of gas 

component. The monthly PGA rate varies according to the changing natural gas 

commodity costs. 

Q. 

A. 

Please describe what the rate design components are for a natural gas utility like 

Graham. 

For a natural gas utility, costs fall into two general categories. The first category is the gas 

cost component, which captures the cost of the natural gas commodity as well as the cost 

of interstate pipeline transportation to deliver the natural gas from production areas in 

New Mexico and Texas to Graham’s receipt points on the El Paso Natural Gas interstate 

pipeline system. An interest component is applied to any over or under-collected PGA 

bank balance. These costs are passed through the PGA mechanism. The second category 

captures all costs other than those passed through the PGA mechanism. These costs 

include things like labor, billing, and infrastructure costs. These costs are recovered 

through the monthly customer charge as well as the non-gas cost per therm tariff or 

margin rate. In a rate case, the Commission addresses the tariff cost components 

contained in the tariff rates. The Commission may choose to adjust how the PGA 

mechanism works in a general rate proceeding, but does not generally set the monthly 

PGA rate within a rate proceeding as it is set according to established mathematical 

calculations. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Please discuss how Graham represents the cost of gas component in its rate filing. 

Graham represents the cost of gas differently in its application. At times it reflects a PGA 

rate of $0.4888 per therm; yet at other times in its rate filing is reflects a PGA rate of 

$0.43705 per therm. 

When comparing current and proposed rates, it is best to represent rates using a consistent 

cost of gas component number, as gas costs are passed through the PGA mechanism and 

changes in tariff rates in a general rate case do not impact the pass through of gas costs. 

Graham’s use of different gas cost numbers makes it difficult to understand the changes in 

tariff rates being proposed by Graham, and their ultimate impact on customers. 

Throughout Staffs discussion of rate design and presentation of proposed rates, Staff uses 

a constant cost of gas of $0.43705 per therm. 

What rates are being proposed in this case by Graham? 

Graham is proposing to increase the residential monthly customer charge fiom $13.00 to 

$16.25, the irrigation monthly customer charge from $21.00 to $26.25, and the 

commercial monthly customer charge from $24.00 to $30.00. Graham is not proposing 

any change in the per therm tariff rates for the various customers classes. 

Please comment on Graham’s proposed rates. 

Staff believes that Graham’s proposed rates increase the customer charges too much and 

Staff would favor a more gradual and measured increase in customer charges, with some 

portion of the increase also reflected in Graham’s per therm tariff rates. 
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Q* 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Please discuss Staff's proposed rates in this case. 

Staff recommends that the residential monthly customer charge be set at $15.00 and the 

residential margin rate be set at $0.378 per therm. Staff recommends that the irrigation 

monthly customer charge be set at $24.00 and the irrigation margin rate be set at $0.18 per 

therm. Staff recommends that the commercial monthly customer charge be set at $28.00 

and the commercial margin rate be set at $0.36 per therm. Staff's proposed rates take into 

consideration the cost of service analysis by Staff Witness Prem Bahl. Staff moderates the 

monthly customer charge increases proposed by Graham and increases the per therm 

tariffed rates for all three of Graham's rate classes. Graham has not proposed any changes 

to the rates and charges for other services and Staffs proposed change discussed below 

does not change the revenue Graham would receive. 

Will Staff's proposed rates provide sufficient revenues to Graham using Staff's 

revenue requirement. 

Yes. Staff Witness Brian Bozzo proposes total operating revenue of $3,466,484 for 

Graham. Reducing this number by $1,399,908 for test year gas costs and $40,043 for 

other revenue (from miscellaneous charges such as establishment of service charges, late 

fees, and meter test fees), results in total revenue to be recovered from Graham's tariffed 

rates of $2,026,533. The revenue generated from Staffs proposed rates is $2,025,692. 

Staffs proposal reflects the same revenue from other services (such as establishment of 

service, meter reread charges, late fees, etc.) as Graham received during the test year, 

$40,043. 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

i a  

19 

20 

21 

22 

’23 

24 

25 

26 

Direct Testimony of Rbdert Gray 
Docket No. G-02527A-12-0321 
Page 5 

Q* 

A. 

Q* 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Please describe how Staff deals with the cost of gas in representing overall rates to be 

paid by Graham’s customers under Staffs proposed rates, as well as .Staffs 

customer bill impact estimates. 

As noted before, Graham’s application and attached schedules reflect two different gas 

cost numbers in various places, $0.4888 per therm and $0.43705 per therm. Staff uses the 

$0.43705 per therm number, as under Staffs analysis it is closer to the actual cost of gas 

being paid by Graham’s customers in recent months. 

Please discuss what the residential customer bill impacts would be under Staffs 

proposed rates. 

For an annual mean residential customer bill reflecting consumption of 34 therms, the 

customer bill under Staffs proposal would be $42.71, an increase of 7.9 percent and $3.12 

over the bill of $39.59 under Graham’s existing rates. For a mean residential customer bill 

in Graham’s winter peak month of January, reflecting consumption of 84 therms, the 

residential customer bill under Staffs proposal would be $83.46, an increase of 6.1 

percent and $4.77 over the bill of $78.69 under Graham’s existing rates. 

Please discuss what the irrigation customer bill impacts would be under Staffs 

proposed rates. 

For an annual mean irrigation customer bill reflecting consumption of 201 therms, the 

customer bill under Staffs proposal would be $148.03, an increase of 5.0 percent and 

$7.02 over the bill of $141.01 under Graham’s existing rates. For a mean irrigation 

customer bill in Graham’s summer peak month of August, reflecting consumption of 329 

therms, the customer bill under Staffs proposal would be $227.01, an increase of 4.4 

percent and $9.58 over the bill of $217.43 under Graham’s existing rates. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Please discuss what the commercial customer bill impacts would be under Staff‘s 

proposed rates. 

For an annual mean commercial customer bill reflecting consumption of 281 therms, the 

customer bill under Staffs proposal would be $251.97, an increase of 3.8 percent and 

$9.34 over the bill of $242.63 under Graham’s existing rates. For a mean commercial 

customer bill in Graham’s winter peak month of January, reflecting consumption of 637 

therms, the customer bill under Staffs proposal would be $535.72, an increase of 3.1 

percent and $16.10 over the bill of $519.62 under Graham’s existing rates. 

Please discuss Staff’s tiered rate alternative. 

In several recent rate cases, including Southwest Gas (Decision No. 72723, January 6, 

2012) and UNS Gas (Decision No. 73 142, May 6,2012), the Commission has ordered the 

utility company to file, in its next general rate proceeding, an inclining blockhiered rate 

proposal as one of its rate design proposals for Commission consideration. In recognition 

of these recent orders, Staff has prepared an alternative tiered rate design in this 

proceeding for Commission consideration. This alternative rate design is only for 

residential customers, with irrigation and commercial customers being unaffected by the 

alternative rate proposal. Staff is not recommending adoption of this alternative at this 

time, but offers it as a possible alternative in case the Commission wishes to consider a 

rate design similar to what is used for water and electric utilities. If the Commission does 

not adopt the alternative tiered rate design in this proceeding, Staff recommends that 

Graham be required to include, as part of its next general rate application, an inclining 

block rate structure as one of its rate design proposals. 
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Q. Please compare Staffs recommended rate design proposal in this proceeding to 

Staffs alternative tiered rate design. 

The main impact of the tiered rate design is to reduce customer bills for low use customers 

and increase customer bills for high use customers in comparison to Staffs recommended 

rate design proposal. The creation of an inclining block rate structure could incent hi& 

use customers to use natural gas more efficiently. 

A. 

RATES AND CHARGES FOR O T m R  SERVICES 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Has Graham proposed any changes to its rates and charges for other services? 

NO. 

Is Staff recommending any changes to Graham’s rates and charges for other 

services? 

Yes. The Company currently has an establishment after-hours charge of $50.00. The 

Company also has a reconnection of service after-hours charge of $50.00. The Company 

has proposed no charges to these rates. 

Staff agrees that an additional fee for service provided after normal business hours is 

appropriate when such service is at the customer’s request. Such a tariff compensates the 

utility for additional expenses incurred from providing after-hours service. Moreover, 

Staff concludes that it is appropriate to apply an after-hours service charge in addition to 

the charge for any utility service provided after hours at the customer’s request. 

Therefore, Staff recommends the removal of both the establishment of service - after 

hours charge and reconnection of service after-hours charge. For example, under Staffs 

proposal, a customer would be subject to a $30 establishment of service if it is done during 

normal business hours, but would pay an additional $20 after-hours fee if customer 
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requested that the establishment of service be done after normal working hours. Staff 

believes that this charge will simplify Graham’s rates and charges for other services and is 

consistent with how after hours work is treated for other utilities in recent cases before the 

Commission. 

Q. Please summarize your recommended changes to Graham’s rates and charges for 

other services. 

A. Staff recommends elimination of the Establishment of Service - After Hours and 

Reconnection of Service - After Hours charges and the creation of a $20.00 after hours 

service charge that would apply to utility services provided to customers after hours. 

GAS PROCUREMENT REVIEW 

Q* 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Has Staff conducted a review of Graham’s gas procurement activities recently? 

Yes. 

Please describe Staffs recent review of Graham’s gas procurement activities. 

As part of Graham’s previous rate proceeding (Docket No. 6-02527A-09-0088) Staff 

reviewed Graham’s procurement activities for gas supplies acquired between January 

2006 and June 2009. In that case, Staff recommended that the Commission make a 

finding that Graham’s procurement activities were prudent, a recommendation reflected in 

the Commission’s final order in the case (Decision No. 71690, May 3,2010). 

Have Graham’s procurement activities changed significantly since the previous rate 

case? 

No. 
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Q. Does Staff believe it is necessary to conduct a procurement review in this current 

rate proceeding. 

No. Since Graham’s last review was in 2009 and 2010 and there has been no change in 

Graham’s procurement activities in recent years, Staff believes that it is not necessary to 

conduct a procurement review in this proceeding. However, Staff anticipates conducting a 

procurement review in the next future rate proceeding Graham files with the Commission. 

A. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

Q. 

A. 

Please summarize your findings and recommendations. 

My testimony includes the following recommendations: 

Rate Design 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Staff recommends that the residential customer charge be set at $15.00 per month 

and the residential margin rate should be set at $0.378 per therm. 

Staff further recommends that the irrigation customer charge be set at $24.00 per 

month and the irrigation margin rate should be set at $0.18 per therm. 

Staff further recommends that the commercial customer charge be set at $28.00 per 

month and the commercial margin rate should be set at $0.36 per therm. 

Staff further recommends that, if Staffs alternative tiered rate structure is not 

adopted in this proceeding, that Graham be required to include, as part of its next 

general rate application, an inclining block rate structure as one of its rate design 

proposals. 
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Rates and Charges for Other Services 

5. Staff further recommends elimination of the Establishment of Service - After 

Hours and Reconnection of Service - After Hours charges and the creation of a 

$20.00 after hours service charge that would apply to utility services provided to 

customers after hours. 

Q. 

A. Yes, it does. 

Does this conclude your Direct Testimony? 
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06-0199, etc.), Arizona Corporation Commission, 2009. 

Graham County Utilities Company Rate Proceeding (Docket No. G-02527A-09-0088), Arizona 
Corporation Commission, 2009. 

Southwest Gas Corporation Rate Proceeding (Docket No. G-0155 1A-l0-0458), Arizona Corporation 
, Commission, 2010. 

UNS Gas Inc., Rate Proceeding (Docket No. G-04204A-ll-OlS8>, Arizona Corporation 
Commission, 20 1 1. 

Semstream Arizona Propane, LLC Rate Proceeding, (Docket No. G-20471A-11-0150), Arizona 
Corporation Commission, 20 1 1. 

El Paso Natural Gas Company, Rate Proceeding, (Docket No. RP10-1398), Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission, 201 1. 

Publications 

(with David Berry, Kim Clark, Lewis Gale, Barbara Keene, and Harry Sauthoff) Staff Report on 
Resource Planning. (Docket No. U-0000-90-088) Arizona Corporation Commission, 1990. 

(with Prem Bahl) "Transmission Access Issues: Present and Future," October, 1991. 

(with David Berry) Substitution of Photovoltaics for Line Extensions: Creating Consumer Choices. 
Arizona Corporation Commission, 1992. 

(with Barbara Keene and Kim Clark) Report of the Task Force on the Feasibility of Implementing; 
Sliding Scale Hookup Fees, December, 1992. 
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(with Mike Kuby) "The Hub and Network Design Problem With Stopovers and Feeders: The Case 
of Federal Express," Transportation Research A., Vol. 27A, 1993, pp. 1-12. 

(with David Berry) Staff Guidelines on Photovoltaics Versus Line Extensions. Arizona Corporation 
Commission, January 28, 1993. 

(with Ray Williamson, Robert Hammond, Frank Mancini, and James Arwood) The Solar Electric 
Option (Instead of Power Line Extension). A joint publication of the Arizona Corporation 
Commission and the Arizona Department of Commerce Energy Office, August, 1993. 

(with David Berry, Kim Clark, Barbara Keene, Jesse Tsao, Ray Williamson, Randall Sable, Roni 
Washington, Wilfred Shand, and Prem Bahl) Staff Report on Resource Planning. (Docket 
No. U-0000-93-052) Arizona Corporation Commission, 1993. 

Staff Report On Rural Local Calling Areas. (Docket No. E-1051-93-183) Arizona Corporation 
Commission, March, 1994. 

(with David Berry, Kim Clark, Barbara Keene, Glenn Shippee, Julia Tsao, and Ray Williamson) 
Staff Report on Resource Planning. (Docket No. U-000-95-506) Arizona Corporation 
Commission, 1996. 

(with Barbara Keene) Tustomer Selection Issues," NRRI Ouarterlv Bulletin, Vol. 19, No. 1, 
Spring 1998, National Regulatory Research Institute. 

Staff Report on Purchased Gas Adiustor Mechanisms, (Docket No. G-00000C-98-0568) Arizona 
Corporation Commission, October 19, 1998. 

Staff Report on the Rolling Average PGA Mechanism, (Docket No. G-00000C-98-0568),Arizona 
Corporation Commission, September 6,2000. 

Staff Report on the Use of a Circuit-Breaker in Adiustor Mechanisms, Arizona Corporation 
Commission, September 3,2003. 

Staff ReDort on Southwest Gas Filing for Pre-Approval of Cost Recovery for Participation in the 
Kinder MorPan Silver Canyon Pipeline Project, (Docket No. G-O1551A-04-0192), Arizona 
Corporation Commission, June 2, 2004. 

Staff Report on Arizona Public Service Companv Filing for Pre-Approval of Cost Recovery for - 6. 

Participation in the Kinder Mornan Silver Canyon Pipeline Proiect , (Docket No. E-01345A- 
04-0273), Arizona Corporation Commission, August 16,2004. 
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Staff Report on Anzona Public Service Company Filing for Pre-Approval of Cost Recovery for 
Participation in the Transwestern Pipeline Phoenix Project , (Docket No. E-01345A-05- 
0895), Arizona Corporation Commission, March 2,2006. 

Staff Report on Southwest Gas Filing for Pre-Approval of Cost Recovery for Participation in the 
Transwestern Pipeline Phoenix Project, (Docket No. G-0155 lA-06-0107), Arizona 
Corporation Commission, May 16,2006. 

Staff Report on UNS Gas Filing for Pre-Approval of Cost Recovery for Participation in the 
Transwestern Pipeline Phoenix Project, (Docket No. G-04204A-06-0627), Arizona 
Corporation Commission, January 30,2007. 

Staff Review of UNS Electric 2008 Renewable Energy Standard Tariff and Implementation Plan, 
(Docket No. E-04204A-07-0593), Arizona Corporation Commission, March 25,2008. 

Staff Report on Semstream Arizona Propane, Payson Division Bankruptcy, Reorganization, and 
other issues, Arizona Corporation Commission, June 6,2008. 

Staff Review of UNS Electric 2009 Renewable Energy Standard Tariff and Implementation Plan, 
(Docket No. E-04204A-07-0593), Arizona Corporation Commission, November 26,2008. 

Staff Review of Tucson Electric Power 2009 Renewable Energy Standard Tariff and Implementation 
plan, (Docket No. E-0 1933A-07-0594), Arizona Corporation Commission, November 26, 
2008. 

Staff Report for Arizona Water Company and Global Water Resources LLC’s Consolidated Docket 
Addressing Numerous Requests for Extensions of Certificates of Convenience and Necessity 
for Water and Wastewater Service as Well as the Transfer of Assets, (Docket No. 
W01445A-06-0199, etc.), Arizona Corporation Commission, May 10,2009. 

Staff Review of UNS Electric 20 10 Renewable Energy Standard Tariff and Implementation Plan, 
(Docket No. E-04204A-09-0347), Arizona Corporation Commission, January 5,201 0. 

Staff Review of Tucson Electric Power 20 10 Renewable Energy Standard Tariff and Implementation 
-Y Plan (Docket No. E-O1933A-09-0340), Arizona Corporation Commission, January 5,2010. 

Staff Review of UNS Electric 201 1 Renewable Energy Standard Tariff and Implementation Plan, 
(Docket No. E-04204A-10-0265), Arizona Corporation Commission, November 8,2010. 

Staff Review of Tucson Electric Power 201 1 Renewable Energv Standard Tariff and Implementation 
. -Y Plan (Docket No. E-01 933A-10-0266), Anzona Corporation Commission, November 9, 

20 10. 
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Staff Review of UNS Electric 2012 Renewable Enerm Standard Tariff and Implementation Plan, 
(Docket No. E-04204A-11-0267), Arizona Corporation Commission, October 25,201 1. 

Staff Review of Tucson Electric Power 2012 Renewable Enerm Standard Tariff and Implementation 
-Y Plan (Docket No. E-01933A-11-0269), Arizona Corporation Commission, October 25, 
201 1. 

Staff Review of UNS Electric 20 13 Renewable Enerm Standard Tariff and Imulementation Plan, 
. 

(Docket No. E-04204A- 12-0297), Arizona Corporation Commission, October 18,20 12. 

Staff Review of Tucson Electric Power 2013 Renewable Enerm Standard Tariff and Implementation 
-, Plan (Docket No. E-01 933A-12-0296), Arizona Corporation Commission, October 18, 
2012. 

Additional Training 

. 1990 
1993 
1996 

1997 
1998 Local Distribution Company Restructuring and Retail Access and 

1998 
1999 - 2007,2010,2012 
200 1 
2003-2008 NARUC Winter Committee Meetings 
2004-2007 NARUC Annual Convention 

Seminars on Regulatory Economics 
PURTI course on Public Utilities and the Environment 
Center for Public Utilities Workshop on Gas Unbundling and Retail 
Competition 
NARUC 6* Annual Natural Gas Conference 

Competition Conference 
NARUC 7th Annual Natural Gas Conference 

Center for Public Utilities Workshop on Risk Management in Gas Purchasing 
NARUC Sumrner Committee Meetings 

Members hips 

NARUC - Staff Subcommittee on Gas - member, 1998 - present 
NARUC - Staff Subcommittee on Gas - Vice-Chair - 2002 - 2004 
NARUC - Staff Subcommittee on Gas - Chair - 2005 - 2007 
Michigan State Institute for Public Utilities - NARUC Advisory Committee - 2005-2007 

NARUC - DOE LNG Partnership - 2003 - present 
NARUC - North American Energy Standards Board Advisory Council - 2006 -- present - -  
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Rate Design 

Existing Rates 
Customer Charge 
Tariffed Rate 
Monthly PGA Rate 

Graham Proposed Rates 
Customer Charge 
Tariffed Rate 
Monthly PGA Rate 

Staff Proposed Rates 
Customer Charge 
Tariffed Rate 
Monthly PGA Rate 

Staff Tiered Rate Alternative 
Customer Charge 
Tariffed Rate - 50 therms or less 
Tariffed Rate - Over 50 therms 
Monthly PGA Rate 

Page 1 of 5 

Residental Irrigation Commercial 

$13.00 
$0.34500 
$0.43705 

$16.25 
$0.34500 
$0.43705 

$15.00 
$0.37800 
$0.43705 

$1 5.00 
$0.34000 
$0.40000 
$0.43705 

Staff Revenue Requirement Target 
Revenue Under Staff Rate Proposal 
Revenue Under Staff Tiered Rate Alternative 

Revenue from Rate and Charges for Other Services 
Test Year 
Graham Proposal 
Staff Proposal 
Staff Tiered Rate Alternative 

$21 .oo $24.00 
$0.16000 $0.341 00 
$0.43705 $0.43705 

$26.25 $30.00 
$0.16000 $0.34100 
$0.43705 $0.43705 

$24.00 $28.00 
$0.1 8000 $0.36000 
$0.43705 $0.43705 

$24.00 $28.00 
$0.1 8000 $0.36000 
$0.1 8000 . $0.36000 
$0.43705 $0.43705 

$2,026,533 
$2,025,692 
$2,022,148 

$40,043 
$40,043 
$40,043 
$40,043 
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Tariffed Rate 
(non gas cost) Revenue From Total 

Revenue Misc. Charges Revenue 
$1,814,852 $40,043 $3,109,888 
$2,022,620 $40,043 $3,317,657 
$2,025,692 $40,043 $3,320,729 
$2,022,148 $40,043 $3,317,184 

Existing Rates 
Company Proposed Rates 
Staff Proposed Rates 
Staff Tiered Rate Alternative 

Rate Schedule Gas Cost 
Revenue (Monthly PGA Rate) 

$1,254,993 $3,069,845 
$3,277,614 
$3,280,686 
$3,277,141 

Assumes Constant PGA Rate of $0.043705 per therm 

Existing Rates 
Residential 
Customer Bills 
Partial Bills 
Tariffed Rate 
Monthly PGA Rate 
Total 

Irrigation 
Customer Bills 
Partial Bills 
Tariffed Rate 
Monthly PGA Rate 
Total 

Commercial 
Customer Bills 
Partial Bills 
Tariffed Rate 
Monthly PGA Rate 
Total 

Total - All Classes 
Total Non-gas cost revenue 

Number 
56,180 

1,732 
1,960,668 
1,960,668 

77 
13 

18,064 
18,064 

3,142 
39 

892,778 
892,778 

Rate 
$1 3.00 
$13.00 

$0.34500 
$0.43705 

$21 .oo 
$21 .oo 

$0.16000 
$0.43705 

$24.00 
$24.00 

$0.34100 
$0.43705 

$1,254,993 
$1,254,993 
$1,254,993 

Total 
$730,340 
$22,520 

$676,430 
$856,910 

$1,617 
$273 

$2,890 
$7,895 

$75,408 
$936 

$304,437 
$390,189 

$2,286,200 

$1 2,675 

$770,970 

$3,069,845 
$1,814,852 



Company Proposed Rates 
Residential Number 
Customer Bills 56,180 
Partial Bills 1,732 
Tariffed Rate 1,960,668 
Monthly PGA Rate 1,960,668 
Total 

Irrigation 
Custorrier Bills 
Partial Bills 
Tariffed Rate 
Monthly PGA Rate 
Total 

Commercial 
Customer Bills 
Partial Bills 
Tariffed Rate 
Monthly PGA Rate 
Total 

Total -All Classes 
Total Non-gas cost revenue 

77 
13 

18,064 
18,064 

3,142 
39 

892,778 
892,778 

Rate 
$16.25 
$16.25 

$0.34500 
$0.43705 

$26.25 
$26.25 

$0.1 6000 
$0.43705 

$30.00 
$30.00 

$0.34100 
$0.43705 

Total 
$912,925 
$28,145 

$676,430 
$856,910 

$2,021 
$341 

$2,890 
$7,895 

$94,260 
$1,170 

$304,437 
$390,189 

$2,474,410 

$13,148 

$790,056 

$3,277,614 
$2,022,620 

Note: Graham's revenue from the tariffed rates, based on the billing data provided by Graham in the rate 
proceeding, $2,022,620, is slightly lower, by $3,913, than the revenue requested by Graham and recommended 
by Staff Witness B o z o  of $2,026,533. This differential is diminimus. 
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Staff Proposed Rates 
Residential 
Customer Bills 
Partial Bills 
Tariffed Rate 
Month!y PGA Rate 
Total 

irrigation 
Customer Bills 
Partial Bills 
Tariffed Rate 
Monthly PGA Rate 
Total 

Commercial 
Customer Bills 
Partial Bills 
Tariffed Rate 
Monthly PGA Rate 
Total 

Total - All Classes 
Total Non-gas cost revenue 

Number Rate 
56,180 $15.00 

1,732 $15.00 
1,960,668 $0.37800 
1,960,668 $0.43705 

77 $24.00 
13 $24.00 

18,064 $0.18000 
18,064 $0.43705 

3,142 $28.00 
39 $28.00 

892,778 $0.36000 
892,778 $0.43705 

Total 
$842,700 
$25,980 

$741,133 
$856,910 

$2,466,722 

$1,848 
$312 

$3,252 
$7,895 

$13,306 

$87,976 
$1,092 

$321,400 
$390,189 

$800,657 

$3,280,686 
$2,025,692 
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Staff Tiered Rate Alternative 
Residential Number 
Customer Bills 56,180 
Partial Bills 1,732 
Tariffed Rate-50 therms or under 777,986 
Tariffed Rate-over 50 therms 1 ,I 82,682 
Monthly PGA Rate 1,960,668 
Total 

irrigation 
Customer Bills 
Partial Bills 
Tariffed Rate 
Monthly PGA Rate 
Total 

Commercial 
Customer Bills 
Partial Bills 
Tariffed Rate 
Monthly PGA Rate 
Total 

Total - All Classes 
Total Non-gas cost revenue 

.. . -I. .?I ~ ",_:.. , . . , . .  

77 
13 

18,064 
18,064 

3,142 
39 

892,778 
892,778 

Rate 
$15.00 
$1 5.00 

$0.34000 
$0.40000 
$0.43705 

$24.00 
$24.00 

$0.1 8000 
$0.43705 

$28.00 
$28.00 

$0.36000 
$0.43705 

Total 
$842,700 
$25,980 

$264,515 
$473,073 
$856,910 

$2,463,178 

$1,848 
$312 

$3,252 
$7,895 

$1 3,306 

$87,976 
$1,092 

$321,400 
$390,189 

$800,657 

$3,277,141 
$2,022,148 
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Exhibit RGG-3 
Customer Bill Estimates 

Percent Percent Percent 
Increase Increase Increase Increase Increase Increase 

Residentlal Company Staff Staff Company Staff Staff Company Staff Staff 

'Therms Rates Rates Rates Alternative Rates Rates Alternative Rates Rates Alternative 
Current Proposed Proposed Tiered Rate Proposed Proposed Tiered Rate Proposed Proposed Tiered Rate 

5 
10 
15 
20 
25 
30 
34 annual mean 
40 
50 
75 : 

84 January mean 
100 
150 
200 
300 
500 

1000 

Irrigation 
10 
25 
50 
75 

100 
200 
201 annual mean 
300 
329 August mean 
400 
500 
750 

Commercial 
10 
20 
50 

100 
150 
200 
281 annual mean 
400 
500 
637 January mean 
750 

1000 
1500 
2000 
3000 

$16.91 
$20.82 
$24.73 
$28.64 
$32.55 
$36.46 
$39.59 
$44.28 
$52.10 
$71.65 
$78.69 
$91.21 

$130.31 
$169.41 
$247.62 
$404.03 
$795.05 

$26.97 
$35.93 
$50.85 
$65.78 
$80.71 

$140.41 
$141.01 
$200.12 
$217.43 
$259.82 
$319.53 
$468.79 

$31.78 
$39.56 
$62.90 

$101.81 
$140.7 1 
$179.61 
$242.63 

$413.03 
$519.62 
$607.54 
$802.05 

$1,191.08 
$1,580.10 
$2,358.15 

$335.22 

$20.16 $19.08 
$24.07 $23.15 
$27.98 $27.23 
$31.89 $31.30 
$35.80 $35.38 
$39.71 $39.45 
$42.84 $42.71 
$47.53 $47.60 
$55.35 $55.75 
$74.90 $76.13 
$81.94 $83.46 
$94.46 $96.51 

$133.56 $137.26 
$172.66 $178.01 
$250.87 $259.52 
$407.28 $422.53 
$798.30 $830.05 

$32.22 $30.17 
$41.18 $39.43 
$56.10 $54.85 
$71.03 $70.28 
$85.96 $85.71 

$145.66 $147.41 
$146.26 $148.03 
$205.37 $209.12 
$222.68 $227.01 
$265.07 $270.82 
$324.78 $332.53 
$474.04 $486.79 

$37.78 $35.97 
$45.56 $43.94 
$68.90 $67.85 

$107.81 $107.71 
$146.71 $147.56 
$185.61 $187.41 
$248.63 $251.97 
$341.22 $346.82 
$419.03 $426.53 
$525.62 $535.72 
$613.54 $625.79 
$808.05 $825.05 

$1,197.08 $1,223.58 
$1,586.10 $1,622.10 
$2,364.1 5 $2,419.15 

$18.89 
$22.77 
$26.66 
$30.54 
$34.43 
$38.31 
$41.42 
$46.08 
$53.85 
$74.78 
$82.31 
$95.71 

$1 37.56 
$179.41 
$263.12 
$430.53 
$849.05 

$30.17 
$39.43 
$54.85 
$70.28 
$85.71 

$147.41 
$148.03 
$209.12 
$227 .O 1 
$270.82 
$332.53 
$486.79 

$35.97 
$43.94 
$67.85 

$107.71 
$147.56 
$187.41 
$251.97 
$346.82 
$426.53 
$535.72 
$625.79 
$825.05 

$1,223.58 
$1,622.10 
$2,419.15 

Assumes constant cost of gas of $0.43075 per therm 

$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 
$3.25 

$5.25 
$5.25 
$5.25 
$5.25 
$5.25 
$5.25 
$5.25 
$5.25 
$5.25 
$5.25 
$5.25 
$5.25 

$6.00 
$6.00 
$6.00 
$6.00 
$6.00 
$6.00 
$6.00 
$6.00 
$6.00 
$6.00 
$6.00 
$6.00 
$6.00 
$6.00 
$6.00 

$2.17 
$2.33 
$2.50 
$2.66 
$2.83 
$2.99 
$3.22 
$3.32 
$3.65 
$4.47 
$4.77 
$5.30 
$6.95 
$8.60 

$1 1.90 
$18.50 
$35.00 

$3.20 
$3.50 
$4.00 
$4.50 
$5.00 
$7.00 
$7.02 
$9.00 
$9.58 

$1 1 .oo 
$13.00 
$18.00 

$4.19 
$4.38 
$4.95 
$5.90 
$6.85 
$7.80 
$9.34 

$1 1.60 
$1 3.50 
$16.10 
$18.25 
$23.00 
$32.50 
$42.00 
$61 .OO 

$1.98 
$1.95 
$1.93 
$1.90 
$1.88 
$1.85 
$1.83 
$1.80 
$1.75 
$3.13 
$3.62 
$4.50 
$7.25 

$10.00 
$15.50 
$26.50 
$54.00 

$3.20 
$3.50 
$4.00 
$4.50 
$5.00 
$7.00 
$7.02 
$9.00 
$9.58 

$1 1 .oo 
$13.00 
$18.00 

$4.19 
$4.38 
$4.95 
$5.90 
$6.85 
$7.80 
$9.34 

$1 1.60 
$13.50 
$16.10 
$18.25 
$23.00 
$32.50 
$42.00 
$61 .OO 

19.2% 
15.6% 
13.1% 
11.3% 
10.0% 

8.2% 
7.3% 
6.2% 
4.5% 
4.1% 
3.6% 
2.5% 
I .9% 
1.3% 
0.8% 
0.4% 

8.9% 

19.5% 
14.6% 
10.3% 
8.0% 
6.5% 
3.7% 
3.7% 
2.6% 
2.4% 
2.0% 
1.6% 
1.1% 

18.9% 
15.2% 
9.5% 
5.9% 
4.3% 
3.3% 
2.5% 
1.8% 
1.5% 
1.2% 
1 .O% 
0.7% 
0.5% 
0.4% 
0.3% 

12.8% 
11.2% 
1 0.1 O h  
9.3% 
8.7% 
8.2% 
7.9% 
7.5% 
7.0% 
6.2% 
6.1% 
5.8% 
5.3% 
5.1% 
4.8% 
4.6% 
4.4% 

11.9% 
9.7% 
7.9% 
6.8% 
6.2% 
5.0% 
5.0% 
4.5% 
4.4% 
4.2% 
4.1 % 
3.8% 

13.2% 
11.1% 
7.9% 
5.8% 
4.9% 
4.3% 
3.8% 
3.5% 
3.3% 
3.1% 
3.0% 
2.9% 
2.7% 
2.7% 
2.6% 

11.7% 
9.4% 
7.8% 
6.6% 
5.8% 
5.1% 
4.6% 
4.1% 
3.4% 
4.4% 
4.6% 
4.9% 
5.6% 
5.9% 
6.3% 
6.6% 
6.8% 

11.9% 
9.7% 
7.9% 
6.8% 
6.2% 
5.0% 
5.0% 
4.5% 
4.4% 
4.2% 
4.1% 
3.8% 

13.2% 
11.1% 
7.9% 
5.8% 
4.9% 
4.3% 
3.8% 
3.5% 
3.3% 
3.1% 
3.0% 
2.9% 
2.7% 
2.7% 
2.6% 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES INC., GAS DMSION 

DOCKET NO. GO2527A-12-0321 

Prem Bahl’s testimony discusses Utilities Division Staffs (“Staff ’) review of Graham 
County Utilities Inc., Gas Division’s (“Graham”) Cost of Service Study (“COSS”) for the rate 
case filed with the Arizona Corporation Commission (“Commission”), and presents the results of 
Staffs analysis. 

Based on its review of Graham’s COSS, Staffs conclusions and recommendations are as 
follows: 

1. It is Staffs conclusion that Graham performed the COSS consistent with the 
methodology generally accepted in the industry, and developed most of the 
allocation factors appropriately. Certain allocation factors were modified by 
Staff, as discussed in Staffs testimony. 

2. Staff further concludes that, based on the evaluation of the COSS model utilized 
by Graham and the changes Staff made in the allocation factors, the results of the 
COSS are satisfactory. 

3. Staff recommends that Graham make the following’ changes in the COSS 
allocation factors. 

0 F3 - Distribution Mains should be allocated 100 percent to Demand. On 
G-6, F3 should be changed from 50 percent Demand and 50 percent 
Weighted Customers (weighted according to installation and meter 
reading costs) to 100 percent Demand. 

0 F3a - for Mains & Services should be changed from 50 percent Demand 
and 50 percent Weighted Customers to 70.84 percent Demand and 29.16 
percent Weighted Customers, based on actual plant in service. 

F6 - On Schedule G-7, F6 was mis-labeled, representing Meter Reading 
Expenses, and Meter Reading & installation. It should be designated as 
F6a, and should be changed to 53.40 percent Weighted Customers and 
46.60 percent Customers. 

0 F6a - On Schedule G-8, F6a should be changed from 100 percent 
Customers to 53.40 percent Weighted Customers and 46.60 percent 
Customers. 

0 F7 allocating Depreciation on Mains to 50 percent Demand and 50 percent 
Weighted Customers should be changed to 47.26 percent Demand and 
52.74 percent Weighted Customers. 



e D-1 - On Schedule G-8, for Winter Peak Demand, replace 0.00 percent by 
100 percent under the column entitled “Total.” 

4. Staff further recommends that Graham continue to utilize the current COSS 
model, including the revised allocation factors for allocating expenditures, 
including the ones associated with Distribution Mains and Distribution Mains and 
Services in all future rate cases. 

5 .  Staff further recommends that Graham’s COSS cost allocations and factors be 
accepted with Staffs above noted allocation factor revisions, which are reflected 
in Staffs COSS G-Schedules under attached Exhibit 1. 
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I. INTRODUCTION 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

Please state your name, occupation, and business address. 

My name is Prem K. Bahl. 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007. 

My business address is 1200 West Washington Street, 

By whom and in what capacity are you employed? 

I am employed by the Arizona Corporation Commission (“Commission”) as an Electric 

Utilities Engineer. 

Please describe your educational background. 

I graduated from the South Dakota State University with a Master’s degree in Electrical 

Engineering in May 1972. I received my Professional Engineering (“P.E.”) License in the 

state of Arizona in 1978. My Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering was 

from the Agra University, India, in 1957. 

Please describe your pertinent work experience. 

I worked at the Arizona Corporation Commission from 1988 to 1998 as a Utilities 

Consultant, and have subsequently been re-employed at the Commission as an Electric 

Utilities Engineer since June 2002 until the present time. Since rejoining the Commission, 

I have reviewed utilities’ load curtailment plans; coordinated with the Commission 

Consultants to hold ten workshops to report on the second through the sixth Biennial 

Transmission Assessments (“BTA”) for Arizona. I have also worked on compliance of 

Certificates of Environmental Compatibility including Harquahala, Panda Gila River, Red 

Hawk, Northern Arizona Project, and Coolidge power plants. In 2004, I testified in the 

line siting cases of TEP’s 138 kV Robert Bills-Wilmont Substation and Trico Electric 

Cooperative’s 115 kV Sandario Project. In 2007 and 2008, I testified in the Palo Verde to 
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North Gila 500 kV project, 138 kV Vail to Cienega project and the Coolidge Station 

project. 

During this time period of over twenty years at the Commission, I conducted engineering 

evaluations of electric utility rate cases and financing cases, such as those pertaining to 

Arizona Public Service Company, Tucson Electric Company (“TEP”), Salt River Project, 

Southwest Gas Company, Tnco Electric Cooperative, Duncan Valley Electric 

Cooperative; Sulphur Springs Valley Electric Cooperative (“SSVEC”), Graham County 

Electric Cooperative (“GCEC”), and Graham County Utilities, Inc., Gas Division 

(“Graham”) and Navopache Electric, Inc. (“NEC”). 

I inspected utility power plants including the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station. I 

was involved with the development of retail competition in Arizona and of Desertstar, an 

Independent System Operator (“ISO”) for the desert southwest region. I was Chairman of 

the System Reliability Working Group, which evaluated the impact of competition on 

system reliability and recommended the establishment of the Arizona Independent System 

Administrator (“AISA”) as an interim organization until commercial operation of 

Desertstar, which later evolved into Westconnect, a pseudo Regional Transmission 

Operator (‘ ‘RTO ”) . 

From July 2001 to June 2002, I had my own consulting engineering firm, named P. K. 

Bahl & Associates. During that time, I was involved with deregulation of the electric 

power industry and the formation of RTO’s, addressing the planning, congestion 

management, business practices and market monitoring activities of the then Northwest 

RTO and the MidWest ISO. 
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From July 1998 to August 2000, I worked as Chief Engineer at the Residential Utility 

Consumer Office. During that time period, I performed many of the duties I performed at 

the Commission. I was also involved with the Distributed Generation Work Group that 

looked at the impact of the development of distributed generation in Arizona on system 

reliability, and modifications to interconnection standards currently specified by the 

jurisdictional utilities. I was a member of the AISA Board of Directors from September 

1999 until June 2000. I was involved in the deliberations of the Market Interface 

Committee of the North American Electric Reliability Council (“NERC”). I also 

published and presented a number of technical papers at national and international 

conferences regarding transmission issues and distributed generation during the last thirty 

years. 

Prior to my employment with the Commission, I worked as an electrical engineer with 

electric utilities and consulting firms in the transmission and generation planning areas for 

approximately thirty two years, including ten years’ experience at the Punjab State 

Electricity Board (“PSEB”) in India fiom 1960 to 1970. I worked as Executive Engineer 

at the PSEB from 1968 to 1970 prior to coming to the United States in 1970. 

Q. 

A. 

Q- 
A. 

As part of your assigned duties at the Commission, did you perform an analysis of 

the application that is the subject of this proceeding? 

Yes, I did. 

Is your testimony herein based on that analysis? 

Yes, it is. 
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Q. 

A. 

What is the purpose of your Direct Testimony? 

The purpose of my testimony is to discuss Staffs review of Graham County Utilities, Inc. 

Gas Division (“Graham”) Cost of Service Study (“COSSyy) for the rate case, and present 

the results of this review. 

II. COST OF SERVICE STUDY - REVIEW PROCESS 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A- 

Q. 
A. 

What does the COSS signify? 

There are three steps in performing a COSS. They are: 1) functionalization; 2) 

classification; and 3) allocation. First, the COSS enables us to determine the system cost 

of service by classifjmg the utility’s costs (investments and expenses) by function, such as 

customer-related, demand-related, and commodity-related functions. Second, the study 

breaks down these costs by customer classes to reflect as closely as possible the cost 

causation by respective customer classes. Third, the results of the COSS provide a 

benchmark for the revenues needed from each customer category by appropriately 

allocating the revenue requirement for each customer class. 

Is there a standard COSS model? 

There is no standard methodology for designing a COSS, but it is generally advisable to 

follow a range of alternatives to identify which allocations are more reasonable than 

others. For that reason, the COSS should be used as a general guide only and as one of 

many considerations in designing rates. 

Did Staff conduct a separate independent COSS? 

No. Staff did not conduct a separate independent COSS. Staff reviewed the COSS 

performed by Graham. Staff made some corrections in certain allocation factors in 

Schedules G-6 and G-8. The revised Schedule G-8 resulted in changes in other G 
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Schedules, such as G-1, G-2, G-6 and G-7. The results of Staffs COSS are attached to 

this testimony as Schedules G-1 thru G-8 under Exhibit 1. 

Q. 
A. 

What was the process Staff used in reviewing Graham’s COSS? 

First, I reviewed the G Schedules reflecting various allocation factors in the COSS. 

Second, I reviewed the Test Year (“FYE September 30,201 1,’) rate base, revenues and 

expenses in the filed rate case. 

III. ALLOCATION OF DISTRIBUTION MAINS AND SERVICES 

Q. What comments does Staff have regarding Graham’s allocation of Distribution 

Mains and Distribution Mains and Services? 

Although, in Schedule G-8, the allocation factor F3 for Distribution Mains is 100 percent 

according to Demand, it was incorrectly applied in Schedule G-6 as 50 percent Demand 

and 50 percent Weighted Customers. It was corrected to 100 percent Demand. 

A. 

In reference to the cost of Distribution Plant shown in Schedule G-6, the cost of 

Distribution Mains is $2,209,733, and the cost of Services is $909,642, resulting in their 

total cost of $3,119,375. Per Allocation Factor F3a, Graham allocated the cost of 

Distribution Mains and Services to 50 percent Demand, and the other 50 percent to the 

number of Weighted Customers. Staff corrected this allocation to 70.84 percent Demand 

and 29.1 percent Weighted Customers in proportion to the cost of Distribution Mains and 

Services stated above. 

Application of factor F3a also impacted the Distribution Operating Expenses for 

Distribution Mains and Services in Schedule G-7, changing from 50 percent Demand and 
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Q- 
A. 

50 percent Weighted Customers, respectively, to 70.84 percent Demand and 29.1 percent 

Weighted Customers. 

Did Staff make any other change in Graham’s allocation factors? 

Yes, Staff made the following additional changes and corrections in the COSS allocation 

factors. 

e 

e 

e 

e 

F6 - On Schedule G-7, F6 was mis-labeled, representing Meter Reading 

Expenses, and Meter Reading & installation. It should be designated as 

F6a, because it was derived and calculated differently from F6. It was 

changed to 53.40 percent Weighted Customers and 46.60 percent 

Customers. 

F6a - On Schedule G-8, F6a should be changed from 100 percent 

Customers to 53.40 percent Weighted Customers and 46.60 percent 

Customers. 

F7 was not calculated correctly in terms of allocating Depreciation on 

Mains according to 50 percent Demand and 50 percent Weighted 

Customers. F7 was changed to 47.26 percent Demand and 52.74 percent 

Weighted Customers. 

D-1 - On Schedule G-8, for Winter Peak Demand, replace 0.00 percent by 

100 percent under the column entitled “Total.” 
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Q. 
'A. 

What is the effect of the above-noted changes In Allocation Factors? 

These changes in the above noted allocation factors resulted in shifting of rate base fiom 

residential and imgation customers to commercial customers. A corresponding shift of 

Operating expenses incurred from residential and imgation customers to commercial 

customers. These shifts resulted in an increase in the rate of return on rate base for 

residential and irrigation customers and a decrease in the rate of return on rate base for 

commercial customers. 

IV. CONCLUSIONS AM) RECOMMENDATIONS 

Q. Based upon your testimony, what are Staff's conclusions and recommendations 

regarding the COS study? 

Based on the review of Graham's COSS, Staffs conclusions and recommendations are as 

follows: 

A. 

1. It is Staffs conclusion that Graham performed the COSS consistent with the 

methodology generally accepted in the industry, and developed the allocation 

factors appropriately, except for certain allocation factors, which were modified by 

Staff. 

2. Staff further concludes that, based on the evaluation of the COSS model utilized 

by Graham and the changes Staff made in the allocation factors stated above, the 

results of the COSS are satisfactory. 

3. Staff recommends that Graham make the following changes in the COSS 

allocation factors. 
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0 F3 - Distribution Mains should be allocated 100 percent to Demand. On 

Schedule G-6, F3 should be changed fi-om 50 percent Demand and 50 

percent Weighted Customers to 100 percent Demand. 

F3a - for Mains & Services should be changed fi-om 50 percent Demand 

and 50 percent Weighted Customers to 70.84 percent Demand and 29.16 

percent Weighted Customers, based on actual plant in service. 

F6 - On Schedule G-7, F6, representing Meter Reading Expenses and 

Meter Reading & installation, should be designated as F6a, and changed to 

53.40 percent Weighted Customers and 46.60 percent Customers. 

F6a - On Schedule G-8, F6a should be changed from 100 percent 

Customers to 53.40 percent Weighted Customers and 46.60 percent 

Customers. 

F7 - allocating Depreciation on Mains should be corrected fi-om 50 percent 

Demand and 50 percent Weighted Customers to 47.26 percent Demand and 

52.74 percent Weighted Customers. 

D-1 - On Schedule G-8, for Winter Peak Demand, replace 0.00 percent by 

100 percent under the column entitled “Total.” 

4. Staff further recommends that Graham should continue to utilize the current COSS 

model, including the revised allocation factors in Schedule G-8 in all future rate 

cases. 



Direct Testimony of Prem K. Bahl 
Docket No. 6-02527A-12-0321 
Page 9 

5 .  Staff further recornmends that Graham’s COSS cost allocations and factors be 

accepted with Staffs above noted revisions, which are reflected in Staffs COSS 

G-Schedules under attached Exhibit 1. 

Q. 
A. 

Does this conclude your Direct Testimony? 

Yes it does. 



EXHIBIT 1 

Graham Countv Utilities, Inc. Gas Division 

Cost of Service Schedules Gl Through G-8 



Schedule G-1 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: January 30, 201 3 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

COST OF SERVICE SUMMARY - PRESENT RATES 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

DESCRIPTION 
Operating Revenues 
Operatinn Expenses: 
Purchased Gas 
Distribution Expense - Operations 
Distribution Expense - Maintenance 
Customer Account Expense 
Administrative & General Expense 
Depreciation 
Property Taxes 
Tax Expense - Other 
Interest Expense -Other 
Total Operation Expenses 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Rate Base 

% Return - Present Rates 

Return Index 

Allocated Interest - Long-Term 

Operating TIER - Present Rates 

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION 
3.242.352 2.421.838 808.496 12.018 

1,399,908 1,042,157 352,524 5,227 
334,746 259,432 74,080 1,234 
31 9,609 237,390 81,303 91 6 
323,758 302,195 20,874 689 
434,785 357,659 75,969 1,157 
147,629 11 5,055 32,013 56 1 
31,305 21,835 9,417 53 
59,036 48,564 10,315 157 
44,041 41,666 2,306 69 

3,094,817 2,425,953 658,801 10,063 
147,535 (491 15) 149,695 1,955 

231  4,450 1,925;733 580,070 8,647 

5.87% -0.21% 25.81 % 22.61 % 

I .oo (0.04) 4.40 3.85 

112,205 85,934 25,885 386 

1.31 (0.05) 5.78 5.07 



Schedule G-2 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: January 30,2013 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

COST OF SERVICE SUMMARY - PROPOSED RATES 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

DESCRIPTION TOTAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION 

Operating Revenues 
Operating Expenses: 
Purchased G a s  

Distribution Expense - Operations 

Distribution Expense - Maintenance 
Customer Account Expense 
Administrative & General Expense 
Depreciation 
Property Taxes  
Tax  Expense - Other 

3,466,484 2,613,913 838,425 14,147 

1,399,908 1,042,157 352,524 . 5,227 

334,746 259,432 74,080 1,234 

31 9,609 237,390 81,303 91 6 

323,758 302,195 20,874 689 
434,785 357,659 75,969 1,157 
147,629 11 5,055 32,013 56 1 

59,036 48,564 10,315 157 
31,305 21,835 9,417 53 

Interest Expense -Other 44,041 41,666 2,306 69 
Total Operation Expenses 3,094,817 2,425,953 658,801 10,063 
Operating Income (Loss) 371,667 187,960 179,624 4,084 

Rate Base 2,514,450 1,925,733 580,070 8,647 

% Return - Proposed Rates 14.78% 9.76% 30.97% 47.23% 

Return Index 1 .oo 0.66 2.09 3.20 

Allocated Interest - Long-Term 1 12,205 85,934 25,885 386 

Operating TIER - Proposed Rates . 3.31 2.19 6.94 10.58 



Schedule G-3 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: January 30, 201 3 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

UNIT COSTS 

DESCRIPTION TOTAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION 
UNIT COSTS - PRESENT RATES: 
DEMAND 
Amount 
Bills 
Therms 
Per Bill 
Per Therms 

COMMODITY: 
Amount 
Per Therms 

CUSTOMER: 
Amount 
Per Bill 

UNIT COSTS - PROPOSED RATES: 
DEMAND 
Amount 
Per Bill 
Per Therms 

COMMODITY: 
Amount 
Per Therms 

CUSTOMER: 
Amount 
Per Bill 

703,158 
61,183 

2,871,512 
11.49 

0.2449 

1,482,048 
0.4875 

1,057,146 
17.28 

792,688 
73.67 

0.5664 

1,482,048 
0.4875 

1,191,748 
11 0.76 

563,186 
57,912 

1,960,668 
9.72 

0.2872 

1,011,943 
0.4875 

846,709 
14.62 

634,894 
10.96 

0.3238 

1,011,943 
0.4875 

954,517 
16.48 

138,895 
3,181 

892,780 
43.66 

0.1 556 

460,782 
0.4875 

208,819 
65.65 

156,580 
49.22 

0.1 754 

460,782 
0.4875 

235,407 
74.00 

1,076 
90 

18,064 
1 1.96 

0.0596 

9,323 
0.4875 

1,618 
17.98 

1,213 
13.48 

0.0672 

9,323 
0.4875 

1,824 
20.27 



Schedule G-4 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: January 30,201 3 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

ALLOCATION OF RATE BASE 

CONSUMER CLASS 

DESCRIPTION FACTOR TOTAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION 
GROSS PLANT IN SERVICE: 
Demand 
Com modity 
Customer - Weighted 
Customer - Unweighted 

D-I 
CM-1 
c-I 
c-2 

Total 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION: 
Demand D-1 
Com mod ity CM-1 
Customer - Weighted c- 1 
Customer - Unweighted c-2 
Total 
NET PLANT IN SERVICE 

CWIP: 
Demand D- 1 
Commodity CM-1 
Customer - Weighted c-I 
Customer - Unweighted c-2 
Total 
WORKING CAPITAL: 
Demand D-I 
Commodity CM-1 
Customer - Weighted c-1 
Customer - Unweighted c-2 
Total 
LESS: 
CONSUMER DEPOSITS c-I 
TOTALRATEBASE 

2,344,442 1,635,190 705,231 4,021 

2,289,800 1,952,591 324,232 12,977 
- 

- 
4,634,242 3,587,781 1,029,463 16,998 

1,087,187 758,286 327,037 1,864 

1,213,119 1,034,468 171,776 6,875 
- 

2,300,306 1,792,754 498,813 8,739 
2,333,936 1,795,027 530,650 8,259 

107,028 74,649 32,195 184 

104,531 89,137 14,802 592 
- 

21 1,559 163,786 46,997 776 

46,625 32,520 14,025 80 
- 

(1 7,800) (15,179) (2,520) (101) 
6.775 6.409 355 11 
35.600 23.750 11.860 I1 0) 

66,645 56,830 9,437 378 
2.514.450 1.925.733 580.070 8.667 



Schedule G-5 
Page 1 of 2 

Date: January 30,2013 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

ALLOCATION OF INCOME STATEMENT 

DESCRIPTION 
REVENUES: 
Gas Sales -Adjusted 
Service Charges 8 Other Revenues 
Total 

OPERATING EXPENSE: 
Purchased Gas 

Distribution ExDense - ODerations: 
Demand 
Commodity 
Customer - Weighted 
Customer - Unweighted 
Total 
Distribution Expense - Maintenance: 
Demand 
commodity 
Customer - Weighted 
Customer - Unweighted 
Total 
Customer Accounts Expense: 
Demand 
Commodity 
Customer - Weighted 
Customer - Unweighted 
Total 
Admin. 8 General &Dense: 
Demand 
Commodity 
Customer - Weighted 
Customer - Unweighted 
Total 

CONSUMER CLASS (PRESENT1 CONSUMER CLASS (PROPOSED) 
-- FACTOR TOTAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION TOfAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION 

G 2  

CM-1 

D-I 
CM-I 
c-I 
c-2 

D-I 
CM-1 
c-1 
c-2 

D-I 
CM-1 
GI 
c-2 

D-I 
CM-1 
c-I 
c-2 

3,202,309 2,383,955 806,399 11,955 3,426,441 2,576,030 836,328 14,084 
40,043 37,883 2,097 63 40,043 37,883 2,097 63 

3,242,352 2,421,838 808,496 12,018 3,466,484 2,613,913 838,425 14,147 

1,399,908 1,042,157 352,524 5,227 

167.577 116.881 50,409 287 

167,169 142,551 23,671 947 

334,746 259,432 74,080 1,234 

226,408 157,914 68,106 388 

93,201 79,476 13,197 528 

319,609 237,390 81,303 916 

323,758 302,195 20,874 689 
323,758 302,195 20,874 689 

174,754 121,886 52.568 300 

109,656 93.508 15,527 621 
150,375 142,265 7,874 236 
434,785 357,659 75,969 1,157 
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FUN CTlO N 
FACTOR 

F-1 
F-2 
F-3 
F-3a 
F-4 
F-5 
F-6 
F-6a 

Schedule G-8 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: February 11, 201 3 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 I 

ALLOCATION FACTORS 

WEIGHTED 
DESCRIPTION TOTAL DEMAND COMMODITY CUSTOMER CUSTOMER 

Demand 100.00% 100.00% 
Corn modity 100.00% 100.00% 
Distribution Mains 100.00% 100.00% 
Mains & Services 100.00% 70.84% 29.1 6% 
Services 100.00% 100.00% 
Meters & regulators 100.00% 100.00% 
Customer Accounts 100.00% 100.00~/0 
Customer Weighted/Customer 100.00% 53.40% 46.60% 

DERIVED 
FUNCTION 
FACTOR DESCRIPTION 
F-7 Gross Plant in Service 100.00% 47.26% 
F-8 Salaries & Wages 100.00% 40.19% 0.00% 25.22% 34.59% 
F-9 0 & M Less Purchased gas 100.04% 39.96% 0.00% 30.88% 29.20% 

52.74% 

CLASS 
ALLOCATION CUSTOMER CLASS 
FACTORS DESCRIPTION TOTAL RESID. COMM. IRRIG. 
D-1 Winter Peak Demand 100.000% 69.748% 30.081 % 0.1 71 % 
CM-1 Commodity 100.000% 74.445% 25.1 82% 0.373% 
c- 1 Customer - Weighted 100.000% 85.273% 14.160% 0.567% 
c-2 Customer - Unweighted 100.000% 94.606% 5.237% 0.1 57% 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC., ET AL 

DOCKl3T NOS. GO2527A-12-0321 

Graham County Utilities Inc. (“Graham”) is a non-profit cooperative and public service 
corporation whose purpose is to provide both gas distribution services and water services to the 
area in Graham County, Anzona. Due to the separate nature of these services, Graham is 
composed of two wholly owned, separate divisions known as Graham County Utilities Inc. - Gas 
Division (“Graham Gas”) and Graham County Utilities Inc. - Water Division (“Graham Water”). 
As of December 31, 2012, Graham Gas provided natural gas distribution service to 
approximately 5,162 customers and Graham Water provided water service to approximately 
1,203 customers. Graham is also affiliated with Graham County Electric Cooperative (“Graham 
Electric”) in that the parties have entered into an agreement whereby Graham Electric provides 
management services to Graham. 

On July 13, 2012, Graham filed a general rate application for its gas division, Graham 
Gas, and subsequently amended the filing on August 10, 2012. As amended, the application 
shows a $46,478 adjusted net margin for the test year that ended September 30, 201 1. Graham 
Gas’s application proposes total operating revenue of $3,466,484, an increase of $224,132, or 
6.91 percent, over its test year revenue of $3,242,352. Graham Gas’s proposed revenue, as filed, 
would provide an operating income of $371,504 and a net margin of $270,610 for a 3.31 times 
interest earned ratio (“TIER”), a 2.26 debt service coverage ratio (“DSC”) and a 10.05 percent 
rate of return on the proposed $2,581,088 fair value rate base which is the same as the proposed 
original cost rate base. 

The Direct Testimony of Mr. Brian K. Bozzo presented Staffs recommendation for rate 
base, operating income, and the revenue requirement. Staffs examination shows that Graham 
Gas experienced a $28,304 net margin in the test year. Staff recommended total operating 
revenue of $3,466,484, an increase of $224,132, or 6.91 percent, over test year revenues of 
$3,242,352 to provide an operating margin of $405,819, a net margin of $252,436, a 2.46 TIER, 
a 1.54 DSC and a 10.18 percent rate of return on a rate base of $2,369,529. StafFs test year 
results reflected one rate base adjustment as shown on BKB-3 (removal of $211,559 in 
construction work-in-progress) and three expense adjustments as shown on BKB-6 (a $1,381 
increase to rate case expense, a $35,696 reduction in interest expense - other and a 
corresponding $52,489 increase in the interest expense on long term debt). 

On February 7,2013, Graham filed an application for authorization to borrow $1,000,000 
from Graham Electric with an anticipated 10 year term and an interest rate of 5.44 percent per 
annum. The loan was proposed by Staff and agreed to by the Company in order to address 
unauthorized loans that had been taken by Graham Gas from Graham Electric. In the financing 
application, the Company also requested approval of a $500,000 line of credit (‘‘LOC’’) with no 
maturity date and with a variable interest rate equal to that provided by the National Rural 
Cooperative Finance Corporation (“CFC”). In this testimony, Staff recommends approval of the 
Company’s $1,000,000 request and defers comment on the Company proposed $500,000 LOC 
until a later date. 



On March 6,2013, Graham filed the Rebuttal Testimony of Mr. John V. Wallace. Under 
both the “Summary of Recommendations” and “Revenue Requirements” sections of Mr. 
Wallace’s Rebuttal Testimony, (Sections 11 and ID), Mr. Wallace stated that the Company agrees 
and stipulates to all of the recommendations in Mr. BOZZO’S Direct Testimony. 
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I. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

INTRODUCTION 

Please state your name and business address. 

My name is Brian K. Bozzo. My business address is 1200 West Washington Street, 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007. 

By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am employed in the Utilities Division (“Staff’) of the Arizona Corporation Commission 

(“Commission” or “A.C.C.”) as the Compliance and Enforcement Manager. Until July 

2003, I was employed by the Commission as a Public Utility Analyst V in the accounting 

section known as Financial and Regulatory Analysis (“F.R.A.”). 

Please describe your education and work experience. 

I obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from the University of 

Arizona located in Tucson, Arizona. In 1991, I joined Staff as a rate analyst. I have been 

responsible for conducting case preparatiodanalysis and serving as a Commission witness 

in rate proceedings, finance authorizations and Certificate of Convenience and Necessity 

(“CC&N”) proceedings, among others. During the course of these duties, I attended 

numerous seminars on utility rate-making including courses presented by the National 

Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners (‘WARUC”) and New Mexico State 

University. 

Since July 2003, I have been the manager of Compliance and Enforcement in the 

Compliance Section of the Utilities Division. In the course of these duties, I conduct 

analyses of numerous compliance matters, document compliance findings and make 

recommendations on Compliance status to Staff and the Commission itself. I also 

periodically conduct case work on pending cases. 
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Q 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Please describe your responsibilities regarding the case work that you perform. 

I provide investigations into numerous regulatory and utility issues and am responsible for 

conducting economic analysis in the preparation of financial and statistical reports, 

recommendations, testimony and evidence. These duties are conducted in the disposition 

of Commission proceedings dealing with utility applications and services. 

In the performance of these duties, I perform financial analysis, conduct audits on utility 

books and records, determine revenue requirements and develop rate designs for complex 

regulatory matters. This includes making pro forma adjustments to operating expenses, 

developing rate schedules and calculating net incomes and rates of return. I have also 

composed numerous staff reports, prepared Direct and Surrebuttal Testimony 

encompass&g recommendations to the Commission and served as a Staff witness at utility 

rate hearings. 

What is the purpose of your Surrebuttal Testimony in this case? 

The purpose of my Surrebuttal Testimony in this case is to discuss the Rebuttal Testimony 

of Mr. John V. Wallace on behalf of Graham County Utilities Inc. (“Graham” or 

“Company7’) and to discuss a Staff proposed reporting mechanism (compliance report) for 

periodic reporting on the $500,000 line of credit (“LOC’) proposed by the Company. 

How is your testimony organized? 

My Surrebuttal Testimony is composed in specific sections: 

0 Section I is composed of this introduction. 

0 Section 11 provides a background of the case. 

0 

0 

Section IlI is a short discussion of the Company Rebuttal Testimony. 

Section IV is a discussion of the Company’s financing application. 
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0 Section V is a listing of Staffs recommendations. 

Q. 
A. 

11. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Have you prepared any exhibits to accompany your testimony? 

Yes. I prepared a format for a LOC reporting mechanism which is shown in Exhibit A. 

BACKGROUND 

During this case, did Staff discover issues with loans taken from Graham Electric? 

Yes. The Company has had and will continue to have access to funds through Graham 

Electric. In itself, Staff considers this to be an advantageous circumstance. However, 

Staff determined that a number of advances of funds (“loans”) had been executed between 

the Company and Graham Electric which were not approved by the Commission. As 

these unapproved loans were for a duration greater than 12 months, they do not comply 

with the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”) 5 40-301. 

Did Staff previously discuss with the Company the formalization of the current 

Graham Electric loan into approved long-term debt? 

Yes. In my Direct Testimony filed on February 8, 2013, I outlined that discussions with 

the Company took place on the issue of formalizing currently existing Graham Electric 

loans into approved long-term debt with the Company. Staff suggested and the Company 

agreed to docket a formal financing application requesting a $1,000,000, ten-year loan at 

or near 5.44 percent interest to be executed with Graham Electric. Staff further outlined 

that approval of such a loan would allow the Company to both pay down the existing 

Graham Electric construction debt and obtain a Commission approval on the new debt 

package - thereby converting what were unapproved advances of funds to Commission 

authorized loans. 
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Q* 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

III. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Did the Company ultimately docket the financing as discussed with Staff? 

Yes. On February 7, 2013, Graham docketed an application (G-02527A-13-0023) for 

authorization to borrow $1,000,000 fi-om Graham Electric with an anticipated 10-year 

term and an interest rate of 5.44 percent per annum. These were the terns that had been 

discussed with Staff. 

Did the Company’s financing application include any other request? 

Yes. The Company also requested approval of a $500,000 LOC with no maturity date and 

with a variable interest rate equal to that provided by the National Rural Cooperative 

Finance Corporation (“CFC”) for an intermediate LOC (approximately 2.9 percent). 

Did Staff provisionally recognize the interest and principal on the $1,000,000 loan in 

its Direct Testimony? 

Yes, Staff provisionally recognized the primary $1,000,000 loan, with the understanding 

that the Company would file the application for the loan as per the parties’ discussion. 

COMPANY REBUTTAL TESTIMONY 

Has the Company docketed Rebuttal Testimony in this matter? 

Yes. On March 6,2013, Graham filed the Rebuttal Testimony of Mr. John V. Wallace. 

How did Mr. Wallace address your Direct Testimony? 

Mr. Wallace’s Rebuttal Testimony stated the following in both the “Summary of 

Recommendations” and “Revenue Requirements” sections: 

GCU agrees and stipulates to all of the recommendations in Staff Witness Brian 
K. Bozzo ’s direct testimony. 
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Q. 

A. 

To what issue is the Company’s Rebuttal Testimony dedicated? 

The Company’s Rebuttal Testimony is limited to discussion the financing 

application and, in particular, to discussion regarding the LOC proposed by the 

Company. 

IV. FINANCING APPLICATION 

Company Proposed Loan 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

What is the main element of the financing application? 

The primary element of the financing application is the $1,000,000 loan which has been 

previously discussed with the Company and provisionally accepted by Staff in its Direct 

Testimony. The Company docketed this application in order to formalize the loan as long 

term in nature and gamer Commission approval for the amounts borrowed from Graham 

Electric to finance capital improvement in the past. 

Are there any other issues relating to the $1,000,000 loan? 

No. These are loans the Company has already incurred. The Company must refinance 

these unauthorized existing loans to be in compliance with A.R.S. 5 40-301. Staff 

suggested that the Company file the $1,000,000 financing, and the Company has done so. 

What is Staff‘s recommendation regarding the Company proposed $1,000,000 loan? 

Staff recommends approval of the $1,000,000 loan from Graham Electric with an 

anticipated 10-year term and an expected interest rate of 5.44 percent per annum. Staff 

further recommends that the Commission authorized use of the proceeds exclusively for 

the purpose of refunding the existing unauthorized loans with Graham Electric. 
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Company Proposed Line of Credit 

Q. 
A. 

V. 

Q. 
A. 

Q- 
A. 

Does Staff have any comment on the Company proposed $500,000 Line of Credit? 

Staff reserves the right to comment on the Line of Credit at a later date. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

What are Staffs recommendations? 

Staff recommends: 

e total operating revenue of $3,466,484, an increase of $224,132, or 6.91 percent, 

over test year revenues of $3,242,352 to provide an operating margin of $405,819, 

a net margin of $252,436, a 2.46 TIER, a 1.54 DSC and a 10.18 percent rate of 

return on a rate base of $2,369,529; 

approval of the $1,000,000 loan from Graham Electric with an anticipated 10-year 

term and an expected interest rate of 5.44 percent per annum; and 

that the Commission authorize use of the proceeds of the $1,000,000 loan 

exclusively for the purpose of refunding the existing unauthorized loans with 

Graham Electric. 

e 

0 

Does this conclude your Surrebuttal Testimony? 

Yes, it does. 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
GIXAHAM# COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

DOCKET NO. G02527A-12-0321 

My testimony in this proceeding addresses the issue of Tiered Rate Design Testimony filed by 
Graham County Utilities Inc. (“Graham”) Witness John Wallace. 
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INTRODUCTION 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Please state your name, occupation, and business address. 

My name is Robert G. Gray. I am an Executive Consultant 111 employed by the h z o n a  

Corporation Commission (“ACC” or “Commission”) in the Utilities Division (“Staff”). 

My business address is 1200 West Washington Street, Phoenix, Arizona 85007. 

Are you the same Robert Gray that filed Direct Testimony on behalf of Staff in this 

proceeding? 

Yes. 

What is the scope of this testimony? 

This testimony will address the tiered rate design testimony filed by Graham witness John 

Wallace. 

Have you reviewed the Rebuttal Testimony of Graham Witness John Wallace in 

regard to the rate design? 

Yes. I have reviewed his testimony and will provide Staffs perspective, on his proposal 

regarding treatment of a possible future tiered rate filing. 

RATE DESIGN 

Q. 

A. 

Please discuss the status of rate design in this proceeding. 

In Mr. Wallace’s Rebuttal Testimony he indicates that Graham stipulates to Staffs 

proposed rate design. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Are there any outstanding issues to be addressed related to rate design. 

Yes. hb. Wallace indicates that Graham is agreeing to Staffs recommendation that 

Graham file a tiered residential rate structure alternative in its next rate proceeding (if the 

Commission does not adopt such a rate design in this proceeding), with the understanding 

that such a filing will not interfere with Graham’s ability to file its next rate case under the 

pending new rules for cooperative rate cases (R14-2-107). Specifically, Graham is aslung 

that the provision in R14-2-107 that prohibits Graham from filing a new rate schedule, 

R14-2-107(A)(l l)(a), would not apply in this situation, given that the Commission would 

be ordering Graham to file such an alternative rate schedule in Graham’s next rate case. 

Does Staff agree with Graham’s request regarding the pending rules related to 

co~peraaive rate cases? 

Yes. Staff believes that provision R14-2-107(A)(l l)(a) is an important provision within 

the new rules, but that in this case the requirement to file an alternative rate design in 

Graham’s next rate case should not impact Graham’s ability to file its case under R14-2- 

107. Staff support for this position is based upon a number of factors. First, as noted by 

Graham, this would be a requirement placed upon Graham by the Commission, not a 

proposal that Graham chose to file on its own. Second, the new rate case process would 

include consultations between Staff and Graham prior to Graham filing a new rate case, 

duing which Staff and Graham could work together to ensure that Graham files all 

necessary documentation regarding its alternate rate design proposal in its initial rate case 

filing. Third, this would be a proposal for just the residential rate class and thus the 

additional effort required for Staff to analyze this alternative proposal is not expected to be 

very burdensome. 
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Q. 

A. Yes, it does. 

Does this conclude your . .  Direct Testimony? 
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INTRODUCTION 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q- 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Please state your name and business address. 

My name is Brian K. Bozzo. My business address is 1200 West Washington Street, 

Phoenix, Arizona 85007. 

By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am employed in the Utilities Division (“Staff”) of the Arizona Corporation Commission 

(“Commission” or “A.C.C.”) as the Compliance and Enforcement Manager. Until July 

2003, I was employed by the Commission as a Public Utility Analyst V in the accounting 

section known as Financial and Regulatory Analysis (“F.R.A.”). 

Did you previously file Direct and Surrebuttal Testimony in this proceeding? 

Yes. 

Did your Surrebuttal Testimony refer to a $500,000 Line of Credit ((LLOC”) 

proposed by the Company in its February 7,2013 financing application? 

Yes. Staff now supplements its Surrebuttal Testimony with specific LOC testimony and a 

format for a LOC reporting mechanism. 

And is the LOC reporting mechanism shown as an exhibit? 

Yes. A format for the LOC reporting mechanism is shown in Exhibit A. 

How is your supplemental testimony organized? 

My Supplemental Testimony is composed in specific sections: 

a Section I is composed of this introduction. 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

I! 

s 
1c 

11 

12 

13 

1L  

1! 

1( 

1; 

18 

1: 

2( 

21 

2: 

2: 

2L 

2: 

Supplemental Surrebuttal Testimony of Brian K. Bozzo 
Docket No. G-02527A-12-0321 
Page 2 

e Section II provides testimony and recommendation on the Company proposed 

LOC. 

COMPANY PROPOSED LINE OF CREDIT 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Please discuss the line of credit proposed in the Company’s Financing application. 

The Company’s financing application seeks authorization to establish a $500,000 LOC 

with Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. (“Graham Electric”) to address future 

capital needs. The Company seeks the $500,000 LOC with no maturity date and with “a 

variable interest rate equal to the rate charged by the National Rural Cooperative Finance 

Corporation (“CFCyy) for an intermediate LOC (currently approximately 2.9 percent).” 

What are Staffs comments regarding the Company’s proposed LOC terms? 

Staff agrees with the Company’s proposal for a LOC in the amount of $500,000 with a 

variable interest rate equal to the market rate available by the CFC (or equivalent 

provider) for an intermediate LOC. As to the maturity date, Staff concludes that a lack of 

maturity date would provide inadequate regulatory oversight of the LOC. Instead, Staff 

concludes that the appropriate term for any LOC authorized in this proceeding is until a 

decision is rendered in the Company’s next rate case at which time the LOC will be re- 

evaluated. 

What are appropriate purposes for use of the LOC? 

Appropriate purposes for use of the LOC are discussed on pages 15 and 16 of my Direct 

Testimony. In summary, the LOC should be used for hnding an under-collected 

purchased gas balance, construction work in progress, bridge financing (temporary 

financing until long-term financing can be used efficiently) for capital improvements and 
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seasonal, but not long-term (i.e., exceeding 12 months) cash shortfalls for Operations & 

Maintenance expenses (“O&M’). 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q- 
A. 

How will the LOC reporting mechanism assist the Company in complying with 

A.R.S 5 40-301? 

Currently, the Company’s best and perhaps only option for funding capital improvements, 

under-collected gas purchases, and seasonal cash shortfalls is to obtain advances from 

Graham Electric. However, when these advances fiom Graham Electric remain 

outstanding for longer than 12 months, the Company is not in compliance with A.R.S 5 
40-301 because it has not obtained Commission authorization for the advances as required 

by the statute. By authorizing the LOC, the Commission will provide the requisite 

authorization for appropriate uses. Staff concludes that a LOC, when properly used, is an 

appropriate form of financing for the Company. 

Has Staff developed a method to assist the Company in staying in compliance with 

A.R.S 5 40-301? 

Yes. Staff developed a reporting mechanism to assist the Company’s efforts to comply 

with A.R.S 5 40-301. The reporting mechanism also provides regular, on-going 

regulatory oversight of the Company’s compliance status. 

Has Staff discussed this compliance reporting mechanism with the Company? 

Yes. Staff developed a draft of the mechanism and refined the mechanism with the 

Company’s input. The final mechanism is embodied in the “Line of Credit Compliance 

Report” which is attached to this testimony as Exhibit A. Staff shared the report with the 

Company and on March 19, 2013, received an e-mail stating that “GCU agrees with the 

LOC report that was emailed” for its review. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Please discuss the purpose of the Compliance report. 

The main purpose of the report is to provide a mechanism for the Company to show that it 

has not borrowed LOC funds for O&M costs for more than a 12-month period. The 

mechanism also serves to assist the Company in regularly monitoring its use of the LOC 

funds and in proactively managing its ability to comply with A.R.S 0 40-301. 

Please describe the basics of the report. 

The Company should file the compliance report monthly as an attachment to its fuel 

adjustor report. As shown in Exhibit A, the report segregates the uses of the LOC funds 

by column in order to highlight individual uses of the LOC funds. Column A represents 

the total amount of the LOC dollars outstanding at the time of the report. The headings 

for Column B through F represent the differing purposes or uses for LOC funds: 

0 Under collection of the purchased gas adjustor balance. 

Construction Work in Progress projects. 

0 Plant Additions. 

O&M / Cash Shortfalls. 

Refunds of Advance in Aid of Construction Arrearages. 

Does Staff have any clarifying comments on the nature of the amounts to be listed in 

Column B, C, D and F of the Compliance report? 

Yes. Please see the footnoted information in the Compliance report in Exhibit A. 

What is the value in separating the various uses of the LOC funds in the report? 

While segregating the various uses of the LOC proceeds provides valuable insight into the 

use of the funds, its primary purpose is to allow a calculation of the amount of LOC funds, 
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Q. 

A. 

if any, which were in use each month to finance O&M. The Company should not use 

long-term borrowing to fund O&M. By identifying the non-O&M uses of the LOC, the 

amount, if any, of the LOC funds used to fund O&M can be determined. Unless the 

Company obtains Commission authorization to use the LOC to finance O&M for periods 

exceeding 12 months, the amount of the LOC used for O&M should fall to zero or less at 

least once every 13 months.' If the amount of O&M financed by the LOC exceeds zero 

for 13 consecutive months, the Company is not in compliance with A.R.S 0 40-301. 

Similarly, the purposes specified in Columns B through E of Exhibit A, both individually 

and collectively, require Commission approval for LOC financing for periods exceeding 

12 months. Thus, if the Commission authorizes use of the LOC for funding the purposes 

specified in Columns B through E of Exhibit A for periods exceeding 12 months, but not 

for O&M for periods exceeding 12 months, 13 consecutive months of amounts greater 

than zero in Column F would represent unauthorized use of the LOC for funding O&M. 

Has Staff determined which LOC uses it believes are generally appropriate for 

funding with LOC funds? 

Yes. Staff considers the LOC uses shown in Column B through E of the Exhibit A report 

to be proper and acceptable, even for more than the 12 month period outlined in A.R.S Q 

40-301. Those LOC uses are: 

0 

0 Construction Work in Progress 

0 Plant Additions 

0 

Under collection of the Purchased Gas Adjustor 

Refunds of Advance in Aid of Construction Arrearages. 

A.R.S 5 40-301 requires the Company to obtain Commission authorization for any loan amounts (including LOC 
funds) exceeding 12 months; however, the Company does not need Commission authorization for borrowing periods 
less than 12 months. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q- 
A. 

Q- 

A. 

What does Staff therefore recommend regarding those particular LOC uses? 

Staff concludes that Commission authorization for the Company to obtain LOC loan funds 

for those four purposes for periods exceeding 12 months is appropriate. Such approval 

would allow the Company to finance any level of LOC amount for those purposes, up to 

and including that authorized by the Commission, and remain in compliance with A.R.S 3 
40-301. Staff does so recommend. 

Please explain the importance of Column F in the “Line of Credit Compliance 

Report” Le., Exhibit A. 

The amount shown in Column F is the amount of O&M deemed financed by the LOC. If 

the Commission does not authorize use of the LOC for financing O&M for periods 

exceeding 12 months, the amount in Column F must fall to zero or less at least once in any 

13 consecutive months or the Company will be out of compliance with A.R.S 0 40-301. 

Identifying any such occurrences is the primary purpose of the report. 

How is Column F calculated in Exhibit A? 

By definition, the amount in Column F is calculated as the amount in Column A minus the 

amounts in Columns B, Cy D and E. Column F is therefore a straight forward calculation 

from the amounts in the other columns. A positive value in Column F indicates that the 

LOC is funding O&M. An amount in Column F that is zero or negative indicates that 

there are no LOC funds used to O&M. 

Is it appropriate for the Company to use the LOC to fund O&M for periods of 12 

months or less? 

Yes. Use of the LOC to fund seasonal @e., short-term) cash shortfalls is a primary 

function of a LOC. The Company does not need Commission authority to borrow funds 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

for periods less than 12 months - only for greater than that period. Therefore, a positive 

balance in Column F for 13 consecutive months indicates that the Company has borrowed 

LOC funds for O&M for a period exceeding 12 months and is in violation of the statute. 

Conversely, a balance in Column F equal to or less than zero during any one of 13 

consecutive months indicates that the Company has not borrowed LOC funds for O&M 

exceeding 12 months for that 13 month period. In summary, Exhibit A allows the 

Commission to monitor the Company’s compliance with authorized and unauthorized uses 

of the LOC. 

Does Staff have any additional comments regarding Exhibit A? 

Yes. Exhibit A calculates whether the Company has used the LOC to fund O&M on a 

cumulative basis. Thus, if the Company has generated positive cash flows in previous 

years, it will have accumulated a negative Column F balance. In fact, if the Company 

generates the cash flows anticipated by recommended rates, Column F will have a 

negative balance in future years. Staff notes that while a negative amount in Column F 

indicates that the Company has not used the LOC to fund O&M, it does not mean that the 

Company is currently generating a postitive cash flow since the Company may be drawing 

upon “banked” cash flows from prior periods. 

Does this conclude your Supplemental Surrebuttal Testimony? 

Yes, it does. 
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CoMMISS1oNERS Arizona Corporatrcln Comrnission 
/ ‘ . I  ! >  y-- 1: 52 GARY PIERCE, Chairman DOCKETED i?i2 . 3 a 

.rub 1 9  ZOlZ PAUL NEWMAN 
SANDRA D. KENNEDY 
BOB STUMP 
BRENDA BURNS 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES GAS DIVISION ) 
INC. FOR A RATE INCREASE 

) DOCKET NO. G-02527A-12-0321 

) 
) 

Graham County Utilities, Inc. (“GCU”) in support of its application states as follows: 

1. GCU is a nonprofit cooperative corporation that provides gas distribution 

service to approximately 5,070 customers in Graham County, Arizona. 

2. GCU is a Class B Utility as defined by A.A.C. R14-2-103, filed herewith 

and incorporated by reference, are the Schedules, Direct Testimony of Mr. John V. Wallace and 

other materials in support of its application. GCU stipulates that Commission may use its 

original cost less depreciation rate base for determining a return on fair value in this application. 

GCU’s rate relief is premised upon its Times Interest Earned Ratio (“TIER”) and Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio (“DSC”). 

3. By this Application, GCU seeks a revenue increase of approximately 7 

percent over current rates. The proposed revenue increase would produce a rate of return of 

10.48 percent on its rate base of $2,576,030 and would yield an operating margin of $259,299 

after interest expense. 

4. The reasons underlying the Company‘s request for an overall 7 percent 

increase include GCEC’s investment of over $776,485 in plant improvements and replacements 

since September 30,2008. Since its last test year GCU has incurred approximately $985,487 in 
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advances of funds from Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. (“GCEC”) to fund its 

investments in plant improvements. 

5. In GCU’s last rate case, the Commission authorized a 12.11 percent 

increase in gross annual revenues based on a test year ending September 30,2008 (Decision No. 

71690, dated May 3,2010). 

6. For the 12 months ended September 30,201 1, the test year in this case, the 

present rates produced an operating margin of approximately $35,167 after interest expense on 

an adjusted test year basis. 

7. GCU’s proposed $224,132 increase in revenues produces a positive 

operating margin of $259,299 after interest expense. 

8. Given the low amount of margins that GCU is experiencing every month 

and GCU’s current negative financial position, GCU requests that the Commission process this 

application and enter a decision as soon as possible. GCU has purposefully limited the number 

of pro forma adjustments it has made in this case in an effort to limit the issues that may arise in 

processing its case. 

WHEREFORE, having fully stated its Application, GCU requests that the 

Commission enter its Order approving the requested rate increase, the new rates, fees and 

charges set forth in the Application. 

Further communications and notices concerning this Docket should be directed to: 

John V. Wallace 
GCSECA 
221 0 South Priest Drive 
Tempe, AZ 85282 
Email: jwallace@,gcseca.coop 

With a copy to: 

Kirk Gray 
GRAHAM COUNTY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, 1NC. 
P. 0. Drawer B 
Pima, Arizona 85543 
Email: kgray @,,ace. coop 



I 
I 

I 

I 
1 

2 

I 3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

I 27 

28 

I 

I 

1 
I 

I 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 13 th day of July, 20 12. 

BY .pi--_ 
J6hn V. Wallace 
Grand Canyon State Electric Cooperative Assn., Inc. 
Consultant for Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

Original and thirteen (1 3) copies filed 
this 13th day of July, 2012, with: 

Docket Control 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 W. Washington 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 
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1. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q- 
A. 

INTRODUCTION 

Please state your name address and occupation. 

My name is John V. Wallace. I am the Director of Regulatory and Strategic Services of 

Grand Canyon State Electric Cooperative Association (“GCSECA”). I am filing 

testimony on behalf of Graham County Utilities, Inc. (“GCU” or “Cooperative”). 

Please describe your professional qualifications and experience. 

I have been the Director of Regulatory and Strategic Services since August 1, 2000. In 

this position, I am responsible for preparing rate, financial and other utility related 

analysis and testimony for the GCSECA member Arizona Electric Cooperatives. Before 

I accepted a position with GCSECA, I worked for the Arizona Corporation Commission 

(“ACC”) for approximately 10 years. While working for the ACC, I held a number of 

positions within the Accounting and Rates Section of the Utilities Division of the ACC; 

the last of these positions was Manager, Revenue Requirements Analysis. In this 

capacity, I was responsible for managing six analysts and preparing staff reports and 

testimony on Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (TC&N”), financing, rate and 

other utility matters. In addition to my work experience, I have a Masters Degree in 

Business Administration from the University of North Dakota. 

On whose behalf are you appearing in this proceeding? 

I am appearing on behalf of the applicant, GCU Gas Division. GCU Gas Division is a 

nonprofit cooperative corporation that provides gas service to approximately 5,070 

customers in Graham County, Arizona. 

Was this testimony prepared by you or under your direction? 

Yes, it was. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q- 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

What exhibits are you sponsoring in this case? 

In addition to the schedules attached to this testimony, I am responsible for the 

preparation of all the test year materials contained in GCU’s filing, except for the 

historical financial statements prepared by GCU and the report of its Certified Public 

Accountants. I will be referring to these materials from time to time throughout my 

direct testimony. 

What areas does your testimony address? 

My testimony addresses four primary areas: revenue requirements, cost of service and 

class revenue allocations, rate design. 

Please summarize your recommendations. 

The main reason underlying the Company’s request for an overall 6.91 percent increase in 

revenues is due to the fact that since its last Test Year ending September 30, 2008, GCU 

has been investing over $776,485 in plant improvements and replacements. As of 

September 30, 201 I , GCU has incurred approximately $985,487 in inter-company 

payables due to Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. (“GCEC”) to fund its 

investments in plant improvements. GCU has also experienced increases in its other 

expenses such as salaries and benefits and purchased gas since its last Test Year. An 

increase of this magnitude is needed to eliminate negative margins produced by the 

current rates, to provide adequate interest and debt service coverage and to provide the 

internally generated cash flows required to support the utility’s on-going operations and 

plant improvements and improve its equity position. 

What is the relationship between GCU and GCEC? 

GCEC manages the operations of GCU’s Gas and Water Divisions pursuant to an 

operations and management agreement. GCEC and GCU Gas and Water are operated as 

separate and distinct entities from each other. Nevertheless, the same members (5 out of 
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9) serve on the Boards of Directors of both GCU and GCEC. GCU’s employees have 

offices in GCEC’s building. GCEC will also advance funds to GCU when necessary. 

Q. 
A. 

Q- 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Please explain Schedule A-2 of the filing. 

Schedule A-2, summarizes operating results at present and proposed rates for the 12 

months ended September 30, 201 1, the test year in this case. The present rates produced 

an operating margin including interest expense of approximately $35,167 on an adjusted 

test year basis. The proposed $224,132 increase in revenues produces a positive 

operating margin of $259,299. 

Why was the operating margin a positive $35,167 on an adjusted Test Year basis as 

opposed to a negative amount? 

The main reason is because GCEC decided in 2011 to decrease the allocations of 

expenses associated with the GCEC building, labor and personnel, etc. that were 

approved in GCU’s last rate case in an effort to improve GCU’s financial position. This 

was done to the detriment of GCEC. Absent these changes, GCU’s adjusted Test Year 

basis margins would have been approximately a negative $3,000. 

Do you view the indicated increase in revenues of approximately 7 percent at proposed 

rates as reasonable in this case? 

Yes. Cooperatives’ revenue requirements are normally determined by the level of 

operating expenses plus an additional amount of margin for interest coverage. GCU has 

used an Operating Times Interest Earned Ratio (“TIER”) of 3.3 1 (Debt Service Coverage 

Ratio of 2.18) to determine the required level of revenues and revenue increase. Since 

GCU’s amount of interest on long term debt has and will continue to increase from its 

previous Test Year amount, it is necessary for GCU to use an Operating TIER of 3.31 

(DSC of 2.18) to set its revenue requirement. Finally, an Operating TIER of 3.31 is 
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necessary to maintain and increase GCU’s equity level eventually to 30 percent which 

has been required by the Commission Decision No. 67748, dated April 1 1,2005. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

What factors besides its TIER did GCU use to determine its revenue requirement in this 

case? 

GCU has determined its proposed revenue requirement by considering the amount of 

revenue necessary to maintain an Operating TIER of 3.31, to maintain a positive cash 

flow after operating expenses, to fund plant improvements and maintenance, to maintain 

its equity level and to fund contingencies. The requested increase in this case is 

reasonable given its recent history of negative margins (negative margins of $438,574 as 

of September 30,2009 and negative margins of $246,299 as of September 30,2010), and 

the need to produce positive cash flo~rs and maintain its equity level. GCU has 

considered and balanced these financial considerations with a reasonable overall increase 

in revenues for its members. Consistent with Decision No. 69245, GCU should be able 

to stabilize or perhaps steadily increase its equity ratio using an Operating TIER of 3.3 I 

even given its forecast for higher margin losses in 2012 which are estimated to be a 

negative $10,888 as of December 31,2012. 

Please summarize your rate design recommendations. 

Considering the Cost of Service Study (;‘COSS’’) prepared for the case and other factors, 

I have based the rate design on customer class increases such that the residential class 

receives a slightly higher percentage of revenue increase than the approximately 7 

percent overall increase in revenues due to the fact that according to the COSS, the 

commercial class is already paying significantly over its fair share and the irrigation class 

is also paying over its fair share. 

I am recommending a $3.25 increase from $13.00 to $16.25 in the residential service 

availability charge and a $5.25 increase in the monthly minimum (service availability) 
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charges for the irrigation classes and a $6.00 increase in the monthly minimum (service 

availability) charges for the commercial. 

The per therm charges for each class were not changed due to GCU’s recommended 

increases in to the service availability charges for the reasons stated later in my 

testimony. 

I am recommending no increases in GCU’s current Service Charges. 

The proposed rate and charges are detailed on Schedule H-3. 

GCU recommends that the Commission approve its proposed line extension policy that 

would allow GCU to pay half of the overhead charges associated with line extensions. 

Q. 

A. 

11. 

Q. 
A. 

Is GCU requesting that the Commission process its application and enter a decision as 

soon possible? 

Yes, it is. Given the low amount of margins that GCU is experiencing every month and 

GCU’s current negative financial position, GCU requests that the Commission process 

this application and enter a decision as soon as possible. GCU has purposehlly limited 

the number of pro forma adjustments it has made in this case in an effort to limit the 

issues that may arise in processing its case. 

REVENUE REQUIREMENTS 

Please explain the original cost rate base (OCRE3) calculation shown on Schedule B-1 . 

I am recommending that the Commission adopt an OCIU3 of $238 1,088 for GCU. In an 

effort to limit the potentia1 issues that may arise during the processing of this case, I have 

made no adjustments to Rate Base, Plant-in-Service, Accumulated Provision for 
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Deprecation, etc. 

I have subtracted $66,645 of customer deposits from the rate base. I have added the 

construction work in progress that is currently Plant-in-Service, materials and supplies 

and prepayments to GCU’s rate base. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q- 
A. 

Why hasn’t GCU included its Reconstruction Cost New less Depreciation (RCND) 

information (Schedules B-3 and B-4) in its application? 

GCU stipulates that the Commission may use its original cost data for the calculation of a 

rate of return on fair value for this proceeding. Therefore, the RCND information 

contained on Schedules B-3 and B-4 is unnecessary for a determination in this matter. 

Why hasn’t a provision for cash working capital (Schedule B-5) been included in the 

development of rate base? 

The Cooperative decided not to incur the additional expense required to conduct a 

lead/lag study. Accordingly, no cash working capital allowance is sought in this case. 

Please explain Schedule C-1 of the filing. 

Schedule C-1 shows the actual and adjusted operating income statement for the test year. 

As described on Schedule C-2, actual test year results were adjusted as follows: 

A. Adjustment A. eliminates the $16,619 of amortization of the acquisition adjustment 

associated with GCU’s original purchase of the gas system from the depreciation and 

amortization expenses. This adjustment was adopted in GCU’s previous rate case 

Decision No. 71690, dated May 3,2010. 

B. Adjustment B. increased depreciation and amortization expense by $7,183 to allow 

depreciation on the acquisition adjustment assets that were charged to plant per 

Decision No. 58437. This adjustment was adopted in GCU’s previous rate case 
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Decision No. 71690, dated May 3,2010. 

C. Adjustment C. increased Administrative and General Expense by $421 for an increase 

in ACC assessments due to the revenue increase being proposed in this case. 

D. Adjustment D. decreased Interest Expense-Other by $3,529 to adjust for lower interest 

rates on the due-to GCEC. This adjustment also recognizes $9,128 in reduced interest 

ratedexpense on long-term debt from CFC. 

E. Adjustment E. increases Sales of Gas by customer class by a total of $148,828, 

decreases Fuel Cost Under-billed by a total of $148,828 to reclassify the Purchased 

Gas Fuel Adjustor Revenues. 

F. Adjustment F. decreased A&G expense by $19,342 to annualize GCU’s allocation of 

management fees. 

G. Adjustment G. increases several expenses by a total of $22,560 to annualize increases 

in payroll, benefits and pensions costs. 

H. Adjustment H. increased Rate (Case) Related Expense by $6,000 for actual and 

estimated rate case expenses that will be incurred in the preparation and completion of 

this case. I have estimated the total amount of rate case expense of $12,000 in this 

case. I then amortized this expense over a two-year period given the projected growth 

in GCU’s service territory and the associated plant investments. 

These adjustments increase operating margins for the test year by $3,326 resulting in 

adjusted operating margins of $147,37 before interest on long-term debt on Schedule C-1. 
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111. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

COST OF SERVICE AND RATE DESIGN 

Why should gas rates be based upon cost of service? 

Cost of service is an important criterion in the development of revenues by class of 

consumer and the development of rates that will produce those revenues. If rates are not 

cost based, the inevitable results may create subsidies among the classes of consumers 

and consumers within a class. This is not only perceived as inequitable, but may result in 

distorted consumer decisions concerning the use of utility services. Other factors, such as 

customer class price sensitivity, continuity, simplicity and stability are valid 

considerations in the rate design process and had to be considered given GCU’s 

circumstances. 

Did you prepare the class cost of service analysis contained in this filing? 

Yes. The study was prepared to provide guidance in setting class revenue targets and 

designing the rates required to meet these targets. The costing methodology used is 

essentially the same as that used in GCU’s last rate proceeding. 

Would you briefly describe the approach used to develop the study? 

The basic method used in the study is commonly known as the embedded or average cost 

method as contrasted with the marginal cost method. This method, properly applied, 

produces a guide for ratemaking purposes. 

The initial step was to establish, for costing purposes, consumer classes with similar 

usage characteristics. For the purposes of present rates these classes are: residential 

commercial, etc. The next step in the study was to classify all elements of rate base and 

operating expenses as demand-related, usage or commodity-related or customer-related. 

The results of this process are shown on Schedules G-6 and G-7. The final step in the 

analysis was to allocate rate base and operating expenses to each class of consumer. The 
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results of these allocations are shown on Schedules G-1 and G-2. The class allocation 

factors used in the study are provided on Schedule G-8. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Please summarize the results of your study. 

The results of my study, at present and proposed rates, are summarized on Schedules G-l 

and G-2, respectively. At present rates, the overall system rate of return (ROR) on rate 

base is a positive 5.87 percent. All classes are producing positive returns with the 

exception of the residential class. At present rates, the residential class has a negative 

return of 1.80 percent. The irrigation class has a positive return of 9.85 percent. The 

commercial class has a positive return of 39.60. 

Please explain the rate of return index concept. 

The last line of Schedule G-1 shows the ratio of actual to equal return revenues (AERR 

ratio). A class with a ratio of I is paying the amount of revenue that results in ROR equal 

to the system ROR. When the system ROR is positive, if the AERR ratio is below I .OO, 

this indicates that a class's revenues and margins are not sufficient to recover the system 

rate of return. When the AERR ratio is above 1 .OO, this indicates that a class's revenues 

and margins result in a return higher than the system rate of return. 

In GCU's case, the commercial and irrigation classes currently have an AERR ratio 

above 1 .OO. The residential class AERR ratio is below 1 .OO. 

Typically the cost of service study is used as the basis to allocate revenues among 

customer classes. Did you use the cost of service study to allocate revenues to customer 

classes? 

Yes. However, GCU's circumstances merit a deviation from strictly using the cost of 

service study to set rates for the reasons stated in my testimony. 
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Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

How did you allocate revenues to the customer classes? 

I have based the rate design on customer class increases such that the residential class 

receives a slightly higher percentage of revenue increase than the approximately 7 

percent overall increase in revenues due to the fact that according to the COSS, the 

commercial class is already paying well over its fair share of the cost of service and the 

irrigation class is also paying greater than its share. The residential, irrigation, 

commercial class revenues were increased by approximately 8 percent, 18 percent and 4 

percent, respectively as shown on Schedule H- I .  

What monthly minimum system (service availability) charges are you recommending by 

customer class and why? 

I am proposing increases to the present monthly minimum service charges for the 

various classes. I am recommending the residential class service availability charge be 

increased from $13.00 to $16.25; the irrigation class be increased fi-om $21 to $26.25; 

and the commercial class be increased from $24 to $30. (Refer to Schedule H-3) 

I am recommending the monthly service availability charges be increased because of the 

following reasons. The first is the majority of the GCU’s distribution related costs are 

fixed and do not vary with the number of therms used. The second reason is that using 

fixed charges to collect fixed costs helps to alleviate cash flow shortages and surpluses 

that result from a rate design that is heavily weighted toward a per therm charge. 

Changes in the number of therms sold after the Test Year due to weather and other 

factors can have a dramatic affect on a utilities’ financial condition. GCU’s fixed costs 

for serving each customer class are significantly higher than GCU’s monthly minimum 

service charges. In addition, GCU will collect a more even revenue stream during 

summer versus winter months. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

Is GCU recommending changes to the existing per therm charges for each customer 

class? 

No, it is not. GCU is recommending that the increase in revenues be collected from its 

proposed increases to service availability charges for each customer class for the reasons 

stated above. 

Please explain the bill impacts for residential customers from GCU’s proposed rate 

design. 

The monthly bill for a residential customer who uses 36 therms will increase by $5.12 

(12.43%), from $41.15 to $46.27. Residential customers who use more (less) than 36 

therms per month will experience a lower (higher) percent increase due to the level of the 

higher percentage increase in the monthly service availability charge versus the therm 

charge. (Refer to Schedule H4, Page 1 of 3.) 

Please explain the bill impacts for irrigation customers from GCU’s proposed rate design. 

The monthly bill €or an irrigation customer who uses approximately 59 therms will 

increase by $8.31 (14.78%), from $56.23 to $64.53. Irrigation customers who use more 

(less) than 59 therms per month will experience a lower (higher) percent increase due to 

the level of the higher percentage increase in the monthly service availability charge 

versus the therm charge. (Refer to Schedule H-4, page 2 of 3.) 

Please explain the bill impacts for the commercial class from GCU’s proposed rate 

design. 

Under GCU’s proposed rates, the monthly bill for a commercial customer who uses 289 

therms will increase by $20.98 (8.43%), from $248.86 to $269.84. Commercial 

customers who use more (less) than 289 therms per month will experience a lower 

(higher) percent increase due to the level of the higher percentage increase in the monthly 

system charge versus the therm charge. (Refer to Schedule H4, page 3 of 3.) 
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Q. 
A. 

IV. 

Q. 
A. 

V. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Is GCU recommending any changes to Service Charges? 

GCU is recommending no changes to its currently approved Service Charges. 

PURCHASED GAS BASE COST AND FUEL ADJUSTOR 

What are your recommendations regarding the existing purchased gas base cost? 

In Decision No. 71690, the Commission ordered that the GCU purchased gas base cost be 

set at zero and that the entire cost of gas be collected through the Purchased Gas Fuel 

Adjustor. Consequently, GCU is not proposing a base cost of gas in this case. 

Line Extensions 

Please discuss GCU’s line extension policy that was approved in Decision No. 71690 

dated May 3 , 20 10. 

In compliance with rate case Decision No. 71690, GCU filed a line extension policy that 

removed all free main and/or service line footage and all dollar allowances. This poiicy 

requires all new customers who need line extensions to pay the total cost of these 

extensions in the form of a CIAC. 

What changes are being proposed by GCU to this line extension policy in this case? 

GCU is recommending all new customers who need line extensions pay the total cost of 

these extensions in the form of a CIAC except for one-half of associated line extension 

overhead costs. Under this proposal, GCU will pay one-half of over-head costs because, 

as discussed in more detail below, GCU is concerned that customers and developers will 

not install gas service in homes if the cost to connect gas service is too high. 

Currently GCU is experiencing no growth in number of customers. In fact, it has fewer 

customers now than it did in its last rate case. Given there are a limited number of 

developers and developments in GCU’s service territory, GCU is also concerned that if it 
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continues to require 100% of the line extension costs be paid by customers, that 

developers will elect not to plumb houses for gas service (provide homes that are all 

electric service) and remove a homeowner’s choice to have gas service. Unlike electric 

and water service, developers and homeowners can choose gas service as an optional 

service. 

In conclusion, GCU’s management and Board have concluded that developers and 

customers may not install gas service in its service area with the existing line extension 

policy due to the fact that these developers and customers must bear all of the cost of line 

extensions because of the elimination of the free footage for line extensions that was a 

part of GCU’s previously approved line extension policy. 

Q. 
A. 

Does that conclude your direct testimony? 

Yes, it does. 
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Line 

- No. 

1 

2 

3 
4 

5 

6 

7 

a 
9 
10 

SCHEDULE A-I 
PAGE 1 of I 

Date: June 21. 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
COMPUTATION OF INCREASE IN 

GROSS REVENUE REQUIREMENTS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

Revenues 

Operating Expense and Interest 

Operating Margins 

Non-Operating Margins 

Operating TIER 

Net TIER 

% Return on Rate Base 

Requested Increase in Revenues ( c ) 

% Increase 

Rate Base ( a )  

RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTAL 

OTHERGASREVENUE 

Present 

- Rates 

LU 
3,242,352 

3,207,185 

35,167 

11,311 

1.31 

I .41 

2,581,oaa 

I .80% 

Proposed 

- Rates 

w 
3,466,484 

3,207,185 

259,299 

11,311 

3.31 

3.41 

2,581,088 

10.48% 

224,132 

6.91 % 

0 0 

806,399 ~ 6 , 3 2 8  

2,383,955 2,576,030 
1 1,955 14,084 

3,202,310 3,4264 1 

40,043 40,043 
3,242,353 3,466,484 

SUPPORT SCHEDULES: 
( a ) B - I  ( c )H- I  
( b ) C-I ( d ) A-2 



Line Description 

- No. 

1 Operating Revenues 

2 OrJeratina Expenses: 
3 Purchased Gas 
4 Distribution - Operation 
5 Distribution - Maintenance 
6 Customer Accounts 
7 Admin. & General Expenses 
8 Depreciation & Amortization 
9 Property Taxes 

10 Tax Expense - Other 
11 Interest on Long-Term Debt 
12 Interest Expense - Other 
13 Other Deductions 

14 Total 

15 Operating Margins 

16 Non-Operating Margins 

17 Net Margins 

18 Therms Sold 

I 9  Utility Plant Additions 

20 Average No. of Customers 

21 Times Interest Earned (Tier) 

22 Debt Service Coverage (DSC) 

SCHEDULE A-2 
PAGE 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
SUMMARY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

GROSS REVENUE REQUIREMENTS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

PRIOR YEARS Test Year Ended 913011 1 

Ended Ended 
913012009 91301201 0 

la) (a) 
3,402,937 3,124,766 

2,100,652 
264,357 
361,287 
270,628 
486,413 
137,095 
35,521 
50,706 
79,858 
54,993 

1,644,748 
262,575 
273,541 
292,084 
528,065 
145,705 
32,480 
46,836 
82,985 
62,047 

3,841,511 3,371,065 

(438,574) (246,299) 

7,775 8,436 

(430,799) (237,863) 

2,638’61 1 2,920,126 

145,361 352,091 

5,101 5,080 

(4.39) (1.87) 

- Actual 

(a) 
3,242,352 

1,399,908 
332,030 
317,169 
3 14,703 
451,059 
156,455 
31,306 
48,107 

121,332 
47,571 

3,219,639 

22,713 

11,311 

34,024 

2,933,418 

279,033 

5,103 

1.28 

1.26 

Adiusted 

Ib) 
3,242,352 

1,399,908 
337,843 
322,241 
327,042 
437,474 
147,018 
31,306 
48,107 

112,205 
44,041 

3,207,185 

35,167 

11,311 

46,478 

2,933,418 

279,033 

5,103 

1.41 

1.48 

Proiected Year 

Present 

0 
3,242,352 

1,399,908 
337,843 
322,241 
327,042 
437,474 
147,018 
31,306 
48,107 

112,205 
44,041 

3,207,185 

35,167 

11,311 

46,478 

2,933,418 

279,033 

5,103 

1.41 

1.48 

Proposed 

0 
3,466,484 

1,399,908 
337,843 
322,241 
327,042 
437,474 
147,018 
31,306 
48,107 

112,205 
44,041 

3,207,185 

259,299 

11,311 

270,610 

2,933,418 

279,033 

5,103 

3.41 

2.18 

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: 
( a) E-2 ( b ) C-I ( c )  F- I  



SCHEDULE A-3 
PAGE 1 of 1 

Date: June 21,2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
SUMMARY OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

PROFORMA 

Short-Term Debt 
Long-Term Debt 
Total Debt 
Margins And Equity 
Total Capital 
Capitalization Ratios: (%) 
Short-Term Debt 
Long-Term Debt 
Total Debt 
Margins And Equity 

Weighted Cost Of 
Short-Term Debt 
Weighted Cost Of 
Long-Term Debt 

PRIOR YEARS TEST YEAR 
9/3012009 

(a) 

982,069 
982,069 

(276,437) 
705,632 

0.00% 
139.18% 
1 39.1 8% 
-39.18% 
100.00% 

5.10% 

7.08% 

9/30/2010 9/30/2011 
(a) (a) 
177,018 750,751 

1,863,352 1,672,034 
2,040,370 2,422,785 
(51 4,024) (480,062) 

1,526,346 1,942,723 

1 1.60% 38.64% 
122.08% 86.07% 
133.68% 124.71% 
-33.68% -24.71% 
100.00% 100.00% 

4.95% 4.60% 

7.09% 7.10% 

YEAR 
9130/2012 
0 

1,583,052 
1,583,052 
(480,062) 

1,102,990 

0.00% 
143.52% 
1 43.52% 
-43.52% 
100.00% 

3.70% 

7.09% 

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: 
( a )  E-I 
( b )  D-1 



SCHEDULE A 4  
PAGE 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
CONSTRUCTION EXPENDITURES AND GROSS UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

YEAR 

Test Year Ended 9/30/06 

Test Year Ended 9/30/07 

Test Year Ended 9/30/08 

Test Year Ended 9/30/09 

Test Year Ended 9/30/10 

Test Year Ended 9/30/11 ( b ) 

Projected Year Ended 9130/12 

Projected Year Ended 9/30/13 

Projected Year Ended 9/30/14 

NET 
PLANT 

ADDITIONS 
( a )  

184,076 

403,885 

239,405 

522,607 

124,271 

79,900 

61,400 

61,400 

GROSS 
UTILITY 

PLANT fN 
SERVICE 

3,527,199 

3,711,275 

4,115,160 

4,354,565 

4,877,172 

5,001,443 

5,081,343 

5,142,743 

5,204,143 

SUPPORT SCHEDULES: 
( a ) F-3 
( b ) E-3A 



SCHEDULE A-5 
PAGE 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

PROJECTED 
PRIOR YEARS TEST YEAR PRESENT PROPOSED 

913012009 913012010 91301201 1 RATES RATES 

SOURCES OF FUNDS: ( a )  ( a )  ( a )  ( b )  (b) 
FROM OPERATIONS 363,062 (395,028) 235,657 235,657 235,657 

FROM INVESTING (228,924) (515,629) (1 18,615) (1 18,615) (118,615) 

FROM FINANCING (1 343 38) 910,657 (117,042) (117,042) (1 17,042) 
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS - (0) 

SUPPORT SCHEDULES: 
( a ) E-3 
( b ) F-2 



SCHEDULE 6-1 
Page 1 of 1 
Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

SUMMARY OF ORIGINAL COST 

DISTRIBUTION: 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET DISTRIBUTION PLANT 
GENERAL 8 INTANGIBLE 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET GENERAL PLANT 

TOTAL 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET TOTAL PLANT 

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS 
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 
PREPAYMENTS 
LESS: 
CONSUMER DEPOSITS 

- PLUS: 

ORIGINAL COST 
RATE BASE 

4,429,599 
(2,129,775) 
2,299,824 

204,644 
(1 70.531 

34.113 

4,634,243 
(2,300,306) 
2,333,937 

21 1,559 
79,032 
23,205 

66,645 
2,581,088 

RecaD : 
A-I 



SCHEDULE 8-2 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: July 13, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
ORIGINAL COST RATE BASE 
PROFORMA ADJUSTMENTS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

ACTUAL AT ADJUSTED 
END OF PROFORMA AT END OF 
TEST YEAR ADJUSTMENTS TEST YEAR 

DISTRIBUTION: 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET PLANT 

GENERAL & INTANGIBLE 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET PLANT 

TOTAL 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET PLANT 

SUPPORT SCHEDULES: 
( a )  E-5 

913014 1 
j a )  

4,387,077 
(2,129,775) 
2,257,302 

247,166 
(1 70,531) 

76,635 

4,634,243 
(2,300,306) 
2,333,937 

913Ol11 

- 

Recap : 
B-1 

9130111 
/ b )  

4,387,077 
(2,129,775) 
2,257,302 

247,166 
(170,531) 

76,635 

4,634,243 
(2,300,306) 
2,333,937 



SCHEDULE B-3 
Page 1 of 1 
Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
RCND RATE BASE PROFORMA ADJUSTMENTS 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

NOT APPLICABLE 



SCHEDULE B-4 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
RCND BY MAJOR PLANT ACCOUNTS 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

NOT APPLICABLE 



SCHEDULE B-5 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
COMPUTATION OF WORKING CAPITAL 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 I 

1. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES INVENTORIES 79,032 
2. PREPAYMENTS 23,205 
3. LESS: CONSUMER DEPOSITS 66,645 
3. TOTAL WORKING CAPITAL ALLOWANCE 35,592 

CUSTOMER CLASSIFICATION 
RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTALS 

SUPPORT SCHEDULES: 
( a )  E-I 

ALLOCATION TO 
RATE BASE 

2,040,370 
11,565 

46231 4 
2,514,449 

RECAP SCHEDULES: 
( b )  B-I 



SCHEDULE C-1 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
ADJUSTED TEST YEAR INCOME STATEMENT 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

TEST YEAR PROFORMA ADJUSTED 
91301201 1 ADJUSTMENTS TEST YEAR 

0 
REVENUES 
RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL 
FUEL COST UNDERBILLED 
OTHER OPERATING RVENUES 

EXPENSES 
PURCHASED GAS 
DISTRIBUTION EXPENSE - OPERATIONS 
DlSTRlBUTION EXPENSE - MAINTENANCE 
CONSUMER ACCOUNTS EXPENSE 
ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 
DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 
TAX EXPENSE - PROPERTY 
TAX EXPENSE - OTHER 
INTEREST EXPENSE - OTHER 

OPERATING MARGINS 
INTEREST EXPENSE - LTD 

NON-OPERATING MARGINS 
INTEREST INCOME 

2,273,160 110,795 2,383,955 
11,400 555 11,955 

768,92 1 37,478 806,399 
148,828 (148,828) 
40,043 40,043 

3,242,352 3,242,352 

1,399,908 
332,030 
31 7,169 
314,703 
451,059 
156,455 
31,306 
48,107 

5,813 
5,072 

12,339 
( I  3,585) 
(9,436) 

1,399,908 
337,843 
322,241 
327,042 
437,474 
147,018 
31,306 
48,107 

47,571 (3,529) 44,041 
3,098,307 (3,326) 3,094,981 

144,045 3,326 147,371 
121,332 (9,128) 112,205 

OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOME 
CAPITAL CREDITS 

NET MARGINS 

SUPPORT SCHEDULES: 
( a )  E-2 
( b )  C-2 

11,311 11,311 

34.024 12.454 46.478 
11,311 - 11,311 

RECAP SCHEDULES: 
( C )  A-I 
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SCHEDULE C-3 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
COMPUTATION OF GROSS REVENUE CONVERSION FACTOR 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

NOT APPLICABLE - GCU IS A NON-PROFIT CORPORATION 



SCHEDULE C-4 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
COMPUTATION OF ACC ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 
ACC ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 

TOTAL REVENUE - YEAR ENDED 9/30/11 3,242,352 
TOTAL ASSESSMENT 6,094 
FACTOR 0.0018795 

PROFORMA ADJUSTMENT IN REVENUE 224,132 
FACTOR 0.0018795 
DOLLAR INCREASE IN A.C.C. ANNUAL ASSESSMt 421 

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: 
ACC ASSESSMENT NOTICES 



_ -  

SCHEDULE D-I 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
SUMMARY COST OF CAPITAL 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

INVESTED CAPITAL 

LONG-TERM DEBT ( a ) 
SHORT-TERM DEBT ( a ) 
TOTAL 

INVESTED CAPITAL 

LONG-TERM DEBT ( a ) 
SHORT-TERM DEBT ( a ) 
TOTAL 

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: 
( a )  D-2 

END OF ACTUAL TEST YEAR 91301201 1 
COST 

AMOUNT - % - RATE COMPOSITE 
m 

1,708,513 63.42% 7.20% 7.27% 
985,487 36.58% 4.60% 4.60% 

2,694,000 100.00% 11.87% 

END OF PROJECTED YEAR 9130/2012 

AMOUNT % - RATE COMPOSITE 
COST 

m 
1,583,052 52.91 % 7.27% 7.27% 
1,408,658 47.09% 4.60% 4.60% 
2,99 1,710 100.00% 11.87% 11.87% 

RECAP SCHEDULES: 
( b ) A-3 
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SCHEDULE 0-3 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21,2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

COST OF PREFERRED STOCK 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

NOT APPLICABLE 



SCHEDULE 0-4 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
COST OF COMMON EQUITY 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

NOT APPLICABLE 



SCHEDULE E-I 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

TEST YEAR PRIOR YEARS 
ENDED 9/30/11 ENDED 9130110 ENDED 9130/09 

ASSETS: 
UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE 4,374,400 4,095,366 3,743,276 
CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS ( a ) 21 1,559 366,322 195,805 
PLANT ACQUISITION ADJUSTMENT 41 5,484 41 5,484 415,484 
TOTAL UTILITY PLANT 5,001,443 4,877,172 4,354,565 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2,509,706 2,353,251 2,207,546 
NET UTILITY PLANT 2,491,737 2,523,921 2,147,OI 9 
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED ORGANIZATIO 199,180 131,388 134,341 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
CASH 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (NET) 
UNDERBILLED CONSUMERS FUEL COST 
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 
OTHER CURRENT AND ACCRUED ASSETS 

OTHER ASSETS - DEFERRED DEBITS 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY: 
MEMBERSHIPS 
PATRONAGE CAP I TAL 
TOTAL EQUITY ( b )  
NOTE PAYABLE - GCEC 
CFC NOTES PAYABLE 

CURRENT LIABILITIES : 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - GGEC 
Accounts Payable - Water Department 
Overbilled Consumers Fuel Cost 
Accrued Taxes 
Customers' Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 
Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT 

- 
44,253 20,842 21,546 

79,032 84,805 75,283 
- 

28,792 28.854 28,579 
(508,854) (542,878) (3050 16) 
(480,062) (514,024) (276,437) 

1,672,034 1,863,352 982,069 
1,672,034 1,863,352 982,069 

263,244 188,906 159,807 
51,712 60,616 69,351 

985,487 699,527 1,103,232 

230,169 378,378 247,529 
34,294 34,846 36,220 
66,645 67,220 68,845 
13,664 13,282 13,096 
17,613 16,657 12,320 

1,662,828 1,459,432 1,710,400 
2.854.800 2.808.760 2.416.032 

- - 

SUPPORT SCHEDULES: 
( a ) E-5 
( b )  E-4 

RECAP SCHEDULES: 
( C )  A-3 ( d )  B-5 



SCHEDULE E-2 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
COMPARATIVE INCOME STATEMENT 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

TEST YEAR PRIOR YEARS 
ENDED 9/30/11 ENDED 9/30/10 ENDED 9/30109 

REVENUES: 
RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL 
FUEL COST OVERBILLED 
OTHER OPERATING RVENUES 

EXPENSES: 
PURCHASEDGAS 
DISTRIBUTION EXP. - OPER. 
DISTRIBUTION EXP. - MAINT. 
CONSUMER ACCOUNTS EXP. 
ADMIN. & GENERAL 
DEPRECIATION & AMORT. 
TAXES - PROPERTY 
TAXES - OTHER 
INTEREST EXPENSE - OTHER 

OPERATING MARGINS 
INTEREST EXPENSE - LTD 

NON-OPERATING MARGINS: 
INTEREST INCOME 

2,273,160 2,380,373 2,678,432 
1 I ,400 6,681 8,456 

768,92 1 843,054 976,257 
148,828 24,648 19,960 
40,043 (129,990) (280,168) 

3,242,352 $1 24,766 3,402,937 ( b )  

1,399,908 
332,030 
31 7,169 
31 4,703 
451,059 
156,455 
31,306 
48,107 

1,644,748 
262,575 
273,541 
292,084 
528,065 
145,705 
32,480 
46,836 

2,100,652 
264,357 
361,287 
270,628 
486,413 
137,095 
35,521 
50,706 

INTEREST EXPENSE - OTHER 47,571 62,047 54,993 
3,098,307 3,288,081 3,761,653 ( b ) 

OPERATING MARGINS 144,045 (163,315) (358,716) ( b ) 
INTEREST EXPENSE - LTD 121,332 82,985 79,858 ( b ) 

22,713 (246,299) (438,574) 

INTEREST INCOME 386 546 
NON-OPERATING MARGINS: 

47,571 62,047 54,993 
3,098,307 3,288,081 3,761,653 ( b ) 

144,045 (163,315) (358,716) ( b ) 
121.332 82.985 79.858 I b l  . .  
22,713 (246,299) (438;574) 

386 546 
CAPITAL CREDITS 11,311 8,050 7,229 

11,311 8,436 7,775 ( b  ) 
NET MARGINS ( a ) 34,024 (237,863) (430,799) ( b )  

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: 
( a I E - 4  

RECAP SCHEDULES: 
( b ) A-2 



SCHEDULE E-3 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

TEST YEAR PRIOR YEAR PRIOR YEAR 

CASH FLOWS 
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
NET MARGINS (DEFICITS) 
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 

DEFERRED CHARGES 
OVERBILLED FUEL COST 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
INVENTORIES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 

CAPITAL CREDITS - NONCASH 

ADVANCES - WATER DEPARTMENT 

913012011 

34,024 
156,455 
(73,448) 

3,664 
(1 48,209) 
(23,411) 

9,315 
(8,693) 

91301201 0 

(237,862) 
145,705 

(4 8 02 5) 
(5,509) 

130,849 
704 

(1 3,974) 
(721 1) 

913012009 

(430,799) 
137,095 

(9,229) 
3,467 

279,946 
35,674 
14,051 

( I  9,624) 

ADVANCES - GCEC 
TOTAL FROM OPERATIONS 

285,960 (403,705) 352,48 1 
235,657 (395,028) 363,062 

FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
ADDITIONS TO PLANTIPURCHASE OF PROPEI (124,271) (522,607) (239,405) 
SALVAGE VALUE OF PLANT RETIRED 
PATRONAGE CAPITAL RETIREMENT - CFC 5,656 6,978 10,481 
TOTAL FROM FINANCING (1 18,615) (515,629) (228,924) 

FROM FINANCING: 
Advances on Long-Term Debt - CFC 800,000 
ClAC Refunds Due 226,765 
PAYMENTS ON LONG-TERM DEBT - CFC (I 16,980) (101,776) (92,860) 
PAYMENTS ON LONG-TERM DEBT - GCEC (14,607) (41,728) 
MEMBERSHIPS (62) 275 450 
TOTAL FROM FINANCING (1 17,042) 91 0,657 ( I  34,138) 
CHANGE - 
BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 
BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

SUPPORT SCHEDULES: RECAP SCHEDULES: 
A-5 



SCHEDULE E 4  
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN MEMBERS EQUITY 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

TOTAL MARGINS 
AND EQUITIES 

BALANCE SEPTEMBER 30,2006 127,979 

NET EARNINGS (LOSS) 
INCREASE IN MEMBERSHIPS 

BALANCE SEPTEMBER 30,2007 

NET EARNINGS (LOSS) 

DECREASE IN MEMBERSHIPS 

BALANCE SEPTEMBER 30,2008 

NET EARNINGS (LOSS) 

INCREASE IN MEMBERSHIPS 

BALANCE SEPTEMBER 30,2009 

NET EARNINGS (LOSS) 
INCREASE IN MEMBERSHIPS 

133,624 
735 

262,338 

(1 08,375) 

(51) 
153,912 

(430,799) ( b )  

450 (a) 
(276,437) ( a ) 

(237,863) ( b ) 
275 ( a ) 

BALANCE SEPTEMBER 30,2010 (514,024) ( a ) 

NET EARNINGS (LOSS) 
DECREASE IN MEMBERSHIPS 
ROUNDING DOLLARS 
BALANCE SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

SUPPORT SCHEDULES: 
( a )  E-I 
( b )  E-2 

RECAP SCHEDULES: 



SCHEDULE E-5 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21. 2012 

INTANGIBLE PLANT: 
2301 ORGANIZATION 

DISTRIBUTION PLANT 
2374 LAND 8 LAND RIGHTS 
2376 MAINS 
2380 SERVICES 
2381 METERS 8. REGULATORS 

SUBTOTAL INTANGIBLE 

SUBTOTAL DISTRIBUTION 
GENERAL PLANT 
2390 STRUCTURES 8 IMPROVEMENTS 
2391 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 
2392 TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT 
2394 TOOLS, SHOP & GARAGE EQUIPMENT 
2396 POWER OPERATED EQUIPMENT 

SUBTOTAL GENERAL 
TOTAL PLANT IN SERVICE 

CWlP 
TOTAL NET PLANT 

RECONCILIATION TO GENERAL LEDGER 
PER GENERAL LEDGER 
LESS:ACQUISITION ADJUSTMENT 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
DETAIL OF UTILITY PLANT 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

GI1 BALANCE PLANT IN ADJUSTED END OF 
PRIOR YEAR SERVICE PRIOR YEAR TEST YEAR 

FROM ACQ. NET 
91301201 0 ADJ. 9I30l2010 ADDITIONS 91301201 1 

42,522 42,522 42,522 
42,522 42,522 42,522 

1,416 78 1,494 1,494 
1,768,586 214,381 1,982,967 226,766 2,209,733 

864.077 45,384 909,461 181 909,642 
1,223,907 1,223,907 42,301 1,266,208 
3,857,986 259,843 4,i 17,829 269,248 4,387,077 

3,309 
2,750 

122,790 

3,309 3,309 
2,750 2,750 

122,790 9,786 132,576 
66,009 66,009 66,009 

9,786 204.644 194,858 194,858 
4,095,366 259,843 4,355,209 279,034 4,634,243 

366,322 366,322 (154,763) 211,559 
4,461,688 259,843 4,721,531 124,271 4,845,802 

4,510,851 
(415,485) 

4,510,851 279,034 4,789,885 
(415,485) (415.485) 

PLUS: PORTION OF ACQ. ADJ. USED FOR PLANT (1 259.843 '259.843 '259.843 
CWlP 
NET 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
DISTRIBUTION 

366,322 366,322 (154,763) 21 1,559 
4,721,531 4,721,531 124,271 4,845,ao2 

1,850.41 8 149,043 1,999,461 130,314 2,129,775 
GENERAL 153,826 153,826 16,705 170,531 
TOTAL 2,004,244 149,043 2,153,287 147,0?9 2,300,306 
RECONCILIATION TO GENERAL LEDGER 
PER GENERAL LEDGER 2,353,251 2,353,251 156,455 2,509,706 
LESS:ACQUISITION ADJUSTMENT (349,006) (349,006) (16,619) (365,625) 
PLUS: PORTION OF ACQ. ADJ. USED FOR PLANT (1 149,042 149,042 7,183 156,225 
NET 2,153,287 2,153,287 147,019 2,300,306 
NET PLANT 2,457,444 tio,aoo 2,568,244 (22,748) 2,545,496 

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: RECAP SCHEDULES: 
A 4  E-1 



P 



SCHEDULE E-6 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
COMPARATIVE DEPARTMENTAL OPERATING INCOME STATEMENT 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

NOT APPLICABLE 



GAS STATISTICS l a 1 
THERMS SOLD 
RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTALS 

SCHEDULE E-7 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
OPERATING STATISTICS 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 
RESIDENTIAL 
I RRI GAT1 ON 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTALS 

AVERAGE THERM USE 
RES1 DENTlAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTALS 

AVERAGE ANNUAL REVENUE 
PER RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER 

TEST YEAR PRIOR YEAR PRIOR YEAR 
ENDED 9/30/11 ENDED 9/30/10 ENDED 9130109 

1,960,668 2,033,675 1,825,721 
18,064 7,116 7,037 
892,778 908,257 805,853 

2.871 310 2.949.048 2.638.61 I 

4,785 4,820 4,853 
9 10 8 

26 1 259 258 
5,054 5,089 5,119 

41 0 422 
2,084 712 

376 
918 

3,425 3,502 3,119 
5,919 4,635 4 4 1  3 

475 494 552 

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: 
( a ) FORM 7 FOR RESPECTIVE YEARS 
( b )  E-7-1 



SCHEDULE E7-1 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

OPERATING STATISTICS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

GAS STATISTICS t a 1 FORM 7 ADJUSTMENTS 
THERM SALES 
RESIDENTIAL 
I R RI GATlON 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTALS 

1,960,668 
18,064 
892.780 

2,871 ;512 - 2,871 ;SI2 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 
RESIDENTIAL 4,826 - 
IRRIGATION 8 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTALS 

AVERAGE THERMS USE 
RESIDENTIAL 
I RR IGATl ON 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTALS 

REVENUE 
RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTALS 

TEST YEAR 
ADJUSTED 

1,960,668 
18,064 
892.780 

4,826 
8 

265 265 
5,099 5,099 

- 
406.27 - 
2,409 - 

406 
2,409 

3.368 - 3 368 
6.183 6.183 

2,383,955 
1 1,955 

- 2,383,955 
- 11,955 

806,399 806,399 
3,202,310 - 3,202,310 

RECAP SCHEDULES: 
( a )  E-7 



SCHEDULE E-8 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TAXES CHARGED TO OPERATIONS 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

TEST YEAR PRIOR YEAR PRIOR YEAR 
913012011 91301201 0 913012009 

PAYROLL & OTHER 48,107 46,836 50,706 
PROPERTY 31,306 32,480 35,521 
TOTAL TAXES 79,413 79,316 86,227 



SCHEDULE E-9 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 



SCHEDULE F-I 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

PROJECTED INCOME STATEMENTS 
PRESENT AND PROPOSED RATES 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

TEST YEAR 
ENDED 913011 1 PRESENT PROPOSED 

PROJECTED YEAR ENDED 9/30/11 

REVENUES: 

FUEL COST OVERBILLED 148,828 - 
SALES OF NATURAL GAS . .  

la) 0 Ibl 
3,053,481 3.202.309 3,426,441 

OTHERGASREVENUE 40,043 40,043 40,043 
3,242,352 3,242,352 3,466,484 

EXPENSES: 
PURCHASED GAS 
DISTRIBUTION EXP. - OPER. 
DISTRIBUTION EXP. - MAINT. 
CONSUMER ACCOUNTS EXP. 
ADMIN. 8t GENERAL 
DEPRECIATION & AMORT. 
TAXES - PROPERTY 
TAXES - OTHER 

1,399,908 
332,030 
317,169 
3 14,703 
451,059 
156,455 
31,306 
48,107 

1,399,908 
337,843 
322,24 1 
327,042 
437,474 
147,018 
31,306 
48.107 

1,399,908 
337,843 
322,241 
327,042 
437,474 
147,018 
31,306 
48.107 

INTEREST EXPENSE -OTHER 47,571 44,041 44,041 
3,098,307 3,094,981 3,094,981 

OPERATING MARGINS 144,045 147,371 371,504 
INTEREST EXPENSE - LTD 121,332 112,205 112,205 
NON-OPERATING MARGINS: 
INTEREST INCOME - 

CAPITAL CREDITS 11,311 11,311 11,311 
11,311 11,311 11,311 

NET MARGINS 34,024 46,478 270,610 

OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOMI - 

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: 
( a )  E-2 



SCHEDULE F-2 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21,2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
PROJECTED CHANGES IN FINANCIAL POSITION 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

PROJECTED YEAR 

TEST YEAR RATES RATES 
AT PRESENT AT PROPOSED 

ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 
91301201 I 913012011 913012011 

CASH FLOWS 

FROM 0PERATlI.G ACTIVITIES: 
NET MARGINS (DEFICITS) 34,024 46,478 270,610 
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 156,455 156,455 156,455 

DEFERREDCHARGES 3,664 3,664 3,664 
OVERBILLED FUEL COST (148,209) I (148,209) (148,209) 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (23,41 I )  (23,411) (23,411) 
INVENTORIES AND OTHER CURRENT A5 9,315 9,315 9,315 
PAYABLESANDACCRUEDEXPENSES (8,693) (8,693) (8,693) 

ADVANCES - GCEC 285,960 273,506 49,374 

CAPITAL CREDITS - NONCASH (73,448) (73,448) (73,448) 

ADVANCES - WATER DEPARTMENT - - 

TOTAL FROM OPERATIONS 235,657 235,657 235,657 
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
ADDITIONS TO PIANTlPURCHASE OF PF (124,271) (124,271) (1 24,271) 
SALVAGE VALUE OF PLANT RETIRED 
PATRONAGE CAPITAL RETIREMENT - CF 5,656 5,656 5,656 
TOTAL FROM FINANCING (1 18,615) (1 1 8,615) (1 18,615) 
FROM FINANCING: 
ADVANCES FROM CFC 
PAYMENTS ON LONG-TERM DEBT - CFC (1 16,980) (1 16,980) (1 16,980) 
PAYMENTS ON LONG-TERM DEBT - GCE - - 
MEMBERSHIPS 
TOTAL FROM FINANCING 

CHANGE . .  
BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR - - 
BALANCE AT END OF YEAR (0) 

(62) (62) (62) 
( I  17,042) ( I  17,042) (1 17,0421 

(0) 

SUPPORT SCHEDULES: 
( a )  E-3 
( C )  F-3 

RECAP SCHEDULES: 
( b ) A-5 



SCHEDULE F-3 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
PROJECTED CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

ACTUAL PROJECTEDYEARENDED 
TEST YEAR 
ENDED 

YEAR 
ENDED YEAR ENDED 

PROPERTY CLASSIFICATION: 9130/2011 913Ol2012 9/30/2013 9/30/2014 
DISTRIBUTION PLANT 269,247 58,400 58,400 58,400 
GENERAL PLANT 9,786 21,500 3,000 3,000 

TOTAL PLANT ( a ) 279,033 79,900 61,400 61,400 

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: RECAP SCHEDULES: 
( a )  F-2 8, A-4 



SCHEDULE F-4 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

ASSUMPTIONS USED IN DEVELOPING PROJECTIONS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 I 

AT PRESENT AND PROPOSED RATES - SCHEDULE F-I 

PURCHASED GAS PRESENT PROPOSED 

TRANSPORTATION (PER THERM) 

FUEL ADJUSTOR 
STAFFING LEVELS 
ANNUAL WAGE INCREASES THROUGH 6/30/11 

401 K CONTRIBUTION RATE 
DEPRECIATION RATES 
MAINS 
SERVl CES 
METERS 81 REGULATORS 
GENERAL PLANT 

GAS (PER THERM) - BLENDED 

NRECA RETIREMENT COST RATE - % OF GROSS PAYRO 

0.0499 
0.4797 

0.4371 
10 

3.00% 
18.94% 
4.00% 

2.80% 
4.10% 
2.60% 
7.00% 

0.0499 
0.4797 

0.4888 
I O  

3.00% 
18.94% 
4.00% 

2.80% 
4.10% 
2.60% 
7.00% 

CONSTRUCTION EXPENDITURES - SCHEDULE F-3 

I 



Schedule G-I 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

COST OF SERVICE SUMMARY - PRESENT RATES 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 I 

DESCRIPTION 
Operating Revenues 
Operating Expenses: 
Purchased Gas 
Distribution Expense - Operations 
Distribution Expense - Maintenance 
Customer Account Expense 
Administrative & General Expense 
Depreciation 
Property Taxes 
Tax Expense - Other 
Interest Expense -Other 
Total Operation Expenses 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Rate Base 

% Return - Present Rates 

Return Index 

Allocated Interest - Long-Term 

Operating TIER - Present Rates 

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION 
3,242,352 2,421,838 808,496 12,018 

1,399,908 1,042,157 352,524 5,227 
334,747 266,979 66,341 1,427 
319,610 247,731 70,699 1,180 
323,757 302,456 20,624 677 
434,787 365,641 67,785 1,361 
147,630 120,473 26,458 699 
31,306 21,835 9,417 54 
59,036 49,647 9,204 185 
44,041 41,666 2,306 69 

3,094,822 2,458,585 625,358 10,879 
147,530 (36,747) 183,138 1,139 

2,514,449 2,040,370 462,514 11,565 

5.87% -1.80% 39.60% 9.85% 

1 .oo (0.31) 6.75 1.68 

11 2,205 91,049 20,639 516 

1.31 (0.40) 8.87 2.21 



Schedule G-2 
Page I of 1 

Date: June 21,2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

COST OF SERVICE SUMMARY - PROPOSED RATES 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

DESCRIPTION 

Operating Revenues 
Operatinn Expenses: 
Purchased Gas 

Distribution Expense - Operations 

Distribution Expense - Maintenance 

Customer Account Expense 
Administrative & General Expense 
Depreciation 
Property Taxes 
Tax Expense - Other 
Interest Expense -Other 
Total Operation Expenses 
Operating Income (Loss) 

Rate Base 

% Return - Proposed Rates 

Return Index 

Allocated Interest - Long-Term 

Operating TIER - Proposed Rates 

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION 

3,466,484 2,613,913 838,425 14,147 

1,399,908 1,042,157 352,524 5,227 

334,747 266,979 66,341 1,427 

319,610 247,731 70,699 1,180 

323,757 302,456 20,624 677 
434,787 365,641 67,785 1,361 
147,630 120,473 26,458 699 

59,036 49,647 9,204 185 
31,306 21,835 9,417 54 

44,041 41,666 2,306 69 
3,094,822 2,458,585 625,358 10,879 

371,662 155,328 21 3,067 3,268 

2,514,449 2,040,370 462,514 11,565 

14.78% 7.61% 46.07% 28.26% 

1 .oo 0.52 3.12 1.91 

112,205 91,049 20,639 51 6 

3.31 1.71 10.32 6.33 



Schedule G-3 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 
UNIT COSTS 

DESCRIPTION TOTAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION 

DEMAND 
Amount 478,944 383,605 94,606 733 
Bills 61,183 57,912 3,181 90 

UNIT COSTS - PRESENT RATES: 

Therms 2,871,512 1,960,668 892,780 18,064 
Per Bill 7.83 6.62 29.74 8.15 
Per Therms 0.1668 0.1957 0.1060 0.0406 

COMMODITY: 
Amount 
Per Therms 

CUSTOMER: 
Amount 
Per Bill 

UNIT COSTS - PROPOSED RATES: 
DEMAND 
Amount 
Per Bill 
Per Therms 

COMMODITY: 
Amount 
Per Therms 

CUSTOMER: 
Amount 
Per Bill 

1,482,045 1,011,941 460,781 9,323 
0.4875 0.4875 0.4875 0.4875 

1,281,363 1,026,292 253,109 1,962 
20.94 17.72 79.57 21.80 

539,926 432,448 106,652 827 
50.18 7.47 33.53 9.18 
0.3858 0.2206 0.1195 0.0458 

1,482,045 1,011,941 460,781 9,323 
0.4875 0.4875 0.4875 0.4875 

1,444,513 1,156,966 285,336 2,211 
134.25 19.98 89.70 24.57 



Schedule G 4  
Page 1 of 1 

Date. June 21, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

ALLOCATION OF RATE BASE 

CONSUMER CLASS 

DESCRIPTION FACTOR TOTAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION 
GROSS PLANT IN SERVICE: 
Demand D-I 
Commodity CM-I 
Customer - Weighted c-I 
Customer - Unweighted c-2 
Total 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION: 
Demand D-I 
Commodity CM-1 

Customer - Unweiahted c-2 
Customer - Weighted c-I 

Total 
NET PLANT IN SERVICE 

CWIP: 
Demand D-I 
Commodity CM-1 
Customer - Weighted c-I 
Customer - Unweighted c-2 
Total 
WORKING CAPITAL: 
Demand D-I 
Commodity CM-1 
Customer - Weighted c-1 
Customer - Unweighted c-2 
Total 
LESS: 
CONSUMER DEPOSITS c-I 
TOTALRATEBASE 

1,178,936 822,278 354,636 2,022 

3,455,307 2,946,458 489,266 19,583 

4,634,243 3,768,736 843,902 21,605 

585,191 408,156 176,031 1,004 

1,7151 16 1,462,538 242,858 9,720 

2,300,307 1,870,694 41 8,889 10,724 
2,333,936 1,898,042 425,013 10,881 

53,820 37,538 16,190 92 

157,738 134,508 22,336 894 

21 1,558 172,046 38,526 986 

24,992 17,431 7,518 43 

3,794 3,235 537 22 
6,814 6,446 357 11 

35,600 27,112 8,412 76 

- 

66,645 56,830 9,437 378 
2.51 4.449 2.040.370 462.514 11.565 



Schedule 6-5 
Page 1 of2 

Date: June 21, 2012 

DESCRIPTION 
REVENUES. 
Gas Sales -Adjusted 
Service Charges 8. Other Revenues 
Total 

OPERATING EXPENSE: 
Purchased Gas 
Distribution Exwnse - Owrations: 
Demand 
Commodity 
Customer - Weighted 
Customer - Unweighted 
Total 
Distribution Exoense - Maintenance: 
Demand 
Commodity 
Customer - Weighted 
Customer - Unweighted 
Total 
Customer Accounts Exwnse: 
Demand 
Commodity 
Customer - Weighted 
Customer - Unwelghted 
Total 
Admin. 8 General Exwnse: 
Demand 
Commodity 
Customer - Weighted 
Customer - Unweighted 
Total 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. -GAS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

ALLOCATION OF INCOME STATEMENT 

-n PRE EN CONSUMER CLASS lPROPOSEDL 
-- FACTOR TOTAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION 

3,202,309 2,383,955 806,399 11,955 3,426,441 2.576.030 836,328 14.084 
e-2 

CM- 1 

D- 1 
CM-1 
c-1 
c-2 

D-1 
CM-1 
c-1 
c-2 

D-l 
CM-1 
c-1 
c-2 

P1 
CM-1 
c- 1 
c-2 

40,043 37,803 2,097 63 40.043 37,083 2,097 63 
3,242,362 2,421,838 808,496 12,018 3,466,484 2,613,913 838,425 14,147 

1,399,308 ~ 1,042,157- 352,524 5,227 

118,969 82,978 35,787 204 

215,778 184,001 30,554 1,223 

334,747 266,979 66,341 1,427 

159,805 11 1,460 48,071 274 

159,805 136,271 22,628 906 

319,610 247,731 70,699 1,180 

323,757 302,456 20,624 677 
323,757 302,456 20,624 677 

123,346 66,030 37.104 21 2 

161 066 137.346 22.807 91 3 
150:375 142.265 7,874 236 
434,787 365,641 67,785 1,381 



Schedule G-5 
Page 2 of 2 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

ALLOCATION OF INCOME STATEMENT 

CONSUMER CLASS 

FACTOR TOTAL RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION DESCRIPTION 
Depreciation: 
Demand 
Com modity 
Customer - Weighted 
Customer - Unweighted 
Total 
ProPertv Taxes: 
Demand 
Commodity 
Customer - Weighted 
Customer - Unweighted 
Total 
Tax Expense - Other: 
Demand 
Com modity 
Customer - Weighted 
Customer - Unweighted 
Total 
Interest Expense - Other: 
Demand 
Commodity 
Customer -Weighted 
Customer - Unweighted 
Total 

D-1 34,887 24,333 10,494 60 
CM-1 
c-1 112,743 96,140 15,964 639 
c-2 

147,630 120,473 26,458 699 

D-I 7,398 5,160 2,225 13 
CM-1 
c-I 23,908 16,675 7,192 41 
c-2 

31,306 21,835 9,417 54 

D- 1 16,748 1 1,681 5,038 29 
CM-1 - - 
c-I 21,870 18,649 3,097 124 
c-2 20,418 19,317 1,069 32 

59,036 49,647 9,204 185 

D- 1 
CM-1 
c-I 
c-2 44,041 41,666 2,306 69 

44,041 41,666 2,306 69 
~ ~ 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 3,094,822 2,458,585 625,358 10,879 
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 147,530 (36,747) 183,138 1,139 
OPERATING INCOME PERCENT 4.55% -1.52% 22.65% 9.48% 







FU NCTl ON 
FACTOR 
F- 1 
F-2 
F-3 
F-3a 
F-4 
F-5 
F-6 

DERIVED 
FUNCTION 
FACTOR 
F-7 
F-8 
F-9 
CLASS 
ALLOCATION 
FACTORS 
D- 1 
CM-1 
c- 1 
c-2 

DESCRIPTION 

Demand 
Commodity 
Distribution Mains 
Mains & Services 
Services 
Meters & regulators 
Customer Accounts 

Schedule G-8 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21,2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 
ALLOCATION FACTORS 

DESC RI PTlON 
Gross Plant in Service 
Salaries & Wages 
0 & M Less Purchased gas 

DESCRIPTION 
Winter Peak Demand 
Commodity 
Customer - Weighted 
Customer - Unweighted 

WEIGHTED - TOTAL DEMAND COMMODITY CUSTOMER CUSTOMER 

100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 

100.00% 
100.00% 
100.04% 

100.00% 

100.00% 
100.00% 

50.00% 50.00% 
100.00% 
100.00% 

100.00% 

23.63% 76.37% 
28.37% 0.00% 37.04% 34.59% 
27.22% 0.00% 43.46% 29.36% 

CUSTOMER CLASS 
TOTAL -- RESID. COMM. - IRRIG. 

100.000% 69.748% 30.081% 0.171% 
100.000% 74.445% 25.182% 0.373% 

14.160% 0.567% 100.000% 85.273% 
100.000% 94.606% 5.237% 0.157% 



SCHEDULE H-I 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21,2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

SUMMARY OF REVENUES BY CUSTOMER CLASS 
PRESENT AND PROPOSED RATES 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

PROPOSED 
REVENUES IN TEST YEAR INCREASE 
PRESENT PROPOSED AMOUNT % 

( a )  ( a )  ( b )  0 
RESIDENTIAL 2,383,955 2,576,030 192,075 8.06% 
IRRIGATION 11,955 14,084 2,128 17.80% 
COMMERCIAL 806,399 836,328 29,928 3.71% 

TOTAL 3,202,310 3,426,441 224,131 7.00% 



CLASS OF SERVICE 
RESIDENTIAL : 
SCHEDULE A 
IRRIGATION : 
SCHEDULE I 
COMMERCIAL : 
SCHEDULE B 
TOTAL 

SCHEDULE H-2 
Page 1 of 1 

June 21,2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY DETAIL CLASS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 I 

INCREASE ANNUAL AVERAGES REVENUES 
CUSTOMERS THERMS PRESENT PROPOSED AMOUNT PERCENT 

( a )  ( a )  ( a )  (a) 

4,826 406.27 2,383,955 2,576,030 192,075 8.06% 

8 2,409 1 1,955 14,084 2,128 17.80% 

265 3,368 806,399 836,328 29,928 3.71% 
5,099 6,183 3,202,310 3,426,441 224,131 7.00% 

RECAP SCHEDULES: 
( a )  H-I 40043 

3,242,353 



SCHEDULE H-2-1 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
PRESENT RATES REVENUE CALCULATIONS ( a ) 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

RATES: 
RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 

SALES DATA: 
RESIDENTIAL 
IRRlGATlON 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTAL 

RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTAL 

PROOF: 
RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 

RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 

SERVICE FUEL ADJUSTOR 
AVAILABILITY GAS 

PER MONTH 13.00 0.34500 0.43705 
PER MONTH 21.00 0.16000 0.43705 
PER MONTH 24.00 0.34100 0.43705 

AVERAGE # TOTAL 
THERMS OF CUSTOMERS BILLINGS 
1,960,668 4,826 57,912 

18,064 8 90 
892,778 265 3,181 

2,871,510 5,099 61 ,I 83 

SERVICE FUEL COST PRESENT 
PGA UNDERBILLED REVENUE 

101,620 2,383,955 
AVAILABILITY GAS - 

856,911 748,994 676,430 
234 2,890 7,895 936 11,955 

65,501 304,437 390,189 46,272 806,399 
814,729 983,758 1,254,995 148,828 3,202,310 

CUSTOMER SERVICE PARTIAL 
BILLS AVAILABILITY TOTAL - BILLS AVAILABILITY EXTENDED 

56,180 13.00 730,340 1,732 22,520 752,860 
77 21 .oo 1,617 13 273 1,890 

3,142 24.00 75,408 39 937 76,345 
59,399 807,365 1,784 23,730 831,095 

PARTIAL SERVICE PARTIAL - BILLS AVAILABILITY EXTENDED BILLS AVAILABILITY - NET 
1,732 13.00 22,516 1,732 22,516 - 

13 21 .oo 273 13 273 
39 

I .784 
24.00 936 39 936 

23,725 1,784 23,725 



SCHEDULE H-2-la 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
PROPOSEDRATES REVENUECALCULATIONS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

RATES: AVAILABILITY GAS 
RESIDENTIAL PER MONTH 16.25 0.34500 0.48888 
IRRIGATION PER MONTH 26.25 0.16000 0.48888 
COMMERCIAL PER MONTH 30.00 0.34100 0.48888 

SERVICE FUEL ADJUSTOR 

SALES DATA: 
RESIDENTIAL 
I RRI GAT1 0 N 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTAL 

RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTAL 

AVERAGE # TOTAL 
THERMS OF CUSTOMERS BILLINGS 
1,960,668 4,826 57,912 

18,064 8 90 
892,778 265 3,181 

2,871 $1 0 5,099 61,183 

SERVICE Proposed 
AVAILABILITY GAS - PGA REVENUE 

941,070 676,430 958,529 2,576,030 192,075 
2,363 2,890 8,831 14,084 2,128 
95,430 304,437 436,460 836,328 29,929 

1,038,863 983,758 1,403,821 3,426,442 224,132 

CUSTOMER SERVICE PARTIAL 
PROOF: - BILLS AVAILABILITY EXTENDED BILLS AVAILABILITY TOTAL 
RESIDENTIAL 56,180 16.25 912,925 1,732 28,150 941,075 
I RRlGATl ON 77 26.25 2,021 13 34 1 2.363 
COMMERCIAL 3,142 

59,399 
30.00 94,260 39 1,171 95:431 

1,009,206 1,784 29,663 1,038,869 

PARTIAL SERVICE PARTIAL 

RESIDENTIAL 1,732 16.25 28,145 1,732 28,145 
I RR I GAT1 0 N 13 26.25 341 13 34 1 

- BILLS AVAILABILITY EXTENDED BILLS AVAILABILITY - NET 

COMMERCIAL 39 30.00 1,170 39 1,170 (0) 
1,784 29,656 1,784 29,657 (0) 



RATES: 
RESIDENTIAL 
I RRI GAT ION 
COMMERCIAL 

SALES DATA: 
RES1 DENTIAL 
I R R I GAT1 0 N 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTAL 

RESIDENTIAL 
I RRl GAT1 ON 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTALS 

SCHEDULE H2-I b 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21. 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
PROPOSED RATES REVENUE CALCULATIONS 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

SERVICE FUEL ADJUSTOR 
AVAILABILITY ENERGY PGA 

PER MONTH 16.25 0.34500 0.48888 
PER MONTH 26.25 0.16000 0.48888 
PER MONTH 30.00 0.34100 0.48888 

AVERAGE # TOTAL 
THERMS OF CUSTOMERS BILLINGS 

1,960,668 4,826 57,912 
18,064 8 90 
892,778 265 3,181 

2,871,510 5,099 61 ,I 83 

SERVICE FUEL PROPOSED 
AVAILABILITY ENERGY ADJUSTOR REVENUE 

941,070 676,430 958,529 2,576,030 192,075 
2,363 2,890 8,831 14,084 2,128 
95,430 304,437 436,460 836,328 29,928 

1,038,863 983,758 1,403,821 3,426,441 224,131 



RATE 
SCHEDULE 

SCHEDULE H-3-1 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

CHANGE IN REPRESENTATIVE RATE SCHEDULES 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

RATES 
BLOCK PROPOSED 

Lb) 
RESIDENTIAL 
A 

IRRIGATION 
I 

COMMERCIAL 
B 

OTHERREVENUES 

THERM 0.34500 
FUEL ADJUSTOR 0.48888 
SERVICE AVAILABILITY 16.25000 

THERM 0.16000 
FUEL ADJUSTOR 0.48888 
MI Nl MUM ANNUAUHP 26.25000 

THERM 0.34100 
FUEL ADJUSTOR 0.48888 
SERVICE AVAILABILITY 30.00000 

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: 
( a ) TARIFF SCHEDULES EFFECTIVE 6/28/01 - DECISION N0.63850 
( b ) H-3-1 PROPOSED TARIFF SCHEDULES 



SCHEDULE H 4  
Page 1 of 3 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TYPICAL BILL ANALYSIS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

MONTHLY MONTHLY BILL 
RESIDENTIAL THERMS PRESENT PROPOSED $ INCREASE % INCREASE 

A 10 
20 
30 
36 
40 
50 
75 

100 
125 
150 
200 
250 
300 
400 
500 
750 

1000 

20.82 
28.64 
36.46 
41.15 
44.28 
52.10 
71.65 
91.21 

I 1  0.76 
130.31 
169.41 

247.62 
325.82 
404.03 
599.54 
795.05 

208.51 

24.59 
32.93 
41.27 
46.27 
49.61 
57.94 
78.79 
99.64 

120.48 
141.33 
183.03 
224.72 
266.41 
349.80 
433.19 
641.66 
850.13 

3.77 
4.29 
4.80 
5.12 
5.32 
5.84 
7.14 
8.43 
9.73 

11.02 
13.62 
16.21 
18.80 
23.98 
29.16 
42.12 
55.08 

18.10% 
14.97% 
13.18% 
12.43% 
12.02% 
11.210! 
9.96% 
9.25% 
8.78% 
8.46% 
8.04% 
7.77% 
7.59% 
7.36% 
7.22% 
7.03% 
6.93% 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TYPICAL BILL ANALYSIS 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

MONTHLY MONTHLY BILL 
IRRIGATION THERMS PRESENT PROPOSED $ INCREASE 
I 10 

25 
50 
59 
75 

100 
125 
150 
175 
200 
250 
300 
350 
400 
450 
500 
750 

1000 
1250 
1500 
1750 
2000 
2500 
3000 
4000 
5000 

26.97 
35.93 
50.85 
56.23 
65.78 
80.71 
95.63 

1 10.56 
125.48 
140.41 
170.26 
200.12 
229.97 
259.82 
289.67 
319.53 
468.79 
618.05 
767.31 
916.58 

1065.84 
121 5.10 
151 3.63 
1812.15 
24 09.20 
3006.25 

32.74 
42.47 
58.69 
64.53 
74.92 
91.14 

107.36 
123.58 
139.80 
156.03 
188.47 
220.91 
253.36 
285.80 
318.25 
350.69 
512.91 
675.13 
837.35 
999.57 

1161.79 
1324.01 
1648.45 
1972.89 
2621.77 
3270.65 

5.77 
6.55 
7.84 
8.31 
9.14 

10.43 
11.73 
13.02 
14.32 
15.62 
18.21 
20.80 
23.39 
25.98 
28.57 
31 . I6  
44.12 
57.08 
70.04 
82.99 
95.95 

108.91 
134.82 
160.74 
212.56 
264.39 

SCHEDULE H-4 
Page 2 of 3 

Date: June 21, 2012 

% INCREASE 
21.39% 
18.22% 
15.42% 
14.78% 
13.89% 
12.93% 
12.26% 
11.78% 
11.41% 
11.12% 
10.69% 
10.39% 
10.17% 
10.00% 
9.86% 
9.75% 
9.41 % 
9.24% 
9.13% 
9.05% 
9.00% 
8.96% 
8.91% 
8.87% 
8.82% 
8.79% 



SCHEDULE H 4  
Page 3 of 3 

Date: June 21,2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TYPICAL BILL ANALYSIS 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

MONTHLY 
COMMERCIAL THERMS 

B 10 
20 
50 

100 
150 
200 
250 
289 
300 
350 
400 
450 
500 
750 

1,000 
1,250 
1,500 
1,750 
2,000 
2,500 

MONTHLY BILL 
PRESENT 

31.78 
39.56 
62.90 

101.81 
140.71 
179.61 
218.51 
248.86 
257.42 
296.32 
335.22 
374.12 
413.03 
607.54 
802.05 
996.56 

1 , I  91.08 
1,385.59 
1,580.10 
1,969.13 

PROPOSED 
38.30 
46.60 
71.49 

112.99 
154.48 
195.98 
237.47 
269.84 
278.96 
320.46 
361.95 
403.45 
444.94 
652.41 
859.88 

1,067.35 
1,274.82 
1,482.29 
1,689.76 
2,104.70 

$ INCREASE % INCREASE 

6.52 20.51% 
7.04 17.79% 
8.59 13.66% 

11.18 10.98% 
13.77 9.79% 
16.37 9.11% 
18.96 8.68% 
20.98 8.43% 
21.55 8.37% 
24.14 8.15% 
26.73 7.97% 
29.32 7.84% 
31.91 7.73% 
44.87 7.39% 
57.83 7.21% 
70.79 7.10% 
83.74 7.03% 
96.70 6.98% 

109.66 6.94% 
135.57 6.88% 



SCHEDULE H-5 
Page I of 3 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

BILL COUNT 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

RESIDENTIAL 

THERM 
RANGE 
0-1 0 
11-20 
2 1-30 
31-50 
51-100 
101-1 50 
151-200 
OVER 200 
TOTAL 

CUMULATIVE BILLS CUMULATIVE THERM USAGE 
NUMBER THERMS 
OF BILLS BY BLOCK NUMBER % OF TOTAL THERMS % OF TOTAL 

15,774 90,347 15,774 27.24% 90,347 4.61 % 
14,251 214,689 30,025 51.85% 305,036 15.56% 
7,966 197,190 37,991 65.60% 502,226 25.62% 
7,022 275,760 45,013 77.73% 777,986 39.68% 
9,111 651,524 54,124 93.46% 1,429,510 72.91% 
2,840 338,252 56,964 98.36% 1,767,762 90.16% 

674 114,701 57,638 99.53% 1,882,463 96.01 % 
274 78,205 57,912 100.00% 1,960,668 100.00% 

57,912 1,960,668 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 
AVERAGE THERMS USED PER YEAR 
MEDIAN ANNUAL USAGE 

4,826 
406 
339 



BLOCK 

0-1 0 
11-20 
21-30 
31-50 
51-100 
101-150 
151-200 
OVER 200 

SCHEDULE H-5 
Page 2 of 3 

Date: June 21, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

BILL COUNT 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

IRRIGATION 

CUMULATIVE BILLS CUMULATIVE THERMS USAGE 
NUMBER THERMS 
OF BILLS BY BLOCK NUMBER % OF TOTAL AMOUNT % OF TOTAL 

38 68 38 42.22% 68 0.38% 
5 70 43 47.78% 138 0.76% 
1 28 44 48.89% 1 66 0.92% 
5 176 49 54.44% 342 1.89% 
7 547 56 62.22% 889 4.92% 
7 90 1 63 70.00% 1,790 9.91% 
4 747 67 74.44% 2,537 14.04% 
23 15,527 90 100.00% 18,064 100.00% 
90 18,064 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 
AVERAGE THERMS USED PER YEAR 
MEDIAN ANNUAL USAGE 

8 
2,409 

428 



SCHEDULE H-5 
Page 3 of 3 

Date: June 21, 2012 

BLOCK NUMBER THERMS 

0-10 1,242 3,246 1,242 39.04% 3,246 
11-50 681 17,609 1,923 60.45% 20,855 
51-100 332 24,233 2,255 70.89% 45,088 
101-200 276 39,486 2,531 79.57% 84,574 
201 -300 152 37,554 2,683 84.34% 122,128 
301 -500 199 78,414 2,882 90.60% 200,542 

OF BILLS BY BLOCK NUMBER % OF TOTAL AMOUNT 

OVER 500 299 692,238 3,181 100.00% 892,780 
3,181 892,780 

% OF TOTAL 
0.36% 
2.34% 
5.05% 
9.47% 
13.68% 
22.46% 
100.00% 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
BILL COUNT 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 
COMMERCIAL 

CUMULATIVE BILLS CUMULATIVE THERMS USAGE 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 
AVERAGE THERMS USED PER YEAR 
MEDIAN ANNUAL USAGE 

265 
3,368 

684 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

RATE SCHEDULE GA - RESIDENTIAL GAS SERVICE 

I. Availability 

Available to all residential customers within the utility’s certificated service area 
where facilities of adequate capacity and pressure are adjacent to the point of delivery. 

11. Applicability 

Applicable to all gas service supplied through one point of delivery and measured 
thfough one meter. Not applicable to temporary, standby, supplementary or resale 
service. 

111. Distribution Rates 

The monthly service availability charge and per therm gas delivery charge are set 
forth in the currently effective Statement of Rates of this Tariff and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

IV. Purchased Gas Adiustor 

The rates specified for this schedule are subject to increases or decreases in the cost of 
gas purchased in accordance with those provisions set forth in the “Rate Schedule PGA - 
Purchased Gas Adjustor.” 

V. Tax Adiustments and Regulatory Assessments 

Total monthly sales for gas service are subject to adjustment for all federal, state and 
local governmental taxes or levies on such sales and any assessments that are or may be 
imposed by federal or state regulatory agencies on gas utility gross revenues. 

VI. Conditions of Service 

The terms and conditions for the provision of service to the customer under this rate 
schedule are subject to the Rules and Regulations of the utility, as approved and modified 
from time to time by the ACC. 

VII. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or after as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. dated 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

RATE SCHEDULE GB - COMMERCIAL GAS SERVICE 

I. Availability 

Available to all commercial customers within the utility’s certificated service area 
where facilities of adequate capacity and pressure are adjacent to the point of delivery. 

11. Applicability 

Applicable to all gas service supplied through one point of delivery and measured 
through one meter. Not applicable to temporary, standby, supplementary or resale 
service. 

111. Distribution Rates 

The monthly service availability charge and per therm gas delivery charge are set 
forth in the currently effective Statement of Rates of this Tariff and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

IV. Purchased Gas Adiustor 

The rates specified for this schedule are subject to increases or decreases in the cost of 
gas purchased in accordance with those provisions set forth in the “Rate Schedule PGA - 
Purchased Gas Adjustor.” 

V. Tax Adjustments and Regulatory Assessments 

Total monthly sales for gas service are subject to adjustment for all federal, state and 
local governmental taxes or levies on such sales and any assessments that are or may be 
imposed by federal or state regulatory agencies on gas utility gross revenues. 

VI. Conditions of Service 

The terms and conditions for the provision of service to the customer under this rate 
schedule are subject to the Rules and Regulations of the utility, as approved and modified 
from time to time by the ACC. 

VII. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or after as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. dated 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

RATE SCHEDULE GI - IRRIGATION GAS SERVICE 

I. Availability 

Available to all irrigation customers within the utility’s certificated service area where 
facilities of adequate capacity and pressure are adjacent to the point of delivery. 

11. Applicability 

Applicable to all gas service supplied through one point of delivery and measured 
through one meter. Not applicable to temporary, standby, supplementary or resale 
service. 

111. Distribution Rates 

The monthly service availability charge and per therm gas delivery charge are set 
forth in the currently effective Statement of Rates of this Tariff and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

IV. Purchased Gas Adiustor 

The rates specified for this schedule are subject to increases or decreases in the cost of 
gas purchased in accordance with those provisions set forth in the “Rate Schedule PGA - 
Purchased Gas Adjustor.” 

V. Tax Adiustments and Regulatory Assessments 

Total monthly sales for gas service are subject to adjustment for all federal, state and 
local governmental taxes or levies on such sales and any assessments that are or may be 
imposed by federal or state regulatory agencies on gas utility gross revenues. 

VI. Conditions of Service 

The terms and conditions for the provision of service to the customer under this rate 
schedule are subject to the Rules and Regulations of the utility, as approved and modified 
from time to time by the ACC. 

VII. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or after as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. dated 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITES, INC. - GAS DIVISION 

RATE SCHEDULE PGA - PURCHASED GAS ADJUSTOR 

1. Applicability 

Applicable to all therm sales of gas provided to all customers within the Utility’s 
certificated service area. 

11. Gas Adiustment Procedure 

The Purchased Gas Adjustor (“PGA’‘) rate will be increased or decreased on a 
monthly basis to compensate for the difference between the actual cost of natural gas and 
the amount the Utility recovers for its cost of natural gas. The PGA rate is based on a 
rolling twelve month average cost, limited by a $0.15 per therm annual bandwidth. The 
PGA rate cannot vary by more than $0.15 per therm from any rate in place during the 
previous twelve months as authorized by the ACC in Decision No. 71690 dated May 3, 
20 10. 

111. PGA Bank Balance 

The Utility shall establish and maintain a PGA Bank Balance (PGABB). Entries shall 
be made to this account each month, if appropriate, as follows: 

1. A debit or credit entry equal to the difference between (a) the actual purchased 
gas cost for the month and (b) the amount determined by multiplying the 
Purchased Gas Adjustor Rate as set forth on the Statement of Charges in this 
Tariff by the therms billed during the month under the applicable rate 
schedules of this Tariff. 

2. A debit or credit entry for refunds or payments authorized by the ACC. 

3. A debit or credit entry for interest to be applied to over- and under-collected 
bank balances based on the Three Month Financial Commercial Paper Rate as 
published by the Federal Reserve as authorized by the ACC in Decision No. 
68600 dated March 23,2006. 

IV. Monthly Informational Filings 

Each month the Utility shall make a cost of gas informational filing with 
Commission Staff to include any and all information required by Decision No. 61225 
dated October 30, 1998. 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITES, INC. - GAS DIVISION 

RATE SCHEDULE PGA - PURCHASED GAS ADJUSTOR 
(Continued) 

V. Additional Requirements 

A special review is required if the PGABB reaches an over- or under-collection in 
the amount of $250,000 for three consecutive months as authorized by the ACC in 
Decision No. 71690 dated May 3,2010. The Utility must file an application for a 
PGABB surcharge adjustment upon completing the Monthly Informational Filing that 
illustrates the threshold has been exceeded or file a notice in the docket explaining why 
an adjustment is not necessary at this time. The ACC, upon review, may authorize the 
balance to be amortized through a predetermined surcharge rate included as part of the 
PGA for a specified period. 

VI. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or after as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. dated 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITES, INC. - GAS DIVISION 

RATES AND CHARGES FOR OTHER SERVICES 

I. Description of Service 

Establishment of Service - Regular Hours 

Establishment of Service - After Hours 

Reconnection of Service - Regular Hours 

Reconnection of Service - After Hours 

Meter Reread Charge (No Charge for Read Error) 

Meter Test Fee 

Insufficient Funds Check 

Interest Rate on Customer Deposits 

Late Payment (Per Month & Per Total Bill) 

- Rate 

$30.00 

$50.00 

$30.00 

$50.00 

$10.00 

$10.00 

$25 .OO 

6.00% 

1.50% 

11. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or after as authorized 
by the ACC in Decision No. dated 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITES, INC. 
STATEMENT OF GAS RATES* 

Distribution 
Description Rate 

Rate Schedule GA - Residential Gas Service 
Monthly Service Availability Charge 
Delivery Charge - Per Therm for all gas 

$16.25 
$0.34500 



Rate Schedule GB - Commercial Gas Service 
Monthly Service Availability Charge 
Delivery Charge - Per Therm for all gas 

$30.00 
$0.34 100 

Rate Schedule GI - Irrigation Gas Service 
Monthly Service Availability Charge $24.25 
Delivery Charge - Per Therm for all gas $0.16000 

* The above rates do not reflect the Purchased Gas Adjustor (PGA) that is subject to 
adjustment as described in Schedule PGA - Purchased Gas Adjustor. All Charges are 
subject to adjustment for any applicable taxes or regulatory assessments. 

Effective Date 

, as authorized by This rate schedule is effective for all service on or after 
the ACC in Decision No. dated 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

PIMA, ARIZONA 

GAS DIVISION 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

In Accordance With 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
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6. For the purposes of this rule, service establishments are where the customer’s facilities are ready and 
acceptable to the utility and the utility needs only to install or read a mctcr or turn the service on. 

B. Service lines 
(Subject to availability of adequate capacity and suitable pressure at the point of beginning of measurcmcnt of the 
extension the Company will extend its distribution facilities as provided hereafter in this section.) 

1. Customer provided facilities 
a. 

b. 

An applicant for services shall be responsible for the safety and maintenance of all customer piping from 
the point of delivery. 
Meters shall be installed in a location suitable to the utility where the meters will be safe from street 
trafficl readily and safely accessible for reading, testing and inspection, and where such activities will 
cause the least interfercnce and inconvenience to the customer. The customer shall provide, without cost 
to the utility, at a suitable and easily accessible location, sufficient and proper space for the installation 
of meters. 
Where the meter or service line location on the customer’s premises is changed at the request of the 
customer or due to alterations on the customer’s premises, the customer shall provide and have installed 
at his expense all customer piping necessary for relocating the meter and the utility may make a charge 
for moving the meter and/or service line. 
An applicant shall be responsible for all labor, material, and one-half (1121 the overhead costs of the new 
service as a non-refundable contribution in aid of construction. 

Graham County Utilities, Inc. (GCIJ) does not provide a free footage or equipment allowance. 

Each customer shall grant adequate easement and right-of-way satisfactory to the utility to ensure proper 
service connection. Failure on the part of the customer to grant adequate easement and right-of-way 
shall be grounds for the utility to refuse service. 
When a utility discovers that a customer or his agent is performing work or has constructed facilities 
adjacent to or within an easement or right-of-way and such work. construction or facility poses a hazard 
or is in violation of federal, state or local laws, ordinances, statutes, rules or regulations, or significantly 
interferes with the utility’s access to equipment, the utility shall notify the customer or his agent and 
shall take whatever actions are necessary to eliminate the hazard, obstruction or violation at the 
customer’s expense. 

c. 

d. I 
2. Company provided facilities 

3. Easements and rights-of-way 
a. 

a. 

b. 

PART VI. Main extensions 

A. General requirements 
(Subject to availability of adequate capacity and suitable pressure at the point of beginning of measurement of the 
extension the Company will extend its distribution facilities as provided hereafter in this section.) 

1. 

2. 

3. 

Each utility shall file for Commission approval a main extension tariff which incorporates the provisions of 
this rule and specifically defines the conditions governing main extensions. 
Upon request by an applicant for a main extension, the utility shall prepare, without charge, a preliminary 
sketch and rough estimates of the cost of installation to be paid by said applicant. 
Any applicant for a main extension requesting the utility to prepare detailed plans, specifications, or cost 
estimates may be required to deposit with the utility an amount equal to the estimated cost OF preparation. 
The utility shall upon request, make available within 90 days after receipt of the deposit referred to above, 
such plans, specifications, or cost estimates of the proposed main extension. Where the applicant authorizes 
the utility to proceed with construction of the extension, the deposit shall be credited to the cost of 
construction; otherwise the deposit shall be nonrekndablc. If the extension is to include oversizing of 
facilities to be done at the utility’s expense, appropriate details shall be set forth in the plans, specifications 
and cost estimate. Subdividers providing the utility with approved plats shall be provided with plans, 
specifications or cost estimates within 45 days after receipt of the deposit referred to above. 
All main extension agreements requiring payment by the applicant shall be in writing and signed by each 
Party. 
The provisions of this rule apply only to those applicants who in the utility’s judgment will be permanent 
customers of the utility. Applications for temporary service shall be goremed by the Commission’s rules 
concerning temporary service applications. 

4. 

5 .  

B. Minimum written agreement requirements 
1. Each main extension agreement shall, at a minimum, include the following information: 

a. Name and address of applicant(s) 
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b. 
c. Description of requested service 
d. 
e. 
f. Payment terms 
g. 

Proposed service address or location 

Description and sketch of the requested main extension 
A cost estimate to include materials, labor, and other costs as necessary 

A concise explanation of any refunding provisions, if applicable. The refunding provisions shall be as 
follows: 
I. Where the number of potential services has been determined by final plats. 

1. Each subsequent hookup on the line extension after the first customer shall pay a percentage 
equal to the total cost estimate divided by the number of lots. 'lhis amount shall then be 
refunded to the first customer provided it has not been five years since the time of payment as 
outlined in rule C-5. 

Where the number of potential services is not readily available and must be estimated by the 
Cooperative. 
1. Each subsequent hookup on the line extension after the first customer shall pay a percentage 

of the original cost as determined by the distance from the main to the service location. This 
amount shall then be rehnded equally between the prior customers provided it has not been 
five years since the time of payment as outlined in rule C-5. 

11. 

h. 
Each applicant shalI be provided with a copy of the written main extension agreement. 

The utility's estimated start date and completion date for construction of the main extension 
2. 

Main and Service line extension requirements. F.ach main line extension shall include the following provisions: 
1. 

2. 
3. 

C. 
GCU docs not provide a free footage allowance. The applicant shall be responsible for all material, labor, 
and one-half (112) the overhead costs of the main line extension. 
Line extension measurement shall be along the route of construction required. 
The timing and methodology by which the utility will refund any aid to construction as additional customers 
are served off the main extension. The customer may request an annua1 survey to determine if additional 
customers have been connected to and are using service from the extension. In no case shall the amount of 
the refund exceed the amount originally paid. 
All aid to construction shall be non-interest bearing. 
411 refunding provisions are null and void after five years from the date of payment of the contribution in aid 
of construction. 

I 

4. 
5 .  

D. Extensions For Residential Subdivision Developments and Mobile tlome Parks 
1. Extensions to the Perimeter of Duly Recorded Real Estate Subdivisions and Mobile Home Parks. 

a. 

b. 

Gas main extensions will generally be made when mutually agreed upon by the Company and the 
applicant in areas where the Company does maintain existing facilities for its operating convenience. 
The Applicant shall provide at his expense the trenching, backfilling (including any imported backfill 
required), compaction, repaving and earth-work in preparation for installation of facilities. At its option, 
the Company may elect. at the applicants expense, to perform the necessary activities to fulfill the 
applicants responsibility hereunder provided the expense to the applicant is equal or less than that which 
would otherwise be borne. 

Distribution facilities will be constructed by the Company within a duly recorded subdivision or mobile 
home park in advance of application for service by permanent customers after the Company and the 
Developer or said subdivision or mobile home park have entered into a written contract which provides 
for net construction costs to be paid as contributions in aid of construction. Net construction costs shall 
be all costs furnished by the Company to install such facilities and meters and regulators required 
including all material, labor, and ovcrhead costs. 
Rights-of-way and easements suitable to the Company must be furnished by the developer at no cost to 
the Company and in reasonable time to meet service requirements. No facilities shall be installed until 
the final grades have been established and furnished to the Company. In addition, the easement strips, 
alleys and streets must be graded to within six (6) inches of final grade by the developer before the 
Company will commence construction and must be maintained by the developer during construction. 

There is no free Main and Service Line Extension Footage for Residential Subdivision Developments and 
Mobile Home Parks. 
Residential Subdivision Developments and Mobile Home Parks shall be excluded from any refunding 
provisions except to the individual developer when additional customers have bccn connected to and are 
using service from the extension of the main line outside the development. 

2. Extensions Within Duly Recorded Real Estate Subdivisions and Mobile IIome Parks 
a. 

b. 

3. 

4. 
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'INANCIAL AND STATISTICAL REPORT 

tound ALL AMOUNTS to nearest dollar. 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 
GAS SYSTEM 
PIMA, AZ 85543 
MONTH ENDING 

Y EAR-TO-DATE 
LAST YEAR THIS YEAR BUDGET 

[a) (b) (C) 
ITEM 

1 Operating Revenue and Patronage Capital 3,243,44 I 3,018,026 3,186,143 
2 Gas Production Expense - - 

/December 31,2011 
CERTIFICATION 

We hereby ceMy that the entries in this report are in accordance with the accounfs and other records 
of the system and reflect the status of the system to the best of our knowledge and belief 

THIS MONTH 

(d) 
352,564 

SIGNATURE OF OFFIC OR ACCOUNTANT 

3 Cost of Purchased Gas 
1 Transmission Expense 
5 Distribution Expense - Operations 
; Distribution Expense - Maintenance 
7 Consumer Accounts Expense 

1,661,257 1,139,786 1,318,079 126,746 - - - 
331,352 367,318 317,263 42,977 
301,767 334,069 289,272 18,149 
322,183 322,169 316,102 32,835 

18. Other Deductions 
19. Total Cost of Gas Service (11 - 18) 
20. Patronage Capital & Operating Margins (1 - 29) 
21. Non Operating Margins - Interest 
22. Allowance for Funds Used During Construction 
23. Nan Operating Margins - Other 
24. Generation & Transmission Capital Credits 
25. Other Capital Credits and Patronage Dividends 

ITEM 
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'INANCIAL AND STATISTICAL REPORT 

iound ALL AMOUNTS to nearest dollar. 1 December 31,201 1 
PART C. BALANCE SHEET 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 1 LIABILITIES AND OTHER CREDITS 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 
GAS SYSTEM 
MONTH ENDING 

I ,  Total Utility Plant in Service 
!. Construction Work in Progress 
1. Total Utility Plant (1 + 2) 
t ,  Accum. Provision for Depreciation & Amort. 
5 .  Net Utilrty Plant (3 4) 

5.  Nonutility Property - Net 
7. invest in Assoc Org - Patronage Capital 
3 .  Invest in Assoc Org - General Funds 
3 .  Invest in Assoc Org - Nongeneral Funds 
IO.  Other Investments 
11. Special Funds 
12. Total Other Property & Investments (6 thru 11) 
13. Cash - General Funds 
14. Cash - Construction Funds - Trustee 
15. Special Deposits 
16. Temporary Investments 
17. Notes Receivable - Net 
18. Accounts Receivable - Sales of Gas 
19. Accounts Receivable - Fuel Bank 
20. Materials & Supplies - Gas & Other 
21. Prepayments 
22. Other Current & Accrued Assets 
23. Total Current & Accrued Assets (13 thru 22) 
24. Deferred Debits 

- 
31 1,713 

15,216 
3,005,395 25. Total Assets & Other Debns (5+12+23+24) 

5,028,491 I 28. Operating Margins - Prior Years 

ESTIMATED CONSTRIBUTIONS IN AID TO CONSTRUCTlON 

Balance Beginning of Year 1,097,119 
Amounts Received This Year (Net) 68,343 
TOTAL Contnbutions in Ad of Construction 1,165,462 

29 Operating Margins - Current Year 
30. Non Operating Margins 

THIS MONTH 
CLASS OF SERVICE NO RECEIVING 

1 RESIDENTIAL SALES 4,884 297,752 250,583.96 
2 IRRIGATION SALES 7 1,077 619.66 
3. COMM & INDUSTRIAL 27 1 146,045 97,867.80 
4 TOTAL GAS SALES 5,162 444,874 349,071.42 
5 OTHERGASREVENUE 3,493 04 
6 TOTAL 5,162 444,874 352,564.46 

SERVICE THERMS SOLD AMOUNT 

- I 31. Other Margins and Equities 

YEAR TO DATE 

CUMULATIVE CUMULATIVE 
1,989,652 2,215,194 

18,712 11,467 
929,304 750,900 

2,937,668 2,977,562 
40,464 

3,018,026 2,937,668 

THERMS SOLD AMOUNT 

32. Total Margins & Equities (26 thru 31) 
33. Long-Term Debt RUS (Net) 

THIS MONTH YEAR TO DATE ITEM 
1. THERMS PURCHASED 574,840 2,756,260 
2 
3. TOTAL PURCHASED 574,840 2,756,260 

4. TOTAL SOLD 444,874 2,937,668 

(Payments - Unapplied $ 
34. Long-Term Debt - Other (net) 

ITEM THIS MONTH YEAR TO DATE 
6 OFFICE USE 
7. UNACCOUNTED FOR 129,966 (1 81,408) 
0 X SYSTEM LOSS 22.61% -6.58% 
9 MAXlMUMOEArlAND 

10 MONTH WHEN MAXIMUM DEMAND OCCURRED 

(Payments - Unapplied $ 

35 Total Long-Tern Debt(33 + 34) 
36. Notes Payable 
37. Accounts Payable 
38. Consumers Deposits 
39, Other Current & Accrued Liabilites 

11,311 

56,388 1 
40. Total Current & Accrued Liab (36 thru 39: 1,545,198 

3,005,395 



c 

FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL REPORT 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 
GAS SYSTEM 
PIMA, Az 85543 
MONTH ENDING 

I 

26 Extraordinary Items I - I 
27 Patronage Capital or Margins (20 - 26) (400,801 ) 1 (239,276)l (238,528)l 11,995 

PART B. DATA ON TRANSMISSION ND DISTRIBUTION PLANT 
YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE 

LAST YEAR THIS YEAR ITEM LAST YEAR THIS YEAR 
(a) (b) (a) (b) 

ITEM 

1. New Services Connected 51 25 
2 Service Rebred - 6 Miles Distribuhon 233 237 
3 Total Services in Place 5,242 5,267 
4 Idle Services 8. Total Miles 
(Exclude Seasonal) - - ( 5+6+7) 233 237, 

IDecernber 31,2010 
CERTIFICATION 

We hereby certify that the entries in this report are in acconlance with the accounts and other records 
of the system and reflect the status of the system to the best of our knowledge and belief. 

ER OR ACCOUNTANT 

Distribution Expense - Operations 
Distribution Expense - Maintenance 

Customer Service and Informational Expense 
Sales Expense 

. Consumer Accounts Expense 

0. Administrative and General Expense 
11. Total Operation & Maintenance Expense (2 - 10) 
12. Depreciation and Amortization Expense 
13. Tax Expense - Property 
14. Tax Expense - Other 
15. Interest on Long-Term Debt 
16. Interest Charged to Construction - Credit 
17. Interest Expense - Other 
18. Other Deductions 
19. Total Cost of Gas Service (I 1 - 18) 
20. Patronage Capital & Operating Margins (1 - 19) 
21, Non Operating Margins - Interest 
22. Allowance for Funds Used During Construction 
23. Non Operating Margins - Other 
24. Generation & Transmission Capital Credits 
25. Other Capital Credits and Patronage Dividends 
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL REPORT 

Round ALL AMOUNTS to nearest dollar. 

1. Total Utility Plant in Service 
2. Construction Work in Progress 
3. Total Utility Plant (1 + 2) 
2. Accum. Provision for Depreciation 8 Amort. 
5. Net Utility Plant (3 -4) 
3, Nonutility Property - Net 
7. Invest in Assoc Org - Patronage Capital 
3. Invest in Assoc Org - General Funds 
3. Invest in Assoc Org - Nongeneral Funds 
10. Other Investments 
11. Special Funds 
12. Total Other Property & Investments (6 thru 11) 
13. Cash - General Funds 
14. Cash - Construction Funds - Trustee 
15. Special Deposits 
16. Temporary Investments 
17. Notes Receivable -Net 
18. Accounts Receivable - Sales of Gas 
19. Accounts Receivable - Fuel Bank 
20. Materials & Supplies - Gas 8 Other 
21. Prepayments 
22. Other Current & Accrued Assets 
23. Total Current & Accrued Assets (13 thru 22) 
24. Deferred Debits 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 
GAS SYSTEM 
MONTH ENDING 
December 31,2010 

28. Operating Margins - Prior Years 
29. Operating Margins - Current Year 
30. Non Operating Margins 

1,137,731 , 
66,990 
57,558 

1,262,279 - 40. Total Current & Accrued Liab (36 thru 39: 
180,008 41. Deferred Credits - 

(237,567) 42. Miscellaneous Operating Reserves 
84,677 43. Total Liabilities 8 Other Credits (32 + 
19,729 35 + 40 thru 42) 2,722,418 - ESTIMATED CONSTRlBUTlONS IN AID TO CONSTRUCTION 

31. Other Margins and Equities 
32. Total Margins 8 Equities (26 thru 31) 

46,847 

138,054 1 33. Long-Term Debt RUS (Net) 

Balance Beginning of Year 

(Payments - Unapplied $ 
34. Long-Term Debt - Other (net) 

(Payments - Unapplied $ 

35 Total Long-Term Debt(33 + 34) 
36. Notes Payable 
37. Accounts Payable 
38. Consumers Deposits 
39. Other Current & Accrued Liabilites 

ITEM THIS MONTH YEAR TO DATE 
1 THERMS PURCHASED 434,420 2,679,510 
2 
3. TOTAL PURCHASED 434,420 2,679,510 

4 TOTALSOLD I 375,389 2,937,132 

28,859 
(353,172) 

ITEM THIS MONTH YEAR TO DATE 
6. OFFICE USE 

7 UNACCOUNTED FOR 59,031 (257,622) 
8. % SYSTEM LOSS 13.59% -9.61 % 
9. MAXIMUM DEMAND 

10. MONTH WHEN MAXIMUM DEMAND OCCURRED 

563,588 = 
1,052,529 I 

7 



INANCIAL AND STAllSTlCAL REPORT 

lound ALL AMOUNTS to nearest dollar. 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 
GAS SYSTEM 
PIMA, AZ 85543 
MONTH ENDING 

Y EAR-TODATE 

(a) (b) (C) 
ITEM LASTYEAR THIS YEAR BUDGET 

Operating Revenue and Patronage Capaal 3,727,437 3,56 1,818 3,594,474 
Gas Production Expense - - 

2,350,576 2,253,862 2,221,283 Cost of Purchased Gas 
Transmission Expense - - 
Distnbution Expense - Operations 297,846 297,959 31 6,505 
Distnbution Expense - Maintenance 321,323 346,153 1 385,321 
Consumer Accounts Expense 278,308 287,179 I 301,784 

I December 31,2009 
CERhFICATlON 

THIS MONTH 

(a) 
372,318 

229,507 

19,426 
12,558 
24,143 

We hereby cerLify that the entries in this report are in accordance with the accounts and other records 
of the system and reffect the status of the system to the best of our knowedge and belief 

YEAR-TO-DATE 
LAST YEAR THIS YEAR 

(a) (b) 
E M  

1 New Services Connected 88 51 
l Service Retired - 

3 Total Services in Place 5,191 5,242 
I Idle Sewices 
Exclude Seasonal) - 

&w 
SIGNATURE OF OFFICE MAWGER OR ACCOUNTANT 

YEA R-TO-DATE 
ITEM LAST YEAR THIS YEAR 

(a) (b) 

6 Miles Distribution 226 233 

8 TotalMiles 
( 5+6+7) 226 233 

f -3-p-h 
DATE 



I I BORROWER DESIGNATION I 

17 Notes Receivable - Net - 
18 Accounts Receivable - Sales of Gas 174,441 
19 Accounts Receivable - Fuel Bank (126,523) 
20 Materials & Supplies - Gas & Other 70,953 
21 Prepayments 16,038 

23 Total Current &Accrued Assets (13 thru 22) 134,909 
24 Deferred Debits 14,181 
25 Total Assets & Other Debts (5+12+23+24) 2,499,654 

22 Other Current 8 Accrued Assets - 

JFINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL REPORT 

40 Total Current & Accrued Ltab (36 thru 39 
41 Deferred Credits 
42 Miscellaneous Operating Reserves 
43 Total Ltabillties 8 Other Credlts (32 + 

1,718,004 

35 + 40 thru 42) 2,499,654 

Balance Beginning of Year 1,046,629 
Amounts Received This Year (Net) 5,900 
TOTAL Contributions in Aid of Construction 1,052,529 

ESTIMATED CONSTRIBUTIONS IN AID TO CONSTRUCTION 

GAS SYSTEM 
MONTH ENDING 

CLASS OF SERVICE NO. RECElVlNG 
SERVICE THERMS SOLD 

1 RESIDENTIAL SALES 4,813 250,926 
2 IRRIGATION SALES 10 192 
3 COMM & INDUSTRIAL 26 1 113,816 
4 TOTAL GAS SALES 5,084 364,934 
5 OTHER GAS REVENUE 
6 TOTAL 5,084 364,934 

Round ALL AMOUNTS to nearest dollar. I December 31,2009 
PART C. BALANCE SHEET 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS I LlABlUllES AND OTHER CREDITS 

THEWS SOLD AMOUNT 
AMOUNT CUMULATIVE CUMULATIVE 

266,683 1,839,244 2,588,397 
173 7,249 8,727 

103,632 824,786 945,334 
370,488 2,671,279 3,542,458 

1,830 19,360 
372,318 2,671,279 3,561,818 

1. 
2. 
3. 

ITEM THIS MONTH YEAR TO DATE 
1 THERMS PURCHASED 554,210 2,608,190 
2 
3 TOTAL PURCHASED 554,210 2,608,190 

4 TOTALSOLD 364,934 2,671,279 

4. 

5. 
6. 

ITEM THIS MONTH YEAR TO DATE 
6 OFFICE USE 

7 UNACCOUNTED FOR 189,276 (63,089) 
8 % SYSTEM LOSS 34.15% -2 42% 
9 MAXIMUM DEMAND 
10 MONTH WHEN MAXIMUM DEMAND OCCURRED 

Total Utility Plant in Service 4,332,9 13 
Construction Work in Progress 129,919 
Total Utility Plant (1 + 2) 4,462,832 
Accum. Provision for Depreciation & Amort. 2,242,994 
Net Utility Plant (3 -4) 2,219,838 

Nonutillty Property - Net - 
Invest in Assoc Org - Patronage Capital 
Invest in Assoc Org - General Funds 
Invest in Assoc Org - Nongeneral Funds 

130,727 

26 Memberships 
27. Patronage Capital 
28. Operating Margins - Prior Years 
29. Operating Margins -Current Year 
30. Non Operating Margins 
31 Other Margins and Equities 
32. Total Margins 8 Equities (26 thru 31) 
33. Long-Term Debt RUS (Net) 

(Payments - Unapplied $ 

7 
8 
9 
10 Other Investments 
11 Special Funds 
12 Total Other Property & Investments (6 thru 11) 
13 Cash - General Funds 
14 Cash - Construction Funds -Trustee 
15 Special Deposlts 
16 Temporary Investments 

34 Long-Term Debt - Other (net) 
(Payments - Unapplied $ 

35 Total Long-Term Debt(33 + 34) 
36 Notes Payable 
37 Accounts Payable 
38 Consumers Deposits 
39 Other Current 8 Accrued Liabilites 

(324,478 

1,106,127 I 
1,106,127 I 
1.592.473 1 

7 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Graham County Utilities, Inc. 
Pima, Arizona 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Graham County Utilities, Inc. (the Cooperative), 
as of September 30, 201 1 and 2010, and the related statements of income and accumulated margins, 
and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Cooperative’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Graham County Utilities, Inc. as of September 30, 201 1 and 2010, and the results 
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standads, we have also issued a report dated November 22, 
2011, on our consideration of the Cooperative’s internal control over financial reporting and on its 
compliance with certain provision of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of our audits. 

Certified Public Accountants 

November 22,201 I 

-1 - 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

Exhibit A 
BALANCE SHEET 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

ASSETS 

UTILITY PLANT 
Plant in Service 
Constructton Work in Progress 
Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

Less Accumulated Provision for Depreclation 
and Amortization 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - Restricted 
Accounts Receivable (Less allowance for uncollectibles 
of $76,993 in 2011 and $sS,sSrt in 2010) 
Materials and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

Total Current Assets 

DEFERRED CHARGES 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

MEMBERS EQUITV 
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins (Deficits) 

LONG -TERM DEBT 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 
USDA Rural Development Note Payable Less Current Maturities 
ClAC Refund Due 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electric Coop 
Overbilled Consumers Fuel Cost 
Customers’ Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Taxes 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

$ 7,928,530 8 7,472,902 
436.018 589,566 

1,025,652 1,025,652 
8 9,390,200 $ 9,088,200 

4,672.504 4,395,075 
S 4.717.704 S 4,692,325 

$ 319,797 $ 234,033 

84,531 40,161 
134.048 147.41 5 
30:777 351663 
302,081 $ 269,807 

$ 43,088 $ 50,788 

$ 5.382.670 $5.247,833 

$ 31,292 $ 31,354 
(349,918) (427.859) 

$ (318,626) $ (396,505) 

$ 2,002,092 $ 2,213,105 
1,486.395 1,510,766 
88.151 154.109 

$ 3,576,638 $ 3,878,060 

8 373,014 $ 293,076 
82,111 82.099 

1,260.8 14 834,642 
230,169 378.378 
78,750 77,625 
57,453 58,299 
19,923 19,506 
22,424 22,653 

$ 2,724,658 $ 1,766,278 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

Exhibit B 
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTfMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Gas 
Power for Pumping 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Consumer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING MARGINS (DEFICIT) - BEFORE FIXED CHARGES 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) - AFTER FIXED CHARGES 

Capital Credits 

NET OPERATING (DEFICIT) 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
Interest 

NET MARGINS (DEFICIT) 

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT - END OF YEAR 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

$ 4,054,110 $ 3,804,753 

$ 1,399,908 
54,478 

439,780 
545,659 
409,213 
590,172 
276.629 
61,333 

$ 3,777,172 

$ 1,644,746 
49,922 

368,856 
464,199 
369,921 
672.726 
264,260 
79,283 

$ 3,913,915 

$ 276,938 $ (109,162) 

213,719 174,908 

$ 63,219 $ (284,070) 

14,645 16,703 

$ 77,864 $ (267,367) 

77 457 

$ 77,941 $ (266,910) 

(427.859) (160,9491 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

$ (349,9181 $ (427,859) 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITiES, INC. 

Exhibit C 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

September 30. 
201 1 2010 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Margin (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Margins to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Overl(Under)billed Fuel Cost 
Deferred Charges 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments (to) from - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Plant 
Cash - Restncted 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt from CFC 
CIAC Refund Due 
Payments on Note Payable to AEPCO 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Wbt  to GCEC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to USDA 
Memberships 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 

CHANGE IN CASH 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Cash Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

$ 77,941 

276,629 
(7,322) 

(148,209) 
7.700 

(44,370) 
18,253 
479 

$ (266,910) 

264,260 
(5,485) 

130.849 
(10.560) 
(5,006) 
(15,173) 
8,616 

426,172 (505,518) 
$ 607,273 $ (404,927) 

$ (302,008) 
(6,077) 
(77,642) 

$ (385,727). 

(1 98,013) 

(23,471) 
(62k 

$ (221,546) 

$ 0 

0 

$ 0 

$ 213719 
0 

_I___ 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

$ (644,873) 
(69) 

8,704 
$ (636,238) 

$ 1,050,000 
226,765 
(25,667) 
(172.865) 
(14,607) 
(22,736) 

275 
$ 1,041,165 

$ 0 

0 

rs 0 

$ 174,908 
s 0 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I 1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 
Graham County Utilities, Inc. (the Cooperative) is organized as a cooperative to provide gas and 
water utility services to customers in Graham County, Arizona. The Cooperative was 
incorporated February 14, 1989, and began operations in November, 1989, with the purchase of 
assets and liabilities from two private utility companies. The Cooperative has been granted 
exemption from Federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501 (c)(l2). 

Basis of Accounting 
The Cooperative accounts for assets, liabilities, income, and expenses separately for each utility 
service furnished. Separate accounting is maintained for the gas department and the water 
department. 

i 
l 
I 

Recognition is given to all services rendered and facilities provided by each department, as well 
as those services provided by Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. under the operating and 
management agreement executed by both Cooperatives, These services are billed at 
predetermined rates. The accrual basis of accounting is followed in all departments. 

Operating Revenues I Gas and water revenues are under the jurisdiction of the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

I 
1 
I 
1 

The Cooperative records revenues as billed to the customers on a monthly basis. Revenue is not 
accrued for utilrty services delivered but not billed at the end of each month. The unbilled and 
unrecorded revenue at September 30, 2011 and 2010, was estimated to be $46,978 and 
$47,135, respectively, in the gas department and $47,881 and $51,039, respectively, in the water 
department. 

The Cooperative's tariffs include an adjustment for flow-through of purchased natural gas costs. 
In order to match fuel costs and related revenues, costs billed in advance are recorded as 
overbilled consumers fuel cost and costs to be billed in the subsequent period are recorded as 
underbilled consumers fuel cost. For the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, the 
Cooperative was overbilled $230,169 and $378,378, respectively. 

Group Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Cooperative's headquarters is located in Pima, Arizona. The service area includes members 
located in Graham County, Arizona, and also includes retail service to the towns of Pima and Ft. 
Thomas, and wholesale services to Eden Water Company. The Cooperative records a 
receivable for gas and water service as billed on a monthly basis. The Cooperative requires a 
deposit from customers upon connection which is applied to any unpaid bills upon default. The 
deposit accrues interest annually at the rate of six percent. Deposits on hand totaled $78,750 
and $77,625 at September 30, 201 1 and 2010, respectively. 

Patronage capital from associated organizations is recorded at the stated amount of the 

I 
I 

iI 
I 

Patronage Capital Certificates 

certificate. 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Inventories 
Inventories which consist of construction materials and supplies are valued at average unit cost. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are represented by Cash 
- General. 

Restricted Cash 
As part of its agreement for loan funding from USDA Rural Development the cooperative is 
required to accumulate a cash reserve fund. The fund balance at September 30, 201 1 and 2010 
was $52,725 and $46,648, respectively and was in compliance with funding requirements. 

Federal Income Tax Status 
The Cooperative qualifies for tax exempt status under Internal Revenue Code section 501 (c)(12) 
with more than 85% of income consisting of amounts received from members. 

On January 1, 2009, the Cooperative adopted the “uncertain tax positions” provisions of 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The primary tax 
position of the Cooperative is its filing status as a tax exempt entity. The Cooperative determined 
that it is more likely than not that their tax positions will be sustained upon examination by the 
Internal Revenue Service (IRS), or other state taxing authority and that all tax benefits are likely 
to be realized upon settlement with taxing authorities. 

The Cooperative files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The Cooperative is no 
longer subject to U.S. federal and state income tax examinations by federal taxing authorities for 
years before 2008. 

The Cooperative recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest 
expense and penalties in operating expenses. There were no penalties or interest recognized 
during the years ended September 30, 201 1 and 2010. 

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 
The Cooperative uses the aging method to allow for uncollectible accounts receivable. During 
the year, management makes an evaluation of past due accounts to determine collection ability. 
The accounts deemed uncollectible are written off upon approval by the Board of Directors. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affecl the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 

I 
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GRAHAM COUNN UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. Assets Pledged 

All assets are pledged as security for the long-term debt due the National Rural Utilities Cooperative 
Finance Corporation (CFC) and USDA. 

3. Utility Plant and Depreciation 

Utility plant is stated at the original cost of construction including the construction costs incurred by 
the utility from which the Cooperative acquired plant in November 1989. Original cost includes the 
cost of contracted services, direct labor, materials, and overhead reduced by contributions in aid to 
construction received in connection with new construction. 

Maintenance and repairs including the renewal of minor items of plant not comprising a retirement 
unit are charged to the appropriate maintenance accounts. 

Major classes of utility plant are summarized as follows: 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

Gas Water 

Utility Plant in Service 
Department Department Total Total 

Intangible $ 42,522 
Production 
Transmission 
Distribution 4,125,817 
General 204,645 
Land and Land Rights 1,416 

Total Plant in Service $ 4,374,400 
Construction Work in Progress 211.559 
Utility Plant Acquisition 
Adjustment 415,484 

Total Utility Plant $- 5,001,443 

$ 37.708 
1,630,076 
1,098,561 

653,276 
112,010 
22,507 

0 3,554,138 
224.459 

$ 80.230 
1,630,076 
1,098,561 
4,779,093 

316,655 
23,923 

S 7,928.538 
436,018 

1,025,652 

$ 9,390,208 - 

s 80,230 
1,475,189 
1,098,561 
4.488.21 1 

306.868 
23.923 

s 7.472.982 
589,566 

1,025,652 

$- 9.088.200 

I 

I 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Provision has been made for depreciation on straight-line composite rates as follows: 

Gas Water 

Production 
Transmission 
Distribution 

Gas Mains 
Services 
Meters - Regulators 
Structures 

General 

Department Department 
2.34% - 5.05% 
2.20% - 4.00% 

4.00% - 20.00% 
2.80% 
4.10% 
2.60% 
2.30% 

6.7% - 13.3% 10% - 20% 

Depreciation accruals charged to expense for the periods ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, 
totaled $235,603 and $223,233, respectively. 

A plant acquisition adjustment was created when the Cooperative purchased the assets and liabilities 
of City Utilities, Inc. and General Utilities, Inc. The acquisition adjustment, representing the amount 
of the purchase price over the book value of the net assets acquired, amounted to $415,484 in the 
gas department and $61 0,168 in the water department. Plant acquisition adjustments are 
amortizable over the estimated useful life of the plant acquired. The Cooperative has elected to 
amortize these costs over a 25-year period. The annual charge to expense is $16,619 in the gas 
department and $24,407 in the water department. 

The plant acquisition costs and related provision for amortization at September 30, 2011. are 
summarized as follows: 

Acquisition Adjustment 
Less: Amortization 

Prior Periods 
Current Year 

Unamortized Adjustment 

Gas Water 
Department Department 

$ 415,484 $ 610,168 

$ 349,007 $ 512.540 
16,619 24,407 

$ 365,626 $ 536,947 

$ 49,858 $ 73,221 - 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Investments in Associated Organizations 

Investments in associated organizations consisted of the following: 

C FC 
Capital Term Certificates 
Patronage Capital 
Memberships 

Graham County Electric Coooperative, Inc. 
Patronage Capital 

Deferred Charges 

September 30, 
201 1 201 0 

$ 205,692 $ 128,049 
101,245 93,924 

1,000 1,000 
$ 307,937 $ 222,973 

$ 11,860 $ 11,860 

$ 319,797 $ 234,833 - - 
Deferred charges consisted of the following: 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

Gas Department 
Unamortized Debt Expense 
Other 

Water Department 
Unamortized Debt Expense 
Other 

Total 

$ 7,413 $ 11,280 
9,980 9,777 

$ 17,393 $ 21,057 

$ 16,472 $ 20,576 
9,223 9,155 

$ 25,695 $ 29,731 

During 1998, the Cooperative converted a CFC note to a lower interest rate of 7.1% for 15 years with 
a conversion fee of $109,457. Amortization expense for the years ended September 30, 201 1 and 
2010, is $7,971 and $7,971, respectively. 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I 
i 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
1 
I 
I 
I 
i 
1 
I 
I 

I 6. Memberships 

Memberships are comprised of the following: 

September 30, 
201 1 201 0 

Class A Memberships 
Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc., 
entitled to one vote rb 5,000 $ 5,000 

Class B Memberships 
All qualified members of Graham County Electric 

Cooperative, Inc., $5 membership fee, entitled 
to one vote per membership 2 1,627 21,689 

Class C Memberships 
All others who receive service, $5 membership 
fee, entitled to one vote per membership 4,665 4,665 

S 31,292 $ 31,354 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

7. Accumulated Margins (Deficits) 

This balance consists of net margins or (losses) as follows: 

Calendar Year 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 Nine Months 

Gas 
Department 

$ 6,702 
(1 4,127) 
(91,410) 
(41,115) 
(64,937) 
(46,268) 

(1 72,043) 
(68,293) 
(65,806) 
225,309 

97,405 
1,467 

39,062 
61.124 
(5,764) 
62,759 
92,446 

141,801 
69,003 

(1 79,686) 
(400,801) 
(239,276) 

83,594 
$ (508,854) 

Patronage Capital Retired 
$ (508,854) 

Water 
Department 

$ (694) 
2,845 

(23,047) 
(13,851) 

5,077 
26,495 

(28,603) 
(3,409) 

(23,095) 
3 1,474 
62,256 
46,927 
40,741 

1,125 
69,524 
7,767 

47,242 
42,157 
36,636 

(26,292) 
(85,705) 

5,043 
20,358 

$ 240,971 
(82,035) 

$ 158,936 

Total 

$ 6,008 
(1 1,282) 

(1 14,457) 
(54,966) 
(59,860) 
(1 9,773) 

(200,646) 
(71,702) 
(88,90 1 ) 
256,783 
159,661 
48,394 
79,803 
62,249 
63,760 
70,526 

139,688 
183,958 
105,639 

(205,978) 
(486,506) 
(234,233) 
103,952 

$ (267,883) 
(82,035) 

S (349,918) 

The Board of Directors has adopted the policy of separating each department’s net gains or losses 
for allocation purposes. Patronage capital is allocated after all deficits have been recovered. During 
the years ended September 30, 201 1 and 201 0, no retirements of patronage capital were made. 

Under the mortgage agreement with CFC, until the equities or margins equal or exceed 30% of the 
total assets of the Cooperative, the return to patrons of capital contributed by them is limited. 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
1 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

' I  
I 

-12- 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

8. Mortgage Notes - CFC 
Following is a summary of long-term debt due CFC maturing between September 30, 2014 and July 
7, 2040: 

September 30, 
201 1 201 0 

Fixed - 7.10% 
Fixed - 2.35% in 201 1, 4.65% in 2010 
Fixed - 7.45% 
Fixed - 6.25% 
Fixed - 7.00% 
Fixed - 3.05% 

$ 410,791 $ 529,547 
139,907 182,393 
282,139 296,915 
342,858 351,250 
791,646 800,000 
244,751 250,000 

$ 2,212,092 $ 2,410,105 
Less: Current Maturities 2 10,000 197,000 

$ 2,002,092 $ 2,213,105 

Principal and interest installments on the above notes are due quarterly in amounts of approximatety 
$66,200. As of September 30, 201 1, annual maturities of long-term debt due CFC for the next five 
years is as follows: 

201 2 
201 3 
2014 
201 5 
2016 

$ 210,000 
227,000 
240,000 
48,000 
50,000 

The mortgages contain requirements requiring certain financial ratios to be maintained or exceeded. 
These requirements were not met during the years ended September 30,201 1 and 2010. 

9. USDA Rural Development Note Payable 

Following is a summary of long-term debt due USDA Rural Development: 

Seotember 30. 

5.000% Note Maturing March, 2032 
4.500% Note Maturing August, 2035 
4.500% Note Maturing July, 2040 
4.1 25% Note Maturing March, 2047 

Less: Current Maturities 

201 1 2010 

$ 133,600 $ 137,260 
236,737 242,152 
83,540 84,931 

1,056,918 1,069,923 
$ 1,510,795 $ 1,534,266 

24,400 23,500 

$ 1,486,395 $ 1,510,766 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Principal and interest installments on the above notes are due monthly in amounts of $7,393. As of 
September 30, 201 1, annual maturities of long-term debt due USOA Rural Development for the next 
five years are as follows: 

2012 
201 3 
2014 
201 5 
2016 

$ 24,400 
25,600 
26,700 
27,900 
29,000 

10. ClAC Refund Due 

As a part of the final ruling by the Arizona Corporation Commission on recent rate cases for both the 
gas and water utilities the Cooperative agreed to refund contributions in aid of construction previously 
charged to the members. The total to be refunded is $226,765 for the gas division and $15,536 in 
the water division. The gas portion will be refunded over three years and is reflected in long term 
debt ($88,151) and current maturities of long term debt ($138,614). The water amount will be totally 
refunded in the next year and is reflected in Accounts Payable - Other. 

11. Related Parties 

The Cooperative is related by having substantially identical Boards of Directors and management 
with Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. (GCEC). GCEC provides administrative and general, 
management, operations, consumer accounting, and construction services to the Cooperative under 
an operating and management agreement signed by both parties on June 20, 1989. 

GCEC is also the guarantor of the mortgage loan executed by the Cooperative to CFC. 

Balances between the two Cooperatives are summarized as follows: 

Graham County Utilities. Inc. 

Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

Accounts Payable 

Accounts Receivable 

September 30, 
201 1 201 0 

$ (1,260,814) $ (834,642) 

$ 1,260,814 $ 834,642 
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GRAHAM COUNTY unLinEs, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

12. Litigation and Contingencies 

The Cooperative is not involved in any litigation that would materially affect the financial statements. 

The Cooperative previously filed for rate increases in both water and gas companies with the Arizona 
Corporation Commission. During the prior period the rate cases were concluded and new rates were 
implemented in June 2010. 

13. Subsequent Events 

The Cooperative has evaluated subsequent events through November 22, 2011, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 



ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON 
ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 

Our audits of the basic financial statements presented in the preceding 
section of this report were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on 
such financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying information 
shown on pages 16 through 21 is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in 
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whok . 

+, ,ds,c, # & G q v % - A L P  

Certified Public Accountants 

November 22,201 1 

I 1 8  -1 5- 



UTILITY PLANT 
Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

Less Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amortization 

-16- 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

GAS DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 1 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

ASSETS 

OTHER PROPERN AND INVESTMENTS AT COST OR 
STATEOVALUE 

Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Accounts Receivable (Less allowance for uncollectibles of 
$64.981 in 201 1 and $70,453 in 2010) 
Materials and Supplies 
Other Current and Acaued Assets 

Total Current Assets 

Deferred Charges 

TOTAL ASSETS 

MEMBERS’ EQUITY 
Membenhips 
Accumulated Margins (Dehcrts) 

LONG -TERM DEBT 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 
ClAC Refunds Due 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Matuntis of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payabfe - Graham County Electnc Cooperative 
Overbilled Consumers Fuel Cost 
Accrued Taxes 
Customers’ Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

September 30, 
201 I 2010 

f 4,374,400 5 4,095,366 
21 1,559 366,322 
415,484 415.484 

$ 5,001,443 $ 4.877.172 

2,353,251 
16 2,491,737 $ 2,523,921 

2,509,706 

$ 44,253 $ 20,042 
79,032 84.805 
23,205 26,747 

$ 146,490 $ 132,394 

$ 17,393 $ 21,057 

$2,854,800 $ 2,808,760 

$ 20,792 S 28.854 

S 1,583,883 f 1,709,163 
88.151 154,189 

S 1,672,034 f 1,863,352 

$ 263.244 S 186,906 
51.712 60,616 

985,487 699,527 
230,169 378,378 
34,294 34,846 
66,645 67,220 
13,664 13.282 
17,613 1 6,657 

S 1,662,828 f 1,459,432 

$ 2,054,800 S -2,808,760 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

GAS DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 2 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Residential 
Irrigation 
Commercial and Industrial 
Fuel Cost Under (Over) Billed 
Other Operating Revenues 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Gas 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Customer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortzation 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING MARGIN (DEFICIT) - Before 
Fixed Charges 

FIXED CHARGES 
interest on Long-Term Debt 

OPERATING MARGIN (DEFICIT) - After 
Fixed Charges 

Capital Credits 

NET OPERATING MARGIN (DEFfCIT) 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
Interest 

NET MARGIN (DEFICIT) 

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT - END OF YEAR 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

$ 2,273,160 
1 1,400 

768,921 
148,828 
40,043 

$ 3,242,352 

3 1,399,908 
374,592 
328,460 
327,997 
463,325 
156,455 

$ 2,380,373 
6,681 

843,054 
24.648 

(129,9902 
$ 3,124,766 

3 1,644,748 

283,816 
306.437 
54 I ,444 
145,705 

303,884 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

$ (107,213) 
4,719 

124,180 
170,033 

$ 117,586 

(74,133) 

3 (244,840) 
70,708 
44,644 
21,560 

(78,119) 
10,750 

47,571 62,047 (14,476) 
$ 3,098,308 $ 3,288,081 $ (189,773) 

$ 144,044 

121,332 

3 22,712 

11,312 

$ 34,024 

3 34,024 

(542,878) 

$ (508,8541 

$ (163,315) 

82,985 

$ (246,300) 

8,050 

$ (238,250) 

388 

$ (237,862) 

(305,016) 

$ (542,878) 

$ 307,359 

38,347 

3 269,012 

3.262 

$ 272,274 

(388) 

3 271,886 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

GAS DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 3 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Margin (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net (Deficit) to Net Cash 

Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 
Depreciation and Amortrzatlon 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Deferred Charges 
Over/(Under)billed Fuel Cost - Net 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments from - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Gas Utility Plant 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt - CFC 
ClAC Refunds Due 
Payments on Long-Term Debt - CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt - Graham County Electric Cooperative 
Memberships 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CHANGE IN CASH 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

$ 34,024 $ (237,862) 

156,455 
(5,655) 
3,664 

(148,209) 
(23,411) 

9,315 
(8,693) 

145,705 
(4,025) 
(5,509) 

130,849 
704 

(13,974) 
(721 1) 

285,960’ (403,705) 
$ 303,450 $ (395.028) 

$ (124,271) $ (522,607) 
(62,137) 6,978 

$ (186,408) $ (515,629) 

$ $ 800,000 
226,765 

(1 16,980) (1 01,776) 
(14.607) 

(621 275 
$ (117,042) $ 910,657 

$ O $  0 

0 0 

$ O $  0 

$ 121,332 
s 0 

$ 82,985 
!l 



UTILITY PLANT AT COST 
Water Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amortizahon 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

WATER DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 4 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 AND 2010 

ASSETS 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS AT COST OR 
STATEDVALUE 

Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - Restricted 
Accounts Receivable - Customers (Less allowance for 

Materials and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

uncoilectibles of $12.012 in 201 1 and $14,091 in 2010) 

Total Current Assets 

DEFERRED CHARGES 

NET ASSETS 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITlES 

EQUITY 
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins 

LONG-TERM DEBT 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturdies 
USDA Rural Development Notes Less Current Matuntres 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Maturities of Long-Tern Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electric Cooperative 
Accrued Taxes 
Customers' Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilibes 

NET EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

$ 3554.138 $ 3.377.616 
224,459 223,244 
610,168 61 0,168 

$ 4,388,765 $ 4,211,028 

2,162,798 2,042,624 
$ 2,225,967 $ 2,168.404 

$ 120,617 $ 103.445 

$ 52,725 $ 46,648 

40,278 19,319 
55,016 62,610 
7,572 8,916 

$ 155,591 $ 137,493 

S 25.695 $ 29.731 

$ 2,527,870 $ 2,439,073 

$ 2,500 $ 2,500 
158,936 115,019 

$ 161,436 $ 117,519 

$ 410.209 
1.486,395 

$ 1,904,604 

8 109,770 
30,399 

275,327 
23,159 
12,105 
6,259 
4.811 

$ 461,830 

8 2,527.870 

8 503.942 
1,5 10,766 

s 2,014.70a 

0 104,170 
21,483 

135,115 
23.453 
10,405 
6,224 
5,996 

$ 306,846 

$ 2,439,073 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

WATER DEPARTMENT 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2011 AND 2010 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Residential 
Commercial and Industrial 
Sales for Resale 
Other Operating Revenues 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Power - Pumping 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Customer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING MARGINS - Before 
Fixed Charges 

FIXED CHARGES 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 

OPERATING MARGIN (DEFICIT) -After Fixed Charges 

Capital Credits 

NET OPERATING MARGIN (DEFICIT) 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
Interest 

NET MARGIN (DEFICIT) 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - BEGINNING 
OF YEAR 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - END OF YEAR 

3 667,546 
78,544 
49,957 
15,711 

3 811,758 

$ 54,478 
65, I aa 

217,199 
81,216 

126,847 
120,174 
13,762 

$ 678,864 

$ 132.894 

92,387 

$ 40.507 

3,333 

3 43,840 

77 

$ 43,917 

115,019 

$ 158,936 

$ 575,793 
60,484 
38.71 9 
4,991 

$ 679,987 

3 49,922 
64,972 

180,383 
63,484 

131,282 
118,555 
17,236 

3 625,834 

3 54,153 

91,923 

$ (37,770) 

8,653 

3 (29,117) 

69 

$ (29,048) 

144,067 

$- 115,019 

Schedule 5 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

$ 91,753 
18,060 
1 1,238 
10,720 

$ 131,771 

3 4,556 
216 

36,816 
17,732 
(4.435) 
1,619 

(3,474) 
3 53,030 

$ 78,741 

464 

$ 78,277 

(5,320) 

$ 72,957 

8 

$ 72,965 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

WATER DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 6 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

September 30, 
201 1 201 0 ~. . 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Margin (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net (Deficit) to Net Cash 

Provided by Operating Activities 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Deferred Charges 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments from (to) - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Plant 
Cash - Restricted 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used in investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt from CFC 
Payments on Note Payable to AEPCO 
Payments OR Long-Term Debt to CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to USDA 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 

CHANGE IN CASH 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW fNFORMATlON 

Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

$ 43,917 

120,174 
(1,667) 
4,036 

(20,959) 
8,938 
9,172 

$ (29,048) 

140,212 (101,813~ 
$ 303.823 $ (9,698) 

$ (177,737) 
(6,077) 

(122,467) 
(69) 

( i ssos j  1,726' 
$ (199.319) $ (120,810) 

$ 

(8 f ,033) 

$ 250,000 
(2 5,667) 
(71.089) . .  I 

(23,471 j (22,736) 
$ (104,504) $ 130,508 

s 0 $ 0 

0 

$ 0 

$- 92,387 $ 91,923 
$ O $- 0 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Graham County Utilities, Inc. 
Pima, Arizona 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Graham County Utilities, Inc. (the Cooperative), 
as of September 30, 2010 and 2009, and the related statements of income and accumulated margins, 
and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Cooperative‘s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the Overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Graham County Utilities, Inc. as of September 30, 2010 and 2009, and the results 
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 2, 
2010, on our consideration of the Cooperative’s internal control over financial reporting and on its 
compliance with certain provision of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of our audits. 

Certified Public Accountants 

November 2, 201 0 

-1 - 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

Exhibit A 
BALANCE SHEET 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

UTILITY PLANT 
Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

Less Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amortization 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - General 
Accounts Receivable (Less allowance for uncolfectibles 
of $84,544 in 2010 and $92,362 in 2009) 
Materials and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

Total Current Assets 

DEFERREDCHARGES 

TOTAL ASSETS 

ASSETS 

EQUITIES AN0 LIA8ILITIES 

MEMBERS EOUITY 
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins (Deficits) 

LONG -TERM DEBT 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Matunties 
AEPCO Note Payable Less Current Maturities 
USDA Rural Development Note Payable Less Current Maturities 
ClAC Refund Due 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electnc Coop 
Overbitled Consumers Fuel Cost 
Customers’ Oeposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Taxes 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUlTlES AN0 LlABlLlTlES 

See accompanying notes to financial statemenls 

September 30. 
201 0 2009 

$ 7,472,902 $ 7,020,363 
589.566 397.31 2 

1,025,652 1,025,652 
$ 9,088,200 $ 0,443327 

4,395,875 4,131,615 
$ 4,692,325 $ 4.311.712 

$ 234,033 $ 238.052 

$ 46,648 $ 46.579 

40,161 35,155 
147.415 1 38.1 70 
35,663 29.727 

$ 269,887 $ 249,639 

f 50,788 $ 40.220 

$5,247,833 $ 4,039,632 

$ 31,354 
(427.859) 

8 (396,505) 

$ 2,213,105 

1.510.766 
154,189 

$ 3,078,060 

$ 293,076 
82.099 

834,642 
378,378 
77,625 
58,299 
19.506 
22.653 

$ 1,766.278 

3 31.079 
(160,949) 

$ (129,870) 

$ 1,360,070 
3.667 

1,534.502 

3 2,898,239 

$ 232,007 
01.476 

1,340,160 
247,529 

77.250 
57,317 
19.199 
10,324 

S 2,071.262 

$ 4.839.637 
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Exhibit B 

1 
I 
I 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

September 30, 
2010 2009 

OPERATING REVENUES $ 3,804,753 !fi 4,034.707 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Gas 
Power for Pumping 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Consumer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

$ 1,644,748 
49,922 
368,856 
464,199 
369,921 
672,726 
264,260 
79,283 

$ 3,913,915 

$ (109,162) 

$ 2,100,652 
40,037 
375,477 
539,626 
342,675 
630,740 
282,852 
69,033 

$ 4,381,092 

$ (346,385) I 
1 
I 

OPERATING MARGINS (DEFICIT) - BEFORE FIXED CHARGES 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 174,908 180,664 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) - AFTER FIXED CHARGES $ (527,049) 

Capital Credits 9.951 16,703 

$ (267,367) NET OPERATING (DEFICIT) $ (517,098) 

608 
NONOPERATING MARGINS 

Interest 457' 

$ (266,910) NET (DEFICIT) $ (516,490) 

355,541 

$ (1 60,949) 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - BEGINNING OF YEAR (160,9491 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR $ (427,859) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Exhibit C 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Margins to 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Over/( Under)billed Fuel Cost 
Deferred Charges 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Paya bles and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments (to) from - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Plant 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt from CFC 
CIAC Refund Due 
Payments on Note Payable to AEPCO 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to GCEC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to USDA 
Members hips 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Cash Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

$ (266,910) 

264,260 
(5,485) 

130,849 
( 10,560) 
(5,006) 
(151 73) 
8,616 

(505,518) 
$ (404,927) 

$ (644,873) 

$ (516,490) 

282,852 
(1 1,951) 
279,946 
(4,350) 
36,610 
6,796 

(53,304) 
522,467 

$ 542,576 

$ (315,580) 
8,704 16,998 

$ (636,169) $ (298,582) 

$ 1,050,000 
226,765 
(25,667) 
(1 72,865) 
(14,607) 
(22,736) 

$ 

(22,000) 
(157,329) 
(41.728) 
(21,325) 

275 450 
$ 1,041,165 $ (241,932) 

$ 69 

46,579 

$ 46,648 

$ 174,908 
0 $ 
- 
_I__ 

$ 2,062 

44 517 

$ 46,579 

$ 179,621 
5 0 
- 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 
Graham County Utilities, Inc. (the Cooperative) is organized as a cooperative to provide gas and 
water utility services to customers in Graham County, Arizona. The Cooperative was 
incorporated February 14, 1989, and began operations in November, 1989, with the purchase of 
assets and liabilities from hvo private utility companies. The Cooperative has been granted 
exemption from Federai income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 50?(c)(l2). 

Basis of Accounting 
The Cooperative accounts for assets, liabilities. income, and expenses separately for each utility 
service furnished. Separate accounting is maintained for the gas department and the water 
department. 

Recognition is given to all services rendered and facilities provided by each department, as well 
as those services provided by Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. under the operating and 
management agreement executed by both Cooperatives. These services are billed at 
predetermined rates. The accrual basis of accounting is followed in all departments. 

Operating Revenues 
Gas and water revenues are under the jurisdiction of the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

The Cooperative records revenues as billed to the customers on a monthly basis. Revenue IS 
not accrued for utility services delivered but not bitled at the end of each month. The unbilled and 
unrecorded revenue at September 30, 2010 and 2009, was estimated to be $47,135 and 
$57,282, respectively, in the gas department and $51,039 and $39.691, respectively, in the water 
department. 

The Cooperative's tariffs include an adjustment for flow-through of purchased natural gas costs. 
In order to match fuel costs and related revenues, costs billed in advance are recorded as 
overbilled consumers fuel cost and costs to be billed in the subsequent period are recorded as 
underbilled consumers fuel cost. For the years ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, the 
Cooperative was overbilled $378,378 and $247,529, respectively. 

Group Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Cooperative's headquarters is located in Pima, Arizona. The service area includes members 
located in Graham County, Arizona, and also includes retail service to the towns of Pima and Ft. 
Thomas, and wholesale services to Eden Water Company. The Cooperative records a 
receivable for gas and water service as billed on a monthly basis. The Cooperative requires a 
deposit from customers upon connection which is applied to any unpaid bills upon default. The 
deposit accrues interest annually at the rate of six percent. Deposits on hand totaled $77,625 
and $77,250 at September 30. 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

Patronage Capital Certificates 
Patronage capital from associated organizations is recorded at the stated amount of the 
certificate. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Inventories 
Inventories which consist of construction materials and supplies are valued at average unit cost. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are represented by 
Cash - General. 

Federal Income Tax Status 
The Cooperative qualifies for tax exempt status under Internal Revenue Code section 501(c)(12) 
with more than 85% of income consisting of amounts received from members. 

On January 1, 2009, the Cooperative adopted the “uncertain tax positions” provisions of 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The primary tax 
position of the Cooperative is its filing status as a tax exempt entity. The Cooperative determined 
that i t  is more likely than not that their tax positions will be sustained upon examination by the 
Internal Revenue Service (IRS), or other state taxing authority and that all tax benefits are likely 
to be realized upon settlement with taxing authorities. 

The Cooperative files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The Cooperative is no 
longer subject to US. federal and state income tax examinations by federal taxing authorities for 
years before 2007. 

The Cooperative recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest 
expense and penalties in operating expenses. There were no penalties or interest recognized 
during the years ended September 30,2010 and 2009. 

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 
The Cooperative uses the aging method to allow for uncollectible accounts receivable. During 
the year, management makes an evaluation of past due accounts to determine collection ability. 
The accounts deemed uncollectible are written off upon approval by the Board of Directors. 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

2. Assets Pledged 

All assets are pledged as security for the long-term debt due the National Rural Utilities Cooperative 
Finance Corporation (CFC) and USDA. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3. Utility Plant and Depreciation 

Utility plant is stated at the original cost of construction including the construction costs incurred by 
the utility from which the Cooperative acquired plant in November 1989. Original cost includes the 
cost of contracted services, direct labor, materials, and overhead reduced by contributions in aid to 
construction received in connection with new construction. 

Maintenance and repairs including the renewal of minor items of plant not comprising a retirement 
unit are charged to the appropriate maintenance accounts. 

Major classes of utility plant are summarized as follows: 

Utility Plant in Service 
Intangible 
Production 
Transmission 
Distribution 
General 

Gas Water 
Deonrtment Department Total Total 

$ 42.522 $ 37,708 $ 80,230 $ 80,230 
1,475,189 1,475,189 1,475,189 
1,098,561 1,098,561 1,098,561 

3,856,570 631,641 4,488.21 1 4,036,149 
194.858 112,OfO 306,868 306,311 

Land and Land Rights 1,416 22,507 23,923 23,923 
Total Plant in Service $ 4,095,366 $ 3,377,616 0 7,472,982 8 7,020,363 

Construction Work in Progress 366,322 223,244 589,566 397,312 
Utility Plant Acquisition 
Adjustment 415,484 610,168 1,025,652 1,025.652 

Total Utility Plant $ 4,877,172 $4,211,028 $ 9,088,200 8 8,443.327 

Provision has been made for depreciation on straight-line composite rates as follows: 

Production 
Transmission 
Distribution 

Gas Mains 
Services 
Meters - Regulators 
Structures 

General 

Gas Water 
Department Department 

2.34% - 5.05% 
2.20% - 4.00% 

4.00% - 20.00% 
2.80% 
4.1 0% 
2.60% 
2.30% 

6.7% - 13.3% 10% - 20% 

Depreciation accruals charged to expense for the periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, 
totaled $223,233 and $241,826, respectively. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A plant acquisition adjustment was created when the Cooperative purchased the assets and 
liabilities of City Utilities, Inc. and General Utilities, Inc. The acquisition adjustment, representing the 
amount of the purchase price over the book value of the net assets acquired, amounted to $415,484 
in the gas department and $610,168 in the water department. Plant acquisition adjustments are 
amortizable over the estimated useful life of the plant acquired. The Cooperative has elected to 
amortize these costs over a 25-year period. The annual charge to expense is $16,619 in the gas 
department and $24,407 in the water department. 

The plant acquisition costs and related provision for amortization at September 30, 2010, are 
summarized as follows: 

Acquisition Adjustment 
Less: Amortization 

Prior Periods 
Current Year 

Unamortized Adjustment 

Gas Water 
Department Department 

$ 415,484 $ 610,168 

$ 332.388 $ 488,134 
16,619 24,407 

!$ 349,007 $ 512,541 

4. Investments in Associated Organizations 

Investments in associated organizations consisted of the following: 

$ 66,477 $ 97,627 

CFC 
Capital Term Certificates 
Patronage Capital 
Memberships 

Graham County Electric Coooperative, Inc. 
Patronage Capitat 

September 30, 
2010 2009 

$ 128,049 $ 137,512 
93,924 93,414 

1,000 1,000 
$ 222,973 $ 231,926 

$ 11,860 $ 6,126 

$ 234833 $ 238.052 
.__L_ 
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5. Deferred Charges 

Deferred charges consisted of the following: 

September 30, 
2010 2009 

Gas Department 
Unamortized Debt Expense 
Other 

Water Department 
Unamortized Debt Expense 
Other 

Total 

$ 11,280 $ 15,148 
9,777 400 

$ 21,057 $ 15,548 

$ 20,576 $ 24,680 

$ 29,731 $ 24,680 

$ 50,788 $ 40,228 

9,155 

- 
During 1998. the Cooperative converted a CFC note to a lower interest rate of 7.1% for 15 years with 
a conversion fee of $109,457. Amortization expense for the years ended September 30, 2010 and 
2009, is $7,971 and $8,983, respectively. 

6. Memberships 

Memberships are comprised of the following: 

Class A Memberships 
Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc., 
entitled to one vote 

Class B Memberships 
All qualified members of Graham County Electric 

Cooperative, Inc., $5 membership fee, entitled 
to one vote per membership 

Class C Memberships 
All others who receive service, $5 membership 
fee, entitled to one vote per membership 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

$ 5,000 $ 5,000 

2 1,689 21,414 

4,665 4,665 

$ 31,354 $ 31,079 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

7. Accumulated Margins (Deficits) 

This balance consists of net margins or (losses) as follows: 

Calendar Year 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1 992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 Nine Months 

Patronage Capital Retired 

Gas 
Department 

Water 
Department 

$ (694) 
2,845 

(23,047) 
(1 3,851) 
5,077 
26,495 
(28,603) 

(23,095) 
31,474 
62,256 
46,927 
40,741 
1,125 

69,524 
7,767 
47,242 
42,157 
36,636 
(26,292) 
(85,705) 

(3,409) 

Total 

$ 6,702 
(14,127) 
(91.410) 
(41 ,I 15) 
(64,937) 
(46,268) 

(1 72,043) 
(68,293) 
(65,806) 
225,309 
97,405 
1,467 
39,062 
61,124 
(5,764) 
62,759 
92,446 
141,801 
69,003 

(1 79,686) 
(400,80 1 ) 
(189,706) (18,516). (208,222) 

$ (542,878) $ 197,054 $ (345,824) 
(82,035) (82,035) 

$0 $ 115019 $ (427,859) 
__1L_ 

$ 6,008 

(1 14,457) 
(54,966) 
(59,860) 
(1 9,773) 
(200,646) 
(71,702) 
(88,90 1 ) 
256,783 
159,661 
48,394 
79,803 
62,249 
63,760 
70,526 
139,688 
183,958 
105,639 
(205,978) 
(486,506) 

(1 1,282) 

The Board of Directors has adopted the policy of separating each department's net gains or losses 
for allocation purposes. Patronage capital is allocated after all deficits have been recovered. During 
the year ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, no retirements of patronage capital were made. 

Under the mortgage agreement with CFC, until the equities or margins equal or exceed 30% of the 
total assets of the Cooperative, the return to patrons of capital contributed by them is limited. 

I 



I 
‘ I  
I 
I 

-1 1- 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

8. Mortgage Notes - CFC 

Following is a summary of long-term debt due CFC maturing between September 30, 2014 and July 
7, 2040: 

September 30, 
2010 2009 

Fixed - 7.10% $ 529,547 $ 640,232 
Fixed - 4.65% 182,393 222,961 
Fixed - 7.45% 296,915 310,640 
Fixed - 6.25% 351,250 359,137 
Fixed - 7.00% 800,000 
Fixed - 3.05% 250,000 

$ 2,410,105 $ 1,532,970 
Less: Current Maturities 197,000 172,900 

$ 2,213,105 $ 1,360,070 

Principal and interest installments on the above notes are due quarterly in amounts of approximately 
$66,200. As of September 30, 2009, annual maturities of long-term debt due CFC for the next 5 
years is as follows: 

201 1 
2012 
201 3 
201 4 
201 5 

$ 197,000 
210,000 
227,000 
240,000 
48,000 

The mortgages contain requirements requiring certain financial ratios to be maintained or exceeded. 
These requirements were not met during the year ended September 30,2010 and 2009. 
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I 
I 9. USDA Rural Development Note Payable 

Following is a summary of long-term debt due USDA Rural Development: I 
I 
II 
I 

5.000% Note Maturing March, 2032 
4.500% Note Maturing August, 2035 
4.500% Note Maturing July, 2040 
4.125% Note Maturing March, 2047 

Less: Current Maturities 

September 30, 
2010 2009 

$ 137,260 $ 140,742 
242,152 247,329 
84,931 86,261 

1,069,923 1,082,670 
$ 1,534,266 $ 1,557,002 

23,500 22,500 
$ 1,510,766 $ 1,534,502 

Principal and interest installments on the above notes are due monthly in amounts of $7,393. As of 
September 30, 2010, annual maturities of long-term debt due USDA Rural Development for the next 
five years are as follows: 

I 
1 

201 1 
201 2 
201 3 
2014 
2015 

$ 23,500 
24,400 
25,600 
26,700 
27,900 

10. Graham County Electric Note Payable 

During 1998, the Cooperative financed an accounts payable due to Graham County Electric 
Cooperative. The total cost of $500,000 is to be paid over 10 years in monthly payments including 
interest at the rate of 7.4%. The balance was paid off during the current period. 

I 
I 
I 

1 I. AEPCO Note Payable 

During 1999, the Cooperative obtained a zero interest loan from the Arizona Electric Power 
Cooperative, Inc. through the Rural Economic Development Program of RUS. The total loan was 
$220,000, payable in monthly payments of $1,833 for 120 months. The balance was paid off during 
the current period. 

I 

12. ClAC Refund Due 

As a part of the final ruling by the Arizona Corporation Commission on recent rate cases for both the 
gas and water utilities the Cooperative agreed to refund contributions in aid of construction 
previously charged to the members. The total to be refunded is $226,765 for the gas division and 

I 
‘ I  
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

$15,536 in the water division. The gas portion will be refunded over three years and is reflected in 
long term debt ($154,189) and current maturities of long term debt ($72,576). The water amount will 
be totally refunded in the next year and is reflected in Accounts Payable - Other. 

13. Related Parties 

The Cooperative is related by having substantially identical Boards of Directors and management 
with Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. (GCEC). GCEC provides administrative and general, 
management, operations, consumer accounting, and construction services to the Cooperative under 
an operating and management agreement signed by both parties on June 20, 1989. 

GCEC is also the guarantor of the mortgage loan executed by the Cooperative to CFC. 

Balances between the two Cooperatives are summarized as follows: 

Graham County Utilities, Inc. 
Accounts Payable 
Note Payable 

Net Due to Affiliated Cooperative 

Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
Accounts Receivable 
Note Receivable 

Net Due from Affiliated Cooperative 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

$ (834,642) $ (1,340,164) 
(14,607) 

$ $ (1,354,771) 

$ 834,642 $ 1,340,164 
14,607 

$ 834,642 $ 1,354,771 

14. Litigation and Contingencies 

The Cooperative is not involved in any litigation thal would materially affect the financial statements. 

The Cooperative previously filed for rate increases in both water and gas companies with the Arizona 
Corporation Commission. During the current period the rate cases were concluded and new rates 
were implemented in June 2010. 

b 
I 

15. Subsequent Events 

The Cooperative has evaluated subsequent events through November 2,2010, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

I 
I 
I 
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ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON 
ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 

Our audits of the basic financial statements presented in the preceding 
section of this report were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on 
such financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying information 
shown on pages 15 through 20 is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in 
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

+ / / d + - , ~ * r n L X L P  

Certified Public Accountants 

November 2,2010 

-14- 
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GAS DEPARTMENT 

Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amortization 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

ASSETS 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS AT COST OR 
STATEDVALUE 

Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Accounts Receivable (Less allowance for uncollectibles of 
$70,453 in 2010 and $76.885 in 2009) 
Materials and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

Total Current Assets 

Deferred Charges 

TOTAL ASSETS 

MEMBERS EQUITY 
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins (Deficits) 

LONG -TERM DEBT 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 
ClAC Refunds Due 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electric Cooperative 
Overbilled Consumers Fuel Cost 
Accrued Taxes 
Customers' Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

Schedule 1 

September 30, 
2010 2009 

$ 4,095,366 $ 3.743,276 
195.805 366.322 

41 5,484 415,484 
8 4,877,172 $ 4.354.565 

2,353,251 2,207,546 
$ 2,523,921 $ 2,147,019 

$ 131,388 $ 134,341 

$ 20,842 $ 21,546 
84 805 75.283 
26,747 22,295 

$ 132.394 $ 119,124 

$ 21,057 $ 15,548 

$ 2.808,760 $ 2,416,032 

(542,8782 (305,016) 
f (514,0241 $ (276,4371 

$ 1,709.163 $ 982.069 
154.1 89 

$ 1,863,352 S 982,069 

$ 188,906 
60,616 

699,527 
378.378 
34.846 
67.220 
13.282 

$ 159,807 
69.351 

1,103.232 
247.529 

36,220 
68.845 
13,096 

16,657 12,320 
$ 1,459,432 $ 1,710.400 

S 2,808,760 f 2,416,032 
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GAS DEPARTMENT 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Residential 
Irrigation 
Commercial and Industrial 
Fuel Cost Under (Over) Billed 
Other Operating Revenues 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Gas 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Customer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) - Before 
Fixed Charges 

FIXED CHARGES 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) - After 
Fixed Charges 

Capital Credits 

NET OPERATING (DEFICIT) 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
Interest 

NET (DEFICIT) 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR 

$ 2,380,373 
6,681 

843,054 
24,648 

(129,990) 
$ 3,124,766 

$ 1,644,748 
303.884 
283,816 
306,437 
541,444 
145,705 
62,047 

8 3,288.081 

$ (163,315) 

82,985 

!§ (246,300) 

8,050 

$ (238,250) 

388 

$ (237,862) 

(305,016) 

$B 

$ 2,678,432 
8,456 

976,257 
19,960 

(280,168) 
$ 3,402,937 

$ 2,100,652 
309.874 
376,t 6 1 
283,50 1 
499,297 
137,095 
54,993 

$ 3,761,653 

$ (358,716) 

79,858 

$ (438.574) 

7,229 

$ (431,345) 

546 

$ (430,799) 

125,783 

$ (305.016) 

Schedule 2 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

$ (298,059) 
(1,775) 

(1 33,203) 
4,688 

150.178 
$ (278.171) 

$ (455.904) 
(5.990) 
(92.345) 
22.856 
42.147 
8,610 
7.054 

$ (473,572) 

$ 195,401 

3,127 

$ 192,274 

821 

$ 193,095 

(1 58) 

$ 192,937 
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GAS DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 3 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net (Deficit) to Net Cash 

Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Deferred Charges 
Over/(Under)billed Fuel Cost - Net 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments from - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Gas Utility Plant 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used in investing Activities 

September 30, 
2010 2009 

$ (237,862) 

145.705 
(4,025) 
(5,509) 

130,849 
704 

(13,974) 
( 7 3  1) 

(403,705) 
$ (395,028) 

$ (430,799) 

137,095 
(9,229) 
3,467 

279,946 
35,674 
14,051 
(19.624) 
352,401 

$ 363,062 

$ (522,607) $ (239.405) 

$ (515,629) $ (228,924) 
6,978 10,481 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt - CFC $ 800,000 $ 
ClAC Refunds Due 226,765 
Payments on Long-Term Debt - CFC (1 01,776) (92,860) 
Payments on Long-Term Debt - Graham County Electric Cooperative (1 4,607) (4 1,728) 
Memberships 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 
275 450 

$ 970,657 $ (134,138) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH $ O $  0 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

$ O $  0 - 



UTILITY PLANT AT COST 
Water Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amortization 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

WATER DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 4 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

ASSETS 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS AT COST OR 
STATEDVALUE 

Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - General 
Accounts Receivable - Customers (Less allowance for 

Materials and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

uncollectibles of $14,091 in 2010 and $15,477 in 2009) 

Total Current Assets 

DEFERREDCHARGES 

NET ASSETS 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins 

LONG-TERM DEBT 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 
AEPCO Notes Payable Less Current Maturities 
USDA Rural Development Notes Less Current Maturities 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electric Cooperative 
Accrued Taxes 
Customers' Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilities 

NET EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

September 30, 
2010 2009 

$ 3,377,616 $ 3,277.087 
223,244 201,507 

610,168 
$ 4,211,028 $ 4,068,762 

61 0.1 68 

2,042,624 1,924,069 
$ 2,168,404 $ 2,164,693 

$ 103.445 $ 103.711 

$ 46,648 3 46,579 

19,319 13,609 
62,610 62,895 

8.916 7,432 
$ 137,493 $ 130,515 

$ 29.731 $ 24.680 

$ 2,439.073 $ 2,423.599 

s 2,500 $ 2,500 
144,067 

$ 117,519 $ 146.567 
115,019 

$ 503.942 3 378.001 
3,667 

1,510,766 1,534,502 
$ 2.014.708 $ 1,916,170 

$ 104,170 
21.483 

135,115 
23,453 
10,405 
6,224 

$ 72,200 
12,125 

236.928 
21 -097 
8,405 
6,103 

5.996 4.004 
$ 306,846 S 360,862 

$ 2,439,073 $ 2,423,599 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

WATER DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 5 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Residential 
Commercial and Industrial 
Sales for Resale 
Other Operating Revenues 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Power - Pumping 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Customer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING MARGINS - Before 
Fixed Charges 

FIXED CHARGES 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) - After Fixed Charges 

Capital Credits 

NET OPERATING (DEFICIT) 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
Interest 

NET (DEFICIT) 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - BEGINNING 
OF YEAR 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - END OF YEAR 

September 30, Increase 
2010 2009 (Decrease) 

$ 575,793 !$ 546.737 $ 29,056 
60,484 50,027 10.457 
38,719 31,186 7,533 
4,991 3,820 1,171 

$ 679,987 $ 631,770 $ 48,217 

S 49,922 S 40.037 $ 9,885 
64,972 65.603 (631) 
180,383 163,465 16,918 
63,484 59,094 4,390 
131,282 131,443 (161) 
118,555 145,757 (27,202) 
17,236 14,040 3,196 

$ 625,834 $ 619,439 $ 6,395 
- 

$ 54,153 $ 12.331 $ 41,822 

91,923 100,806 (8,883) 

f (37,770) $ (88.475) $ 50,705 

8,653 2,722 5,931 

$ (29.117) $ (85,753) $ 56,636 

69 62 7 

$ (29.048) $ (85,691) $ 56,643 

- - 
144,067 229,758 

144,067 $ 115,019 $- - 
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WATER DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 6 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

September 30, 
2010 2009 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net (Deficit) to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Deferred Charges 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments from (to) - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Plant 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt from CFC 
Payments on Note Payable to AEPCO 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to USDA 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 

INCREASE IN CASH 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

$ (29.048) 

(101,813i 
s 19.698 1 

$ (122,467) 
1,726 

$ (120,7411 

$ 250,000 
(25,667) 
(71,089) 

145,757 

(7,817) 
936 

(7,255) 
(33,680) 
169,986 

$ 179,514 

(2,722) 

$ 
(22,000) 
(64,469) 

(22,7361 (21,325) 
$ 130,508 $ (107,794) 

$ 69 

46,579 

$ 46,648 - 
$ 2,062 

44.51 7 

$- 46,579 

$ 91,923 $ 96,991 - 
$ - O $- 0 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Graham County Utilities, Inc. 
Pima, Arizona 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Graham County Utilities, Inc. (the Cooperative), 
as of September 30, 2009 and 2008, and the related statements of income and accumulated margins, 
and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Cooperative's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Graham County Utilities, Inc. as of September 30, 2009 and 2008, and the results 
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 23, 
2009, on our consideration of the Cooperative's internal control over financial reporting and on its 
compliance with certain provision of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of our audits. 

November 23,2009 

Certified Public Accountants 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

BALANCE SHEET 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEM6ER 30,2009 AND 2008 

ASSETS 

UTILITY PLANT 
Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Plant Acquisibon Adjustment 

Less Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amortizahon 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - General 
Accounts Receivable (Less allowance for uncollectibles 
of $92,362 in 2W9 and $80.217 in 2008) 
Underbilled Consumers Fuel Cost 
Materials and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

Total Current Assets 

DEFERRED CHARGES 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

MEMBERS’ EQUITY 
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins (Deficits) 

LONG -TERM DEBT 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Matunbes 
AEPCO Note Payable Less Current Maturities 
Graham County Electric Cooperative Note Payable 

USDA Rural Development Note Payale Less Current Maturities 
Less Current Maturities 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Matunbes of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electric Coop 
Overb+lleU Consumers Fuel Cost 
Customers’ Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Taxes 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

Exhibit A 

September 30, 
2009 2008 

$ 7,020,363 $ 5,814.817 
397,3 12 1.207.270 

1.025.652 1,025,652 
d 8,443,327 S 8.127.747 

4,131,615 3.848.763 
$ 4,311,712 S 4,278,984 

$ 238,052 3 243,099 

$ 46,579 S 44,517 

35.155 71.765 
32,417 

138,170 142,225 
29,727 32.475 

$ 249.639 $ 323,399 

40,228 $ 35,878 

$ 4,839,631 S 4,881.360 

$-- 

$ 31,079 
(160,949) 

$ (129,870) 

$ 1,360,070 
3,667 

1.534502 
S 2.898.239 

$ 232,007 
8 1,476 

1,340,160 
247.529 

57,317 
77.250 
19,199 
16,324 

$ 2,071,262 

$ 4,839,631 

$ 30.629 
355,541 

f 386,170 

$ 1,536,299 
25,667 

14,607 
1.557.427 

S 3,134,000 

$ 238,628 
158.71 7 
817.693 

75,810 
55.232 
15,110 

$ 1,361,190 

$ 4.881.360 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 AND 2008 

Exhibit B 

OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Gas 
Power for Pumping 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Consumer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING MARGINS (DEFICIT) - BEFORE FlXED CHARGES 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) -AFTER FIXED CHARGES 

Capital Credits 

NET OPERATING (DEFICIT) 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
Interest 

NET (DEFICIT) 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR 

September 30, 
2009 2008 

$ 4,034,707 $ 4,373,004 

$ 2.100.652 
40,037 

375,477 
539,626 
342,675 
630,740 
282,852 
69.033 

$ 4,381,092 

$ (346,385) 

3 2,398,790 
32,595 

345,717 
441 I 186 
334,466 
495,840 
246.63 1 

35,768 
$ 4,330,973 

3 42,031 

180,664 195,057 

$ (527,049) $ (153.026) 

9,951 14.142 

$ (517,098) $ (138.884) 

608 5,433 

$ (516,490) $ (133,451) 

355,541 488,992 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

$ (160,949) S 355,541 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

Exhibit C 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 AND 2008 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Margins to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Over/(Under)billed Fuel Cost 
Deferred Charges 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments (to) from - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Plant 
Investments in Associated Organuations 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt from USDA 
Payments on Note Payable to AEPCO 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to GCEC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to USDA 
Mern berships 

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Cash Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

September 30, 
2009 2008 

$ (516,490) $ (133,451) 

282,852 
(1 1,951) 
279,946 

(4,350) 
36,610 
6,796 

(53,304) 
522,467 

$ 542,576 

24661 1 
(4,242 1 

(145,554) 
8,341 

30.44 1 
16,853 
45,862 

$ (315,580) 3 (916,725) 
16,998 14,362 

$ (298,582) $ (902,363) 

$ $ 206.278 
(22,000) (20,166) 

(1 57,329) (1 46,108) 
(4 1,728) (38,761) 
(21,325) (1 4,630) 

450 (51) 
$ (241,932) $ (13,438) 

s 2,062 $ (7,054) 

44.517 51,571 

$ 46,579 $ 44,517 

$ 179,621 3 200,791 
$ O $  0 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 
Graham County Utilities, Inc. (the Cooperative) is organized as a cooperative to provide gas and 
water utility services to customers in Graham County, Arizona. The Cooperative was 
incorporated February 14, 1989, and began operations in November, 1989, with the purchase of 
assets and liabilities from two private utility companies. The Cooperative has been granted 
exemption from Federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501 (cf(12). 

Basis of Accounting 
The Cooperative accounts for assets, liabilities, income, and expenses separately for each utility 
service furnished. Separate accounting is maintained for the gas department and the water 
department. 

Recognition is given to all services rendered and facilities provided by each department, as well 
as those services provided by Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. under the operating and 
management agreement executed by both Cooperatives. These services are billed at 
predetermined rates. The accrual basis of accounting is followed in all departments. 

Operating Revenues 
Gas and water revenues are under the jurisdiction of the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

The Cooperative records revenues as billed to the customers on a monthly basis. Revenue is 
not accrued for utility services delivered but not billed at the end of each month. The unbilled and 
unrecorded revenue at September 30, 2009 and 2008, was estimated to be $57,282 and 
$58,032, respectively, in the gas department and $39,691 and $36,270, respectively, in the water 
department. 

The Cooperative's tariffs include an adjustment far flow-through of purchased natural gas costs. 
In order to match fuel costs and related revenues, costs billed in advance are recorded as 
overbilled consumers fuel cost and costs to be billed in the subsequent period are recorded as 
underbilled consumers fuel cost. For the years ended September 30. 2009 and 2008, the 
Cooperative was overbilled $247,529 and underbilled $32,417, respectively. 

Group Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Cooperative's headquarters is located in Pima, Arizona. The service area includes members 
located in Graham County, Arizona, and also includes retail service to the towns of Pima and Ft. 
Thomas, and wholesale services to Eden Water Company. The Cooperative records a 
receivable for gas and water service as billed on a monthly basis. The Cooperative requires a 
deposit from customers upon connection which is applied to any unpaid bills upon default. The 
deposit accrues interest annually at the rate of six percent. Deposits on hand totaled $57,317 
and $75,810 at September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

Patronage Capital Certificates 
Patronage capital from associated organizations is recorded at the stated amount of the 
certificate. 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Inventories 
Inventories which consist of construction materials and supplies are valued at average unit cost. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are represented by 
Cash - General. 

Federal Income Tax Status 
The Cooperative qualifies for tax exempt status under Internal Revenue Code section 501 (c)(12) 
with more than 85% of income consisting of amounts received from members. 

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 
The Cooperative uses the aging method to allow for uncollectible accounts receivable. During 
the year, management makes an evaluation of past due accounts to determine collection ability. 
The accounts deemed uncollectible are written off upon approval by the Board of Directors. 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

2. Assets Pledged 

All assets are pledged as security for the long-term debt due the National Rural Utilities Cooperative 
Finance Corporation (CFC) and USDA. 

3. Utility Plant and Depreciation 

Utility plant is stated at the original cost of construction including the construction costs incurred by 
the utility from which the Cooperative acquired plant in November 1989. Original cost includes the 
cost of contracted services, direct labor, materials, and overhead reduced by contributions in aid to 
construction received in connection with new construction. 

Maintenance and repairs including the renewal of minor items of plant not comprising a retirement 
unit are charged to the appropriate maintenance accounts. 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Major classes of utility plant are summarized as follows: 

September 30, 
2009 2008 

Utility Plant in Service 
In tangible 
Production 
Transmission 
Distribution 
General 
Land and Land Rights 

Construction Work in Progress 
Utility Plant Acquisition 

Total Utility Plant 

Total Plant in Service 

Adjustment 

Gas Water 
Department Department Total Total 

s 42,522 L 37.708 $ 80,230 S ao.230 

1,098,561 1,098,561 983.46a 
1,475,iag 1,475.189 555.938 

3,504,479 531,670 4,036,149 3.865.329 
194,859 111.452 306.31 1 305.929 

1,416 22,507 23,923 23,923 
$ 3,743.276 $ 3,277,087 L 7,020,363 $ 5,814,817 

1.2a7,m 195.805 201,507 397,312 

Provision has been made for depreciation on straight-line composite rates as follows: 

Gas Water 

Production 
Transmission 
Distribution 

Gas Mains 
Services 
Meters - Regulators 
Structures 

General 

Department Department 
2.34% - 5.05% 
2.20% - 4.00% 

4.00% - 20.00% 
2.80% 
4.10% 
2.60% 
2.30% 

6.7Oh - 13.3% 10% - 20% 

Depreciation accruals charged to expense for the periods ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, 
totaled $241,826 and $205,585, respectively. 

A plant acquisition adjustment was created when the Cooperative purchased the assets and 
liabilities of City Utilities, Inc. and General Utilities, Inc. The acquisition adjustment, representing the 
amount of the purchase price over the book value of the net assets acquired, amounted to $41 5,484 
in the gas department and $610,168 in the water department. Plant acquisition adjustments are 
amortizable over the estimated useful life of the plant acquired. The Cooperative has elected to 
amortize these costs over a 25-year period. The annual charge to expense is $16,619 in the gas 
department and $24,407 in the water department. 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The plant acquisition costs and related provision for amortization at September 30, 2009, are 
summarized as follows: 

Acquisition Adjustment 
Less: Amortization 

Prior Periods 
Current Year 

Unamortized Adjustment 

Water Gas 
Department Department 

$ 415,484 $ 610,168 

$ 315,769 $ 463,727 
16,619 24,407 

$ 332,388 $ 488,134 

$ 83.096 $ 122,034 

4. Investments in Associated Organizations 

Investments in associated organizations consisted of the following: 

September 30, 
2009 2008 

CFC 
Capital Term Certificates 
Patronage Capital 
Memberships 

Graham County Electric Coooperative, Inc. 
Patronage Capital 

$ 137,512 $ 152,510 
93,414 83,463 

1,000 1,000 
$ 231,926 8 236,973 

$ 6,126 $ 6,126 

$ 238,052 8 243,099 - 
5. Deferred Charges 

Deferred charges consisted of the following: 

September 30, 
2009 2008 

Gas Department 
Unamortized Debt Expense 
Clearing Accounts 

Water DepaFtment 
Unamortized Debt Expense 

$ 15,148 $ 19,015 

$ 15,548 $ 19,015 
400 

$ 24,680 $ 46,863 

$ 40.228 $ 35,878 



1 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

During 1998, the Cooperative converted a CFC note to a lower interest rate of 7.1% for 15 years with 
a conversion fee of $109,457. Amortization expense for the years ended September 30, 2009 and 
2008, is $3,867 and $3,867, respectively. 

I 
I 

6. Memberships 

Memberships are comprised of the following: 

I 
I 
I 

Class A Memberships 
Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc., 
entitled to one vote 

Class B Memberships 
All qualified members of Graham County Electric 

Cooperative, Inc., $5 membership fee, entitled 
to one vote per membership 

Class C Memberships 
All others who receive service, $5 membership 

fee, entitled to one vote per membership 

September 30, 
2009 2008 

$ 5,000 $ 5,000 

21,414 20,964 

4,665 4,665 

$ 31,079 $ 30,629 
1 

I 

I 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

7.  Accumulated Margins (Deficits) 

This balance consists of net margins or (losses) as follows: 
Gas 

Department 
Calendar Year 
1989 $ 6,702 
1990 (1 4,127) 
1991 (91,410) 
1992 (41,115) 
1993 (64,937) 
1994 (46.268) 
1995 (1 72,043) 
1996 (68,293) 
1997 (65,806) 
1998 225,309 
1999 97,405 
2000 1,467 
200 1 39,062 
2002 61,124 
2003 (5,764) 
2004 62.759 
2005 92,446 
2006 141,801 
2007 69,003 
2008 (1 79,686) 
2009 Nine Months (352,645) 

$ (305.016) 
Patronage Capital Retired 

$ (305,016) 

Water 
Department 

$ (694) 
2,845 

(23,047) 
(1 3,851 ) 
5,077 
26,495 
(28,603) 
(3,409) 
(23 095) 
31,474 
62,256 
46,927 
40,741 
1,125 
69,524 
7,767 
47,242 
42,157 
36,636 
(26,292) 
(75,173) 

$ 226,102 
(82,035) 

$ 144,067 

Total 

$ 6,008 
(1 1,282) 

(1 14,457) 
(54,966) 
(59,860) 
( 1 9,773) 
(200,646) 
(71,702) 
(88,901 ) 

159,661 
48,394 
79,803 
62,249 
63,760 
70,526 
139,688 
183,958 
105,639 
(205,978) 
[427,8 1 8) 

$ (78,914) 

256,783 

(82,035) 
$ (160,949) 

The Board of Directors has adopted the policy of separating each department's net gains or losses 
for allocation purposes. Patronage capital is allocated after all deficits have been recovered. During 
the year ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, no retirements of patronage capital were made. 

Under the mortgage agreement with CFC, until the equities or margins equal or exceed 30% of the 
total assets of the Cooperative, the return to patrons of capital contributed by them is limited. 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

8. Mortgage Notes - CFC 

Following is a summary of long-term debt due CFC maturing September 30, 2014, June 30, 2026. 
and September 30, 2031: 

Fixed - 7.10% 
Variable (4.65% in 2009, 4.90% in 2008) 
Fixed - 7.45% 
Fixed - 6.25Oh 

Less: Current Maturities 

September 30, 
2009 2008 

S 640,232 $ 743,396 
222,96 1 256,966 
310,640 323,387 
359,137 366,550 

$ 1,532,970 $ 1,690,299 
154,000 172,900 

$ 1,360,070 $ 1,536,299 

Principal and interest installments on the above notes are due quarterly in amounts of approximately 
$66,200. As of September 35. 2009, annual maturities of long-term debt due CFC for the next five 
years is as follows: 

201 0 
201 1 
201 2 
2013 
2014 

$ 172,900 
184,400 
196,800 
209,900 
224,000 

The mortgages contain requirements requiring certain financial ratios to be maintained or exceeded. 
These requirements were not met during the year ended September 30, 2009 and 2008. 

’ I  
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

9. USDA Rural Development Note Payable 

Following is a summary of long-term debt due USDA Rural Development: 

Seotember 30 

5.000% Note Maturing March, 2032 
4.500% Note Maturing August, 2035 
4.500% Note Maturing July, 2040 
4.125% Note Maturing March, 2047 

Less: Current Maturities 

2009 2008 
$ 140,742 $ 144,052 

247,329 252,271 
86,261 87,529 

1,082,670 1,094,475 
$ 1,557,002 $ 1,578,327 

22,500 20,900 
$ 1,534,502 $ 1,557,427 

Principal and interest installments on the above notes are due monthly in amounts of $7,393. As of 
September 30, 2009, annual maturities of long-term debt due USDA Rural Development for the next 
five years are as follows: 

2010 
201 1 
2012 
201 3 
2014 

$ 22,500 
23,500 
24,300 
25,600 
26,700 

I O .  Graham County Electric Note Payable 

During 1998, the Cooperative financed an accounts payable due to Graham County Electric 
Cooperative. The total cost of $500,000 is to be paid over 10 years in monthly payments including 
interest at the rate of 7.4%. The balance outstanding at September 30, 2009, is $14,607. Annual 
maturities due to Graham County Electric Cooperative for the next year as follows; 

201 0 $ 14,607 

11. AEPCO Note Payable 

During 1999, the Cooperative obtained a zero interest loan from the Arizona Electric Power 
Cooperative, lnc. through the Rural Economic Development Program of RUS. The total loan was 
$220,000, payable in monthly payments of $1,833 for 120 months. The balance at September 30, 
2009, is $25,667. Annual maturities due to AEPCO for the next two years are as follows: 

201 0 
201 1 

$ 22,000 
3,667 



-1 3- 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

12. Related Parties 

The Cooperative is related by having substantially identical Boards of Directors and management 
with Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. (GCEC). GCEC provides administrative and general, 
management, operations, consumer accounting, and construction services to the Cooperative under 
an operating and management agreement signed by both parties on June 20, 1989. 

GCEC is also the guarantor of the mortgage loan executed by the Cooperative to CFC. 

Intercompany balances between the two Cooperatives are summarized as follows: 

I 
I 
I 

Graham County Utilities, Inc. 
Accounts Payable 
Note Payable 

Net Due to Affiliated Cooperative 

Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
Accounts Receivable 
Accounts Payable 

I 
I Note Receivable 

September 30, 
2009 2008 

$ (1,340,164) $ (820,100) 
(14,607) (56,335) 

$ <1.354,77!r $ -(876,435) 

$ 1,340,164 $ 820,100 

14,607 56,335 
Net Due from Affiliated Cooperative $ 1,354,771 $ 876,435 

13. Litigation and Contingencies 

The Cooperative is not involved in any litigation that would materially affect the financial statements. 

The Cooperative has filed for rate increases in both water and gas companies with the Arizona 
Corporation Commission. Gas and Water rates cases have been tied together by agreement with 
the Arizona Corporation Commission. The hearing is set at the end of January 2010 with an open 
hearing around March or April 2010, and implementation of the rates one month thereafter. 

I 
I 
I 14. Subsequent Events 

The Cooperative has evaluated subsequent events through November 23, 2009, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. I 



ACCOMPANYlNG INFORMATION 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON 
ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 

Our audits of the basic financial statements presented in the preceding 
section of this report were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on 
such financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying information 
shown on pages 15 through 20 is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in 
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

+, ‘d7-, A L - + 7 n l + c A L P  

Certified Public Accountants 

November 23,2009 

-14- 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

GAS DEPARTMENT 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,2009 AND 2008 

ASSETS 

UTILITY PLANT 
Plant in Sewice 
Construction Work in Progress 
Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amorbration 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS AT COST OR 
STATED VALUE 

Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Accounts Receivable (Less allowance for uncollectibles of 
$76,885 in 2009 and $6665,606 in 2008) 
Underbilled Consumers Fuel Cost 
Materials and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

Total Current Assets 

Deferred Charges 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

MEMBERS' EQUITY 
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins (Defbts) 

LONG -TERM DEBT 
Note Payable - Graham County Electric Cooperative 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturitfes 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electric Cooperative 
Overbilled Consumers Fuel Cost 
Accrued Taxes 
Customers' Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

Schedule 1 

September 30, 
2009 2008 

$ 3,743,276 $ 3.597.916 
195.805 101,760 
415,484 415,484 

$ 4,354,565 S 4.115.160 

2,207,546 2,070,451 
$ 2,147,019 $ 2,044,709 

B 134,341 8 135,593 

$ 21.546 I 57,220 
32,417 

75,283 91,067 
22,295 20,562 

$ 119.124 $ 201,266 

S 15.548 $ 19.015 

s 2,416,032 8 2,400,583, 

$ 28,579 f 28,129 

$ (276,437) $ 153.912 
(305,0161_ 125,783 

$ $ 14,607 
982.069 1,113.729 

$ 982.069 S 1,128,336 

$ 159.807 I 148.128 
69,351 103.777 

1,103.232 750.751 

36,220 35.549 
68.845 67,270 
13.096 12.860 

247,529 

12,320 
8 1,710,400 $ 1,118,339 

$ 2,416032 $- 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

GAS DEPARTMENT 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 AND 2008 

September 30, 
2009 2008 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Residential 
irrigation 
Commercial and Industrial 
Fuel Cost Under (Over) Billed 
Other Operating Revenues 

Total Operating Revenues 

$ 2,678,432 
8,456 

976,257 
19,960 

(280,168) 
$ 3,402,937 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Gas 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Customer Accounts 
Administrative and Generat 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) - BeFore 
Fixed Charges 

FIXED CHARGES 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) -After 
Fixed Charges 

Capital Credits 

NET OPERATING (DEFICIT) 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
Interest 

NET (DEFICIT) 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR 

$ 2,100,652 
309.874 
376,161 
283,581 
499,297 
137,095 
54,993 

$ 3,761,653 

$ (358,716) 

79,858 

$ (438,574) 

7,229 

$ (431,345) 

546 

$ (430,799) 

125,783 

$ (305,016) 

$ 2,658,038 
5,263 

936,481 
144,749 
21,520 

$ 3,766,051 

$ 2,390,790 
285.961 
285,370 
276,124 
394,362 
129.506 
29,948 

$ 3,800,061 

S (34.010) 

86,266 

$ (120,276) 

10,168 

s (110,108) 

1,733 

$ (108,375) 

234,158 

$ 125,783 

Schedule 2 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

$ 20,394 
3.193 
39,776 

(124,789) 
(301,688) 

$ (363,114) 

S (298,138) 
23,913 
90,791 
7,457 

104,935 
7,589 
25,045 

$ (38.408) 

$ (324,706) 

(6,408) 

$ (318,298) 

(2,939) 

$ (321.237) 

$ (322,424) 4 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

GAS OEPARTMENT 
Schedule 3 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 AND 2008 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTlVlTlES 
Net (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net (Deficit) to Net Cash 

Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Deferred Charges 
Over/( Under)billed Fuel Cost - Net 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments to - Water Oepartment 
Net Payments from - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Gas Utility Plant 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVlTlES 
Payments on Long-Term Debt - CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt - Graham County Electric Cooperative 
Memberships 

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Paid During the Year for: 

interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

September 30, 
2009 2008 

$ (430,799) 3 (108,375) 

137,095 
(9,229) 
3,467 

279,946 
35.674 
14,051 

(19,624) 

129,506 
(3,050) 
4.91 1 

(145,554) 
22,956 
9,018 

(1 60,862) 
28,688 

352,48 I 734.595 
$ 363,062 3 511,833 

3 (239,405) $ (403,886) 
10,481 6,812 

$ (228,924) I (397,074) 

$ (92,860) f (86,277) 
(41,728) (30,76 1 ) 

450 (51) 
$ (134,138) $ (125,089) 

0 $ (10,330) $ 

0 10,330 

$ O $  0 

$ 82,630 $ 92,006 
o s  0 s - 

1 

1 



UTILITY PLANT AT COST 
Water Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amortization 

-1 8- 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

WATER DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 4 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,2003 AND 2008 

ASSETS 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS AT COST OR 
STATED VALUE 

Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - General 
Accounts Receivable - Customers (Less allowance for 

Matenals and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

uncallectibles of $15,477 in 2009 and $14.61 1 in 2008) 

Total Current Assets 

DEFERREDCHARGES 

NET ASSETS 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins 

LONG-TERM DEBT 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 
AEPCO Notes Payable Less Current Maturities 
USDA Rural Development Notes Less Current Maturities 

CURRENT LIABIUTIES 
Current Matunbes of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electnc Cooperatwe 
Accrued Taxes 
Customers' Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilnies 

NET EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

September 30, 
2009 2008 

$ 3,277,087 $ 2,216,901 
1,185,518 201,507 

610,168 610,168 
$ 4,088,762 S 4,012,587 

1,778,312 
$ 2,164,693 $ 2,234,275 

1,924,069 

S 46,579 $ 44.517 

13.609 14,545 
62,895 51,158 
7,432 11,914 

$ 130.515 $--  . 122.134 

$ 2,500 $ 2.500 
144,067 229,758 

$ 146.567 $ 232,258 

S 378,001 $ 422,570 
3.667 25 667 

1.534:502 1,557,427 
8 13f6.170 9 2,005,664 

$ 72,200 
12,125 

236.928 
21,097 
8,405 
6.103 
4.004 

S 360,862 

$ 2,423,599 

$ 90,500 
54,940 
66.942 
19,684 
8,540 
2,250 

$ 242,856 

$ 2.480,77a 



r -  - - - 

I .. . .. . 

I 
I I 

I 

I 

-19- 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

WATER DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 5 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 AND 2008 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Residential 
Commercial and industrial 
Sales for Resale 
Other Operating Revenues 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Power - Pumping 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Customer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING MARGINS - Before 
Fixed Charges 

FIXE0  CHARGES 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) -After Fixed Charges 

Capital Credits 

NET OPERATING (DEFICIT) 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
Interest 

NET (DEFICIT) 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - BEGfNNlNG 
OF YEAR 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - END OF YEAR 

September 30, Increase 
2009 2008 (Decrease) 

$ 546,737 $ 520,702 $ 26,035 
50.027 48,371 1,656 
31,186 33,910 (2,724) 

3,820 3,970 (1 50) 
$ 631,770 $ 606,953 $ 24,817 

$ 40,037 $ 32,595 $ 7,442 
65,603 59,756 5,847 

163,465 155,816 7,649 
59,094 58,342 7 52 

131.443 101,478 29,965 
145,757 117,105 28,652 

14,040 5,820 8,220 
$ 619,439 $ 530,912 $ 88,527 

$ 12.331 $ 76.041 $ (63,710) 

100,806 108,791 (7,9851 

$ (88,475) 8 (32,750) $ (55,725) 

\ 2,722 3,974 (1,252) 

$ (85,753) $ (28,776) $ (56.977) 

62 3,700 (3,638) 

$ (85,691) $ (25,076) $ (60,615) 

229,758 254,834 

$ 144,067 S 229,758 

i 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

WATER DEPARTMENT 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2009 AND 2008 

Schedule 6 

IS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net (Deficit) to Net Cash 

Provided by Operating Activities 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Deferred Charges 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Advances from (to} - Gas Department 
Net Payments from (to) - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Plant 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt from USDA 
Payments on Note Payable to AEPCO 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to USDA 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 

INCREASE IN CASH 

CASH I BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

September 30, 
2009 2000 

$ (85,691) 

145,757 
(2,722) 
(7,817) 

936 
(7.255 1 

(33,680) 

169,906 
$ 179,514 

$ (76.175) 
6,517 

$ (69,656) 

$ 
(22,000) 
(64,469) 
(21,325) 

$ (107,794) 

$ 2,062 

44,517 

$ 46,579 

$ (25,076) 

1 1 7,105 
( 1,192) 
3,430 
7,485 
7,835 

17,174 
160,862 
109,291 

$ 396,914 

$ (512,839) 
7,550 

$ (505,289) 

$ 206,278 
(20,166) 
(59,831) 
(14,630) 

$ 111,651 

$ 3,276 

41,241 

$ 44,517 - 
$ 96.991 $ 108,785 
3 0 3  0 
- - 

A 
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Arizona C m  
Dnf- GARY PIERCE, Chairman 

PAUL NEWMAN 
SANDRA D. KENNEDY 
BOB STUMP 
BRENDA BURNS 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ) DOCKET NO. G-02527A-12-0321 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES GAS DIVISION ) 
INC. FOR A RATE INCREASE 1 

1 

Graham County Utilities, Inc. ("GCU") filed its rate case application in this docket on 

July 13,2012. Since that date, GCU has been working with Arizona Corporation Commission 

Staff to revise schedules per StafYs suggestions. A summary of each schedule and amendments 

is as follows: 

Schedule B-1 and B-2 have been amended to remove inconsistencies between these 

two schedules 

H-3 -this schedule was omitted from the application. 

H-2-1 - adjusted the column titles labeled "Gas" to label those columns "Energy" 

consistent with the column headings on H2- 1 b 

H-2- la  - adjusted the column titles labeled "Gas" to label those columns "Energy" 

consistent with the column headings on H2- 1 b 

H-5 page 1 of 3 - removed the entire line labeled "Median Annual Usage" from this 

schedule 
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0 H-5 page 2 of 3 - removed the entire line labeled "Median Annual Usage" from this 

schedule 

H-5 page 3 of 3 - removed the entire line labeled "Median Annual Usage" from this 

schedule 

0 

Also attached are the amended Rate Schedules that show the highlighted changes to the current 

Rate Schedules. These amended Rate Schedules and the other amended Schedules should 

replace the existing Schedules contained in the application. 

RESPECTFULLY S U B M F E D  this 1 Oth day of August, 20 12. 

John V. Wallace 
Grand Canyon State Electric Cooperative Assn., Inc. 
Consultant for Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

Original and thirteen ( I  3) copies filed 
this IOth day of August, 20 12, with: 

Docket Control 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 W. Washington 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 



AMENDED SCHEDULE B-1 
Page 1 of 1 
Date: August 10, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

SUMMARY OF ORIGINAL COST 

ORIGINAL COST 
RATE BASE 

DISTRIBUTION: 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET DlSJRlBUTlON PLANT 

4,387,077 
(2,129,775) 
2.257.302 

GENERAL & INTANGIBLE 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET GENERAL PLANT 

247,166 
( I  70,531) 

76,635 

TOTAL 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET TOTAL PLANT 

- PLUS: 
CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS 
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 
PREPAYMENTS - LESS: 
CONSUMER DEPOSITS 

4,634,243 
(2,300,306) 
2,333,937 

21 1,559 
79,032 
23,205 

66,645 
2,581,088 

RecaP : 
A- 1 



AMENDED SCHEDULE 6-2 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: August 10, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
ORIGINAL COST RATE BASE 
PROFORMA ADJUSTMENTS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

ACTUAL AT ADJUSTED 
END OF PROFORMA AT END OF 
TEST YEAR ADJUSTMENTS TEST YEAR 

( a )  j b )  
913011 1 9130111 913Ol1 I 

DISTRIBUTION: 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET PLANT 

GENERAL & INTANGIBLE 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET PLANT 

TOTAL 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET PLANT 

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS 
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 
PREPAYMENTS 

- PLUS: 

- LESS: 
CONSUMER DEPOSITS 

4,387,077 4,387,077 
(2,129,775) (2,129,775) 
2,257,302 2,257,302 

247,166 247,166 
(1 70,531 ) (1 70,53 1) 

76,635 76,635 

4,634,243 4,634,243 
(2,300,306) (2,300,306) 
2,333,937 2,333,937 

21 1,559 21 1,559 
79,032 79,032 
23,205 23,205 

66,645 66,645 
2,581,088 2,581,088 

SUPPORT SCHEDULES: 
( a )  E-5 

ReCaD : 
B- 1 



AMENDED SCHEDULE H-2-1 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: August 10, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
PRESENT RATES REVENUE CALCULATIONS ( a ) 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30.2011 

RATES: 
RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 

SALES DATA: 
RESIDENTIAL 
I RR I GAT1 0 N 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTAL 

RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTAL 

PROOF: 
RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 

RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 

SERVICE FUEL ADJUSTOR 
AVAILABILITY ENERGY 

PER MONTH 13.00 0.34500 0.43705 
PER MONTH 21.00 0.16000 0.43705 
PER MONTH 24.00 0.34100 0.43705 

AVERAGE # TOTAL 
THERMS OF CUSTOMERS BILLINGS 

1,960,668 4,826 57,912 
18,064 8 90 

a921778 265 3,181 
2,871,510 5,099 61,183 

SERVICE FUEL COST PRESENT 
PGA UNDERBILLED REVENUE 

748,994 676,430 856,911 101,620 2,383,955 
234 2. ago 7.895 936 11,955 

AVAILABILITY GAS - 
~ 

65,501 304,437 390,189 46,272 806,399 
1,254,995 148,828 3,202,310 814,729 983,758 

CUSTOMER SERVICE PARTIAL 
AVAILABILITY TOTAL BILLS AVAILABILITY EXTENDED BILLS 

56,180 1300 730,340 1,732 22,520 752,860 
77 21 .oo 1,617 13 273 1,890 

3,142 24 00 75,408 39 937 76,345 
59,399 807,365 1,784 23,730 831,095 

PARTIAL SERVICE PARTIAL 
BILLS AVAILABILITY EXTENDED BILLS AVAILABILITY __ NET 
I ,732 13.00 22,516 1,732 22,516 

13 21 .oo 273 13 273 
39 24.00 936 39 936 

1,784 23,725 1,784 23,725 



AMENDED SCHEDULE H-2-la 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: August 10, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
PROPOSED RATES REVENUE CALCULATIONS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

RATES: AVAILABILITY ENERGY 
RESIDENTIAL PER MONTH 16.25 0.34500 0.48888 
IRRIGATION PER MONTH 26.25 0.16000 0.48888 
COMMERCIAL PER MONTH 30.00 0.34100 0.48888 

SERVICE FUEL ADJUSTOR 

SALES DATA: 
RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTAL 

RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTAL 

AVERAGE # TOTAL 
THERMS OF CUSTOMERS BILLINGS 

1,960,668 4,826 57,912 

892,778 265 3,181 
2,871,510 5,099 61 ,I 83 

18,064 8 90 

SERVICE Proposed 
AVAILABILITY GAS - PGA REVENUE 

941,070 676,430 958,529 2,576,030 192,075 
2.363 2.890 8,831 14,084 2,128 

95,430 304,437 436,460 836,328 29,929 
1,038,863 983,758 1,403,821 3,426,442 224,132 

CUSTOMER SERVICE PARTIAL 
BILLS AVAILABILITY EXTENDED BILLS AVAILABILITY TOTAL PROOF: - 

RESIDENTIAL 56,180 16.25 912,925 1,732 28,150 941,075 
I RR IGATl ON 77 26 25 2,021 13 34 1 2,363 
COMMERCIAL 3,142 

59,399 
30.00 94,260 39 1,171 95,431 

1,009,206 1,784 29,663 1,038,869 

PARTIAL SERVICE PARTIAL 

RESIDENTIAL 1,732 16.25 28,145 1,732 28,145 
IRRIGATION 13 26 25 34 1 13 34 1 

BILLS AVAILABILITY EXTENDED BILLS AVAILABILITY - NET 

COMMERCIAL 39 30.00 1,170 39 1,170 (0) 
1,784 29,656 1,784 29,657 (0) 



SCHEDULE H-3 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: August 10,2012 

RATE 
SCHEDULE 

RESIDENTIAL 
A 

IRRIGATION 
I 

COMMERCIAL 
B 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. -GAS 
CHANGE IN REPRESENTATIVE RATE SCHEDULES 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

SERVICE CHARGES 
Establishment of Service - Regular Hours 
Establishment of Service - After Hours 
Reconnection of Service - Regular Hours 
Reconnection of Service - After Hours 
After Hours Service Calls - Consumer Caused 
Meter Reread Charge (No Charge for Read Error) 
Meter Test Fee 
Insufficient Funds Check 
Interest Rate on Customer Deposits 
Late Payment (Per Month & Per Total Bill) 

RATES RATES 
BLOCK PRESENT PROPOSED CHANGE ”/. 

m w 
ALL THERMS 0.34500 0.34500 
PGA 
SERVICE AVAIlABlLlTY 

ALL THERMS 
PGA 
SERViCE AVAILABILITY 

ALL THERMS 
PGA 
SERVICE AVAILABILITY 

0.43705 
13.00000 

0.16000 
0.43705 

21 .ooooo 

0.34100 
0.43705 

24.00000 

0.48888 
16 25000 

0 16000 
0.48888 

26.25000 

0.34100 
0.48888 

30.00000 

30.00 30.00 
50.00 50.00 
30.00 30.00 
50.00 50.00 
50.00 50.00 
10.00 10.00 
10.00 10.00 
25.00 25.00 
6% 6 %  

1.5 % 1.5% with $5 

0.00% 
0.05183 11.86% 
3.25000 25.00% 

0.00% 
0.05183 11.86% 
5.25000 25.00% 

0.00% 
0.05183 Z 1.86% 
6.00000 25.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

minimum 

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: 
( a ) TARIFF SCHEDULES EFFECTIVE 5-3-10 - DECISION NO. 71690 
( b ) H-3-1 PROPOSED TARIFF SCHEDULES 



AMENDE0 SCHEDULE H-5 
Page 1 of 3 

Date: August I O ,  2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

BILL COUNT 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

RESIDENTIAL 

THERM NUMBER THERMS 
RANGE OF BILLS BY BLOCK NUMBER % OF TOTAL THERMS % OF TOTAL 
0-1 0 15,774 90,347 15,774 27.24% 90,347 4.61% 
11-20 14,251 214,689 30,025 51.85% 305,036 15.56% 
21-30 7,966 197,190 37,991 65.60% 502,226 25.62% 
31-50 7,022 275,760 45,013 77.7 3% 777,986 39 68% 
51-100 9,111 651,524 54,124 93.46% 1,429,510 72.91% 
101 -1 50 2,840 338,252 56,964 98.36% 1,767,762 90.16% 
151-200 674 114,701 57,638 99.53% 1,882,463 96.01 % 

CUMULATIVE BILLS CUMULATIVE THERM USAGE 

OVER 200 274 78,205 57,912 100.00% 1,960,668 100.00% 
TOTAL 57,912 1,960,668 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 
AVERAGE THERMS USED PER YEAR 

4,826 
406 



BLOCK 

0-1 0 
11-20 
21-30 
31 -50 
51 -1 00 
101-150 
15 1-200 
OVER 200 

NUMBER 
OF BILLS 

38 
5 
1 
5 
7 
7 
4 

23 
90 

AMENDED SCHEDULE H-5 
Page 2 of 3 

Date: August 10,2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

BILL COUNT 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

IRRIGATION 

CUMULATIVE BILLS CUMULATIVE THERMS USAGE 
THERMS 
BY BLOCK NUMBER Yo OF TOTAL AMOUNT % OF TOTAL 

68 38 42.22% 68 0.38% 
70 43 47.78% 138 0.76% 
28 44 48.89% 166 0.92% 

176 49 54.44% 342 1.89% 
547 56 62.22% 889 4.92% 
901 63 70.00% 1,790 9.91% 
747 67 74.44% 2,537 14.04% 

15,527 90 100.00% 18,064 100.00% 
18,064 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 8 
AVERAGE THERMS USED PER YEAR 2,409 



BLOCK 

0-1 0 
11-50 
51 -1 00 
101-200 
20 1-300 
301 -500 
OVER 500 

AMENDED SCHEDULE H-5 
Page 3 of 3 

Date: August 10, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

BILL COUNT 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

COMMERCIAL 

CUMULATIVE BILLS CUMULATIVE THERMS USAGE 
NUMBER THERMS 
OF BILLS BY BLOCK NUMBER % OF TOTAL AMOUNT % OF TOTAL 

1,242 3,246 1,242 39.04% 3,246 0.36% 
681 17,609 1,923 60.45% 20,855 2.34% 
332 24,233 2,255 70.89% 45,088 5.05% 

152 37,554 2,683 84.34% 122,128 13.68% 
199 78,414 2,882 90.60% 200,542 22.46% 

276 39,486 2,531 79.57% 84,574 9.47% 

299 692,238 3,181 100.00% 892,780 
3.181 892.780 

100.00% 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 265 
AVERAGE THERMS USED PER YEAR 3,368 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

AMENDED RATE SCHEDULE GA - RESIDENTIAL GAS SERVICE 

I. Availabilitv 

Available to all residential customers within the utility’s certificated service area 
where facilities of adequate capacity and pressure are adjacent to the point of delivery. 

11. ApDlicability 

Applicable to all gas service supplied through one point of delivery and measured 
through one meter. Not applicable to temporary, standby, supplementary or resale 
service. 

111. Distribution Rates 

The monthly service availability charge and per therm gas delivery charge are set 
forth in the currently effective Statement of Rates of this Tariff and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

IV. Purchased Gas Adiustor 

The rates specified for this schedule are subject to increases or decreases in the cost of 
gas purchased in accordance with those provisions set forth in the “Rate Schedule PGA - 
Purchased Gas Adjustor.” 

V. Tax Adjustments and Regulatory Assessments 

Total monthly sales for gas service are subject to adjustment for all federal, state and 
local governmental taxes or levies on such sales and any assessments that are or may be 
imposed by federal or state regulatory agencies on gas utility gross revenues. 

VI. Conditions of Service 

The terms and conditions for the provision of service to the customer under this rate 
schedule are subject to the Rules and Regulations of the utility, as approved and modified 
fiom time to time by the ACC. 

VII. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or after XXXXXXX as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. XXXXX dated XXXXXXX. 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

AMENDED RATE SCHEDULE GB - COMMERCIAL GAS SERVICE 

I. Availability 

Available to all commercial customers within the utility‘s certificated service area 
where facilities of adequate capacity and pressure are adjacent to the point of delivery. 

11. Applicability 

Applicable to all gas service supplied through one point of delivery and measured 
through one meter. Not applicable to temporary, standby, supplementary or resale 
service. 

111. Distribution Rates 

The monthly service availability charge and per therm gas delivery charge are set 
forth in the currently effective Statement of Rates of this Tariff and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

IV. Purchased Gas Adjustor 

The rates specified for this schedule are subject to increases or decreases in the cost of 
gas purchased in accordance with those provisions set forth in the “Rate Schedule PGA - 
Purchased Gas Adjustor.” 

V. Tax Adiustments and Regulatorv Assessments 

Total monthly sales for gas service are subject to adjustment for all federal, state and 
local governmental taxes or levies on such sales and any assessments that are or may be 
imposed by federal or state regulatory agencies on gas utility gross revenues. 

VI. Conditions of Service 

The terms and conditions for the provision of service to the customer under this rate 
schedule are subject to the Rules and Regulations of the utility, as approved and modified 
from time to time by the ACC. 

VII. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or after XXXXXXX as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. XXXXX dated XXXXXXX. 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

AMENDED RATE SCHEDULE GI - IRRIGATION GAS SERVICE 

I. Availability 

Available to all irrigation customers within the utility’s certificated service area where 
facilities of adequate capacity and pressure are adjacent to the point of delivery. 

11. Applicability 

Applicable to all gas service supplied through one point of delivery and measured 
through one meter. Not applicable to temporary, standby, supplementary or resale 
service. 

111. Distribution Rates 

The monthly service availability charge and per therm gas delivery charge are set 
forth in the currently effective Statement of Rates of this Tariff and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

IV. Purchased Gas Adiustor 

The rates specified for this schedule are subject to increases or decreases in the cost of 
gas purchased in accordance with those provisions set forth in the ”Rate Schedule PGA - 
Purchased Gas Adjustor.” 

V. Tax Adiustments and Regulatory Assessments 

Total monthly sales for gas service are subject to adjustment for all federal, state and 
local governmental taxes or levies on such sales and any assessments that are or may be 
imposed by federal or state regulatory agencies on gas utility gross revenues. 

VI. Conditions of Service 

The terms and conditions for the provision of service to the customer under this rate 
schedule are subject to the Rules and Regulations of the utility, as approved and modified 
from time to time by the ACC. 

VU. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or aRer XXXXXXX as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. XXXXX dated XXXXXXX. 



, 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITES, INC. - GAS DIVISION 

AMENDED RATE SCHEDULE PGA - PURCHASED GAS ADJUSTOR 

I. Applicability 

Applicable to all therm sales of gas provided to all customers within the Utility’s 
certificated service area. 

11. Gas Adiustment Procedure 

The Purchased Gas Adjustor (‘.PGA”) rate will be increased or decreased on a 
monthly basis to compensate for the difference between the actual cost of natural gas and 
the amount the Utility recovers for its cost of natural gas. The PGA rate is based on a 
rolling twelve month average cost, limited by a $0.15 per therm annual bandwidth. The 
PGA rate cannot vary by more than $0.15 per therm from any rate in place during the 
previous twelve months as authorized by the ACC in Decision No. 7 1690 dated May 3, 
2010. 

111. PGA Bank Balance 

The Utility shall establish and maintain a PGA Bank Balance (PGABB). Entries shall 
be made to this account each month, if appropriate, as follows: 

1. A debit or credit entry equal to the difference between (a) the actual purchased 
gas cost for the month and (b) the amount determined by multiplying the 
Purchased Gas Adjustor Rate as set forth on the Statement of Charges in this 
Tariff by the therms billed during the month under the applicable rate 
schedules of this Tariff. 

2. A debit or credit entry for refbnds or payments authorized by the ACC. 

3. A debit or credit entry for interest to be applied to over- and under-collected 
bank balances based on the Three Month Financial Commercial Paper Rate as 
published by the Federal Reserve as authorized by the ACC in Decision No. 
68600 dated March 23, 2006. 

IV. Monthly Informational Filings 

Each month the Utility shall make a cost of gas informational filing with 
Commission Staff to include any and all information required by Decision No. 6 1225 
dated October 30, 1998. 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITES, INC. - GAS DIVISION 

AMENDED RATE SCHEDULE PGA - PURCHASED GAS ADJUSTOR 
(Continued) 

V. Additional Requirements 

A special review is required if the PGABB reaches an over- or under-collection in 
the amount of $250,000 for three consecutive months as authorized by the ACC in 
Decision No. 71690 dated May 3,2010. The Utility must file an application for a 
PGABB surcharge adjustment upon completing the Monthly Informational Filing that 
illustrates the threshold has been exceeded or file a notice in the docket explaining why 
an adjustment is not necessary at this time. The ACC, upon review, may authorize the 
balance to be amortized through a predetermined surcharge rate included as part of the 
PGA for a specified period. 

VI. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or after XXXXXXX as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. XXXXX dated XXXXXXX. 

The description and word changes to the gas rate sckch.de farifls can b 
the following four categories: 

a Insert the word “availability” in the mo 

change is to better describe 

Change description 

Mkcellaaeous Notic 

corrected some of the 

Decision No 71690. 

http://sckch.de


GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITES, INC. - GAS DIVISION 

AMENDED RATES AND CHARGES FOR OTHER SERVICES 

(Current) (Proposed)* 

I. Description of Service - Rate 

Establishment of Service - Regular Hours $30.00 $30.00 

Establishment of Service - After Hours $50.00 $50.00 

Reconnection of Service - Regular Hours $30.00 $30.00 

Reconnection of Service - After Hours $50.00 $50.00 

Meter Reread Charge (No Charge for Read Error) $10.00 $10.00 

Meter Test Fee $10.00 $10.00 

insufficient Funds Check $25 .OO $25 .OO 

interest Rate on Customer Deposits 6.00% 6.00% 

Late Payment (Per Month & Per Total Bill) 1.50% 1 .so% 

11. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or after XXXXXXX as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. XxxXX dated XXXXXXX. 

*GCU has requested no changes 80 
SERVlCES ” tart&? 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITES, INC. 
AMENDED STATEMENT OF GAS RATES* 

(Current) (Proposed) 
Distribution Distribution 

Description Rate Rate 

Rate Schedule GA - Residential Gas Service 
Monthly Service Availability Charge $13.00 
Del ivej  Charge - Per The& for a1 gas $0.34500 $0.34500 

$16.25 

Rate Schedule GB - Commercial Gas Service 
Monthly Service Availability Charge $24.00 $30.00 
Delivery Charge - Per Therm for all gas $0.34 100 $0.34 100 

Rate Schedule GI - Irrigation Gas Service 
Monthly Service Availability Charge $2 1 .oo $26.25 
Delivery Charge - Per Therm for all gas $0.16000 $0.16000 

* The above rates do not reflect the Purchased Gas Adjustor (PGA) that is subject to 
adjustment as described in Schedule PGA - Purchased Gas Adjustor. All Charges are 
subject to adjustment for any applicable taxes or regulatory assessments. 

Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all service on or after XXXXXXX, as authorized by the 
ACC in Decision No. XXXXX dated XXXXXXX. 
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RWWW7 BEFORE THE ARIZ 

COMMISSIONERS k ' S  I O  A 11: 4 7  

GARY PIERCE, Chairman 
PAUL NEWMAN 
SANDRA D. KENNEDY 
BOB STUMP 
BRENDA BURNS 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES GAS DIVISION ) 
INC. FOR A RATE INCREASE 

) DOCKET NO. G-02527A-12-0321 

1 
1 

Graham County Utilities, Inc. ("GCU") filed its rate case application in this docket on 

July 13,2012. Since that date, GCU has been working with Arizona Corporation Commission 

Staff to revise schedules per StafYs suggestions. A summary of each schedule and amendments 

is as follows: 

Schedule B-1 and B-2 have been amended to remove inconsistencies between these 

two schedules 

H-3 -this schedule was omitted from the application. 

H-2- 1 - adjusted the column titles labeled "Gas" to label those columns "Energy" 

consistent with the column headings on H2-lb 

H-2-la - adjusted the column titles labeled ''Gas" to label those columns "Energy" 

consistent with the column headings on H2- 1 b 

H-5 page 1 of 3 - removed the entire line labeled "Median Annual Usage" from this 

schedule 
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0 H-5 page 2 of 3 - removed the entire line labeled "Median Annual Usage" from this 

schedule 

H-5 page 3 of 3 - removed the entire line labeled "Median Annual Usage" from this 

schedule 

0 

Also attached are the amended Rate Schedules that show the highlighted changes to the current 

Rate Schedules. These amended Rate Schedules and the other amended Schedules should 

replace the existing Schedules contained in the application. 

RESPECTFULLY S U B M F E D  this 1 O* day of August, 20 12. 

John V. Wallace 
Grand Canyon State Electric Cooperative Assn., Inc. 
Consultant for Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

Original and thirteen (1 3) copies filed 
this IO* day of August, 20 12, with: 

Docket Control 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 W. Washington 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 



AMENDED SCHEDULE 6-1 
Page 1 of 1 
Date: August 10, 2012 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

SUMMARY OF ORIGINAL COST 

ORIGINAL COST 
RATE BASE 

DISTRIBUTION: 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET DISTRIBUTION PLANT 
GENERAL 8 INTANGIBLE 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
NET GENERAL PLANT 

TOTAL 
GROSS PLANT 
ACCUMULATED D EP RECIATI 0 N 
NET TOTAL PLANT 

PLUS: 
CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS 
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 
PREPAYMENTS - LESS: 
CONSUMER DEPOSITS 

4,387,077 
(2,129,775) 
2,257,302 

247,166 
(1 70,531) 
76,635 

4,634,243 
(2,300,306) 
2,333,937 

21 1,559 
79,032 
23,205 

66,645 
2,581,088 

Recap : 
A- 1 



AMENDED SCHEDULE B-2 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: August 10, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
ORIGINAL COST RATE BASE 
PROFORMA ADJUSTMENTS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

ACTUAL AT ADJUSTED 
END OF PROFORMA AT END OF 
TEST YEAR ADJUSTMENTS TEST YEAR 

( a )  j b )  
913011 1 9/30111 913Oll1 

DISTRIBUTION : 
GROSS PLANT 4,387,077 4,387,077 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (2,129,775) (2,129,775) 
NET PLANT 2,257,302 - 2,257,302 

GENERAL a INTANGIBLE 
GROSS PLANT 247,166 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (1 70,531 ) 
NET PLANT 76,635 

TOTAL 
GROSS PLANT 4,634,243 
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (2,300,306) 
NET PLANT 2,333,937 
PLUS: 
CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS 21 1,559 
MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 79,032 
PREPAYMENTS 23,205 

- 

LESS: 
CONSUMER DEPOSITS 66,645 

2,581,088 

247,166 
(170,531) 

76,635 

4,634,243 
(2,300,306) 
2,333,937 

21 1,559 
79,032 
23,205 

66,645 
2,581,088 

SUPPORT SCHEDULES: 
( a )  E-5 

ReCaD : 
B-I 



AMENDED SCHEDULE H-2-1 
Page 1 of I 

Date: August 10, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
PRESENT RATES REVENUE CALCULATIONS ( a ) 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

RATES: 

RESIDENTIAL 
I R RIG AT1 ON 
COMMERCIAL 

SALES DATA: 
RESIDENTIAL 
I RR I GAT1 0 N 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTAL 

RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTAL 

PROOF: 
RESIDENTIAL 
IRRIGATION 
COMMERCIAL 

RESIDENTIAL 
I RRI GAT1 ON 
COMMERCIAL 

SERVICE FUEL ADJUSTOR 
AVAILABILITY ENERGY 

PER MONTH 13.00 0.34500 0.43705 
PER MONTH 21.00 0.16000 0.43705 
PER MONTH 24.00 0.34100 0.43705 

AVERAGE # TOTAL 
THERMS OF CUSTOMERS BILLINGS 

1,960,668 4,826 57,912 
18,064 8 90 

892,778 265 3,181 
2,871 ,51 0 5,099 61,183 

SERVICE FUEL COST PRESENT 
AVAILABILITY GAS - PGA UNDERBILLED REVENUE 

748,994 676,430 856,911 101,620 2,383,955 
234 2,890 7,895 936 11,955 

65,501 304,4 37 390,189 46,272 806,399 
814,729 983,758 1,254,995 148,828 3,202,310 

CUSTOMER SERVICE PARTIAL 
BILLS AVAILABILITY EXTENDED BILLS AVAILABILITY TOTAL 

56,180 13.00 730,340 1,732 22,520 752,860 
77 21 .oo 1,617 13 273 1,890 

3,142 
59,399 

24.00 75,408 39 937 76,345 
807,365 1,784 23,730 831,095 

PARTIAL SERVICE PARTIAL 
BILLS AVAILABILITY EXTENDED BILLS AVAILABILITY - NET 

1,732 13.00 22,516 1,732 22,516 
13 21 .oo 273 13 273 
39 24.00 936 39 936 

1,784 23,725 1,784 23,725 



AMENDED SCHEDULE H-2-la 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: August IO, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
PROPOSED RATES REVENUE CALCULATIONS 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

S ERVl C E 
RATES: AVAILABILITY ENERGY 
RESIDENTIAL PER MONTH 16.25 0.34500 0.48888 
IRRIGATION PER MONTH 26.25 0.16000 0.48888 

FUEL ADJUSTOR 

COMMERCIAL PER MONTH 30.00 0.34100 0.48888 

SALES DATA: 
RESIDENTIAL 
I R R I GAT1 0 N 
COMMERCIAL 
TOTAL 

AVERAGE # TOTAL 
THERMS OF CUSTOMERS BILLINGS 

1,960,668 4,826 57,912 
18,064 8 90 

892,778 265 3,181 
2,871,510 5,099 61,183 

SERVICE Proposed 
PGA REVENUE AVAILABILITY GAS - 

RESIDENTIAL 941,070 676,430 958,529 2,576,030 192,075 
IRRIGATION 2,363 2,890 8,831 14,084 2,128 
COMMERCIAL 95,430 304,437 436,460 836,328 29,929 
TOTAL 1,038,863 983,758 1,403,821 3,426,442 224,132 

CUSTOMER SERVICE PARTIAL 
BILLS AVAILABILITY EXTENDED BILLS AVAILABILITY TOTAL PROOF: - 

RESIDENTIAL 56,180 16.25 912,925 1,732 28,150 941,075 
IRRIGATION 77 26.25 2,021 13 34 1 2,363 
COMMERCIAL 3,142 

59,399 
30.00 94,260 39 1,171 95,431 

1,009,206 1,784 29,663 1,038,869 

PARTIAL SERVICE PARTIAL 

RESIDENTIAL 1,732 16 25 28,145 1,732 28,145 
1 RRI GATlON 13 26 25 34 1 13 34 1 

BILLS AVAILABILITY EXTENDED BILLS AVAILABILITY - NET 

COMMERCIAL 39 
1,784 

30.00 1,170 39 1,170 (0) 
29,656 1,784 29,657 (0) 



SCHEDULE H-3 
Page 1 of 1 

Date: August 10,2012 

RATE 
SCHEDULE 

RESIDENTIAL 
A 

GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 
CHANGE IN REPRESENTATIVE RATE SCHEDULES 

TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 

RATES RATES 
BLOCK PRESENT PROPOSED CHANGE 

IRRIGATION 
I 

CoMMERClAL 
B 

SERVICE CHARGES 
Establishment of Service - Regular Hours 
Establishment of Service - After Hours 
Reconnection of Service - Regular Hours 
Reconnection of Service - After Hours 
After Hours Service Calls - Consumer Caused 
Meter Reread Charge (No Charge for Read Error) 
Meter Test Fee 
Insufficient Funds Check 
Interest Rate on Customer Deposits 

ALL THERMS 
PGA 
SERVICE AVAILABILITY 

ALL THERMS 
PGA 
SERVICE AVAILABILITY 

ALL THERMS 
PGA 
SERVICE AVAILABILITY 

la) 

0.34500 
0.43705 

13.00000 

0.16000 
0.43705 

21 .ooooo 

0,34100 
0.43705 

24.00000 

30.00 
50.00 
30.00 
50.00 
50.00 
10.00 
10.00 
25.00 

6 %  

w 
0.34500 
0.48888 

16 25000 

0 16000 
0 48888 

26.25000 

0.34100 
0.48888 

30.00000 

30.00 
50.00 
30 00 
50.00 
50.00 
10.00 
10.00 
25.00 

6 %  

0.05183 
3.25000 

0 05183 
5.25000 

0.05183 
6.00000 

Late Payment (Per Month & Per Total Bill) 1.5 YO 1.5% with $5 minimum 

- % 

0.00% 
11.86% 
25.00% 

0.00% 
11 -86% 
25.00% 

0.00% 
11.86% 
25.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0 00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0 00% 
0.00% 

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES: 
( a ) TARIFF SCHEDULES EFFECTIVE 5-3-10 - DECISION NO. 71690 
( b ) H-3-1 PROPOSED TARIFF SCHEDULES 



AMENDED SCHEDULE H-5 
Page 1 of 3 

Date: August I O ,  2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

TEST FISCAL 

RESIDENTIAL 

THERM NUMBER THERMS 
RANGE OF BILLS BY BLOCK 
0-1 0 15,774 90,347 
11-20 14,251 214,689 
21 -30 7,966 1 97,190 
31-50 7,022 275,760 
51 -1 00 9,111 651,524 
101 -1 50 2,840 338,252 
151 -200 674 114,701 

BILL COUNT 
YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

CUMULATIVE BILLS CUMULATIVE THERM USAGE 

NUMBER % OF TOTAL THERMS % OF TOTAL 
15,774 27.24% 90,347 4.61% 
30,025 51.85% 305,036 15.56% 
37,991 65.60% 502,226 25.62% 
45,013 77.73% 777,986 39.68% 
54,124 93.46% 1,429,510 72.91 % 
56,964 98.36% 1,767,762 90.16% 
57,638 99.53% 1,882,463 96.01% 

OVER 200 274 78,205 57,912 100.00% 1,960,668 100 00% 
TOTAL 57,912 1,960,668 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 
AVERAGE THERMS USED PER YEAR 

4,826 
406 



BLOCK 

0-1 0 
11-20 
21-30 
31-50 
51 -1 00 
101-1 50 
151-200 
OVER 200 

AMENDED SCHEDULE H-5 
Page 2 of 3 

Date: August 10,2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

BILL COUNT 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

IRRIGATION 

CUMULATIVE BILLS CUMULATIVE THERMS USAGE 
NUMBER THERMS 
OF BILLS BY BLOCK NUMBER % OF TOTAL AMOUNT % OF TOTAL 

5 70 43 47.78% 138 0.76% 
1 28 44 48.89% 166 0.92% 
5 176 49 54.44% 342 1.89% 
7 547 56 62.22% 889 4.92% 
7 90 1 63 70.00% 1,790 9.91 % 
4 747 67 74.44% 2,537 14.04% 

23 15,527 90 100.00% 18,064 100.00% 
90 18,064 

38 68 38 42.22% 68 0.38% 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 
AVERAGE THERMS USED PER YEAR 

8 
2,409 



BLOCK 

0-1 0 
11-50 
51-100 
101 -200 
201-300 
301 -500 
OVER 500 

AMENDED SCHEDULE H-5 
Page 3 of 3 

Date: August 10, 2012 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. - GAS 

BILL COUNT 
TEST FISCAL YEAR SEPTEMBER 30,2011 

COMMERCIAL 

CUMULATIVE BILLS CUMULATIVE THERMS USAGE 
NUMBER THERMS 
OF BILLS BY BLOCK NUMBER % OF TOTAL AMOUNT % OF TOTAL 

1,242 3,246 1,242 39.04% 3,246 0.36% 
681 17,609 1,923 60.45% 20,855 2.34% 
332 24,233 2,255 70.89% 45,088 5.05% 

152 37,554 2,683 84.34% 122,128 13.68% 
199 78,414 2,882 90.60% 200,542 22.46% 

276 39,486 2,531 79.57% 84,574 9.47% 

299 692,238 3,181 100.00% 892,780 100.00% 
3,181 892,780 

AVERAGE NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS 265 
AVERAGE THERMS USED PER YEAR 3,368 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

AMENDED RATE SCHEDULE GA - RESIDENTIAL GAS SERVICE 

I. Availability 

Available to all residential customers within the utility’s certificated service area 
where facilities of adequate capacity and pressure are adjacent to the point of delivery. 

11. Applicability 

Applicable to all gas service supplied through one point of delivery and measured 
through one meter. Not applicable to temporary, standby, supplementary or resale 
service. 

111. Distribution Rates 

The monthly service availability charge and per therm gas delivery charge are set 
forth in the currently effective Statement of Rates of this Tariff and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

IV. Purchased Gas Adiustor 

The rates specified for this schedule are subject to increases or decreases in the cost of 
gas purchased in accordance with those provisions set forth in the “Rate Schedule PGA - 
Purchased Gas Adjustor.” 

V. Tax Adjustments and Regulatory Assessments 

Total monthly sales for gas service are subject to adjustment for all federal, state and 
local governmental taxes or levies on such sales and any assessments that are or may be 
imposed by federal or state regulatory agencies on gas utility gross revenues. 

VI. Conditions of Service 

The terms and conditions for the provision of service to the customer under this rate 
schedule are subject to the Rules and Regulations of the utility, as approved and modified 
from time to time by the ACC. 

VII. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or after XXXXXXX as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. XXXXX dated XXXXXXX. 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

AMENDED RATE SCHEDULE GB - COMMERCIAL GAS SERVICE 

I. Availability 

Available to all commercial customers within the utility’s certificated service area 
where facilities of adequate capacity and pressure are adjacent to the point of delivery. 

11. Applicability 

Applicable to all gas service supplied through one point of delivery and measured 
through one meter. Not applicable to temporary, standby, supplementary or resale 
service . 

111. Distribution Rates 

The monthly service availability charge and per therm gas delivery charge are set 
forth in the currently effective Statement of Rates of this Tariff and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

IV. Purchased Gas Adiustor 

The rates specified for this schedule are subject to increases or decreases in the cost of 
gas purchased in accordance with those provisions set forth in the “Rate Schedule PGA - 
Purchased Gas Adjustor.” 

V. Tax Adiustments and Regulatory Assessments 

Total monthly sales for gas service are subject to adjustment for all federal, state and 
local governmental taxes or levies on such sales and any assessments that are or may be 
imposed by federal or state regulatory agencies on gas utility gross revenues. 

VI. Conditions of Service 

The terms and conditions for the provision of service to the customer under this rate 
schedule are subject to the Rules and Regulations of the utility, as approved and modified 
from time to time by the ACC. 

VII. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or after XXXXXXX as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. XXXXX dated XXXXXXX. 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

AMENDED RATE SCHEDULE GI - IRRIGATION GAS SERVICE 

I. Availability 

Available to all irrigation customers within the utility's certificated service area where 
facilities of adequate capacity and pressure are adjacent to the point of delivery. 

11. Applicability 

Applicable to all gas service supplied through one point of delivery and measured 
through one meter. Not applicable to temporary, standby, supplementary or resale 
service. 

111. Distribution Rates 

The monthly service availability charge and per therm gas delivery charge are set 
forth in the currently effective Statement of Rates of this Tariff and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

IV. Purchased Gas Adiustor 

The rates specified for this schedule are subject to increases or decreases in the cost of 
gas purchased in accordance with those provisions set forth in the "Rate Schedule PGA - 
Purchased Gas Adjustor." 

V. Tax Adiustments and Regulatory Assessments 

Total monthly sales for gas service are subject to adjustment for all federal, state and 
local governmental taxes or levies on such sales and any assessments that are or may be 
imposed by federal or state regulatory agencies on gas utility gross revenues. 

VI. Conditions of Service 

The terms and conditions for the provision of service to the customer under this rate 
schedule are subject to the Rules and Regulations of the utility, as approved and modified 
from time to time by the ACC. 

VII. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or aRer XXXXXXX as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. XXXXX dated XXXXXXX. 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITES, INC. - GAS DIVISION 

AMENDED RATE SCHEDULE PGA - PURCHASED GAS ADJUSTOR 

I. Applicability 

Applicable to all therm sales of gas provided to all customers within the Utility’s 
certificated service area. 

11. Gas Adjustment Procedure 

The Purchased Gas Adjustor (“PGA”) rate will be increased or decreased on a 
monthly basis to compensate for the difference between the actual cost of natural gas and 
the amount the Utility recovers for its cost of natural gas. The PGA rate is based on a 
rolling twelve month average cost, limited by a $0.15 per therm annual bandwidth. The 
PGA rate cannot vary by more than $0.15 per therm from any rate in place during the 
previous twelve months as authorized by the ACC in Decision No. 7 1690 dated May 3, 
2010. 

111. PGA Bank Balance 

The Utility shall establish and maintain a PGA Bank Balance (PGABB). Entries shall 
be made to this account each month, if appropriate, as follows: 

1. A debit or credit entry equal to the difference between (a) the actual purchased 
gas cost for the month and (b) the amount determined by multiplying the 
Purchased Gas Adjustor Rate as set forth on the Statement of Charges in this 
Tariff by the therms billed during the month under the applicable rate 
schedules of this Tariff. 

2. A debit or credit entry for refunds or payments authorized by the ACC. 

3. A debit or credit entry for interest to be applied to over- and under-collected 
bank balances based on the Three Month Financial Commercial Paper Rate as 
published by the Federal Reserve as authorized by the ACC in Decision No. 
68600 dated March 23,2006. 

IV. Monthly Informational Filings 

Each month the Utility shall make a cost of gas informational filing with 
Commission Staff to include any and all information required by Decision No. 6 1225 
dated October 30, 1998. 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITES, INC. - GAS DIVISION 

AMENDED RATE SCHEDULE PGA - PURCHASED GAS ADJUSTOR 
(Continued) 

V. Additional Reauirements 

A special review is required if the PGABB reaches an over- or under-collection in 
the amount of $250,000 for three consecutive months as authorized by the ACC in 
Decision No. 71690 dated May 3,2010. The Utility must file an application for a 
PGABB surcharge adjustment upon completing the Monthly Informational Filing that 
illustrates the threshold has been exceeded or file a notice in the docket explaining why 
an adjustment is not necessary at this time. The ACC, upon review, may authorize the 
balance to be amortized through a predetermined surcharge rate included as part of the 
PGA for a specified period. 

VI. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or after XXXXXXX as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. XXXXX dated XXXXXXX. 

the following four categories: 

III Distribution Ratesfor 
change is to better descrr 

to make the t a r i ~ u n i f m  a 
Decision No 71690. 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITES, INC. - GAS DIVISION 

AMENDED RATES AND CHARGES FOR OTHER SERVICES 

(Cur rent) (Proposed) * 
I. Description of Service - Rate 

Establishment of Service - Regular Hours $30.00 $30.00 

Establishment of Service - After Hours $50.00 $50.00 

Reconnection of Service - Regular Hours $30.00 $30.00 

Reconnection of Service - After Hours $50.00 $50.00 

Meter Reread Charge (No Charge for Read Error) $10.00 $10.00 

Meter Test Fee $10.00 $10.00 

Insufficient Funds Check $25.00 $25.00 

Interest Rate on Customer Deposits 6.00% 6.00% 

Late Payment (Per Month & Per Total Bill) 1.50% 1.50% 

11. Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all billings on or after XXXXXXX as authorized by 
the ACC in Decision No. XXXXX dated XXXXXXX. 

*GCU has requested no changes €0 
SER VicEs” tar@ 



GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITES, INC. 
AMENDED STATEMENT OF GAS RATES* 

(Current) (Proposed) 
Distribution Distribution 

Description Rate Rate 

Rate Schedule GA - Residential Gas Service 
Monthly Service Availability Charge $13.00 $16.25 
Delivery Charge - Per Therm for all gas $0.34500 $0.34500 

Rate Schedule GB - Commercial Gas Service 
Monthly Service Availability Charge 
Delivery Charge - Per Therm for all gas $0.34 100 $0.34 100 

$24.00 $30.00 

Rate Schedule GI - Irrigation Gas Service 
Monthly Service Availability Charge $2 1 .oo $26.25 
Delivery Charge - Per Therm for all gas $0.16000 $0.16000 

* ‘The above rates do not reflect the Purchased Gas Adjustor (PGA) that is subject to 
adjustment as described in Schedule PGA - Purchased Gas Adjustor. All Charges are 
subject to adjustment for any applicable taxes or regulatory assessments. 

Effective Date 

This rate schedule is effective for all service on or after XXXXXXX, as authorized by the 
ACC in Decision No. XXXXX dated XXXXXXX. 
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28 GCU agrees and stipulates to all of the recommendations in the direct testimony of Staff 

Rebuttal Testimony of John V. Wallace 
Docket No. G-02527A-12-0321 
Page 1 

I. 

Q- 
A. 

Q- 
A. 

Q- 
A. 

Q. 
A. 

11. 

Q- 
A. 

INTRODUCTION 

Please state your name address and occupation. 

My name is John V. Wallace. I am the Director of Regulatory and Strategic Services of 

Grand Canyon State Electric Cooperative Association (“GCSECA”). I am filing rebuttal 

testimony on behalf of Graham County Utilities, Inc. (“GCU” or “Cooperative”). 

Are you the same John V. Wallace that filed direct testimony in this case? 

Yes, I am. 

Was this testimony prepared by you or under your direction? 

Yes, it was. 

What areas does your testimony address? 

My testimony addresses four primary areas of the Staff Witnesses’ direct testimony: 

revenue requirements, cost of service and class revenue allocations, rate design. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMENDATIONS 

Please summarize your recommendations. 

GCU agrees and stipulates to all of the recommendations in Staff Witness Brian K. 

Bozzo’s direct testimony. 

Regarding Mr. Bozzo’s recommendations on GCU’s proposed Line of Credit (“LOC”), 

GCU will commit to use the proposed LOC only when GCU experiences a cash shortfall 

and repay such LOC balances within a 12-month period. If GCU is approaching the 

$500,000 LOC limit and cannot repay this LOC within a 12-month period, GCU will file 

a notice with Staff of such along with the reasons the LOC has been used and provide 

information on how this LOC will be repaid (i.e. by filing a financing andor rate case). 
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Rebuttal Testimony of John V. Wallace 
Docket No. G-02527A- 12-032 1 
Page 2 

Witnesses Ranelle Paladino, Alan Borne and Prem Bahl. 

GCU agrees and stipulates to all of the recommendations in Mr. Gray’s direct testimony. 

Specifically, GCU stipulates to Mr. Gray’s residential rate design proposal that has a 

customer monthly minimum of $15 and $0.378 for all therms used. 

In its next rate case, GCU will agree to file an inclining block rate design for its 

residential customer class as one of its rate design proposals. GCU will agree to do so 

with the understanding that GCU will not be ineligible to file a rate case under the R14-2- 

107 rules. 

111. 

Q- 
A. 

Q. 

A. 

REVENUE REQUIREMENTS 

Please comment on the Staff Witness Brian K. Bozzo’s testimony. 

GCU agrees and stipulates to all of the recommendations in Mr. Bozzo’s direct 

testimony. 

Has GCU filed an application for financing as discussed in Mr. Bozzo’s testimony 

beginning on page 12, line 19? 

Yes. On February 7,2013, GCU filed an Application (“Finance Application”) for 

authorization to borrow $1,000,000 from the Graham County Electric Cooperative 

(“GCEC”) to finance prior construction of plant in accordance with GCU’s construction 

work plan and establish a $500,000 line of credit with GCEC to address future capital 

needs (Docket No. G-02527A-13-0023). In its Finance Application, GCU requested that 

the Finance Application be consolidated with this pending rate case (Docket N0.G- 

02527A -12-0321). Due to GCU’s poor financial condition, GCU fkrther requested that 

the Finance Application be processed concurrently with the rate case application and not 

delay the rate case application time clock. 
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Q. Please respond to GCU‘s appropriate use of Line of Credit C’LOC’’) as discussed in Mr. 

Bozzo’s testimony beginning on page 15, line 20? 

Concerning Mr. Bozzo testimony regarding GCU’s commitment to the appropriate use of 

its proposed $500,000 a LOC, GCU has the following comments. GCEC manages the 

operations of GCU’s Gas and Water Divisions pursuant to an operations and management 

agreement. GCEC and GCU Gas and Water are operated as separate and distinct entities 

from each other. This being said, GCEC has to advance h d s  to GCU when necessary 

otherwise necessary financial commitments and plant additions could not be completed. 

GCU will commit to use the proposed LOC only when GCU experiences a cash shortfall 

and repay such LOC balances within a 12-month period. If GCU is approaching the 

$500,000 limit and cannot repay this LOC within a 12-month period, GCU will file a 

notice with Staff of such along with the reasons the LOC has been used and provide 

information on how this LOC will be repaid (Le. by filing a financing andor rate case). 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Please comment on the Staff Witness Ranelle Paladino’s testimony. 

GCU agrees and stipulates to all of the recommendations in Ms. Paladino’s direct 

testimony. 

Please comment on the Staff Witness Alan Borne’s testimony. 

GCU agrees and stipulates to all of the recommendations in Mr. Borne’s direct testimony. 

Q- 

A. 

IV. COST OF SERVICE AND RATE DESIGN 

Q. 

1 A. 

~ Q. 

A. 

Please comment on the Staff Witness Prem K. Bahl’s testimony. 

GCU agrees and stipulates to all of the recommendations in Mr. Bahl’s direct testimony. 

Please comment on the Staff Witness Robert G. Gray’s testimony. 

GCU agrees with and stipulates to all of the recommendations in M i .  Gray’s direct 

testimony. Specifically, GCU stipulates to Mr. Gray’s residential rate design proposal 

that has a customer monthly minimum of $15 and $0.378 for all therms used. 
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Q- 

A. 

Q. 
A. 

Please comment on Mr. Gray’s alternative tiered rate design proposal for GCU’s 

residential customer class. 

Mr. Gray has proposed an alternative inclining block rate for the residential class in this 

case that is $0.34 for the first 50 therms and $0.40 for each therm over 50. As a part of 

its stipulation to the recommendations in Mi. Gray’s direct testimony, GCU Will agree to 

file an inclining block rate design for its residential customer class as one of its rate 

design proposals. GCU will agree to do so with the understanding that GCU will not be 

ineligible to file a rate case under the RS4-2-107 rules (due to the filing of a new rate 

schedule as stated R14-2-107(A)(l l)(a)). GCU should not be ineligible to file a rate case 

under the R14-2-107 rules due to the fact that the Commission, as a part of the decision in 

this matter, will be directing GCU to file a new rate schedule. In addition, the new tariff 

will be limited to the residential customer class and the time necessary to analyze this 

new rate design should be minimal. 

Does that conclude your rebuttal testimony? 

Yes, it does. 
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BEFORE THE ARIZONA CORPORATION COwISS&O-y P 12: E r  i i,, 

COMMISSIONERS 

BOB STUMP, Chairman 
GARY PIERCE 
BRENDA BURNS 
BOB BURNS 
SUSAN BITTER SMITH 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ) DOCKET NO. G-02527A-13- 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. GAS ) 
DIVISION FOR APPROVAL OF A LOAN ) FINANCE APPLICATION 

Pursuant to A.R.S. 0 40-301 et seq., Graham County Utilities, Inc. Gas Division (“GCU”), 

hereby files with the Arizona Corporation Commission (“Commission”) an Application (“Finance 

Application”) for authorization to borrow $1,000,000 from the Graham County Electric 

Cooperative (“GCEC”) to finance prior construction of plant in accordance with GCU’s 

construction work plan and establish a $500,000 line of credit with GCEC to address future 

capital needs. In support of its Finance Application, GCU states as follows: 

1. GCU and GCEC are non-profit corporations and public service corporations. 

GCU holds a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity, to provide Gas Distribution Service to its 

member-customers in Graham County, Arizona. GCEC holds a Certificate of Convenience and 

Necessity, to provide Electric Distribution Service to its member-customers in Graham County, 

Arizona. 

2. The Commission has jurisdiction over GCU and GCEC and the subject matter of 

this Finance Application. 
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3. 

4. 

GCU currently provides gas service to approximately 5,393 members. 

On February 6,2013, GCU’s and GCEC’s Board of Directors approved a 

Resolution for a loan from GCEC in the amount of $1,000,000, to finance prior construction of 

plant and a $500,000 LOC to fund future capital needs. GCU has attached to this application a 

schedule showing the net plant additions for the years 2008 through 201 1. Among other things, 

GCU expended hnds on new gas mains, services, meters and regulators and miscellaneous 

distribution equipment to improve and work on the gas distribution system. Graham County 

Electric Cooperative Inc. (“GCEC”) has provided temporary financing to GCU for these plant 

additions. GCU will be using the Loan from GCEC to repay GCEC for funds that it has advanced 

to GCU. GCU will be using the LOC to fund additional/future capital investments. 

5. GCU is submitting an application for long-term financing in the amount of 

$1,000,000, with a maturity date to cover a period of ten (1 0) years and with fixed interest rate of 

5.44 percent, to fund the construction of the facilities identified in GCU’s schedule of net plant 

additions. 

6. As a part of this application, GCU is requesting a LOC in the amount of $500,000, 

with no maturity date and with a variable interest rate equal to the rate charged by the National 

Rural Cooperative Finance Corporation (“CFC”) for an intermediate LOC (currently 

approximately 2.9 percent) to fund the future construction of facilities and financial 

contingencies. GCU would use the LOC to find immediate capital needs as bridge financing 

that may be re-financed using a longer term loan upon ACC approval. 

7. A copy of the GCU and GCEC Board of Directors’ resolution approving the Loan 

and LOC Application is attached here to. 

-2- 
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8. GCU intends to repay, in substantial part, the cost of the Loan 

over a ten (10) year period and LOC through the use of its general funds. On July 13,2012, GCU 

has filed an application for a rate case for the Gas Division in Docket N0.G-02527A -12-0321. 

GCU requests that this financing application be consolidated with the pending rate case docket. 

Due to GCU’s poor financial condition, GCU further requests that this application be processed 

concurrently with the rate case application and not delay the rate case application time clock. 

9. GCU’s Loan and LOC request is: (1) for lawful purpose; (2) within 

GCU’s corporate powers; (3) compatible with the public interest; (4) within sound financial 

practices; and (5) within the proper perfonnance of the Cooperative as a public service 

corporation. The Loan and LOC will improve GCU’s ability to continue to provide safe and 

reliable gas distribution service to its member-customers. 

10. 

1 1. 

The Loan and LOC are dependent upon authorization by this Commission. 

The aggregate amount of securities outstanding, and proposed to be 

outstanding, will not exceed the fair value of GCU’s properties and business. A copy of GCU’s 

audited financial statements for the years ended September 30,2010 and 201 1 is also attached 

here to. 

12. GCU requests that the Commission act on this application as soon as possible to 

assist GCU financially to maintain reliable gas distribution service. 

13. 

sent to: 

All correspondence with regard to this Finance Application should be 

John V. Wallace 
Grand Canyon State Electric Cooperative Association, Inc. 
22 10 South Priest Drive 
Tempe, Arizona 85282 
E-mail: jwallace@gcseca.coop 
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With a copy to: 

Kirk Gray 
GRAHAM COUNTY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
P. 0. Drawer B 
Pima, Arizona 85543 
Email: kgray@gce.coop 

WHEREFORE, GCU, having fully stated its Application and showing 

that it is in the public interest for the Cooperative to obtain the Loan to fund prior construction of 

facilities to serve its member-customers and to obtain a LOC for future capital needs, hereby 

requests that the Commission: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

Accept GCU’s Finance Application for filing. 

Consolidate the Finance Application with the pending rate case (Docket N0.G- 

02527A -12-0321). 

Due to GCU’s poor financial condition, GCU further requests that this application 

be processed concurrently with the rate case application and not delay the rate case 

application time clock. 

Authorize GCU to borrow $1,000,000 from GCEC for the lawful purposes set 

forth in this Finance application and establish a $500,000 LOC with GCEC, and to 

authorize the Cooperative to take such actions necessary and appropriate to 

execute a mortgage to secure the Loan and LOC; and 

Grant such other relief as may be in the public interest. 
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RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 7th day of February 201 3. 

BY 

Canyon State Electric Cooperative Association, Inc. 
22 10 South Priest Drive 
Tempe, Arizona 85282 

Original and thirteen (13) copies of 
GCU’s Fiyycing Application 
filed this 7 day of February, 20 13 
with: 

DOCKET CONTROL 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
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GEt4HAM COUNTY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

BOARD RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING LONG TERM FINANCING AND A LINE OF 
CREDIT TO GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

WHEREAS. the Board of Directors of Graham County Utilities, Inc. (GCU) has requested long 
term financing for prior gas construction of plant and a line of credit agreement with Graham County 
Electric Cooperathe, Inc., (GCEC). 

WHEREAS, GCEC has determined that it will authorize long term financing and establish a line 
of credit to GCU. 

Total Long Term Financing Requested by GCU: $1,000,000.00 
Total Line of Credit Requested by GCU: $500,000.00 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that Graham County Utilities, Inc., (Gas Division) 
be authorized to borro\x $1 .OOO,OOO.OO from Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. (GCEC) to be 
used for financing prior gas construction of plant. 

BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, that the financing shall provide for the repayment of the Loan; in 
monthly installments. including interest and principal payments. The term of the loan will be ten (1 0) 
years and the interest rate will be 5.44 percent. 

BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, that the line of credit in the amount of $500,000.00 shall be 
established between GCEC and GCU with no maturity date and with a variable interest rate equal to the 
rate charged by the National Rural Cooperative Finance Corporation (CFC) for an intermediate line of 
credit. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the management be authorized to file with the Arizona 
Corporation Commission an application requesting financing. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of Graham County 
Electric Cooperative, Inc., this 6' day of February, 2013. 

- 

Cf)I%POL\TE S E X  
/ 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of Graham County 
Utilities, Inc., this 6'h day of February, 2013. 

Michael K. Crockett, Secretary, GCU 
CORPORA'I'E SEAL 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Graham County Utilities, Inc. 
Pima, Arizona 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Graham County Utilities, Inc. (the Cooperative), 
as of September 30, 201 1 and 201 0, and the related statements of income and accumulated margins, 
and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Cooperative's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we pian and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Graham County Utilities, fnc. as of September 30, 201 1 and 201 0, and the results 
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 22, 
2011, on our consideration of the Cooperative's internal control over financial reporting and on its 
compliance with certain provision of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of our audits. 

November 22,201 1 

Certified Public Accountants 
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Exhibit A 
BALANCE SHEET 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 AND 2010 

ASSETS 

UTILITY PLANT 
Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

Less Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amortization 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS 
investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - Restricted 
Accounts Receivable (Less allowance for uncollectibles 
of $76,993 in 2011 and $84,544 in 2010) 
Materials and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

Total Current Assets 

DEFERRED CHARGES 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

MEMBERS' EQUITY 
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins (Deficits) 

LONG -TERM DEET 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 
USDA Rural Development Note Payable Less Current Maturities 
ClAC Refund Due 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electric Coop 
Overbilled Consumers Fuel Cost 
Customers' Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Taxes 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroil 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

$ 7,928,538 $ 7,472,982 
436,018 589.566 

1,025,652 1,025,652 
$ 9,390,208 $ 9,088,200 

4,672,504 4,395,875 
$ 4,717,704 S 4,692,325 

$ 319,797 $ 234.833 

$ 52,725 $ 46,648 

84.531 40.161 
134,048 147.41 5 
30,777 35.663 

$ 302,081 $ 269,887 

$ 43,088 $ 50,788 

$ 5 382.679 S 5,247,833 

$ 31,292 $ 31,354 
(349,918L (427,859) 

$ (318.626) $ (396,5052 

$ 2,002,092 $ 2,213,105 
1,486,395 1,510,766 
88.151 154,189 

$ 3,576,638 $ 3,878,060 

$ 373,014 
82,111 

1.260.8?4 
230,169 
78.750 
57.453 
19,923 

$ 293,076 
82.099 
834,642 
378,378 
77,625 
58.299 
19,506 

22.424 22,653 
$ 2,124,658 $ 1,766.278 

$ 5,382,670 $ 5,247,833 



-3- 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

Exhi bit 8 
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

OPERATING REVENUES $ 4,054:IlO $ 3,804,753 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Gas 
Power for Pumping 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Consumer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

$ 1,644,748 
49,922 

368,856 
464,199 
369,921 
672,726 
264,260 

79,283 
$ 3,913,915 

$ 1,399,908 
54,478 

439,780 
545,659 
409,213 
590,172 
276,629 
61,333 

$ 3,777,172 

OPERATING MARGINS (DEFICIT) - BEFORE FIXED CHARGES $ 276.938 $ (109,162) 

Merest on Long-Term Debt 213,719 174,908 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) - AFTER FIXED CHARGES $ 63.219 16 (284,070) 

Capital Credits 16,703 14,645 

$ 77,864 NET OPERATING (DEFICIT) $ (267,367) 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
Interest 77 457 

$ (266,910) NET MARGINS (DEFICIT) $ 77,941 

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT - BEGINNING OF YEAR (160.949) (427,859) 

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT - END OF YEAR $ (349,918) $ (427,859) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 



-4- 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

Exhibit C 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Margin (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Margins to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Over/( Under)billed Fuel Cost 
Deferred Charges 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments (to) from - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by (Used tn) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTlVlTiES 
Additions to Plant 
Cash - Restricted 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt from CFC 
CiAC Refund Due 
Payments on Note Payable to AEPCO 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to GCEC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to USDA 
Memberships 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 

CHANGE IN CASH 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Cash Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

$ 77,941 

276,629 
17,322) 

(148,209) 
7,700 

(44,370) 
18,253 

479 
426,172 

$ 607,273 

$ (302,008) 
(6,077) 

$ (266.910) 

264,260 
(5,485) 

130,849 
(10,560) 
(5,006) 

(1 5.173) 
8,616 

(505.518) 
$ (404.927) 

$ (644,873) 
(69) 

(77,642) 8,704 
$ (385,7271 $ (636,238) 

$ 

(1 98,O 13) 

(23,47 1 ) 
(62) 

$ (221.546) 

$ 0 

0 

$ 1.050,OOO 
226,765 
(25,667) 

(172,865) 
(14,607) 
(22,736) 

275 
$ 1,041,165 

$ 0 

0 

$ 0 $ 0 

$ 213,719 $ 174,908 
$ O $  0 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 
Graham County Utilities, Inc. (the Cooperative) is organized as a cooperative to provide gas and 
water utility services to customers in Graham County, Arizona. The Cooperative was 
incorporated February 14, 1989, and began operations in November, 1989, with the purchase of 
assets and liabilities from two private utility companies. The Cooperative has been granted 
exemption from Federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501 (c)(12). 

Basis of Accounting 
The Cooperative accounts for assets, liabilities, income, and expenses separately for each utility 
service furnished. Separate accounting is maintained for the gas department and the water 
department. 

Recognition is given to all services rendered and facilities provided by each department, as well 
as those services provided by Graham County Electric Cooperative, lnc. under the operating and 
management agreement executed by both Cooperatives. These services are billed at 
predetermined rates. The accrual basis of accounting is followed in all departments. 

Operating Revenues 
Gas and water revenues are under the jurisdiction of the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

The Cooperative records revenues as billed to the customers on a monthly basis. Revenue is not 
accrued for utility services delivered but not billed at the end of each month. The unbilled and 
unrecorded revenue at September 30, 2011 and 2010, was estimated to be $46,978 and 
$47,135, respectively, in the gas department and $47,881 and $51,039, respectively, in the water 
department. 

The Cooperative's tariffs include an adjustment for flow-through of purchased natural gas costs. 
In order to match fuel costs and related revenues, costs billed in advance are recorded as 
overbilled consumers fuel cost and costs to be billed in the subsequent period are recorded as 
underbilled consumers fuel cost. For the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, the 
Cooperative was overbilled $230,169 and $378,378, respectiveiy. 

Group Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Cooperative's headquarters is located in Pima, Arizona. The service area includes members 
located in Graham County, Arizona, and also includes retail service to the towns of Pima and Ft. 
Thomas, and wholesale services to Eden Water Company. The Cooperative records a 
receivable for gas and water service as billed on a monthly basis. The Cooperative requires a 
deposit from customers upon connection which is applied to any unpaid bills upon default. The 
deposit accrues interest annually at the rate of six percent. Deposits on hand totaled $78,750 
and $77,625 at September 30, 201 1 and 2010, respectively. 

Patronage Capital Certificates 
Patronage capital from associated organizations is recorded at the stated amount of the 
certificate. 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Inventories 
Inventories which consist of construction materials and supplies are valued at average unit cost. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are represented by Cash 
- General. 

Restricted Cash 
As part of its agreement for toan funding from USDA Rural Development the Cooperative is 
required to accumulate a cash reserve fund. The fund balance at September 30, 201 1 and 2010 
was $52,725 and $46,648, respectively and was in compliance with funding requirements. 

Federal Income Tax Status 
The Cooperative qualifies for tax exempt status under Internal Revenue Code section 501 (c)(12) 
with more than 85% of income consisting of amounts received from members. 

On January 1, 2009, the Cooperative adopted the “uncertain tax positions“ provisions of 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The primary tax 
position of the Cooperative is its filing status as a tax exempt entity. The Cooperative determined 
that it is more likely than not that their tax positions will be sustained upon examination by the 
Internal Revenue Service (IRS), or other state taxing authority and that all tax benefits are likely 
to be realized upon settlement with taxing authorities. 

The Cooperative files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The Cooperative is no 
longer subject to U.S. federal and state income tax examinations by federal taxing authorities for 
years before 2008. 

The Cooperative recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest 
expense and penalties in operating expenses. There were no penalties or interest recognized 
during the years ended September 30, 201 1 and 2010. 

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 
The Cooperative uses the aging method to allow for uncollectible accounts receivable. During 
the year, management makes an evaluation of past due accounts to determine collection ability. 
The accounts deemed uncollectible are written off upon approval by the Board of Directors. 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. Assets Pledged 

All assets are pledged as security for the long-term debt due the National Rural Utilities Cooperative 
Finance Corporation (CFC) and USDA. 

3. Utility Plant and Depreciation 

Utility plant is stated at the original cost of construction including the construction costs incurred by 
the utility from which the Cooperative acquired plant in November 1989. Original cost includes the 
cost of contracted services, direct labor, materials, and overhead reduced by contributions in aid to 
construction received in connection with new construction. 

Maintenance and repairs including the renewal of minor items of plant not comprising a retirement 
unit are charged to the appropriate maintenance accounts. 

Major classes of utility plant are summarized as follows: 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

Utility Plant in Service 
Intangible 
Production 
Transmission 
Distribution 
General 
Land and Land Rights 

Construction Work in Progress 
Utility Plant Acquisition 

Total Utility Plant 

Total Plant in Service 

Adjustment 

Gas 
Department 

s 42,522 

~ 

Water 
Department Total 

4,125.81 7 
204,645 
1,416 

$ 4,374.400 
21 1.559 

415.484 

$ 5,001,443 

$ 37.708 
1,630,076 
1,098,561 
653,276 
112,010 

$ 80,230 
1,630,076 
1,098,561 
4,779,093 
316,655 

Total 

fi 80,230 
1,475,189 
1,098,561 
4.488,211 
306,868 

22,507 23,923 23,923 
$ 3,554,138 $ 7,928,538 $ 7,472,982 

224,459 

610,168 

fi 4,388,765 

436.01 8 

1,025,652 

$ 9,390,208 

589,566 

1,025,652 

$ 9,088,200 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Provision has been made for depreciation on straight-line composite rates as follows: 

Production 
Transmission 
Distribution 

Gas Mains 
Services 
Meters - Regulators 
Structures 

General 

Gas Water 
Department Department 

2.34% - 5.05% 

6.7% 

2.20% - 4.00% 
4.00% - 20.00% 

2.80% 
4.10% 
2.60% 
2.30% 
13.3% 10% - 20% 

Depreciation accruals charged to expense for the periods ended September 30, 201 1 and 201 0, 
totaled $235,603 and $223,233, respectively. 

A plant acquisition adjustment was created when the Cooperative purchased the assets and liabilities 
of City Utilities, Inc. and General Utilities, Inc. The acquisition adjustment. representing the amount 
of the purchase price over the book value of the net assets acquired, amounted to $415,484 in the 
gas department and $61 0: 168 in the water department. Plant acquisition adjustments are 
amortizable over the estimated useful life of the plant acquired. The Cooperative has elected to 
amortize these costs over a 25-year period. The annual charge to expense is $16,619 in the gas 
department and $24,407 in the water department. 

The plant acquisition costs and related provision for amortization at September 30, 2011, are 
summarized as follows: 

Acquisition Adjustment 
Less: Amortization 

Prior Periods 
Current Year 

Unamortized Adjustment 

Gas Water 
Department Department 

$ 415,484 $ 610,168 

$ 349,007 $ 512,540 
16,619 24,407 

$ 365,626 $ 536,947 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Investments in Associated Organizations 

investments in associated organizations consisted of the following: 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

CFC 
Capital Term Certificates 
Patronage Capital 
Memberships 

Graham County Electric Coooperative, Inc. 
Patronage Capital 

$ 205,692 $ 128,049 
101,245 93,924 
1,000 1,000 

$ 307.937 $ 222,973 

$ 11,860 
$ 319,797 

$ 11,860 
$ 234,833 

Deferred Charges 

Deferred charges consisted of the following: 

September 30, 
201 I 2010 

Gas Department 
Unamortized Debt Expense 
Other 

Water Department 
Unamortized Debt Expense 
Other 

Total 

$ 7,413 $ 11,280 
9,980 9,777 

$ 17,393 $ 21,057 

$ 16,472 $ 20,576 
9,223 9,155 

$ 25,695 $ 29,731 

$ 43,088 $ 50,788 

During 1998, the Cooperative converted a CFC note to a lower interest rate of 7.1% for 15 years with 
a conversion fee of $109,457. Amortization expense for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 
2010, is $7,971 and $7,971, respectively. 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

6. Memberships 

Memberships are comprised of the following: 

Class A Memberships 
Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc., 
entitled to one vote 

Class B Memberships 
All qualified members of Graham County Electric 

Cooperative, Inc., $5 membership fee, entitled 
to one vote per membership 

Class C Memberships 
All others who receive service, $5 membership 

fee, entitled to one vote per membership 

September 30, 
201 1 201 0 

$ 5,000 $ 5,000 

21,627 21,689 

4,665 
$ 31,292 

4,665 
$ 31,354 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

7. Accumulated Margins (Deficits) 

This balance consists of net margins or (losses) as follows: 

Calendar Year 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
200 1 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
201 0 
201 1 Nine Months 

Gas 
Department 

$ 6,702 
(14,127) 
(91,410) 
(4 1 , I  1 5) 
(64,937) 
(46,268) 

(1 72,043) 
(68,293) 
(65,806) 
22 5,309 
97,405 

1,467 
39,062 
61,124 
(5,764) 

62,759 
92,446 

141,801 
69,003 

(1 79,686) 
(400,801 ) 
(239,276) 

83,594 
$ (508.854) 

Patronage Capital Retired 

$ (508,854) 

Water 
Department 

$ (694) 
2,845 

(2 3,047) 
(1 3.851) 

5.077 
26,495 

(28,60 3) 
(3,4091 

(23,095) 
31,474 
62,256 
46,927 
40,741 

1,125 
69,524 
7,767 

47,242 
42,157 
36,636 

(26,292) 
(85,705) 

5,043 
20,358 

$ 240,971 
(82,035) 

$ 158,936 

Total 

$ 6,008 
(1 1,282) 

(1 14,457) 
(54,966) 
(59,860) 
(1 9,773) 

(200,646) 
(71,702) 
(88,901 ) 
256,783 
159,661 
48,394 
79,803 
62,249 
63,760 
70,526 

139,688 
183,958 
105,639 

(205,978) 
(486,506) 
(234,233) 
103,952 

$ (267,883) 
(82,035) 

$ (349,918) 

The Board of Directors has adopted the policy of separating each department's net gains or losses 
for allocation purposes. Patronage capitaf is allocated after all deficits have been recovered. During 
the years ended September 30, 201 1 and 201 0, no retirements of patronage capital were made. 

Under the mortgage agreement with CFC, until the equities or margins equal or exceed 30% of the 
total assets of the Cooperative. the return to patrons of capital contributed by them is limited. 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

8. Mortgage Notes - CFC 
Following is a summary of long-term debt due CFC maturing between September 30, 2014 and July 
7, 2040: 

Fixed - 7.10% 
Fixed - 2.35% in 201 1, 4.65% in 2010 
Fixed - 7.45% 
Fixed - 6.25% 
Fixed - 7.00% 
Fixed - 3.05% 

Less: Current Maturities 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

$ 410,791 $ 529,547 
139,907 182,393 
282,139 296,915 
342,858 351,250 
791,646 800,000 
244,75 1 250,000 

$ 2,212,092 $ 2,410,105 
2 10,000 197,000 

$ 2,002,092 $ 2,213,105 

Principal and interest installments on the above notes are due quarterly in amounts of approximately 
$66,200. As of September 30, 201 1, annual maturities of long-term debt due CFC for the next five 
years is as follows: 

2012 
201 3 
201 4 
201 5 
201 6 

$ 210,000 
227,000 
240,000 
48,000 
50,000 

The mortgages contain requirements requiring certain financial ratios io be maintained or exceeded. 
These requirements were not met during the years ended September 30, 201 1 and 2010. 

9. USDA Rural Development Note Payable 

Following is a summary of long-term debt due USDA Rural Development: 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

5.000% Note Maturing March, 2032 
4.500% Note Maturing August, 2035 
4.500% Note Maturing July, 2040 
4.125% Note Maturing March, 2047 

Less: Current Maturities 

$ 133,600 $ 137,260 
236,737 242,152 
83,540 84,931 

1,056,918 1,069,923 
$ 1,510,795 $ 1,534,266 

24,400 23,500 

$ 1,486,395 $ 1,510.766 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Principal and interest installments on the above notes are due monthly in amounts of $7,393. As of 
September 30, 201 1, annual maturities of long-term debt due USDA Rural Development for the next 
five years are as follows: 

2012 
2013 
2014 
201 5 
2016 

$ 24,400 
25,600 
26,700 
27,900 
29.000 

I O .  ClAC Refund Due 

As a part of the final ruling by the Arizona Corporation Commission on recent rate cases for both the 
gas and water utilities the Cooperative agreed to refund contributions in aid of construction previously 
charged to the members. The total to be refunded is $226,765 for the gas division and $15,536 in 
the water division. The gas portion will be refunded over three years and is reflected in long term 
debt ($88,151) and current maturities of long term debt ($138,614). The water amount will be totally 
refunded in the next year and is reflected in Accounts Payable - Other. 

11. Related Parties 

The Cooperative is related by having substantially identical Boards of Directors and management 
with Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. (GCEC). GCEC provides administrative and general, 
management, operations, consumer accounting, and construction services to the Cooperative under 
an operating and management agreement signed by both parties on June 20, 1989. 

GCEC is also the guarantor of the mortgage loan executed by the Cooperative to CFC. 

Balances between the two Cooperatives are summarized as follows: 

September 30, 
201 1 201 0 

Graham County Utilities, Inc. 

Graham County Electric Cooperative, tnc. 

Accounts Payable 

Accounts Receivable 

$ (1,260,814) $ (834,642) 

$ 1,260,814 $ 834,642 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

12. Litigation and Contingencies 

The Cooperative is not involved in any litigation that would materially affect the financial statements. 

The Cooperative previously filed for rate increases in both water and gas companies with the Arizona 
Corporation Commission. During the prior period the rate cases were concluded and new rates were 
implemented in June 2010. 

13. Subsequent Events 

The Cooperative has evaluated subsequent events through November 22, 2011, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 



ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON 
ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 

Our audits of the basic financial statements presented in the preceding 
section of this report were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on 
such financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying information 
shown on pages 16 through 21 is presented for purposes of additionaf 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in 
ail material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

+ 1 A$v+,&+m-nLP 

Certified Public Accountants 

November 22,201 1 

-1 5- 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

GAS DEPARTMENT 

UTILITY PLANT 
Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

Less Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amortization 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS AT COST OR 
STATED VALUE 

Investments in Associated Organizations 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Accounts Receivable (Less allowance for uncollectibles of 
$64,981 in 2011 and $70,453 in 2010) 
Matenals and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

Total Current Assets 

Deferred Charges 

TOTAL ASSETS 

MEMBERS’ EQUITY 
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins (Deficits) 

LONG -TERM DEBT 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 
ClAC Refunds Due 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Maturrties of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electric Cooperative 
Overbilled Consumers Fuel Cost 
Accrued Taxes 
Customers’ Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

Schedule 1 

September 30, 
201 1 201 0 

$ 4,374,400 $ 4,095,366 
211,559 366,322 
415,484 415,484 

$ 5.001.443 $ 4,877,172 

2,353,251 
$ 2,491,737 S 2,523,921 

2,509,706 

$ 199,180 $ 131,388 

$ 44,253 $ 20.842 
79,032 84,805 
23,205 26,747 

S 146,490 $ 132,394 

$ 17,393 $ 21,057 

$ 2,854,800 $ 2,808,760 

$ 28.792 $ 28.854 
(508,854) (542,878) 

$ (480,062) $ (514,024) 

$ 1,583,883 $ 1,709,163 

$ 263,244 
51,712 

985.487 
230,169 
34,294 
66,645 
13,664 

$ 188,906 
60,616 

699,527 
378,378 
34,846 
67.220 
13.282 

17,613 16,657 
$ 1,662,828 $ 1,459,432 

$2.854,800 $ 2,808.760 
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GAS DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 2 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

September 30, 
201 t 2010 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

OPE RAT1 NG REVENUES 
Residential 
Irrigation 
Commercial and Industrial 
Fuel Cost Under (Over) Billed 
Other Operating Revenues 

Total Operating Revenues 

$ 2,273,160 
11,400 
768.92 1 
148.828 

$ 2,380,373 
6,681 

843,054 
24,648 

$ (107,213) 
4,719 

(74,133) 
124,180 

40,043 (129,990r 170,033 
$ 3,242,352 $ 3,124,766 $ 117,586 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Gas 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Customer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

$ 1,399,908 
374,592 
328,460 
327,997 
463,325 
156,455 

8 1,644,748 
303,884 
283,816 
306,437 
541,444 
145,705 

$ (244,840) 
70,708 
44,644 
21,560 
(78.119) 
10,750 

47,571 62,047 (14,476) 
$ 3.098.308 $ 3,288,081 $ (189,773) 

OPERATING MARGIN (DEFICIT) - Before 
Fixed Charges $ 144,044 

121.332 

$ (163,315) $ 307,359 

FIXED CHARGES 
Interest on Long-Term Debt I 

82.985 38.347 

OPERATING MARGIN (DEFICIT) - After 
Fixed Charges $ (246,300) $ 269.012 $ 22,712 

11,312 

$ 34,024 

Capital Credits 8,050 

$ (238,250) 

3,262 

$ 272,274 NET OPERATING MARGIN (DEFICIT) 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
In teres t (388) 388 

$ (237,862) $ 34,024 NET MARGIN (DEFICIT) $ 271,886 

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT - BEGINNING OF YEAR (542,878) (305,016) 

ACCUMUMTED DEFICIT - END OF YEAR $ (508,854) $ (542,878) 
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GAS DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 3 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Margin (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net (Deficit) to Net Cash 

Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Deferred Charges 
Over/(Under)billed Fuel Cost - Net 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments from - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Gas Utility Plant 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt - CFC 
ClAC Refunds Due 
Payments on Long-Term Debt - CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt - Graham County Electric Cooperative 
Memberships 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CHANGE IN CASH 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

$ 34,024 $ (237,862) 

156.455 
(5,655) 
3,664 

(148,209) 
(23,411) 

9,315 
(8,693) 

145,705 
(4,025) 
(5,509) 

130,849 
704 

(1 3,974) 
(721 1) 

285,960 (403,705) 
$ 303,450 $ (395,028) 

$ (124,271) $ (522,607) 
(62,137) 6,978 

$ (186,4081 $ (515,6291 

$ $ 800,000 
226,765 

(1 16,980) (101,776) 
(1 4,607) 

(621 275 
$ (117,042) $ 910,657 

$ O $  0 

0 0 

$ O $  0 

$ 121,332 $ 82,985 
$ O $  0 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

WATER DEPARTMENT 

UTILITY PLANT AT COST 
Water Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

Less Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amortizahon 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,201 1 AND 2010 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS AT COST OR 
STATEDVALUE 

Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - Restricted 
Accounts Receivabie - Customers (Less allowance for 

Materiats and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

uncolrectibles of $12 012 in 2011 and $14,091 in 2010) 

Total Current Assets 

DEFERRED CHARGES 

NET ASSETS 

EQUITY 
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins 

ASSETS 

Schedule 4 

September 30, 
201 1 201 0 

$ 3,554,138 $ 3,377,616 
224.459 223,244 

2,762.798 2,042,624 
S 2,225,967 $ 2,168,404 

$ 120.617 $ 103,445 

$ 52,725 $ 46,648 

40.278 19,319 
55 016 62,610 I -  ~ 
~. 

7,572 8,916 
$ 155,591 $ 137,493 

$ 25,695 $ 29.731 

I 2,527~0 $ 2,439,073 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

LONG-TERM DEBT 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 
USDA Rural Development Notes Less Current Maturities 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electric Cooperative 
Accrued Taxes 
Customers' Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilities 

NET EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

s 2.500 S 2,500 ~ . _ _ .  
7 58,936 115,019 

$ 161,436 $ 117.519 

1,486,395 1,510,766 
$ 1,904,604 $ 2,014,708 

$ 109,770 $ 104170 

275,327 135,115 
23.159 23 453 
12,105 10.405 
6.259 6 224 

30,399 2 1,483 

4,811 5,996 
$ 461.830 $ 306,846 

$ 2.527.870 $ 2,439.073 
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WATER DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 5 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

September 30: 
201 1 2010 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

$ 91,753 
18,060 
11,238 

OPERATING EVENUE 
Residential 
Commercial and Industrial 
Sales for Resale 
Other Operating Revenues 

Total Operating Revenues 

$ 575,793 
60,484 
38.719 

Ib 667,546 
78,544 
49 957 
15,711 

S 811,758 
4,991 10,720 

$ 679,987 $ 131,771 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Power - Pumping 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Customer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

$ 54.478 
65,188 

217,199 
81,216 

120,174 
126,847 

$ 49,922 
64,972 

180,383 
63,484 

131,282 
118,555 
17,236 

$ 625,834 

t 4,556 
216 

36,816 
17.732 
(4.435) 
1,619 

(3,474) 
$ 53,030 

13,762 
$ 678,864 

OPERATING MARGINS - Before 
Fixed Charges $ 132,894 $ 54.153 $ 78,741 

464 
FIXED CHARGES 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 92,387 91,923 

$ (37,770) 

8,653 

$ (29,117) 

OPERATING MARGIN (DEFiCIT) - After Fixed Charges $ 40,507 $ 78,277 

(5,320) 

$ 72,957 

Caoital Credits 3,333 

NET OPERATING MARGIN (DEFICIT) $ 43,840 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
Interest 69 8 77 

$ 43,917 NET MARGIN (DEFICIT) 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - BEGINNING 
OF YEAR 

$ (29,048) $ 72,965 

115,019 144,067 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - END OF YEAR $ 158,936 $ 115,019 
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WATER DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 6 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2011 AND 2010 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Margin (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net (Deficit) to Net Cash 

Provided by Operating Activities 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Deferred Charges 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments from (to) - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operatcng Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Plant 
Cash - Restricted 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt from CFC 
Payments on Note Payable to AEPCO 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to USDA 

Net Cash Provided by [Used in) Financing Activities 

CHANGE IN CASH 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

September 30, 
201 1 2010 

$ 43,917 $ (29,048) 

120,174 118,555 
(1,667) (1,460) 
4,036 (5,051) 

(20,959) (5,710) 
8,938 (1,199) 
9,172 16,028 

140,212 (1 01,813) 
$ 303,823 $ (9,6982 

(15,505). 1,726 
$ (199,319) $ (120,810) 

$ $ 250,000 
(25,667) 

(81,033) (71,089) 
(23,471) (22,736) 

$ (104,504) $ 130,508 

$ O $  0 

0 0 

$ O $  0 

$ 92,387 
s 0 

c 
$ 91,923 
5 0 
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I 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Graham County Utilities, Inc. 
Pima, Arizona 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Graham County Utilities, Inc. (the Cooperative), 
as of September 30, 2010 and 2009, and the related statements of income and accumulated margins, 
and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Cooperative’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Graham County Utilities, Inc. as of September 30, 2010 and 2009, and the results 
of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 2, 
2010, on our consideration of the Cooperative’s internal control over financial reporting and on its 
compliance with certain provision of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing 
the results of our audits. 

November 2, 2010 

Certified Public Accountants 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

Exhibit A 
BALANCESHEET 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

ASSETS 

Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amortization 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - General 
Accounts Receivable (Less allowance for uncollectibles 
of $84.544 in 2010 and $92,362 in 2009) 
Materials and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

Total Current Assets 

DEFERRED CHARGES 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

MEMBERS' EQUITY 
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins {Deficits) 

LONG -TERM DEBT 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 
AEPCO Note Payable Less Current Maturities 
USDA Rural Development Note Payable Less Current Maturities 
CIAC Refund Due 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electric Coop 
Overbilled Consumers Fuel Cost 
Customers' Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Taxes 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITIES AND LfABlLlTfES 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

$ 7,472.982 tb 7.020,3m 
589,566 397,312 

1,025,652 1,025,652 
$ 9,088,200 $ 8,443,327 

4,395375 4,131,615 
$ 4,692,325 $ 4,311,712 

$ 234,833 $ 238,052 

$ 46.648 $ 46,579 

40,261 35,155 
147.41 5 138,178 
35,663 29.727 

$ 269,887 $ 249,639 

$ 31,354 $ 31,079 
(427,859) (160,949) 

$ (396,505) $ (129,870r 

$ 2,213,105 

1,510,766 
154.1 89 

$ 3,878,060 

$ 293,076 
82.099 

834,642 

77,625 
58,299 
19.506 

378,378 

$ 1.360,070 
3,667 

1,534,502 

$ 2,898,239 

$ 232,007 
51.476 

1.340,160 
247,529 

77,250 
57.31 7 
19,199 

22,653 76,324 
$ 1,766,278 $ 2,071,262 

$ 5,247,833 $ 4,839,631 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

Exhibit B 
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Gas 
Power for Pumping 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Consumer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING MARGINS (DEFICIT) - BEFORE FIXED CHARGES 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) ~ AFTER FIXED CHARGES 

Capital Credits 

NET OPERATING (DEFICIT) 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
Interest 

NET (DEFICIT) 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

$ 3,804,753 $ 4,034.707 

!E 1,644,748 
49,922 

368,856 
464,199 
369,921 
672,726 
264,260 
79,283 

$ 3,913,915 

!$ 2.100.652 
40,037 

375,477 
539,626 
342,675 
630,740 
282,852 
69,033 

$ 4,381,092 

$ (109,162) $ (346,385) 

174,908 180,664 

$ (284,070) $ (527,049) 

16,703 9,951 

$ (267,367) $ (517,098) 

457 608 

$ (266.910) $ (516,490) 

(1 60,949) 355,541 

$ (427,859) $ (160,949) 
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Exhibit C 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AN5 2009 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Margins to 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Over/(Under)billed Fuel Cost 
Deferred Charges 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments (to) from - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Plant 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt from CFC 
ClAC Refund Due 
Payments on Note Payable to AEPCO 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to GCEC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to USDA 
Memberships 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Cash Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

See accompanying notes to financiat statements 

$ (266,910) 

264,260 
(5,485) 

130,849 
(10,560) 
(5,006) 

(15,173) 
8,616 

(505,518) 
$ (404,927) 

$ (644,873) 

$ (636.1693 
8,704 

$ 1,050.000 
226,765 
(25,667) 

(1 72,865) 
(1 4,607) 
(22,736) 

$ (516,490) 

282,852 
(1 1,951) 
279,946 
(4,350) 
36,610 
6,796 

(53,304) 
522,467 

$ 542.576 

$ (315,580) 
16,998 

$ (298,582) 

$ 

(22,000) 
( I  57,329) 
(41,728) 
(21.325) 

275 450 
$ 1,041,165 $ (241,932) 

$ 69 

46,579 

$ 46,648 

$ 2,062 

44,517 

$ 46,579 

$ 174,908 $ 179,621 
$ O $  0 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 
Graham County Utilities, Inc. (the Cooperative) is organized as a cooperative to provide gas and 
water utility services to customers in Graham County, Arizona. The Cooperative was 
incorporated February 14, 1989, and began operations in November, 1989, with the purchase of 
assets and liabilities from two private utility companies. The Cooperative has been granted 
exemption from Federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 50l(c)(l2). 

Basis of Accounting 
The Cooperative accounts for assets, liabilities, income, and expenses separately for each utility 
service furnished. Separate accounting is maintained for the gas department and the water 
department. 

Recognition is given to all services rendered and facilities provided by each department, as well 
as those services provided by Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. under the operating and 
management agreement executed by both Cooperatives. These services are billed at 
predetermined rates. The accrual basis of accounting is followed in all departments. 

Operating Revenues 
Gas and water revenues are under the jurisdiction of the Arizona Corporation Commission 

The Cooperative records revenues as billed to the customers on a monthly basis. Revenue is 
not accrued for utility services delivered but not billed at the end of each month. The unbilled and 
unrecorded revenue at September 30, 2010 and 2009, was estimated to be $47,135 and 
$57,282, respectively, in the gas department and $51,039 and $39,691, respectively, in the water 
department. 

The Cooperative's tariffs include an adjustment for flow-through of purchased natural gas costs. 
In order to match fuel costs and related revenues, costs billed in advance are recorded as 
overbilled consumers fuel cost and costs to be billed in the subsequent period are recorded as 
underbilled consumers fuel cost. For the years ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, the 
Cooperative was overbilled $378,378 and $247,529, respectively. 

Group Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Cooperative's headquarters is located in Pima, Arizona. The service area includes members 
located in Graham County, Arizona, and also includes retail service to the towns of Pima and Ft. 
Thomas, and wholesale services to Eden Water Company. The Cooperative records a 
receivable for gas and water service as billed on a monthly basis. The Cooperative requires a 
deposit from customers upon connection which is applied to any unpaid bills upon default. The 
deposit accrues interest annually at the rate of six percent. Deposits on hand totaled $77,625 
and $77,250 at September 30, 201 0 and 2009, respectively. 

Patronage Capital Certificates 
Patronage capital from associated organizations is recorded at the stated amount of the 
certificate. 
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Inventories 
Inventories which consist of construction materials and supplies are valued at average unit cost 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are represented by 
Cash - General. 

Federal Income Tax Status 
The Cooperative qualifies for tax exempt status under Internal Revenue Code section 501(c)( 12) 
with more than 85% of income consisting of amounts received from members. 

On January 1, 2009, the Cooperative adopted the “uncertain tax positions” provisions of 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The primary tax 
position of the Cooperative is its filing status as a tax exempt entity. The Cooperative determined 
that it is more likely than not that their tax positions will be sustained upon examination by the 
Internal Revenue Service (IRS), or other state taxing authority and that all tax benefits are likely 
to be realized upon settlement with taxing authorities. 

The Cooperative files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The Cooperative is no 
longer subject to U.S. federal and state income tax examinations by federal taxing authorities for 
years before 2007. 

The Cooperative recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest 
expense and penalties in operating expenses. There were no penalties or interest recognized 
during the years ended September 30,201 0 and 2009. 

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 
The Cooperative uses the aging method to allow for uncollectible accounts receivable. During 
the year, management makes an evaluation of past due accounts to determine collection ability. 
The accounts deemed uncollectible are written off upon approval by the Board of Directors. 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actuai results could differ from those 
estimates. 

2. Assets Pledged 

All assets are pledged as security for the long-term debt due the National Rural Utilities Cooperative 
Finance Corporation (CFC) and USDA. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3. Utility Plant and Depreciation 

Utility plant is stated at the original cost of construction including the construction costs incurred by 
the utility from which the Cooperative acquired plant in November 1989. Original cost includes the 
cost of contracted services, direct labor, materials, and overhead reduced by contributions in aid to 
construction received in connection with new construction. 

Maintenance and repairs including the renewal of minor items of plant not comprising a retirement 
unit are charged to the appropriate maintenance accounts. 

Major classes of utility plant are summarized as follows: 

September 30, 
2010 2009 

Utility Plant in Service 
Intangible 
Production 
Transmission 
Distribution 
General 
Land and Land Rights 

Construction Work in Progress 
Utility Plant Acquisition 

Total Utility Plant 

Total Plant in Service 

Adjustment 

Gas Water 
Department Department Total Total 

$ 42,522 $ 37,708 $ 80,230 $ 80.230 
1,475,i 89 1,475,189 1.475.189 
1,098,561 1,098,561 1,098,561 

3,856,570 631,641 4,488,211 4,036,149 
194,858 112,010 306,868 306,311 

1,416 22,507 23.923 23,923 
$ 4,095,366 $ 3,377,616 $ 7,472.982 $ 7,020,363 

366,322 223,244 589,566 397,312 

415,484 610,168 1,025,652 1,025,652 

$ 4,877,172 $ 4,211,028 $ 9,088,200 $ 8,443,327 

Provision has been made for depreciation on straight-line composite rates as follows: 

Gas Water 

Production 
Transmission 
Distribution 

Gas Mains 
Services 
Meters - Regulators 
Structures 

General 

Department Department 
2.34% - 5.05% 
2.20% - 4.00% 
4.00% - 20.00% 

2.80% 
4.10% 
2.60% 
2.30% 

6.7% - 13.3% 10% - 20% 

Depreciation accruals charged to expense for the periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, 
totaled $223,233 and $241,826, respectively. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A plant acquisition adjustment was created when the Cooperative purchased the assets and 
liabilities of City Utilities, Inc. and General Utilities, Inc. The acquisition adjustment, representing the 
amount of the purchase price over the book value of the net assets acquired, amounted to $415,484 
in the gas department and $610,168 in the water department. Plant acquisition adjustments are 
amortizable over the estimated useful life of the plant acquired. The Cooperative has elected to 
amortize these costs over a 25-year period. The annual charge to expense is $16,619 in the gas 
department and $24,407 in the water department. 

The plant acquisition costs and related provision for amortization at September 30, 2010, are 
summarized as follows: 

Acquisition Adjustment 
Less: Amortization 

Prior Periods 
Current Year 

Unamortized Adjustment 

Gas 
Department 

$ 415,484 

$ 332,388 

Water 
Department 

$ 610.168 

$ 488,134 
16,619 24,407 

$ 349,007 $ 512,541 

$ 66,477 

4. Investments in Associated Organizations 

Investments in associated organizations consisted of the following: I 
1 
I 
I 
1 
I 
I 
i 

CFC 
Capita I Term Certificates 
Patronage Capital 
Memberships 

Graham County Electric Coooperative, Inc. 
Patronage Capital 

$ 97,627 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

$ 128,049 $ 137,512 
93,924 93,414 

1,000 1,000 
$ 222,973 $ 231,926 

$ 11,860 $ 6,126 

$ 234,833 $ 238,052 
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5. Deferred Charges 

Deferred charges consisted of the following: 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

Gas Department 
Unamortized Debt Expense 
Other 

Water Department 
Unamortized Debt Expense 
Other 

Total 

$ 11,280 $ 15,148 
9,777 400 

$ 21,057 $ 15,548 

$ 20,576 $ 24,680 
9,155 

$ 29,731 $ 24,680 

$ 50,788 $ 40,228 

During 1998, the Cooperative converted a CFC note to a lower interest rate of 7.1 % for 15 years with 
a conversion fee of $109,457. Amortization expense for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 
2009, is $7,971 and $8,983, respectively. 

6. Memberships 

Memberships are comprised of the following: 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

Class A Memberships 
Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc., 
entitled to one vote 

Class 6 Memberships 
All qualified members of Graham County Electric 
Cooperative, Inc., $5 membership fee, entitled 
to one vote per membership 

Class C Memberships 
All others who receive service, $5 membership 
fee, entitled to one vote per membership 

$ 5,000 $ 5,000 

21,689 21,414 

4,665 4,665 

$ 31,354 $ 31,079 
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7. Accumulated Margins (Deficits) 

This balance consists of net margins or (losses) as follows: 

Calendar Year 
1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
I993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 Nine Months 

Gas 
Department 

$ 6,702 
( 1 4,127) 
(91,410) 
(41 ,I 15) 
(64,937) 
(46,268) 
(1 72,043) 
(68,293) 
(65,806) 
225,309 
97,405 
1,467 
39,062 
61,124 
(5,764) 
62,759 
92,446 
141,801 
69,003 

(1 79,686) 
(400,801) 

Water 
Department 

3i (694) 
2,845 

(23,047) 
(13,851) 
5,077 
26,495 
(28,603) 
(3,409) 
(23,095) 
31,474 
62,256 
46,927 
40,741 
1,125 

69,524 
7,767 
47,242 
42,157 
36,636 
(26,292) 
(85,705) 

(I 89,706) (1 851 6) 
$ (542,878) $ 197,054 

Patronage Capital Retired 

$ (542,878) 
(82,035) 

$ 115,019 

Total 

$ 6,008 
(11,282) 
(1 14,457) 
(54,966) 
(59,860) 
(1 9,773) 
(200,646) 
(71,702) 
(88,901) 
256,783 
159,66 1 
48,394 
79,803 
62,249 
63,760 
70,526 
139,688 
183,958 
105,639 
(205,978) 
(486,506) 
(208,2221 

$ (345,824) 
(82,035) 

$ (427,859) 

The Board of Directors has adopted the policy of separating each department’s net gains or losses 
for allocation purposes. Patronage capital is allocated after all deficits have been recovered. During 
the year ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, no retirements of patronage capital were made. 

Under the mortgage agreement with CFC, until the equities or margins equal or exceed 30% of the 
total assets of the Cooperative, the return to patrons of capital contributed by them is limited. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

8. Mortgage Notes - CFC 

Following is a summary of long-term debt due CFC maturing between September 30, 201 4 and July 
7, 2040: 

Fixed - 7.10°/~ 
Fixed - 4.65% 
Fixed - 7.45% 
Fixed - 6.25% 
Fixed - 7.00% 
Fixed - 3.05% 

Less: Current Maturities 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

$ 529,547 $ 640,232 
182,393 222,961 

31 0,640 296,915 
35 1 ,250 359,137 
800,000 
250,000 

$ 2,410,105 $ 1,532,970 
197,000 172,900 

$ 2,213,105 $ 1,360,070 

Principal and interest installments on the above notes are due quarterly in amounts of approximately 
$66,200. As of September 30, 2009, annual maturities of long-term debt due CFC for the next 5 
years is as follows: 

201 1 
201 2 
201 3 
201 4 
2015 

$ 197,000 
210,000 
227,000 
240,000 
48,000 

The mortgages contain requirements requiring certain financial ratios to be maintained or exceeded. 
These requirements were not met during the year ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, 
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9. USDA Rural Development Note Payable 

Following is a summary of long-term debt due USDA Rural Development: 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

5.000% Note Maturing March, 2032 $ 137,260 $ 140,742 
247,329 4.500% Note Maturing August, 2035 

4.500% Note Maturing July, 2040 84,931 86,261 
4.125% Note Maturing March, 2047 1,069,923 1,082,670 

$ 1,534,266 $ 1,557,002 
Less: Current Maturities 23,500 22,500 

$ 1,510,766 $ 1,534,502 

242,152 

Principal and interest installments on the above notes are due monthly in amounts of $7,393. As of 
September 30, 2010, annual maturities of long-term debt due USDA Rural Development for the next 
five years are as follows: 

201 1 
201 2 
201 3 
201 4 
201 5 

$ 23,500 
24,400 
25,600 
26,700 
27,900 

10. Graham County Electric Note Payable 

During 1998, the Cooperative financed an accounts payable due to Graham County Electric 
Cooperative. The total cost of $500,000 is to be paid over 10 years in monthly payments including 
interest at the rate of 7.4%. The balance was paid off during the current period. 

11. AEPCO Note Payable 

During 1999, the Cooperative obtained a zero interest loan from the Arizona Electric Power 
Cooperative, Inc. through the Rural Economic Development Program of RUS. The total loan was 
$220,000, payable in monthly payments of $1,833 for 120 months. The balance was paid off during 
the current period. 

12. ClAC Refund Due 

As a part of the final ruling by the Arizona Corporation Commission on recent rate cases for both the 
gas and water utilities the Cooperative agreed to refund contributions in aid of construction 
previously charged to the members. The total to be refunded is $226,765 for the gas division and 
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$15,536 in the water division. The gas portion will be refunded over three years and is reflected in 
long term debt ($154,189) and current maturities of long term debt ($72,576). The water amount will 
be totally refunded in the next year and is reflected in Accounts Payable - Other. 

13. Related Parties 

The Cooperative is related by having substantially identical Boards of Directors and management 
with Graham County Electric Cooperative, inc. (GCEC). GCEC provides administrative and general, 
management, operations, consumer accounting, and construction services to the Cooperative under 
an operating and management agreement signed by both parties on June 20,1989. 

GCEC is also the guarantor of the mortgage loan executed by the Cooperative to CFC. 

Balances between the two Cooperatives are summarized as follows: 

Graham County Utilities, Inc. 
Accounts Payable 
Note Payable 

Net Due to Affiliated Cooperative 

Graham County Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
Accounts Receivable 
Note Receivable 

Net Due from Affiliated Cooperative 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

$ (834,642) $ (1,340,164) 
(1 4,607) 

$ (834,642) $ (1,354,7711 

$ 834,642 $ 1,340,164 
14,607 

$ 834,642 $ 1,354,771 

I 14. Litigation and Contingencies 

The Cooperative is not involved in any litigation that would materially affect the financial statements 

The Cooperative previously filed for rate increases in both water and gas companies with the Arizona 
Corporation Commission. During the current period the rate cases were concluded and new rates 
were implemented in June 2010. 

n 
15. Subsequent Events 

The Cooperative has evaluated subsequent events through November 2, 2010, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

I 
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ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON 
ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION 

Our audits of the basic financial statements presented in the preceding 
section of this report were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on 
such financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying information 
shown on pages 15 through 20 is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in 
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

+ / /u+A&,&+m-xLF 

Certified Public Accountants 

November 2, 2010 

-1 4- 
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GAS DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 1 

BALANCESHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

ASSETS 

UTILITY PLANT 
Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Plant Acquisition Adjustment 

Less Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amortization 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS AT COST OR 
STATEDVALUE 

Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Accounts Receivable (Less allowance for uncollectibles of 
$70,453 in 2010 and $76,885 in 2009) 

Materials and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

Total Current Assets 

Deferred Charges 

TOTAL ASSETS 

MEMBERS EQUITY 
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins (Deficits) 

LONG -TERM DEBT 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 
ClAC Refunds Due 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electric Cooperative 
Overbilled Consumers Fuel Cost 
Accrued Taxes 
Customers' Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

September 30, 
2010 2009 

$ 4,095,366 $ 3,743,276 
366,322 195,805 
415,484 41 5,484 

$ 4.877,172 $ 4,354,565 

2,353,251 2,207,546 
$ 2,523,921 $ 2,147,019 

$ 20,842 s 21,546 
84,805 75,283 
26,747 22,295 

$ 132,394 $ 119,124 

$ 24,057 $ 15.548 

$ 2.808.760 $ 2,416,032 

$ 28,854 $ 28.579 
(542,8781 (305,C16) 

$ (514.0241 $ (276.4373 

$ 1,709,163 $ 982.069 

$ 1,863,352 $ 982,063 
154,189 

$ 188,906 
60,616 

699,527 
378,378 
34,846 
67,220 
13,282 

$ 159,807 
69.351 

1,103,232 
247,529 

36,220 

13.096 
68.845 

16,657 12,320 
$ 1,459,432 $ 1,710,400 

$ 2,608,760 $ 2,415,032 
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GAS DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 2 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

September 30, Increase 
201 0 2009 (Decrease 1 

OPEFWTING REVENUES 
Residential 
Irrigation 
Commercial and Industrial 
Fuel Cost Under (Over) Billed 
Other Operating Revenues 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Gas 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Customer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other Interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) - Before 
Fixed Charges 

FIXED CHARGES 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) - After 
Fixed Charges 

Capital Credits 

NET OPERATING (DEFICIT) 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
Interest 

NET (DEFICIT) 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR 

$ 2,380,373 
6,681 

843,054 
24,648 

$ 2,678,432 $ (298,059) 
8,456 (1,775) 

976,257 (1 33,203) 
19,960 4,688 

(1 29,990) (280,168) 150,17a 
$ 3,124,766 $ 3,402,937 $ (278,171) 

$ 1,644,748 
303,884 
283,816 
306,437 
541,444 
145,705 
62,047 

$ 3,288,081 

$ (163,315) 

82.985 

$ (246,300) 

8,050 

$ (238,250) 

388 

$ (237,862) 

(305,016) 

$ (542,878) 

$ 2,100,652 $ (455,904) 
309,874 (5,990) 
376,161 (92,3453 

499,297 42,147 
137,095 8,610 
54,993 7.054 

$ 3,761,653 $ (473,572) 

283,581 22.a56 

$ (358,716) $ 195,401 

79,858 3,127 

$ (438,574) $ 192,274 

7,229 821 

$ (431,345) $ 193,095 

546 

$ (430,799) $ 192,937 

125,783 

$ (305,016) 
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GAS DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 3 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net (Deficit) to Net Cash 

Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Deferred Charges 
Over/( Under)billed Fuel Cost - Net 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments from - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Gas Utility Plant 
investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used  in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt - CFC 
ClAC Refunds Due 
Payments on Long-Term Debt - CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt - Graham County Electric Cooperative 
Memberships 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

$ (237,862) $ (430,799) 

145,705 
(4,025) 
(5,509) 

130,849 
704 

(1 3,974) 
(721 1 I 

137,095 
(9,229) 
3,467 

279,946 
35,674 
14,051 

(1 9,624) 
(403,705) 352,481 

$ (395,028) $ 363,062 

$ (522,607) $ (239,405) 

$ (515,629) $ (228,924) 
6,978 10,481 

$ 800,000 $ 
226,765 

(1 01,776) (92,860) 
(1 4,607) (41,728) 

275 450 
$ 910,657 $ (134,138) 

$ O $  0 

0 0 

$ O $  0 

$ 82,985 $ 82,630 
$ O $  0 



UTILITY PLANT AT COST 
Water Plant in Service 
Construction Work in Progress 
Plant Acquisition Adjustment 
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WATER DEPARTMENT 

Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation 
and Amortization 

BALANCE SHEET 
SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

ASSETS 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS AT COST OR 
STATEDVALUE 

Investments in Associated Organizations 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - General 
Accounts Receivable - Customers (Less allowance for 

Materials and Supplies 
Other Current and Accrued Assets 

uncollectibles of $14,091 in 2010 and $15,477 in 2009) 

Total Current Assets 

DEFERREDCHARGES 

NET ASSETS 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

E Q U l N  
Memberships 
Accumulated Margins 

LONG-TERM DEBT 
CFC Mortgage Notes Less Current Maturities 
AEPCO Notes Payable Less Current Maturities 
USDA Rural Development Notes Less Current Maturities 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt 
Accounts Payable - Other 
Accounts Payable - Graham County Electric Cooperative 
Accrued Taxes 
Customers' Deposits and Prepayments 
Accrued Interest 
Accrued Payroll 

Total Current Liabilities 

NET EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES 

Schedule 4 

September 30, 
2010 2009 

$ 3,377,616 $ 3,277,087 
223,244 201,507 
610,168 610,168 

$ 4,211,028 $ 4,088,762 

2,042,624 1,924,069 
$ 2,168,404 $ 2,164,693 

$ 103,445 $ 103.711 

$ 46,648 $ 46,579 

19,319 13,609 
62,610 62,895 
8,916 7,432 

$ 137,493 $ 130,515 

$ 29,731 $ 24.680 

$ 2,439,073 $ 2,423,599 - 

$ 2,500 $ 2.500 
115,019 144,067 

$ 117,519 $ 146,567 

$ 503,942 

1,510,766 
$ 2,014,708 

$ 104.170 
21,483 

135,115 
23,453 
10,405 
6,224 
5,996 

$ 306,846 

$ 2.439.073 

8 378.001 
3,667 

1,534.502 
$ 1,916,170 

$ 72,200 
12,125 

236.928 
21,097 
8,405 
6,103 
4.004 

$ 360.862 

$ 2,423.599 
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GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

WATER DEPARTMENT 
Schedule 5 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED MARGINS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2010 AND 2009 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Residential 
Commercial and Industrial 
Sales for Resale 
Other Operating Revenues 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased Power - Pumping 
Operations 
Maintenance 
Customer Accounts 
Administrative and General 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Other interest 

Total Operating Expenses 

OPERATING MARGINS - Before 
Fixed Charges 

FIXED CHARGES 
interest on Long-Term Debt 

OPERATING (DEFICIT) - After Fixed Charges 

Capital Credits 

NET OPERATING (DEFICIT) 

NONOPERATING MARGINS 
interest 

NET (DEFICIT) 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - BEGINNING 
OF YEAR 

ACCUMULATED MARGINS - END OF YEAR 

September 30, Increase 
2010 2009 (Decrease) 

$ 575,793 
60,484 
38,719 
4,991 

$ 679,987 

$ 49,922 
64,972 
180,383 
63,484 
131,282 
118,555 

$ 546,737 $ 29,056 
50,027 10,457 
31,186 7,533 
3,820 1,171 

$ 631,770 $ 48,217 

$ 40,037 $ 9,885 

163,465 16,918 

131,443 (161) 

65,603 (631 i 

59,094 4,390 

145,757 (27,202) 
17,236 14,040 3,196 

$ 625,834 $ 619,439 $ 6,395 

$ 54,153 

91,923 

$ (37,770) 

8.653 

$ (29,117) 

144,067 

$ 115,019 

$ 12,331 $ 41.822 

100,806 (8,883) 

$ (88,475) $ 50,705 

2,722 5,931 

$ (85,753) $ 56,636 

62 7 

$ (85,691) $ 56,643 

229,758 

$ 144,067 
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WATER DEPARTMENT 
GRAHAM COUNTY UTILITIES, INC. 

Schedule 6 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2010 AND 2009 

September 30, 
201 0 2009 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net (Deficit) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Net (Deficit) to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Capital Credits - Noncash 
Deferred Charges 
Accounts Receivable 
Inventories and Other Current Assets 
Payables and Accrued Expenses 
Net Payments from (to) - Graham County Electric Cooperative 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to Plant 
Investments in Associated Organizations 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FlNANCtNG ACTIVITIES 
Advances on Long-Term Debt from CFC 
Payments on Note Payable to AEPCO 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to CFC 
Payments on Long-Term Debt to USDA 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) financing Activities 

$ (29,048) $ (85,691) 

1 18,555 145,757 
(1,460) (2,722) 
(5,051) (7.81 7) 
(5,710) 936 

16,028 (33,680) 
(1,199) (7,255) 

(101,813) 169,986 
$ (9,698) $ 179,514 

$ (122,467) $ (76,175) 
1,726 6.51 7 

$ (120,741) $ (69,658) 

$ 250,000 $ 
(25,667) (22,000) 
(71,089) (64,469) 
(22,736) (21,325) 

$ 130,508 $ (107,794) 

INCREASE IN CASH $ 69 $ 2,062 

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH - END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATfON 

Paid During the Year for: 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Federal Income Tax 

46,579 44,517 

$ 46,648 $ 46,579 - 
$ 91,923 $ 96,991 
s o s  0 
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